
CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING*

FRANKLIN CITY HALL -- COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA**
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2019 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval ofMinutes - Regular Common Council Meeting of October 15, 2019.

D. Hearings:

E. Organizational Business.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Consent Agenda:

(a) Approval by Common Council to Allow the Fire Department to Dispose of a Staff
Vehicle That is no Longer in Service by Sending it to Auction.

(b) Donation from the Residents of Brenwood Park in the Amount of $1020.25 to the
Fire Department.

(c) Donation from Rose Spang in the Amount of $200 to the Police Department to be
Deposited into the Police Donation Account.

2. Concept Review for a Proposed Challenge Tower (Similar to and Sometimes Referred to
as Compact Aerial Courses or High Rope Courses)(to be Located at The Rock Sports
Complex, North ofthe Umbrella Bar, at Approximately 7005 South Ballpark Drive) (Rock
Snow Park, LLC, Applicant).

3. Project Updates for Ballpark Commons.
4. Authorization to Execute Project Documents with SKC Communications and Avaya for

an Amount not to Exceed $75,000 to Replace the Police Department Phone System and
Make Recommended Phone System Enhancements.

5. Police and Fire Commission Request to Revise the Job Descriptions for Police Patrol
Officer and Firefighter/Paramedic.

6. An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Chapter 133 Fire Prevention, Protection, and
Control Code, of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin.

7. Request from the Director of Health and Human Services to Authorize Officials for the
City ofFranklin to Sign the Addendum to the 2019-2022 Contract to Administer the Retail
Food and Recreation Programs for the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and
Consumer Protection.

8. Request from Director of Health and Human Services to Accept the 2020 Consolidated
Contract Grants for the Following Programs: Childhood Immunizations, Maternal Child
Health, Lead, Communicable Disease, Emergency Preparedness and Preventive Health
Services.

9. Electric Service Installation Agreement for the Pleasant View Park Pavilion (4901 W.
Evergreen Street) From We Energies in the Amount of $7,303.68.
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10. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2018-2345, an Ordinance Adopting the 2019 Annual
Budgets for TID 3 to Appropriate Additional Developer Grant Funds Delayed from 2018.

11. Release of Escrow Deposit for the Public Improvements at The Wellness Center Located
at 8800 S. 102nd Street.

12. Franklin Economic Development Annual Report.
13. Staff Direction Regarding Infrastructure Development for Franklin Corporate Park and

Purchasing Pump Station Equipment from USEMCO for $182,816.00.
14. Submittal of the W. Puetz Road Surface Transportation Urban Program (STP) Grant

Applications for the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WISDOT) 2020-2025
Program Cycle.

15. Employee Benefit-Related Insurance Coverages, Carriers and Premium Shares, Including
Health Insurance, Stop Loss, Broker Services, Voluntary Long-Term Disability Insurance
(LTD), Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance (AD&D), Including
Voluntary Supplemental Life Insurance and a Voluntary Vision Plan.

16. September 2019 Monthly Financial Report.
17. Recommendation to Opt-Out of the Federal Negotiation Class Pertaining to the National

Prescription Opiate Litigation.
18. Recommendation from the Committee of the Whole Meeting ofNovember 4, 2019: Johns

Disposal Services, Inc. Contract Amendment Options to Provide Weekly Recycling and
Automated Garbage Services.

19. Tax Incremental District No. 6 Mixed-Use Industrial, Commercial, Retail, Single-Family
Residential and Open Space Uses (of an approximate 164-acre site generally located north
and south of West Loomis Road, south of West Ryan Road, west of South 112th Street,
east of South 124th Street and north of West Oakwood Road) Project Development; Tax
Incremental District No. 6 Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin and
Loomis and Ryan, Inc.; Acknowledgement of Development Agreement by Strauss
Investments, LLC; Tax Assessment Agreement (Tax Incremental District No. 6) between
the City of Franklin and Strauss Investments, LLC. The Common Council may enter
closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 19.851)(e), to deliberate upon the Tax Incremental
District No. 6 Mixed-Use Industrial, Commercial, Retail, Single-Family Residential and
Open Space Uses Project Development, the Tax Incremental District No. 6 Development
Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Loomis and Ryan, Inc., the
Acknowledgement ofDevelopment Agreement by Strauss Investments, LLC, and the Tax
Assessment Agreement (Tax Incremental District No. 6) between the City ofFranklin and
Strauss Investments, LLC terms and status, the negotiation of provisions and terms and
the investing of public funds in relation thereto, for competitive and bargaining reasons,
and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate.

20. Potential commercial/industrial/manufacturing development(s) and proposal(s) and
potential development(s) agreement(s) in relation thereto for the+/- 73 acres propert(ies)
at the Southwest corner of South 27th Street and West Oakwood Road. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), for market
competition and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to potential
commercial/industrial/manufacturing development(s) and proposal(s) and the investing of
public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such
development(s), including the terms and provisions ofpotential development agreement(s)
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for the development of +/- 73 acres propert(ies) at the Southwest corner of South 27th
Street and West Oakwood Road, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter
to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

21. Potential development and proposal and potential development agreement by and with ZS
Enterprises, LLC for Franklin Corporate Park property located on the south side of West
Elm Road in the approximately 3500 block area were West Elm Road to be extended to
the west, consisting of approximately 79.79 acres and bearing Tax Key No. 979-9997-000.
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), for
market competition and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to
potential development and proposal and the investing of public funds and governmental
actions in relation thereto and to effect such development, including the terms and
provisions of a potential development agreement for the development of property located
on the south side ofWest Elm Road in the approximately 3500 block area were West Elm
Road to be extended to the west, consisting of approximately 79.79 acres and bearing Tax
Key No. 979-9997-000, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on
such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

I. Licenses and Permits.
Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting ofNovember 5, 2019.

J. Adjournment.

Notice is given that a major1ty ofthe Economic Development Commission may attend thus meeting to gather mnformat1on
about an agenda item over which the Economic Development Commission has decision-making responsibility This may
constitute a meeting of the Economic Development Commission, per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Economic Development Commission will not take formal action at this meeting

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during normal business hours
[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrvduals through appropriate
aids and services For additional 1format1on, contact the City Clerk's office at (4 14) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

November 7
November 19
November 21
November 28 & 29
December 3
December 5
December 17
December 19
December 24 & 25

Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
City Hall Closed for Thanksgiving Holiday
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
City Hall Closed for Christmas Holiday

7:00 p.m.
6:30p.m.
7:00p.m.

6:30p.m.
7:00 p.m.
6:30p.m.
7:00p.m.



a.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
OCTOBER 15, 2019

MINUTES

ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

RES. 2019-7552
RENAME SEWER &
WATER OPERATIONS
CENTER

MAYOR
ANNOUNCEMENT

MINUTES-COW MTG
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

MINUTES-CC MTG
OCTOBER 1, 2019

A. The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on October 15,
2019 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance:
Alderman Mark Dandrea, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman
Kristen Wilhelm, Alderman Steve F. Taylor (arrived at 6:47 p.m.),
Alderman Mike Barber, and Alderman John R. Nelson. Also present
were City Engineer Glen Morrow, Dir. of Administration Mark
Luberda, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra
Wesolowski.

B.1. Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and closed at
6:43 p.m.

G.12. Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2019-7552, A
RESOLUTION TO RENAME THE SEWER AND WATER
OPERATIONS CENTER AT 5550 W. AIRWAYS AVENUE TO
THE "JOHN M. BENNETT, P.E., UTILITIES OPERATION
CENTER" and further to direct staff to apply for a sign permit and
have signage on building changed. Seconded by Alderman Nelson.
All voted Aye; motion carried. (See Item G.12. following Item D.l .)

B.2. Mayor Olson presented Certificates of Appreciation for Serving as
Kayla's Playground Ambassadors to the following: Michelle
"Shelly" Runte, Joseph Zolecki, Samantha Lemke, Ashlyn Kucharski,
Beverly Garves, Dan Crass, Ellen Crass, Jeffery Steier, Doug
Milinovich, Christine Dunn, Kamryn Witkowiak, Luanne McGregor,
Mark Laing, Jim Collins, Cindy Knueppel, Marta Cruciani, Fred
Knueppel and Joe Collins.

Alderman Taylor arrived at 6:47 p.m.

C.1. Alderman Dandrea moved to approve the minutes of the Committee
of the Whole meeting of September 30, 2019 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

C.2. Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council meeting of October 1, 2019 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion
carried.
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MINUTES-SPECIAL CC C.3.
OCTOBER 9, 2019

HEARINGS D.1.
2025 COMP MASTER
PLAN
8429 & 8459 W. FOREST
HILLAVE.

RES. 2019-7552 G.12.
RENAME SEWER &
WATER OPERATIONS
CENTER

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the special
Common Council meeting of October 9, 2019 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

HEARINGS
2025 COMP MASTER
PLAN
S. SCEPTER DR./W.
CHURCHST.

ORD. 2019-2392
AMEND 2025 COMP

D.2.

A public hearing was called to order at 6:52 p.m. regarding a
proposed Ordinance to amend the City of Franklin 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan to change the Future Land Use Map use
designation for property generally located at 8429 and 8459 West
Forest Hill Avenue, from Residential Use and Areas of Natural
Resource Features Use to Institutional Use and Areas of Natural
Resource Features Use (Franklin Public Schools, Applicant,
Ronald S. Pesche and Susan D. Pesche, property owners). Alderman
Barber moved to hold over the public hearing until December 3, 2019.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to reconsider action taken to adopt
Resolution No. 2019-7552, A RESOLUTION TO RENAME THE
SEWER AND WATER OPERATIONS CENTER AT 5550 W.
AIRWAYS AVENUE TO THE "JOHN M. BENNETT, P.E.,
UTILITIES OPERATION CENTER" and further to direct staff to
apply for a sign permit and have signage on building changed.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

It was then moved by Alderman Mayer to adopt Resolution No. 2019­
7552, A RESOLUTION TO RENAME THE SEWER AND WATER
OPERATIONS CENTER AT 5550 W. AIRWAYS AVENUE TO
THE "JOHN M. BENNETT, P.E., UTILITIES OPERATION
CENTER" and further to direct staff to apply for a sign permit and
have signage on building changed. Seconded by Alderman Nelson.
On roll call, all voted Aye; motion carried.

A public hearing was called to order at 6:59 p.m. regarding a
proposed Ordinance to amend the City of Franklin 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan to change the Future Land Use Map use
designation for property generally located at South Scepter Drive and
West Church Street, from Mixed Use to Residential Multi-Family Use
(William Bodner, Managing member, Bodner Property Management,
LLC, applicant). The property which is the subject of this application
bears Tax Key No. 795-9999-008, consisting of approximately 5.723
acres ofland. The public hearing was closed at 6:59 p.m.

G.3. Alderman Taylor moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2019-2392, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025



Common Council Meeting
October 15, 2019
Page 3

MASTER PLAN TO
CHANGE FUTURE
LAND USE MAP AT S.
SCEPTER DR. & W.
CHURCH ST.
(BODNER PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT, LLC,
APPLICANT)

CONSENT AGENDA

EHLERS & ASSOC.
DISSEMINATION
AGENT

DONATIONS

G.1.

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN 2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTY
GENERALLY LOCATED AT SOUTH SCEPTER DRIVE AND
WEST CHURCH STREET FROM MIXED USE TO
RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY USE (APPROXIMATELY 5.723
ACRES) (WILLIAM BODNER, MANAGING MEMBER, BODNER
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, LLC, APPLICANT). Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, Alderman Nelson, Alderman Barber,
Alderman Taylor, Alderwoman Wilhelm, and Alderman Dandrea
voted Aye; Alderman Mayer voted No. Motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to approve the following consent agenda
items:

G.1.(a) Direct staff to engage Ehlers & Associates for Dissemination Agent
for Issuer Continuing Disclosure services for 2020 Required under
Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12.

G.1.(b) Accept donations received during August and September, 2019 to the
Police, Fire, Health and Parks.

DONATIONS TO POLICE G.1.(c)
DEPT. & POLICE K-9

ORD. 2019- G.2.
AMEND THE 2025
COMP MASTER PLAN
TO CHANGE FUTURE
LAND USE AT 8429 &
8459 W. FOREST HILL
AVE.
(FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, APPLICANT)

Accept the following donations for the Franklin Police Department
for deposit into their respective accounts: General, Robert Jester,
$100; K-9 Fund, Franklin Police Citizen Academy Association,
$5,000.

Approval of the Consent Agenda items was seconded by Alderman
Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

An update reference adopting an Ordinance to amend the City of
Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan to change the City of
Franklin 2025 Future Land use Map for properties located at 8429 and
8459 West Forest Hill Avenue from Residential Use and Areas of
Natural Resource Features use to Institutional Use and Areas of
Natural Resource Features use (approximately 13.974 acres) (Franklin
Public Schools, Applicant, Ronald S. Pesche and Susan D. Pesche,
Property Owners), was tabled until the December 3, 2019 Common
Council Meeting. (See Item D.1.)
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ORD. 2019-2393 G.4.
REZONE FROM R-3 TO
R-8 AT S. SCEPTER DR.
& W. CHURCH ST.

RES. 2019-7553 G.5.
SPECIAL USE FOR
MULTI-FAMILY
APARTMENT
BUILDINGS AT S.
SCEPTER DR. & W.
CHURCH ST.

ORD. 2019-2394 G.6.
AMEND 2019 BUDGET
FOR TID4

RES. 2019-7554 G.7.
AMEND TASK ORDER
NO. 5 &NO. 6,
AUTHORIZE TO SIGN
CONTRACT FOR LAND
ACQUISITION SVCS. &
TO SOLICIT SUPPLIERS
FOR SANITARY SEWER
LIFT STATION
EQUIPMENT

Alderman Taylor moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2019-2393, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN
PARCEL OF LAND FROM R-3 SUBURBAN/ESTATE SINGLE­
FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT TO R-8 MULTIPLE-FAMILY
RESIDENCE DISTRICT (GENERALLY LOCATED AT SOUTH
SCEPTER DRIVE AND WEST CHURCH STREET)
(APPROXIMATELY 5.723 ACRES). (WILLIAM BODNER,
MANAGING MEMBER, BODNER PROPERTY MANAGEMENT,
LLC, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. On roll
call, Alderman Dandrea, Alderwoman Wilhelm, Alderman Taylor,
Alderman Barber, and Alderman Nelson voted Aye; Alderman Mayer
voted No. Motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to adopt Resolution No. 2019-7553, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A FIVE 8-UNIT
MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT BUILDINGS (40
UNITS) USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT
APPROXIMATELY SOUTH SCEPTER DRIVE AND WEST
CHURCH STREET (WILLIAM BODNER, MANAGING
MEMBER, BODNER PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, LLC,
APPLICANT) subject to technical corrections. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. Alderman Nelson, Alderman Barber, Alderman
Taylor, Alderwoman Wilhelm, and Alderman Dandrea voted Aye;
Alderman Mayer voted No. Motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2019-2394, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2018-2345, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2019 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
TID 4 TO APPROPRIATE $10,000 OF APPRAISER
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. On
roll call, all voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to adopt Resolution No. 2019-7554, A
RESOLUTION TO AMEND TASK ORDER NO. 5 AND NO. 6 OF
RUEKERT & MIELKE, INC.'S CONTRACT FOR FRANKLIN
CORPORATE PARK, PHASE 1 DATED NOVEMBER 4 2014.
ALSO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO OBTAIN AND SIGN A
CONTRACT WITH LAND APPRAISER FOR LAND
ACQUISITION SERVICES RELATED TO THIS PROJECT AND
SOLICIT EQUIPMENT SUPPLIERS FOR PROVIDING MAJOR
SANITARY SEWER LIFT STATION EQUIPMENT. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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ORD. 2019-2395
AMEND 2019 BUDGET
FOR TID 7 FOR LEGAL
COSTS

G.8.

REQUEST TO REPEAL G.9.
AND RECREATE
CHAPTER 133 OF THE
MUNICIPAL ORD.

FIRE PROTECTION G.10.
PLAN REVIEW AND
INSPECTION SVCS. FOR
FIRE DEPT.

WATERMAIN G.11.
EXTENSION S. 27 ST. &
W.ACREAVE.

DPW TO SELL SURPLUS G.13.
EQUIPMENT

STAR FIRE SYSTEMS
FOR LIBRARY AND
CITY HALL

REPORT ON STATE
REQUIREMENT TO
IMPLEMENT POWTS

CITY HALL PROJECT
UPDATE AND MAIN
ENTRANCE EXTRAS

Alderman Taylor moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2019-2395, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2019-2381, AN
ORDINANCE CREATING THE 2019 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
TID 7 TO PROVIDE FOR LEGAL COSTS IN THE TID. Seconded
by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to accept the request to Repeal and Replace
Chapter 133 ofMunicipal Ordinance (Fire Prevention, Protection, and
Control Code) with the revised version submitted with this document,
with revisions explained herein. Seconded by Alderman Taylor. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve an agreement between the City of
Franklin (Fire Department) and Fire Safety Consultants, Inc. to
provide Fire Protection Plan Review and Inspection Services.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to deny the request to survey property
owners to extend watermain along South 27th Street and West Acre
Avenue. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to authorize staff to accept the highest bids
received on the Wisconsin Surplus auction website and sell the
surplus equipment (per the recommendations distributed at the
meeting for the bids received on October 15, 2019). Seconded by
Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.14. Alderman Taylor moved to authorize the Director of Administration
to accept the three-year proposal from Starfire Systems, Inc. for City
Hall and Library Fire Alarm and Fire Extinguisher Service and
Maintenance. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

G.15. Alderman Taylor moved to receive and place on file a report on the
new State requirement for each Municipality to develop and
implement a Comprehensive Private Onsite Wastewater Treatment
System (POWTS) Maintenance Program. Seconded by Alderman
Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.16. Alderman Barber moved to accept the update on the City Hall Roof,
RVAC, and Fascia Wood Replacement Project, including contingent
project costs, and authorize the Director of Administration to not use



Common Council Meeting
October 15, 2019
Page 6

CITY HALL SIDEWALK G.17.
REPAIR WITH
MUDTECH, LLC

CLERK'S OFFICE G.18.
ASBESTOS
ABATEMENT
CONTRACT TO
INTEGRITY ENV. SVCS.

CARPETING G.19.
CONTRACT TO STU'S
FLOORING, LTD. FOR
CLERK'S OFFICE AND
C. COAKLEY FOR
OFFICE HANDLING

AUGUST 2019 G.20.
FINANCIAL REPORT

BS&A'S WATER G.21.
UTILITY BILLING
SOFTWARE

VOUCHERS AND H.1.
PAYROLL

more than $4,000 of the contingency funds for acquisition of two
benches, a waste receptacle and a cigarette receptacle for the main
entrance. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to authorize the Director of Administration
to accept a proposal for sidewalk repair (mudjacking) at City Hall for
$8,150 with MUDTeCH, LLC, with the work to become part of the
City Hall Roof, HVAC and Fascia Wood Replacement Project
appropriation. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to accept the proposal for asbestos abatement
in the area comprising the City Clerk's Offices from Integrity
Environmental Services, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $8,400, and
authorize the Director of Administration to execute such a contract
once it is incorporated into the City's contract template format.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to use contingency appropriations from the
City Hall roof, HVAC and Fascia Wood Replacement Project to
accept the proposals and award contracts to Stu's Flooring LTD for
carpeting the City Clerk's Offices for $13,545, subject to publication
of a notice as required and to C. Coakley Relocation Services for
workstation and furniture handling for $9,450, for a total of $22,995.
Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to receive and place on file the August, 2019
Monthly Financial Report. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the purchase of BS&A' s Water
Utility Billing Software including execution of the Software Licenses
and Services Agreement and to authorize the Director of
Administration to execute the necessary documents. Seconded by
Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to approve the following:
City vouchers with an ending date of October 10, 2019 in the amount
of $3,230,053.54; and payroll dated October 11, 2019 in the amount
of $388,560.71 and payments of the various payroll deductions in the
amount of $204,374.45, plus City matching payments; and estimated
payroll dated October 25, 2019 in the amount of $393,000.00 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$416,000.00 plus City matching payments; and Property Tax
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investments with an ending date of October 10, 2019 in the amount of
$325.00. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. On roll call, all voted Aye.
Motion carried.

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

ADJOURNMENT

1.1.

J.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following license
recommendations from the License Committee meeting of
October 15, 2019:
Grant 2019-2020 Operator licenses to Aimee M Arndt, 2955 W
Drexel Ave, #408; Brianna S Boyden, 2801 S Chicago Ave., South
Milwaukee; Jessica M Curler, S69 W15092 Cornell Cir., Muskego;
Grant Change of Agent for Wal-Mart Stores East, LP, Veronica
Wright, 11321 W Oklahoma Ave, #43, West Allis; and
Grant Temporary Entertainment & Amusement to Victory of the
Lamb Lutheran Church for a Classic Car Display and Free Family
Fun Day (Samantha Goodger) on 10/26/19 and a Free
Community/Family Holiday Festivities (Samantha Goodger) on
12/06/19 at 11120 W Loomis Rd.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:38 p.m.
Seconded by AldermanNelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

/sl9017
REPORTS AND Request Common Council approval to allow the Fire

RECOMMENDATIONS Department to dispose of a staff vehicle that is no
longer in service by sending it to auction.

ITEM NUMBER

G.4.(a.)

The Fire Department is seeking council approval to dispose of an older staff vehicle that is not
currently in service with the Department. The vehicle would be sent to auction, and any funds
recovered through their sale would be returned to the general fund.

The vehicle is a 2014 Ford Explorer that was formerly a Police Department Patrol squad. It has
approximately 100,000 miles and is in need of costly repairs to the transmission and catalytic
converters. The vehicle would be sent to auction, and replaced by a newer police vehicle that is being
rotated out of service.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Fire Department request to dispose of a 2014 Ford Explorer vehicle by
sending them it auction, with proceeds returned to the general fund.

Fire: AJR
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APPROVAL

ah&e­

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE
I J "; '5lo?

~. fj e,4 t '
• f

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Donation from the Residents ofBrenwood Park in
the amount of $1020.25 to the Fire Department yt Ic,.:,.,,(, D

The residents of Brenwood Park Senior Apartments have generously donated the proceeds of
their annual bake sale and craft fair to the Franklin Fire Department. The department relies on
donations to help fund fire prevention educational programs and other safety initiatives in the
community.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Request approval to accept $1020.25 donation from the residents of Brenwood Park, to be used
toward funding fire prevention activities.

Fire/AJR
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APPROVAL

sh»
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

/slaor9y'
REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

FRANKLIN POLICE DEPARTMENT

DONATIONS

ITEM NUMBER

G. he)
The Franklin Police Department received the following donation:

POLICE DONATIONS - GENERAL
10/15/19 Rose Spang $200 00

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Respectfully request that the above donation be approved for deposit into the Police Donation
account.
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APPROVA}e}
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE

11/05/19

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

CONCEPT REVIEWFORA PROPOSED
CHALLENGE TOWER

(TO BE LOCATED AT THEROCK SPORTS
COMPLEX, NORTH OF THE UMBRELLA
BAR, AT APPROXIMATELY 7005 SOUTH

BALLPARKDRIVE)
(ROCK SNOWPARK,LLC, APPLICANT)

ITEM NUMBER

INTRODUCTION:
The applicant, Rock Snow Park LLC (operator ofthe Crystal Ridge Ski Hill), has submitted
information about a proposed Challenge Tower to be located north of the Umbrella Bar at
The Rock Sports Complex. It can be noted that challenge towers (similar to and sometimes
referred to as compact aerial courses or high rope courses) are typically tall structures
designed to provide rope courses comprised ofnumerous swinging, climbing, and balancing
challenges.

The applicant is proposing to relocate an existing challenge tower in central Indiana to The
Rock Sports Complex. The challenge tower is an approximately 50' tall, three level
structure, with anobservation deck, and an approximately 50' x 50' octagonal footprint. The
applicant also indicates that: a foundation will be engineered for this structure; a fence,
pathways and seatmg will be placed around the structure; the area will be well lit; and
security cameras will be installed.

The applicant has not indicated ifadd1tonal accessory uses or structures will be constructed,
such as: parking, loading, unloading, or storage areas; or challenge tower related elements
such as zip lines, quick jump/free fall devices, etc. In addition, the applicant has not
indicated what the hours ofoperation or signage would be for the Challenge Tower.

STAFF COMMENTS:
Staffwould note that the proposed Challenge Tower would require:
• A Planned Development District (PDD) Major Amendment to allow the challenge

tower/aerial ropes course as a permitted or special use.
• A Site Plan or Special Use to allow the tower and any associated accessory uses and

signage to be constructed, and to remove or revise the reserved area for future parking
that is located within the subject area.

• A Building Permit, and associated fill/soils disturbing, erosion control, stormwater
management, structural analysis, etc. permits and approvals.

City staffalso has the followmg comments/concerns:
• The Challenge Tower has been proposed within an area reserved for future parking

(approximately 56 parking spaces) as set forth in the Ballpark Commons Parking
Study that was adopted as part of PDD No. 37. Staffhas concerns with removal of
any reserved parking areas, particularly if it is to accommodate additional uses and
activities which would generate additional parking demands.

• The applicant has not indicated how much of the proposed site and tower would be
lit. If the entire tower were to be lit, that would create another sigmficant source of
light, and m thus case, extending at least 50 feet into the a1r.
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• The applicant has not provided any details about mandatory and recommended safety
precautions, who would regulate/enforce them, and how that would be done.

• It appears the proposed Challenge Tower would be slightly higher than the Umbrella
Bar and the ski chalet, but signi ficantly shorter than the ski hill or the proposed
indoor/outdoor golf facility's fencing/netting.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Provide direction to the applicant regarding the proposed Challenge Tower to be located at The
Rock Sports Complex, north of the Umbrella Bar, at approximately 7005 South Ballpark Drive
(Rock Snow Park, LLC, Applicant).

Department of City Development: JED
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Overview
Rock Snow Park, LLC is looking to build a challenge tower at the Rock Sports Complex. Some feature of
the tower include

• 50 elements, including a kids course
• 50' x 50' octoganal footprint
• 50' tall, with 3 levels of obstacles and an observation deck on the top

Consultant
In preparing to do this study, we hired a challenge course expert to perform a feasibility study on the
location In his executive summary, he concluded.

The Rock Snow Park Aerial Park has the potential to be a profitable attraction. The
site provides easy access and infrastructure, and the attraction would provide a great
adventure experience for many of the area's visitors and residents Not only would
the venture benefit from the proposed location, but the unique aerial attraction may
incentivize new customers to visit the area, creating a mutually beneficial relationship

with other local businesses.

If positioned correctly and marketed well to residents throughout the area, the park
should draw a large number of new visitors and see additional growth over time. The
Strategic Adventures team has concluded that this project should take next steps,

assuming that the projected returns fit within the owner's requirements.

-Paul Cummings, Strategic Adventures

The Tower
The challenge tower is currently constructed and standing in central Indiana. It was installed in 2016
and closed for numerous reasons, primarily location The tower is a KristallTurm KT-7. KristallTurm is a
reputable German company that has installed numerous challenge towers in the around the world and
in the United States Two of the more popular KT towers are.

https://soaradventure.com/

https://castlerockziplinetours.com/sky-trek.html

The challenge tower industry has oversight from the Association for Challenge Course Technology
[ACCT] ACCT is an American National Standards Institute (ANSI) accredited standards developer for the
global challenge course, aerial adventure park, canopy tour, and zip line industry.

2



https://www.acctinfo.org/

If approved, the tower will be deconstructed, transported, and re-constructed by Adventure
Development Team, and American based ACCT member Once installed, the work of Adventure
Development Team will be inspected and approved by another ACCT member

Foundation
If approved, the foundation will be engineered by Glynn Engineering, a structural and soils engineering
firm that has done foundation engineering for adventure towers in the past. We will work closely with
the WDNR to determine limitations and restrictions given the nature of the landfill. At the proposed
location.

Costs
We project the total project cost to be $741,030.

0Pig" IS n ae e egg 1

t#tr Start-up Costs
1-;,
,

Land and Improvements $ 35,000
Attractions $ 350,000
Equipment $ 40,000
FF&E $ 8,250
Personnel $ 27,750
Marketing $ 75,000
Professional Services $ 92,600
Total Start-Up Costs $ 628,600
E a Other Costs , ]
Contingency Capital 5% of Startup Cost $
Beginning Working Capital 3 Months Fixed Cost $
Total Project Cost $

31,430
81,000

741,030

Safety
Safety is of the utmost concern both for guests and employees of the adventure park. All more current
challenge towers, including the one at our proposed site, use a smart-belay system. Once a participant
enters the course, it is virtually impossible for them to unclip from the system until they are back safely
on the ground If anyone falls from an obstacle, they never fall more than a few feet. If they are unable
to rescue themselves, there are numerous course workers that can assist them. The course is designed
so that course workers can safely customers to ground from anywhere on the course

3



The ACCT as well as Adventure Development Team, offer numerous trainings and certifications to our
staff to make sure that they and the guests are safe All harnesses and equipment used are routinely
inspected and certified annually to ensure proper function.

Access
Access to the course outside of operating hours is a concern that we take very seriously. The entire
course will be fenced off and well lit at night. All points of access will have high-definition security
cameras. The staircase (only point to enter the tower) is also gated and locked Warning and No
Trespassing signs will be made clearly visible from all points of access.

Summary
We believe that the proposed challenge tower matches the mission of Rock Snow Park to provide
healthy, safe, outdoor recreation for families The tower will not only provide a healthy and fun outlet
for numerous current visitors to Ballpark Commons, but it will draw thousands of visitors to city on its
own

4
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Photos of Complete KT-7 Towers
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3-D Rendering of Complete Tower
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Foundation Engineering from Original Install
[
lhl

2015-05-28­
Rugged Adventures
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Foundation Layout
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Additional Drawings

[ I
KT_03900.pdf KT_04_Stern pdf KT_7_Pole_Mini_To

p.pdf
overview pdf Ziplinefoundations game to tower pdf

plan pdf

end station and
tower pdf
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APPROVAL

Sw
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE

November 5, 2019

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

Project Updates for Ballpark Commons ITEM NUMBER

G,3,

Representatives from Ballpark Commons will present an update on the development.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

No action requested. This presentation is only for providing updates on the Ballpark Commons project.

Economic Development Department - CB
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APPROVAL

a. #l
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

11/5/2019

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

Authorization to execute project documents with
SKC Communications and Avaya for an amount not
to exceed $75,000 to replace the Police Department

phone system and make recommended
phone system enhancements

ITEM NUMBER

The 2019 Budget has $75,000 for replacement of the phone system at the Police Department. The
current system is around 18 years old and is no longer serviced by Avaya. Although some third­
party, unauthorized vendors can still provide hardware technical support, if something happens
with the software, support would not be available. In 2018, when the City Hall replaced its phone
system, the City Hall components were sized to allow a new Police Department system to link in and
tie together making that system less expensive.

Attached is the proposal from SKC Communications for the work and is based upon the analysis and
discussion between Information Services, the Police Department, and the Director of Administration.
Four of the six project components are recommended for consideration. The following components
of the proposal are recommended by staff.

1. Core Components
2. 1 Gateways for Local 911 Service (Library)
3. "Air Gap" Work
4. Enhanced Survivability at Police

TOTAL

$60,133
$5,105
$1,273
$7,733
$74,244

The key to the project is the core components, naturally. It is being set up in a manner that allows the
Police Department phone system to remain functional if the City Hall network goes down or network
connection is broken. It is not a separate, free-standing system, but it is survivable from City Hall
interruptions. Therefore, redundancy is provided in the system. Note that a number of the items are
refurbished. That was done to reduce costs, but the risk of that is limited because, except for the IP
phones, if the refurbished items fail they are still covered under Avaya's warranty and would be
fixed or replace.

The "enhanced survivability at Police" provides redundancy for the City Hall. This is not an
essential component, but the Director of Administration believes it is a good risk management
investment. This add-on increases the size of the server installed at the PD so that if the City Hall
phone system failed, the PD system could support the entire phone system, which includes the City
Hall, the Library, and Fire Station #1 phones. The full network phone system does not survive if the
City's full network burns or floods or if the network line is severed, but if the network is functioning,
the City Hall system has redundancy and the Library and Fire Station #1 have phones even if the
City Hall phone system isn't functioning. There is a low risk to the phone system going down, but
adding the feature later is more likely a $12,000 to $13,000 cost as compared to making the decision



up front. A second reason for including it is having a duplicate copy of the phone system
programming easily available to Avaya technicians should the main phone system have problems.
Overall the system redundancy seems to make the investment appropriate.

One additional risk management feature that can be addressed within the approved budget pertains
to the Library. Currently the Library system feeds off the connection to the City Hall. As such, if 911
is dialed at the Library, the address reported to 911 is that of City Hall. Investing the $5,105 will
allow any 911 calls to divert out from a dedicated local land line and report the Library's address
immediately to the 911 dispatch. (The Library will have to provide the local land line.) Given the
amount of public traffic through the Library, staff recommends adding this enhancement. (A similar
cost, in the future, would be required at any of the City's other remote sites that might want to tap
into or through the City's phone system.)

The "air-gap" work is a security enhancement that will ensure full separation of the phone system
portion of the network from the computer network itself. The small investment is recommended as a
worthwhile way to further secure a potential back door to the City's computer network. The session
manager/SIP server and unified messaging components do not bring additional sufficient
functionality to warrant the amount of the cost.

The proposal leaves $756 for contingency, most likely to address cabling or a miscellaneous
component.

Prices were sought from and negotiated with SKC Communications while they were under the
expectation that I would very likely pursue other vendors. The reality is that SKC did the City Hall
project and would be in the best position to install these components, particularly in the light of the
redundancy components being incorporated. They are very knowledgeable and were very good to
work with in addressing all of the details that come with system set up. The City has actually relied
upon the specific individuals for many years and has received a lot of free consulting from them.
When they were selected for the City Hall project last year, their cost was a couple thousand dollars
more, but it was determined that the added cost was worth the high level of service and familiarity
with our system. Obtaining pricing from other vendors would convert this from a project to ready to
go, to a big project. Using the last pricing differences as a basis, the lost productivity and additional
delay would not likely be worth any savings that might occur.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the Director of Administration to execute project documents with SKC
Communications and Avaya for an amount not to exceed $75,000 to replace the Police Department
phone system and make the recommended phone system enhancements.

DOA- MWL
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Revised October 31, 2019

-,
J

iFranklin
a

w I $ C O N $IN

AVAYA COMMUNICATION MANAGER R8
UPGRADE & MERGE OF POLICE DEPARTMENT

QTY COMPONENTS - CITY HALL
1 Avaya CM Upgrade R8 & License Merge

--(200) Core CM Licenses
--(200) Extens10n-to-Cellular/EC500 Licenses

1 Communication Manager Messaging System License Merge
--(200) Licenses

QTY COMPONENTS - POLICE DEPARTMENT
1 Avaya CM Upgrade R8 & Merge

--To Run on Avaya-Provded S8300E Server
1 G450 Gateway with Dual Power Supply
1 MM710 T-1 Cards with CSU (Refurbished)
1 MM71 l 8-Port Analog Trunk Card (Refurbished)
3 MM716 24-Port Analog Station Cards (Refurbished)
2 MM717 24-Port Digital Station Cards (Refurbished)
20 9611 G Speakerphone/Display IP Sets (Refurbished)
5 25 Extension Cables for Equipment Room
2 Merlin Splitter Break-out Cables

Complete SKC Planning, OT Installation, & Project Management
On-Site First Day of Business Support

FINANCIALS
NET INVESTMENT $60,133.00

11370 Theo Trecker Way I Milwaukee WI 53214 I www skccom com
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AVAYA COMMUNICATION MANAGER R8
OPTIONAL COMPONENTS

QTY

1
1
1

GATEWAYS FOR LOCAL 911 SERVICE
G430 Media Gateway (Refurbished)
MM711 8 Port Analog Card (Refurbished)
MM716 24 Port Analog Station Card (Refurbished)
MM717 24 Port Digital Station Card (Refurbished)
Complete SKC Planning, Installation, & Project Management

NET INVESTMENT (per site) $5,105.00

QTY SESSION MANAGER/SIP SERVER FOR POLICE
City Hall currently has a Session Manager, the server that provides SIP services. As of
today, Police has no SIP requirements. But if a second SIP Server is wanted at Police to
make future SIP services survivable for Police, we'll have to add the following:

Avaya Session Manager System
--To run on Franklin-provided virtual1zed server

Complete SKC Planning, Installation, & Project Management

NET INVESTMENT $3,600.00

QTY "AIR-GAP" WORK
SKC will provide the two necessary cards and a couple hours of consulting & guidance
time for this. The majority of the work for this will fall on City of Franklin personnel.

1
1

C-LAN Circuit Card (Refurbished)
Media Resource Card (Refurbished)

NET INVESTMENT $1,273.00

11370 Theo Trecker Way [ Milwaukee WI 53214 [ www skccom com
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'WISCONSIN

AVAYA COMMUNICATION MANAGER R8
OPTIONAL COMPONENTS

ENHANCED SURVIVABILITY AT POLICE
The base design is to have a survivable server at PD that only survives the PD facility.
Should City of Franklin want to expand this server so that it can survive all Franklin
facilities (assuming the WAN is operational), we need the following:

Avaya R630 Server
Complete SKC Planning, Installation, & Project Management

NET INVESTMENT $7,733.00

QTY

60

UNIFIED MESSAGING
Mutare "Enabled Voice Mail (EVM? System

--To run on Franklin-provided virtuahzed server
--Each user can have one of the followmg deposited mto his/her Email Inbox

✓ The actual VM message in a wav format,
V Notification that a VM exists, or
V Notification that a VM exists with a link to chick & hear the message

EVM User Licenses*
Complete Mutare Planning, & Installation,
SKC Project Management
1Year ofMutare Annual Support Coverage

*Each user hcense 1s $32 City ofFranklin can increase or decrease hcenses many quantzty

NET INVESTMENT $20,896.00

11370 Theo Trecker Way I Milwaukee WI 53214 I www skccom com
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APPROVAL

ks}
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

11/5/2019

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

Police & Fire Commission Request to Revise the
Job Descriptions for Police Patrol Officer and

Firefighter/Paramedic

ITEM NUMBER

At the Police & Fire Commission meeting held on 8/13/2019, the Commission, along with the Police
Chief and the Fire Chief, requested a change to the educational requirements for the positions of
Police Patrol Officer and Firefighter/Paramedic. This change was requested due to the shortage of
applicants in today's labor market.

On 10/21/2019, the Personnel Committee unanimously recommended that the Common Council
approve the recommended changes to the two job descriptions. Red-lined versions of the job
descriptions showing all changes are attached for your review. Proposed changes include:

Police Patrol Officer
1. Eliminated the requirement to have an Associate Degree. The State of Wisconsin minimum

requirement for a police officer is to have 60 college credits. We propose matching this
requirement. It is also proposed that an applicant must be 21 at the time of hire, instead of at
the time of application.

2. Elimination of the reference to performing Drug Abuse Resistance Education (DARE) due to
recent elimination of the program.

3. Changed the reference to certifying for firearms four times per year to annually.

Firefighter/Paramedic
1. Change the education requirement to state that an Associate's Degree in Fire Science is

preferred but not required. The Fire Chief believes this may open the door to a more diverse
group of applicants and may allow for more lateral transfers from other departments.

2. Update current requirements for being able to practice as a Paramedic in Milwaukee County
and the correct State agency names.

3. Correct actual practice that physicals are required every three years at a minimum, not yearly.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the revised job descriptions for Police Patrol Officer and Firefighter/Paramedic.

DOA- MWL



CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Job Title:

Department:

Appointing Authority:

Reports To:

Salary Grade:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

Patrol Officer

Police

ChiefofPolice/Fire and Police Commission

Sergeant ofPolice

Non-Exempt

Dana Zahn

December 4",2017October 1 2019

Common Council

January 23",2018

Summary
The Patrol Officer performs a variety of law enforcement and social services work that enhances the
safety, security, civil order, and stable atmosphere of the community. Duties include but are not
limited to security and crime prevention patrols; traffic control and traffic law enforcement;
investigation and first aid at accident scenes; response to calls for service including rescues, crimes,
and community service; and detection, investigation, apprehension, and arrest ofpersons involved in
crimes or misconduct.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities
Essential duties and responsibilities include the following. Other duties may be
assigned.

Enforce all City and State codes, ordinances, laws and regulations (both traffic and
criminal) in order to ensure public safety, prevent crime, and promote security.

Perform security patrols, traffic control, investigation and first aid at accidents; detect, investigate,
apprehend, and arrest persons involved in crimes or misconduct.

Use sound judgment in deciding course of action, handle difficult and emergency situations, with or
without assistance, in a manner appropriate for the situation and exercises rational judgment in all
job responsibilities

Carry out duties in conformance with Federal, State, County, and City laws and ordinances.

Work cooperatively with supervisors and coworkers, direct traffic, patrol City streets, parks,
commercial and residential areas to preserve the peace and enforce the law, control vehicular traffic,
prevent, detect and investigate misconduct involving ordinance violations, misdemeanors, felonies
and other law violations and to otherwise serve and protect.



Job Description
Police Patrol Officer

Respond to emergency radio calls and investigate accidents, robberies, civil disturbances, domestic
disputes, fights, drunkenness, missing children, prowlers, abuse of drugs, etc. Take appropriate law
enforcement action.

Interrogate suspects. Question witnesses and drivers. Gather and preserve evidence. Apprehend and
arrest violators. Investigate and render assistance at scenes of vehicular accidents. Summon
ambulances and other law enforcement vehicles. Take measurements, and photographs, document
information, and draw diagrams of scenes.

Conduct follow-up investigations of crimes committed during assigned shift. Seek out and question
victims, witnesses and suspects. Develop leads and tips. Search scenes of crimes for clues. Protect,
collect, preserve and describe evidence. Analyze and evaluate evidence and apprehend/arrest
offenders. Prepare thorough documentation. Prepare cases and testify in court proceedings.

Prepare a variety of reports and records in conformance with department policy, procedure and
standards of accuracy including officers' daily logs, reports of investigation, field interrogation
reports, alcohol reports, influence reports, intoximeter check list, bad check form, vehicle
impoundment form, traffic hazard reports, etc.

Undertake community oriented police work, and assist citizens with such matters as locked or stalled
vehicles, crime prevention, Drug Abuse Resistance Education (DARE), traffic safety, etc.

Coordinate activities with other officers or other City departments as needed; promptly notify and
exchange information with officers in other law enforcement agencies, and obtain advice from the
City Attorney, Court Administrator, and Municipal Prosecutor's Office regarding cases, policies and
procedures, as needed and assigned.

Maintain contact with police supervisory personnel to coordinate investigation activities, provide
mutual assistance during emergency situations and provide general information about Department
activities.

Effectively communicate with suspects, witnesses, victims, the public and other law enforcement
personnel.

The ability to maintain confidentiality of information.

Maintain departmental equipment, supplies and facilities.

Serve as a member of various committees as requested.

Regular, predictable and punctual attendance.

Ability to work extended or irregular hours.

Enforces all City and State codes, ordinances, laws and regulations (both traffic and
criminal) in order to ensure public safety, prevent crime, and promote security.

Exercises rational judgment in all job responsibilities.

Maintains the confidence and trust of peers, subordinates, superiors, and citizens.

Thorough knowledge ofmodem law enforcement principles, procedures, techniques, and equipment.

Other duties as assigned by supervisors.



Job Descnptton
Pohce Patrol Officer

Any and all other duties as assigned by the Chief ofPolice.

Supervisory Responsibilities
Works under the close supervision of the Sergeant of Police.

Qualifications
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each
essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the
knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made
to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Education and/or Experience
Must have either a2 year associate degree or a 4 year degree from an accredited- college. Thethe WI
State requirement of 60 college credits will be acceptable only if the applicant has been continuously
employed as a law enforcement officer for three years. Must have either completed a Wisconsin
520 er 720 hours basie law enforcement training course (certifiable) or another state's equivalent or
must be certified as a Wiseonsin LawEnforcementOfficer or another state?s equivalent . An
applicant must be at least 21 years of age at time of applicationhire.

Language Skills
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret professional journals, technical procedures, or
governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business correspondence, and
procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond to
questions from groups ofmanagers, clients, customers, and the general public.

Mathematical Skills
Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole
numbers, common fractions, and decimals. Ability to work with mathematical
concepts such as probability and statistical inference. Ability to apply concepts such
as fractions, percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability
Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in
situations where only limited standardization exists. Ability to interpret a variety of
instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.

Computer Skills
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have knowledge of Microsoft
Word and other police department related software. Ability to work with various
computer hardware and other computer related equipment.

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations
Valid Wisconsin Driver's License

Maintain a current Basic Law Enforcement Training Certification

Firearms Certification, and must qualify for firearms four times annually.

Ability to meet Department's physical standards.

Maintain Intoximeter Certification.

Maintain Preliminary Breath Test Certification.



Job Description
Pohce Patrol Officer

Radar Certification.

Maintain CPR/First Responder Certification.

Firearms Certification, and must qualify for firearms, four times annually.

The following certifications are to be obtained as assigned:
Wisconsin Drug Screen Test Kit
Narcotics Identification Kit
Canine Certification
D.A.R.E. Certifieation
Field Training Officer Certification

Physical Demands
The physical demands described here are representative ofthose that must be met by
an employee to successfully perform the essential functions ofthis job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

While performing the duties ofthis job, the employee is regularly required to use
hands to finger, handle, or feel; reach with hands and arms and talk or hear. The
employee is frequently required to stand; walk and sit. The employee is occasionally
required to climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl and taste or smell. The
employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 10 pounds and occasionally lift
and/or move more than 100 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job
include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth
perception and ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment
The work environment characteristics described here are representative ofthose an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions ofthis job.
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to
perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties ofthis job, the employee is frequently exposed to fumes
or airborne particles and outside weather conditions. The employee is occasionally
exposed to wet and/or humid conditions; moving mechanical parts; high, precarious
places; toxic or caustic chemicals; risk ofelectrical shock; explosives and vibration.
The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate. At certain times the
noise level may be very loud (fire arms training and emergency vehicle response).

Other Qualifications
Tools and Equipment: Police car, police radio, handgun, ECD, and other weapons
as required, baton, handcuffs, first aid equipment, personal computer, telephone, cell
phone, fax, copy machine, calculator, typewrrterkeyboard, intoximeter, and
oleoresin capsicum spray.

Other Skills and Abilities
Analyze and recommend improvements to equipment and facilities, as needed.

Schedule and conduct meetings.



Job Description
Pohce Patrol Officer

Maintain liaison with community groups.

Confer with citizens and officials on law enforcement and community problems,
attempting to resolve problems and recommend appropriate programs and activities.

Answer telephone; provide information, advice and guidance; take and relay
messages and/or direct calls to appropriate personnel; return calls as necessary.
Prepare various reports, forms, invoices, correspondence, and other documentation;
Process, complete, maintain, and/or forward, as appropriate; files and logs.

Attend meetings, training sessions and seminars as required to remain
knowledgeable ofCity/departmental operations, to promote improved job
performance, and to stay current with changing policies and procedures, codes, and
criminal/civil case law.

Thorough knowledge ofmodem law enforcement principles, procedures, techniques, and equipment.
Ability to learn the applicable laws, ordinances, and department rules and regulations

Skill in operating the tools and equipment listed above.

Ability to perform work requiring good physical condition and stable/balanced mental condition

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with peers, and supervisors.

Ability to identify problems and opportunities, reviewing possible alternative course of action before
selecting one, utilizing information resources available when making decisions, sometimes under
extreme pressure or stress.

Ability to develop feasible realistic solutions to problems, recommending actions designed to prevent
problems from occurring and referring problems to supervisions when necessary.

Ability to establish systematic methods ofaccomplishing goals.

Ability to effectively convey ideas and information both in written and oral form

Ability to effectively read and understand information contained in memos, reports, bulletins, etc.

Ability to evaluate or make independent decisions, based upon experience or knowledge, without
supervision, sometimes under extreme pressure or stress.

Ability to follow instructions from supervisor, verbally or in written form.

Ability to set priorities in order to meet assignment deadlines

Any and all other duties as assigned by the Chief ofPolice.

Miscellaneous
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations ofthe various types ofwork
that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not
exclude them from the position ifthe work is similar, related or a logical assignment
to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the
employer and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs ofthe
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employer and requirements ofthe job change.



CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Job Title : Fire Fighter/Paramedic

Department : Fire

Appointing Authority: Fire Chief/Fire & Police Commission

Reports To : Battalion Chief

Salary Level : 18 RepresentedPer Labor Agreement

FLSA Status: Non-exempt

Prepared By: James Martins, Fire ChiefDana Zahn, Human
Resources Coordinator & Adam Remington, Fire Chief

Prepared Date :

Approved By :

Approved Date:

May 15, 2003October 1, 2019

Resolution 2003 5582Common Council

September 9, 2003

Summary:
Under the general direction of the Battalion Chief, the Firefighter/
Paramedic protects life and property by performing fire fighting,
emergency aid, hazardous materials, and fire prevention duties. Maintain
Maintenance of fire equipment, and apparatus, and fire stations and
facilities.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities : include the following. Other
duties may be assigned.

Perform fire fighting activities including driving fire apparatus; operating
pumps, and related equipment; laying hose; and performing fire combat,
containment and extinguishment tasks.

Perform Provide emergency medical care and transport as a licensed
EMT-Paramedic to the standards established by the department. the
County, and the State of Wisconsin.aid activities including administering
first aid and providing other assistance as required.

Participate in fire drills, and attend classes in fire fighting, emergency
medical hazardous materials, and related subjects.

Receive and relay fife-phone calls and fire alarmsalarm information.
Operate radio and other communication equipment.

Participate in the inspection of buildings, hydrants, and other structures in
fire prevention programs.
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Maintain fire equipment, apparatus and facilities. Perform minor repairs to
departmental equipment.

Create and maintain thorough and accurate records of patient care
provided. Required documentation may be in written or digital format. as
required by the department and other agencies.

Perform general maintenance work in the upkeep of fire facilities and
equipment; clean and wash walls and floors; care for grounds around
station; make minor repairs; wash, hang and dry hose; wash, clean,
polish, maintain and test apparatus and equipment.

Must meet all department requirements for training and callbacks.

Assist in developing plans for special assignments such as emergency
preparedness, hazardous communications, training programs, fire fighting,
hazardous materials, and emergency aid activities.

Present programs to the community on safety, medical, and fire
prevention topics.

Perform salvage operations such as throwing salvage covers, sweeping
water, and removing debris.

Perform duties as a certified EMT D, orLicensed EMT-P, according to
criteria and standards set forth by department, Milwaukee County, and the
State of Wisconsin when assigned.

May act as a Fife-Lieutenant when necessary.

lay participate as paid on call firefighter when et scheduled towork a
normal duty shift.

Assists in department administrative activities as assigned.

Assists in supervising other firefighters as required.

Assists in training new employees as assigned.

Conducts basic fire inspection.

Other duties as assigned by supervisors.

Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be
able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed
below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required.
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Education and/or Experience :
Firefighter/Paramedic 2



An Associates Degree in Fire Science or an occupationally related field as
determined by the Franklin Fire and Police Commission. A Bachelor's
Degree in any field of study will also be accepted in lieu ofthe Fire
Science Associates Degreeis preferred but not required. (A degree is
required for advancement opportunities.)

State of Wisconsin Firefighter II (new) or Firefighter IHI certification.

WI Emergency Medical Technician -- Paramedic (EMT-P) required at time
of appointmentand Firefighter I courses.

National Registry as a Paramedic (NREMT-P) is a condition of practice
within Milwaukee County and must be obtained within six months of
employment.

Working knowledge of driver safety.

Working knowledge of first aid.

Ability to learn the operation of fire suppression and other emergency
equipment.

Ability to perform strenuous or peak physical activity during emergency,
training or station maintenance activities for prolonged periods of time
under conditions of extreme heights, intense heat, cold or smoke.

Ability to perform in team-based activities and in an often times stressful
environment.

Language Skills :
Ability to follow verbal and written instructions.

Ability to effectively communicate in writing and verbally.

Reasoning Ability :
Ability to learn to apply standard fire fighting, emergency aid, hazardous
materials, and fire prevention techniques.

Ability to act effectively in emergency and stressful situations.

Ability to make independent judgements which have considerable impacts
on the organization.

Tools And Equipment Used:
Typewriter; calculatorCalculator; copy machine; computer; fax machine;
telephone; measuring devices; camera; power tools; hand tools;
chainsaws; shovels; brooms; ladders; exhaust fans; automobile; fire truck;
ambulance; patient restraints; first aid equipment; oxygen; electronics test
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equipment; general medical equipment; patient lifting devices; breathing
apparatus; steel-tip boots; hearing and eye protection; fire fighting
clothing; and hazardous chemical clothing.

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations :
Valid WI driver's license.

Current CPR certification.

Wisconsin EMT D license, when offered.

Meet requirements of COMM DSPS 330 with respect to Wisconsin Fire
Apparatus Drivers/Operator, when offered.

Physical Demands : The physical demands described here are
representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

Must successfully pass medical exam consistent with NFPA 1582 upon
appointmentand every three years at a minimum., after completion of
firefighter I training.

Must pass annual physical fitness assessment.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required
to stand; walk; use hands and fingers to feel, handle, or operate objects,
tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee is
occasionally required to sit; climb and balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, and
crawl; talk and hear; and taste smell.

The employee must frequently lift and/or move up to 10 pounds and
occasionally lift and/or move up to 130 pounds. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision,
peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment : The work environment characteristics described
here are representative of those an employee encounters while
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to
perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works in
outdoor weather conditions including temperature extremes, during day
and night shifts. Work is often performed in emergency and stressful
situations. Individuals are exposed to hearing alarms and hazards
associated with fighting fires and rendering emergency medical
assistance, including smoke, noxious odors, fumes, chemicals, liquid
chemicals, solvents and oils. The noise level in the work environment is
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usually moderate, except during certain fire fighting or EMT activities when
noise levels may be loud.

Job Responsibilities Related to Patient Privacy

It is expected to protect the privacy of all patient information in accordance with the City
of Franklin Fire Department's privacy policies, procedures, and practices, as required by
federal [and state] law, and in accordance with general principles of professionalism as
a health care provider. Failure to comply with The City of Franklin Fire Department's
policies and procedures on patient privacy may result in disciplinary action up to and
including termination of employment.
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The Firefighter/Paramedic may access protected health information and other patient
information only to the extent that is necessary to complete their job duties. The
Firefighter/Paramedic may only share such information with those who have a need to
know specific patient information you have in your possession to complete their job
responsibilities related to treatment, payment or other Fire department operations.

The Firefighter/Paramedic is encouraged and expected to report, without the threat of
retaliation, any concerns regarding The City of Franklin Fire Department's policies and
procedures on patient privacy and any observed practices in violation of that policy to
the designated Privacy Officer.

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various
types of work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements
of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is similar,
related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement
between the employer and employee and is subject to change by the
employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job
change.
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

November 5, 2019

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Chapter 133 Fire
Prevention, Protection, and Control Code, of the

Municipal Code of the City of Franklin ,feo
ITEM NUMBER

This subject matter was before the Common Council at its meeting on October 15, 2019, and was referred to
this meeting to provide for a copy of the ordinance draft before the Common Council to be returned in standard
ordinance for potential adoption form. A copy of the action sheet from that meeting is attached hereto. The
standard form ordinance draft for potential adoption by the Common Council, with the content of the provisions
to become part of the Municipal Code being without change from that before the Council at its last meeting,
except for some spacing, font color and underline technical format changes, is also annexed hereto.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Chapter 133 Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control
Code, of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin.

Fire/ AJR; Legal Services Dept.: jw



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Request that Council Repeal and Replace Chapter
133 ofMunicipal Ordinances, with the Draft

Proposed by the Fire Chief, incorporating language
and requirements that are consistent with State

Administrative Rules and National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA) Codes and Standards.

Background:
The City of Frankhn's current Fire Prevention Protection and Control Code (Chapter 133 of Mumcpal Ordinances),
has existed in its present form since approximately 1996. There have been additions and revisions over the years,
with the last extensive revision occurring mn 2012. Since that time, the state Department of Commerce (commonly
referred to as "Comm"), ofwhich the fire department operates as an authorized agent with regard to fire
prevention activities and code enforcement, has been restructured as the Department of Safety and Professional
Services (DSPS). The existing fire code contains references to the Department of Commerce and the various "Comm
codes" (admimstrative rules) that the department is responsible for enforcing, rather than current DSPS title and
list of administrative codes. Also, the state legislature has approved admmistrative rule changes that now prohibit
mumcipalities from enforcmg requirements for fire protection systems that are more or less stringent than those
required by the state. The existing fire code contains reqmrements and allowances that are no longer enforceable
or allowable under state administrative rules. The existmg fire code also contams extensive lists of technical
specifications for data and components related to fire alarm and fire sprinkler plan submissions that are
immaterial to a local fire prevention code. It also defines specific procedures, processes, and fee schedules for
permit applications and plan submittals. The fire department feels that the interests of stakeholders can better be
served by having the ability to estabhsh processes and procedures, and to adjust or modify them (as necessary)
based on efficacy and efficiency, irrespective of the actual fire prevention code.

Overview:
The fire chief has developed a draft revision of the Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control code that aligns with
the DSPS language and administrative rules. The revision also adopts by reference a number of National Fire
Protection Association (NFPA) codes and standards, mcludmg NFPA 1 Fire Code (essentially a national/
international fire prevention code), as well as the state DSPS chapters related to fire prevention and fire
protection. By adopting a code, standard, or rule by reference rather than incorporating specific language directly
into the municipal fire code, the fire department can enforce the most recent version of the document, without
having to amend or revise the local code. NFPA codes are revised by technical committees every three years;
however the State does not always immediately act to adopt and enforce the reVIsrnn. By adopting the "(...] the
most current version that is legislatively adopted by reference by the State ofWisconsin (...)" Chapter 133 of
Franklin's Municipal Ordinances will always be current, enforceable, and consistent with state law. S

Summary of Changes:
Most of the draft revision retams the exact language of the existing fire prevention code; however, the draft 1s
considerably more concise (29 pages compared to 68). This was accomphshed by removing redundant language,
wIth some paragraphs appearing in substantially identical language multiple times throughout the document. As
stated above, several pages of technical component and data requirements for sprinkler and alarm plan
submissions were also removed. These specification requirements are already defined in the NFPA codes and/or
standards relative to those systems, which are adopted by reference, and the language is not necessary in the fire
prevention code. None of the language thatwas removed or added makes Franklm and "less safe" in terms of fire
protection and preventJ.on. Rather, the revision adds some prohibitions (e.g., "sky lanterns"), and clarifies areas of
the code that were open to misinterpretation, including the following:



• Removes language regarding fire sprinkler and fire alarm requirements that is not consistent with state
DSPS and Internat10nal Bmldmg Code (IBC) reqmrements.

• Clarifies language regarding grills on balconies of multi-family residences (only electric "George Foreman"
type grills are permitted).

• Categorizes types of outdoor burning as permissible (recreational fires, as defined by NFPA 1), or
restricted and thus requiring a permit (bonfires, seasonal burnmg of yard waste).

• Adds language allowmg prescribed burns to be conducted by environmental engineering contractors,
under certain conditions and restrictions, in order to restore native prairie plant species and animal
habitat (with fire chief approval and detailed plan on file).

• Adds language prohibiting "sky lanterns" (this is prohibited in current NFPA codes, but not yet enforced in
state code).

• Removes confusing and potentially misleading language regarding certain plan reviews, permit issuances,
and demal appeals for which the Building Inspector (not the fire department) is the legally recognized
enforcing authority as defined per state law.

• Removes procedural language regarding plan submissions for fire alarm and fire sprinkler systems. (New
process and procedural instructions will be mailed to contractors and posted on the city website.)

• Condenses language related to fire protection systems into single specific subchapters (rather than havmg
language regardmg submission requirements, application process, review and approval process, systems
acceptance testing, mamtenance, and mnspecton mn multiple fragmented m multiple subchapters
throughout the document).

• Removes the "pass through" fee structure for fire alarm and sprinkler plan submittals. The city currently
pays an independent consultant to perform more complex plan reviews, and then invoices the applicant to
recoup costs. The department plans to partner with a consulting firm to which the applicant would directly
pay the review fees. The apphcant would also pay a flat permit fee to the city which more accurately
reflects the time that staff dedicates to the project, as required by state law. The fire chief does not expect
this to have a significant effect on revenue or expenditure, as the two Imes nearly balance out under the
present "pass through" system.

• Mmor grammatical and formatting corrections have been incorporated.

The fire chef recommends repealing the existing Chapter 133 and replacing 1t with the draft revs1on submitted.
The fire chief believes additional revisions are necessary at a future pomtwhen staff has more time available for a
more comprehensive review.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Request that Council Repeal and Replace Chapter 133 of Municipal Ordinances (Fire
Prevention, Protection, and Control Code) with the revised version submitted with this
document, with revisions explained herein.

Fire/AJR



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2019­

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 10/30/19

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE CHAPTER 133 FIRE PREVENTION,
PROTECTION, AND CONTROL CODE, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN

WHEREAS, the Fire Chief and Fire Department staff having reviewed Chapter 133
of the Municipal Code and having provided a redraft of the entirety of the Chapter to in part
provide for updates for consistency with the applicable State of Wisconsin Administrative
Code and National Fire Prevention Association Code requirements and regulations, and to
provide for further efficiency in the provision of fire prevention, protection and control as
has been developed through the years since the last update of the Chapter some more than
twenty years ago, and the Fire Chiefhaving recommended approval of such revisions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the recommendation and
having determined same to be in furtherance of the protection of the health, safety and
welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: Chapter 133 Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control Code, of the
Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby repealed
and recreated to read as follows:

Chapter 133
Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control

§ 133-1. General Provisions.
§133-2. Definitions.
§133-3. Adoption ofWisconsin Administrative Code.
§133-4. Adoption oflnternational Code Council (ICC), Inc. Codes.
$133-5. Adoption by reference ofNational Fire Prevention Association (NFPA) publications.
§133-6. Automatic fire sprinkler control and/or fire suppression system protection.
$133-7. Liability for Damages.
§133-8. Service of correction orders.
§133-9. Variances.
$133-10. Revocation of permits.
§133-11. Closing and vacating buildings.
§133-12. Investigative powers; police powers.
§133-13. Standpipes.
$133-14. Fire alarm systems.

1



§133-15. Automatic fire protection for cooking areas.
§133-16. Miscellaneous construction provisions.
§133-17. Miscellaneous use provisions.
§133-18. Flammable, combustible, and hazardous materials.
§133-19. Special inspections required.
§133-20. Fire inspection fees.
§133-21. Fees.
§133-22. Violations and penalties.
$133-23. Appeals.

§ 133-1. General Provisions.
A. Intent. The intent of this chapter is:

(1) To provide the municipality with comprehensive regulations to improve public safety by
attempting to control, limit, restrict, and/or eliminate fire hazards.

(2) To improve life safety for residents occupants, employees, firefighters, and frequenters
of places of employment and public buildings.

(3) To regulate the installation, use and maintenance of equipment; to regulate the use of
structures, occupancies, and open areas.

(4) To require the removal and/or reduction of fire hazards; to establish the responsibilities
and procedures for code enforcement; and to set the minimum standards for
compliance and achievement of those objectives.

(5) To protect property from the hazards of fire and explosion by establishing minimum
standards for the use, operation, maintenance and inspection of buildings structures
and premises.

B. Applicability.
(1) The provisions of this code shall apply to all public buildings and places of employment.

Exceptions: The following buildings and uses are not public buildings or places of
employment and are not subject to the provisions of this code·

a. One- and two-family dwellings.
b.Buildings used exclusively for farming as described in §102.04(3), Wis. Stats.
c. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as applying to the

transportation of any article or thing shipped in conformity with the regulations
prescribed by the Interstate Commerce Commission, or as applying to the
military forces of the United States.

(2) The provisions of this code shall apply equally to new structures, including additions to
existing structures and existing cond1t1ons, except that existing conditions not in strict
compliance with the terms of this subsection shall be permitted to continue where the
exceptions do not constitute a distinct hazard to life or adjoining property as
determined by the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ).

(3) The provisions of this code apply equally to the property owner and/or occupant.
(4) Sections 133-8, 133-9, 133-10, 133-11, 133-15C: (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), 133-17, and 133-22

apply to all individuals and/or properties within the jurisdiction of the municipality.
C. Additions to, change of use, renovated, altered or remodeled buildings.

2



(1) If 50% or more of the total area of a building is renovated, altered or remodeled and/or
added to the existing building, the entire building shall be brought into compliance with
the requirements of this code.

(2) If 25% to 49% of the total floor area of a building is renovated, altered or remodeled,
the portion of the building that is remodeled shall be brought into compliance with the
requirements of this code.

(3) All percentages of remodeling shall be cumulative as applied to subsection C (1) and (2)
above.

(4) If any addition is made to an existing building and/or structure that currently has a fire
sprinkler, fire suppression, fire control or fire alarm system installed, the addition shall
comply completely with this code.

(5) If any addition is made to an existing building and/or structure that currently has a fire
sprinkler, fire suppression, fire control or fire alarm system installed, the addition shall
have a fire sprinkler, fire suppression, fire control or fire alarm system installed.

(6) If the use of and/or contents of any existing building are changed and become more
hazardous as determined by the authority having jurisdiction (AHJ), the building shall be
brought into compliance with this code

(7) Those portions, elements, systems, or components of existing buildings and structures
to be renovated, altered, remodeled or modified on or after the effective date of the
rules under this code and where the alteration, modification, or the addition affects a
building element or component relating to subject matters regulated by this code shall
be designed, constructed and maintained in accordance with the applicable rules of this
code as it exists on one of the following

a. The date the local building permit is issued
b.The date the replacement 1s initiated, where Subsection C (7)(a) does not apply.

D. Permits required.
(1) The fire department shall be responsible for issuing the following permits:

a. Fireworks permits.
b.Bonfire permits.
c. Outdoor burning of yard waste (Outdoor Burning Permit must be purchased

from the Office of the City Clerk, Franklin City Hall).
(2) Certificates of occupancy. The AHJ shall have dual authority with the building inspector

in the issuance of certificates of occupancy for multifamily, public buildings, places of
employment, commercial structures, places of public assembly and schools to the
extent that the AHJ shall inspect and have approval authority over proposed
occupancies to ensure compliance with this chapter

E. Stop-work order.
(1) The AHJ may request that the building inspector issue a stop-work order upon any

permit issued subject to the inspection and approval authority of this chapter, where
the AHJ finds that any of the conditions for issuance have not been maintained or where
there has been any false statement or misrepresentation of any material fact made in
the application or plans upon which the issuance was based.
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(2) If the AHJ determines requirements of this code are not complied with or there may be

life safety issues, the AHJ may issue a stop-work order on any project or portion thereof.

F. Inspection and testing.

(1) All fire suppression systems and fire alarm systems required under this code shall be
inspected by an authorized agent of the AHJ prior to having any of their parts covered
up or concealed in any manner whatsoever. The authorized reviewing agent shall be
given a 72 hour notice prior to any system inspection

(2) An authorized agent of the AHJ shall witness all tests of fire control systems, fire alarm
initiating devices, notification appliances, and any other required system requiring an
operational test. The authorized reviewing agent shall be given a seventy-two (72) hour
notice prior to any system witness test.

(3) All testing shall be conducted in accordance with the NFPA standard applicable to the
system being tested.

G. Right of entry.
(1) The AHJ and/or his or her authorized representative may, at all reasonable hours, enter

any place of employment and/or public building within its jurisdiction for the purposes
of making any inspection or investigation which, under the provision of this section, is
deemed necessary.

(2) The AHJ shall inspect, or cause to be inspected, all places of employment and public
buildings as often as may be necessary, but not less than once a year.

(3) The purpose of any inspection and/or investigation is to determine if any violations of
the provisions or intent of this code and/or the codes or standards adopted by
reference exist and to order corrections of the v1olat1ons observed.

(4) The AHJ or his or her authorized representative, upon the complaint of any person or
whenever he or she deem necessary, shall inspect any place of employment and/or
public building and premises within its jurisdiction.

(5) Any owner or occupant of any place of employment and/or public building who refuses
to permit, prevents or interferes with entry into or upon the premises by anyone
authorized by the AHJ shall be guilty of violating this chapter and shall be subject to
penalties under 5133-22. Exception: The interiors of dwelling units will not be inspected
unless an inspection is specifically requested by the owner or occupant and/or as
allowed by state statutes.

H. Enforcement and documentation.
(1) The fire chief, as the AHJ, or anyone the fire chief has designated as an authorized

representative or agent ofthe AHJ, shall enforce the provisions of this code.
(2) Whenever any authorized representative or agent of the AHJ shall discover fire hazards

due to conditions that are not in compliance with the requirements of NFPA 1, this
code, and any and all other applicable codes and adopted standards, he or she shall
order such conditions or materials to be removed or remedied in such manner as may
be specified. These hazards may include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Dangerous or unlawful amounts of flammable, combustible, or explosive
material as determined by the AHJ
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b.Hazardous conditions arising from defective or improperly installed equipment

for handling or using flammable, combustible, or explosive material

c. Dangerous accumulations of rubbish, waste paper, boxes, shavings, or other

highly flammable materials as determined by the AHJ.

d.Accumulations of dust, grease, or waste materials in air conditioning systems,

exhaust ducts or vent hoods

e.Obstructions to or in fire escapes, stairs, passageways, doors, or windows liable

to interfere with the operation of the fire department or egress of occupants.

This includes snow.

f. Any building, structure, or premises which for want of repairs, lack of exit

facilities, fire alarm apparatus or fire extinguishing equipment, or by reason of

age or dilapidated condition, or from any cause, creates a fire hazard.
(3) The AHJ may use any means necessary in documentation of inspections or conditions,

including but not limited to the use of electronic equipment.

I. Notification of use or occupancy changes.
(1) Whenever there is a change in occupancy or in the agent(s), (property manager,

facilities supervisor, after-hours emergency contact, etc ) of that occupancy, the owner
or his or her duly authorized agent shall submit the changes in writing to the Fire
Department within five working days. The information shall consist of the following:

a. Name and address of occupancy
b. Owner's name, address, E-mail address and phone number(s).
c. Agent's name, address, E-mail address and phone numbers(s).

(2) Whenever a change in the service and/or monitoring company for the alarm system has
occurred within the occupancy, the owner or authorized agent shall submit the changes
in writing to the fire department within five working days The information shall consist
of the following:

a.All information required in Subsection J(1).
b.Type(s) of fire protection systems.
c. Service company name, address and phone number(s)

(3) No change can be made in the use or occupancy of any building or structure, or any
space within a building or structure, either in a different division of the same occupancy
group or in a different occupancy group, unless the building or structure complies with
this code's requirements for the new division of occupancies, as these requirements
exist. Exception: This subsection does not apply to an approved temporary use or to a
new use that will be less hazardous, based on life and/or fire risk, than the existing use.

(4) An inspection by the fire department or an authorized representative or agent of the
AHJ shall be required for any new or change of occupancy.

J. Temporary use. The AHJ may allow a building or portion of a building to be used temporarily in a
manner that differs from the approved use for the building or space, or may approve a
temporary building to be used by the public, subject to all of the following provisions:

(1) The AH) shall determine the time frame within which the temporary use ts permitted,
based on the extent hazards are created by the temporary use
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(2) The AHJ shall determine maximum occupancy load.

(3) The AHJ shall determine any fire protection and/or control devices and life safety

provisions that may be needed.

$133-3 Definitions.
A. Unless otherwise expressly stated in this code, all definitions, including those of occupancy

types, shall be as stated in the most current versions of NFPA 1 (Chapter 3), NFPA 101 (Chapter
3) and/or the NFPA standard(s) or code(s) applicable to the specific subject material, that are
legislatively adopted by state statue.

§133-3. Adoption ofWisconsin Administrative Code.
A. The most current legislatively enacted versions by the State of Wisconsin of the Wisconsin

Administrative Code, on the effective date of this Code, shall apply.
SPS 303 Administrative Procedures
SPS 305 Licenses, Certification and Registration
SPS 307 Explosives and Fireworks
SPS 308
SPS 310
SPS 314
SPS 316
SPS 318
SPS 326
SPS 328
SPS 333
SPS 334
SPS 335
SPS 340
SPS 341
SPS 343
SPS 345
SPS 348

Mines, Pits and Quarries
Flammable, Combustible and Hazardous Liquids
Fire Prevention
Electrical
Elevators, Escalators and Lift Devices
Manufactured Home Communities
Smoke Detectors and Carbon Monoxide Detectors
Passenger Ropeways
Amusement Rides
Infectious Agents
Gas Systems
Boilers and Pressure Vessels
Anhydrous Ammonia
Mechanical Refrigeration
Petroleum and Other Liquid Fuel Products

SPS 361-366 Wisconsin Commercial Building Code
SPS 371 Solar Energy Systems
SPS 375-379 Existing Buildings

B. Any violation of the incorporated provisions constitutes a violation of this code.
C. In cases of conflict between local and state codes, the most restrictive prov1s1ons, as determined

by the AHJ, shall govern.

$133-4. Adoption of International Code Council (ICC), Inc., codes.
A. The latest ICC publication(s) listed below and published on or before the effective date of this

code are adopted by reference, enforced, and incorporated into this code as fully set forth
herein:

1) International Fire Code (applies only to sections spec1f1cally referenced m this code).
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§133-5. Adoption by reference of National Fire Prevention Association (NFPA)
publications.

A. The latest version of NFPA 1 (Fire Code) that is legislatively adopted by reference by the State of
Wisconsin, including all of the publications, codes, standards, and documents adopted by
reference by the State of Wisconsin in Chapter 2 of that code, are hereby adopted by
reference, enforced, and incorporated into this code as 1f fully set forth herein.

§ 133-6. Automatic fire sprinkler control and/or fire suppression system protection.

A. Intent. The intent of this section is to require the installation of automatic fire
sprinkler fire control and/or fire suppression systems to improve the protection of
life and property within the municipality. It will establish a minimum standard for fire
safety through the standardization of the design, installation, testing and maintenance
requirements for automatic fire sprinkler suppression.

B. Code Compliance. Automatic fire sprinkler systems shall be required, designed, installed
and/or modified, tested, inspected, and maintained as set forth in the most current
versions legislatively enacted by the State of Wisconsin of NFPA 1, NFPA 101, NFPA 13,
NFPA 13D, NFPA 13R, NFPA 25, the Wisconsin Administrative Code, and any and all other
applicable codes and adopted standards.

C. Code conflicts. If any conflicts exist between this code and any NFPA code and/or
standard, the most restrictive, as determined by the AHJ, shall be enforced by the AHJ.

D. Working plans. Working plans shall be submitted to the fire department or its authorized
reviewing agent for conditional approval before any equipment Is installed, modified, or
remodeled.

1) Deviation from approved plans shall require permission of the AHJ.
2) All working plans submitted for conditional approval must be signed and sealed

by at least one of the following.
a An architect registered in the State of Wisconsin.
b An engineer registered in the State of Wisconsin
c A person who holds a designer of engineering systems permit in the State

of Wisconsin.
d An individual who holds a valid automatic fire sprinkler contractor's

license and is responsible for the system installation.
3) Working plans shall be drawn to an indicated scale, on a sheet of uniform size,

with a plan of each floor. Plans must comply with the requirements of the most
current legislatively enacted version of NFPA 13 adopted by the State of
Wisconsin; and plan submissions must include all required design elements,
details, calculations, and spec1ficat1ons set forth in Chapter 23 of that standard.

E. Installation required. Automatic fire sprinkler systems shall be installed in all structures
where the floor area exceeds the thresholds established in Table 133-6F of the specific
occupancy type and construction type involved, and where required by State codes. For
the purpose of determining square footage as it relates to the required installation of fire
sprinklers in a building, firewalls shall not be considered dividers unless the firewall is
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rated at four hours without penetrations and extends a minimum of three feet above the
roof.

Table 133-6F

Occupancy Type Type I Type Type III Type TypeV
II IV

E All All All All All

F-2 5,000 5,000 3,000 SF 3,000 3,000
SF SF SF SF

1-2 All All All All All

I-3 All All All All All

I-4 All All All All All

R-4 All All All All All

u 5,000 5,000 3,000 SF 3,000 3,000
SF SF SF SF

Note excludes single-family-home day cares

F. Additional automatic fire sprinkler system installations required. An automatic sprinkler
system shall be installed in all:

1) Parking structures above and below ground with ceilings
2) CBRFs (community based residential facilities).
3) Adult family homes.
4) Throughout all dormitories, fraternities and sorority houses.
5) Throughout every building, new or existing, which by reason of its construction or

combustible occupancy involves a life hazard to its occupants or in the judgment
of the AHJ constitutes a fire menace.

6) Throughout all mini-warehouses and unattached multifamily parking garages that
exceed the following:

a Five thousand square feet or more in area on any floor.
b Two stones in height.
c Any portion of the structure is below grade

G. Basements and garages are to be designed to protect as a minimum, for ordinary hazard
occupancy.

H. When an automatic fire sprinkler system is required to be installed by this code but not
the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS), in a structure that
is not currently serviced by a municipal water source

1) All fire sprinkler systems shall be installed in complete compliance with the
appropriate NFPA code(s) and/or standard(s). Exception: An automatic water
supply for any fire sprinkler system(s) required to be installed by this code but not
required by the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services Code,
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if acceptable to the AHJ the automatic water supply shall be allowed to comply
with the following:

a The automatic water supply for the automatic fire sprinkler system(s)
shall be conditionally approved by the AHJ

b The fire sprinkler system(s) shall be installed and connected to a
conditionally approved automatic water supply

c The required automatic water supply must be capable of delivering the
required quantity of water at the required pressure as determined by
hydraulically calculating the system demand in accordance with NFPA 13
for the most hydraulically demanding area.

d A letter from a licensed fire protection engineer or a State of Wisconsin
permitted fire protection designer attesting to the ability of the system to
comply with the above requirement shall be required prior to occupancy.

2) Within 90 days after a municipal water system becomes available, the sprinkler
system shall be connected to the municipal water supply.

3) For the purpose of this code, an available municipal water supply shall be any of
the following:

a A municipal water main located at or near the streets adjacent to the
property on which the structure that is required to be sprinklered Is
located.

b.A municipal water main located in a utility easement on or near the
property on which the structure that 1s required to be sprinklered is
located.

c A municipal water main located at or near the streets within 1,500 lineal
feet of any part of the property on which the structure that is required to
be sprinklered is located.

d A municipal water main located in a utility easement within 1,500 lineal
feet of any part of the property on which the structure that is required to
be sprinklered is located.

I. All automatic fire sprinkler, fire control and/or fire suppression systems shall comply with
the following:

1) Be designed in accordance with the appropriate NFPA standards and/or codes.
2) Be designed to protect the highest hazard present at any time in the protected

area.
3) Be monitored by a Underwriter's Laboratories (UL) histed central station
4) Have sprinkler control rooms located with adequate access for Fire Department

and sprinkler maintenance and inspection personnel, and shall not be located
within private dwellings with the exception of NFPA 13D systems.

5) Have direct access from the exterior to the sprinkler control valve acceptable to
the AHJ.

6) Have a bell (minimum ten-inch) and strobe installed, located above the Fire
Department connection (FDC).
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7) The FDC must be located at least 40 feet from all gas meters, electrical-meters
and transformers.

8) The FDC must be installed in a location acceptable to the AHJ
9) Be designed for the hazard being protected or as specifically specified in this code

and/or as acceptable to the AHJ.
10) All automatic fire sprinkler systems hydraulic designs are to be based on a

maximum of 90% of the available water supply (a minimum of a ten-percent
safety margin shall be maintained).

11) All sprinkler systems designed shall be based on the most current water flow test
conducted in accordance with NFPA 291 that is acceptable to the AHJ.

12) An authorized representative or agent of the AHJ shall witness all water flow
tests.

13) Sprinkler protection for exposed plastics must comply with all FM Global testing
and standards.

J. Application to existing buildings.
1) Adult family homes and community-based res1dent1al facilities (CBRF), regardless

of number of occupants or class, must be retrofitted with fire sprinkler protection
complying with NFPA 13.

2) Where the AHJ finds that an existing building, because of current occupancy or a
change in occupancy, constitutes a hazard to its occupants or adjoining property,
the AHJ may order compliance with the provisions of this section. A hazard shall
be determined by the existence of one or more of the following conditions:

a Any building which by reason of its construction or highly combustible
occupancy involves a hazard to its occupants or, in the Judgment of the
AHJ, constitutes a fire menace, e.g., paint shop and other occupancies
involving processing, mixing, storing, and dispensing of volatile liquids or
sohds.

b Non-fire-resistive characteristics of a structure.
c Accumulation of flammable or combustible materials.
d Lack of accessibility to the premises for fire-fighting equipment.
e Substantial number of fire calls or complaints on the premises.
f Traffic patterns for pedestrian ingress and egress which require

protection under this section.
g insufficient ventilation systems
h Where there is a lack of an internal communication system, or due to the

size or type of building making regular fire department radio
communication inoperable, the building owner is required to install a
repeater system or something comparable to assist radio
communications. If any inspection reveals a need for a new, replacement
or other comparable system, the inspection report shall order such
correction within 180 days of the inspection [Amended 7-24-2012 by
Ord. No. 2012-2086]
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1 Number, characteristics and movement of employees which require
protection under this section.

3) Installation of an automatic sprinkler system must be started within one year
from the service of such orders and shall be completed within 180 days after
construction has started

K. Exemptions. In any location where the installation of sprinklers may cause or increase an
occupational hazard, as determined by any governmental authority having jurisdiction
over such location or occupation, the AHJ may waive any requirement to install an
automatic fire sprinkler or any portion thereof

§133-7. Liability for damages.

A. The code shall not be construed to affect the responsibility of any persons owning,
operating, or installing equipment for injury to persons or damage to property caused by
any defect therein, nor shall the municipality, any person, firm, company or agent(s) for
the municipality be held as assuming such liability by reason of any inspection or re­
inspection authorized herein or the permit issued herein provided or by reason of the
disapproval or approval of any equipment and/or system authorized herein.

§133-8. Service of correction orders.

A. The service of correction orders shall be made upon the owner, occupant or other person
responsible for the condition(s) that violates any section of this code. A copy of the
service order can be delivered personally to the owner or by leaving 1t with the person in
charge of the premises. Whenever it may be necessary to serve such order upon the
owner of the premises, such an order may be served either by delivering to and leaving
with the person a copy of the order or, 1f such owner is absent from the Jurisdiction of the
AHJ making the order, by mailing such a copy to the owner's last known post office
address.

B. Conditions that are hazardous to life or safety of the occupants shall require immediate
correction. All other violations shall be corrected within a specified time or date, as the
AHJ shall determine.

C. When the owner of any property or person in apparent control of the property is issued
an order by the AHJ and fails to comply with the order, the municipality may do the work
ordered, and the cost of such work shall constitute a special assessment against the
property pursuant to 566.0701, Wis. Stats. Any person against whose land a special
assessment is levied under this chapter may appeal in the manner prescribed in
566.0703(12), Wis. Stats., within 40 days of the date of the final determination of the
governing body.

D. No person shall refuse to permit or shall prevent or interfere with any entry into or upon
any building or premise by the AHJ who is lawfully on the premises or interfere with any
such inspection. If consent to enter onto personal or real properties which are not public
buildings, or to portions of the public buildings which are not open to the public, has been
denied, the Fire Inspector shall obtain a special inspection warrant under 566 0119, Wis
Stats.
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§133-9. Variances.

A. Except as otherwise proh1b1ted by state law, the AHJ shall have power to modify any of
the provisions of this code upon application m wntmg by the owner or occupant, or a duly
sworn authorized agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out
the strict letter of the code, provided that the spirit of the code shall be observed, public
safety secured, and substantial justice done. [Amended 7-24-2012 by Ord No. 2012­
2086]

B. The AHJ thereon shall enter upon the records of the department, and a signed copy shall
be furnished to the applicant, the particulars of such variances when granted.

C. The AHJ may require tests as proof of compliance with the intent of this code Such tests
are to be made by an approved agency at the expense of the person requesting approval
of the alternate matenal or method of construction

D. If technical expertise is unavailable within the municipality because of new technology,
process, products, facilities, materials and uses attending design, operation or use of a
building premises subject to the inspection of the municipality, the AHJ may require the
owner or the person in possession or control of the building or premises to provide
without charge to the municipality a technical opinion and report. The opinion and report
shall be prepared by a qualified engineer, specialist, laboratory or fire safety organization,
acceptable to the AHJ and owner, and shall analyze the fire safety properties of the
design, operation or use of the building or premises and the facilities and appurtenances
situated thereon, and prescribed the necessary recommended changes. The department
may also acquire technical assistance from a consultant and may charge a fee to the
owner or occupant for the service provided

§ 133-10. Revocation of permits.

A. The AHJ may revoke any permit issued in accordance with this code in any case where it
may find that any of the conditions for the issuance have not been maintained or where
there has been false statement or misrepresentation of any material fact in the
application or plans on which the issuance was based

B. The AHJ shall promptly notify the permit holder of the request for revocation and, if so
requested by the permit holder, the effective date of the revocation shall be deferred
pending a hearing before the chief of the fire department The decision of the fire chief
for revocation, following the hearing, shall be final

§133-11. Closing and vacating buildings.

A. The AHJ may order compliance with this section and all other lawful orders or laws
relating to fire prevention and fire protection in existing building and structures.

B. Where the public is exposed to immediate danger, the AHJ shall order the closing and
vacating of the building at once.

§ 133-12. Investigation of fires
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A. The Fire Department shall investigate the cause and origin, and circumstances of fires
occurring within their jurisdiction to determine if the fire is of carelessness or design.
Such investigations may begin immediately upon the occurrence of such a fire, and if it
appears to the officer making such an investigation that such fire is of suspicious origin
and of a significant nature, the fire chief shall be notified of the facts. The AHJ shall notify
the proper authorities designated by law to pursue the invest1gat1on of such matters and
shall further cooperate with the authorities in the collection of evidence and in the
prosecution of the case. A member of the fire investigation team shall file a written report
of damage associated with every fire in a timely manner It shall contain a statement of all
facts relating to cause and origin and circumstances of such fire and other information as
may be required.

§133-13. Standpipes.

A. Intent. The intent of this section is to require fire department standpipe systems to be
installed in certain structures to help fire fighters effectively extinguish a fire and to help
reduce property damage and losses.

B. Where required.
1) Fire department standpipe systems shall be installed in the following structures:

a.Any structure required by the State of Wisconsin codes
b.ln all new structures over two stones in height
c. In any structure in which the AHJ deems standpipes are necessary for

firefighting purposes.
2) Temporary standpipes must be installed in an approved location for all of the

following structures:
a.All combustible structures exceeding two stones in height.
b.AII noncombustible structures exceeding three stories in height.

C. Installation requirements. Fire department standpipes shall be designed and installed in
accordance with this section Where any requirement in this section is more restrictive
than any NFPA standard and/or code and/or state code, the requirements m this section
must be complied with

1) The installation of standpipes shall be in accordance with this section and NFPA
14.

2) All standpipe systems hydraulic designs are to be based on a maximum of 90% of
the available water supply (a minimum of a ten-percent safety margin shall be
maintained). Pumping pressure at the FDC may not exceed 200 pounds and the
system shall maintain 100 pounds of pressure at its most remote location.

3) The location of standpipe hose connections shall be accessible and shall be
located so that all portions of the building are within 100 feet of hose to a hose
valve. This distance must be measured using the normal aisles or the path a hose
would be laid as determined by the AHJ.

4) The locations of all hose valves shall be acceptable to the AHJ
5) The AHJ may require additional standpipes and/or hose valves to be installed.
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6) When required by the AHJ, an approved standpipe shall be installed as
construction progresses to make them available for fire department use in the
topmost floors constructed. Temporary standpipes shall be provided in place of
permanent standpipes when required, during the period of construction on
buildings required by this code.

7) The location of all fire department connections for standpipes shall be approved
by the AHJ.

8) The fire department connections shall be at least 40 feet from all electrical
transformers, gas meters, or propane storage.

9) All standpipes are to be automatic standpipes unless a manual or dry standpipe is
allowed by the AHJ.

10) Key access shall be provided for all doors having access to standpipes.
D. Approval requirements. Complete plans and calculations for all standpipes must be

submitted to the fire department's authorized reviewing agent, and conditionally
approved prior to installation of any standpipe.

E. The Fire Department's authorized reviewing agent shall review all plans for standpipes
and, upon approval of the same, issue the necessary permits to install all standpipes prior
to installation.

§133-14. Fire alarm systems.

A. Intent. The intent of this section is to provide a means for automatic detection of fire
conditions and/or to provide warning notification throughout all buildings and
occupancies built hereinafter, structurally altered, and/or added to. Fire alarm systems
are intended to provide additional hfe safety and help reduce property loss through early
detection of fires, providing warning to occupants and automatically notifying the fire
department of fire.

B. Installation required. A fire alarm system shall be installed in all structures where the
floor area exceeds the thresholds established in Table 133-14B of the specific occupancy
type and construction type involved, and where required by state code All fire alarm
systems shall be designed, installed, tested, inspected, and maintained as set forth in
NFPA 1, NFPA 101, NFPA 70, NFPA 72, the Wisconsin Administrative Code, and any and all
other applicable codes and adopted standards. All fire alarm system plans shall be
designed and submitted by a person holding NICET Level II certification or higher, and
monitored by a UL-listed central station monitoring service

Table 133-14B

Occupancy Type Type I Type Type III Type TypeV
II IV

E* All All All All All

1-2 All All All All All

1-3 All All All All All
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I-4 All All All All All

R-3 State statutes apply

R-4 All All All All All

S-1 3,000 3,000 3,000 SF 3 000 3,000
SF SF SF SF

S-2 5,000 5,000 3,000 SF 3,000 3,000
SF SF SF SF

u 5,000 5,000 3,000 SF 3,000 3,000
SF SF SF SF

Note *excludes smgle-famtly-home day cares

C. Minimum system requirements. The following minimum system requirements shall be
met when any occupancy type exceeds the limits in table 133-14B. Minimum system
requirements for fire alarm systems shall include·

1) Audible notification appliances shall be installed throughout protected premises.
2) Visible notification appliances shall be installed throughout protected premises.

Exceptions.
a. Closets and/or other similar small storage rooms that do not

exceed 50 square feet in floor area and are not normally occupied.
b. Normally unoccupied crawl spaces
c. Normally unoccupied attic spaces
d. Any non-accessible area.
e. Any area for which the AHJ deems visible notification appliances

are not required.
3) Manual initiating devices (pull stations) shall be located at all points of egress,

including all exit doors on every floor and/or building level
4) Water flow detection devices shall be connected to the fire alarm system to

specifically activate the not1ficat1on appliances upon water flow.
5) Fire suppression system activation alarms shall be connected to the protected

premises' fire alarm system to specifically activate the notification appliances
upon system activation. This includes but is not limited to wet chemical, CO2,
clean agent, water mist, and dry chemical systems.

6) Fire control and/or suppression systems' supervisory condition indicators shall be
connected to and monitored by the fire alarm system This specifically includes
but is not limited to: valve supervisory switches (tamper switches), low-air
indicators, low-water switches, low-temperature switches, fire pump condition
indicators and/or any other situation or condition deemed necessary by the AHJ.

7) Fire alarm systems shall be addressable and capable of indicating the status of all
specific components at all times connected to the system

8) All fire alarm systems shall be monitored by a UL-histed central monitoring
station.
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9) Fire alarm annunciators shall be installed mall protected premises The number
and locations of the fire alarm annunciators installed shall be acceptable to the
AHJ.

10) As determined by the AHJ, any additional notification and/or initiation
appliances/devices may be required due to size, occupancy hazards, building
construction, and/or occupancy use.

D. Submittals for fire alarm systems. Submittals for fire alarm systems are intended to
provide basic information consistent with the objective of installing a fully operational,
code compliant fire alarm system and to provide the basis for the record drawings
required by NFPA 72. Conditional approval of a fire alarm system submittal and/or any
portion thereof is not intended to imply waiver or mod1ficat1on of any requirements of
any code or any other applicable cntena.

1) Three sets of each fire alarm submittal shall be submitted to the fire
department's authorized reviewing agent for conditional approval. The
municipality may retain two copies of each submittal, and one copy will be
returned to the installing contractor.

2) All shop drawings/plans shall be drawn on sheets of uniform size to a recognized
scale and shall comply with the requirements of the most current legislatively
enacted version of NFPA 72 adopted by the State of Wisconsin, and plan
submissions must include all required design elements, details, calculations, and
specifications set forth in Chapter 7 of that standard

E. Inspections, testing and record keeping.
1) An authorized representative or agent of the AHJ shall inspect all fire alarm

system installations prior to concealment of any wiring or devices The Fire
Department must be notified at least 72 hours prior to any fire alarm component
being concealed.

2) An authorized representative or agent of the AHJ shall witness all acceptance
tests. The AHJ must be notified a minimum of 72 hours pnor to any testing.

3) Two copies of the completed fire alarm system record of completion required by
NFPA 72 must be provided to the AH) prior to final acceptance

4) Permanent records must be provided in accordance with NFPA 72. This includes
completed fire alarm system inspection and testing forms.

F. Special requirements On all buildings over four stones in height, a fire command center
for Fire Department operations shall be provided The fire command center shall comply
with NFPA 72 and shall contain the features required in the International Fire Code and
NFPA 1, 13.7.2.29.

1) Two-way telephone communication service shall be provided for fire department
use. This system shall be m accordance with NFPA 72. The communications
system shall operate between the central control station and every elevator
control car, every elevator lobby, and each floor level of exit stairs

2) The requirements of NFPA 1, 13.7.2 29 shall not apply where the fire department
radio system is approved as an equivalent system (NFPA 101, 11 8 3.2 )
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3) If the building components interfere with fire department radio operations, and if
it is found within the first six months of the completion of the building, the owner
is responsible for the cost of providing upgrades to ensure adequate radio
communications throughout the building The final system upgrade and operation
must be approved by the fire chief or his designee

G. Maintenance. All devices shall be installed, maintained, and tested in accordance with
NFPA 72 standards. If at any point a fire alarm fails to pass the annual test set forth in
NFPA 72, the building owner and fire alarm tester/inspector shall notify the AHJ of the
test results, and the system shall be repaired or upgraded as required in order to comply
with NFPA 72 and this code.

H. Fire alarm control panels shall display the status of the system components and be
installed in a location acceptable to the AHJ. Adequate access for fire department, alarm
maintenance and inspection personnel shall be maintained Fire alarm control panels
shall not be located within private dwellings with the exception of one- and two-family
dwellings.

§133-15. Automatic fire protection for cooking areas.

A. Intent. The intent of this section is to require automatic fire extinguishing systems in vent
hoods and duct systems in all cooking areas to effectively extinguish fire at its source and
reduce property damage and losses.

B. Where required. Automatic fire extinguish mg systems shall be installed in any cooking
area required by the State of Wisconsin codes and m any area m which the AHJ has
determined a potential fire risk exists

C. Installation requirements.
1) All fire extinguishing systems must be submitted directly to the fire department's

authorized reviewing agent for cond1t1onal approval Plans must comply with the
requirements of NFPA 17/17A; and plan submissions must include all required
design elements, details, calculations, and spec1ficat1ons set forth in the relevant
standard.

2) The system shall be provided with automatic fuel shut-off
3) A class K fire extinguisher shall be installed per NFPA 10
4) Alarms shall be connected to the fire alarm system per NFPA 72
5) Cooking equipment used in processes producing smoke or grease-laden vapors

shall be equipped with an exhaust system that complies with all the equipment
and performance requirements of NFPA 1 and NFPA 96, and all such equipment
and performance shall be maintained per NFPA 96 during all periods of operation
of the cooking equipment.

§133-16. Miscellaneous construction provisions.

A. Addresses and door labeling. Addresses as assigned by the City shall be placed on all
structures or property supporting the same as follows

1) Placement. The address shall be put in place on the structure as soon as
reasonably possible during construction at a location acceptable to the AHJ.
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2) Description of numbers and letters. Numbers and letters shall be of contrasting
colors (e.g. black and white) and readable from the road or highway and:

a.Arabic numbers shall be used; script and roman numerals cannot be used
alone, but may be used as an add1t1on to the requirements of this section.

b.All single-family and two-family residential buildings shall have street
numbers, not less than four (4) inches tall and placed on the exterior wall
of the principal building that faces the street or service drive providing
access to the building. All such residential units shall also have street
numbers, not less than three and one-half (3) inches tall, placed on
their respective mall box. If the building setback 1s greater than 100 feet
from the roadway the address shall be moved no further than 25 feet
from the roadway and placed within ten (10) feet of the entrance to the
property. Numbers and letters shall be visible from the roadway at all
times of the year

c. If the mailbox is on a different street from the residence, the street name
and house number must be inscribed on the mailbox

3) Multifamily requirements. All multifamily buildings shall have street numbers
placed on the exterior of the principal building that faces the street, service drive,
or parking lot and located adjacent to the individual entrances to the buildings. In
addition, each building shall be 1dent1f1ed by a letter or number, not less than 12
inches tall, located near the top of the building At the entrance of each access
drive, there shall be a directory listing of the street numbers and building
identifications that are accessible from said street, service drive or parking lot.
Suite numbers identifying the individual units must be placed on the primary
entrance to each occupancy.

4) Commercial and industnal requirements
a. If less than 75 feet in height, shall have street numbers, not less than six

(6) inches tall, placed at the exterior wall of the principal building facing
the street, service drive or parking lot providing access to that building
and located adjacent to any primary entrance door

b. If more than 75 feet in height, shall have street numbers, not less than
24 inches tall, located on the exterior wall facing the primary street and
main entrance.

c. All surte numbers that identify each individual unit shall be placed on the
primary entrance to each business or occupancy

d.All commercial or industrial structures which have a rear service door
shall identify the occupant and the street address conspicuously and on
said rear door in contrasting and reflective letters and/or numbers not
less than six (6) inches tall, and shall continually maintain same.

B. Door, floor and stairway identification. Any occupancy having more than five exterior
means of egress and/or more than two floors in height shall number the ind1v1dual egress
areas according to this section.

18



1) An identifying number shall be placed on the interior and exterior of each means
of egress doorway not less than six inches tall, and in contrasting color and light
reflective.

2) Each floor shall have a sign indicating room numbers, with an arrow indicating the
direction to these rooms. The location of this sign must be acceptable to the AHJ.

3) Each interior door providing access to an enclosed stairway that is considered
part of an accessible means of egress shall be 1dent1f1ed with numbers and letters
not less than three and one-half (3) inches tall m the following manner:

a. Have a sign indicating floor level posted on both sides of the egress door
in a location acceptable to the AHJ.

b. Have a sign indicating the exterior exit door egress assigned in
compliance with Subsection B(1) located on both sides of the egress door
in a location acceptable to the AHJ.

4) Identification numbers shall be placed on the exterior windows of all hotels,
motels, nursing homes, and multifamily occupancies to 1dent1fy the room number
or address it services The numbers shall be not less than three and one-half (3 %)
inches tall, light reflective, and in a location acceptable to the AHJ

C. Fire Department access roads and fire lanes. Unobstructed fire lanes that are accessible
from a public road shall be provided for every build mg or portion of a building in
accordance with Wis. Admin. Code 5 SPS 362. Fire Department Access Roads shall comply
with the requirements of NFPA 1, (18.2 3.1)

D. Fire hydrants.
1) Intent. The intent of this section is to insure adequate water supply for fire­

fighting purposes to structures, buildings, and normal premises. For the purposes
of placing hydrants, "normal access routes" are defined as pavement, sidewalks,
streets, driveways and paths leading to a building that are clear and maintained
year round. The normal access route does not include grass, parking stalls,
ditches, hills shrubs, flower beds, fences, walls or any other area typically used for
ingress or regress to a building.

2) Where required. Any build mg or structure hereafter erected shall provide, at the
owner's expense, approved water hydrants Fire hydrant location, distribution,
and installation shall comply with NFPA 1(18 5)

a. Mobile home parks. Any new mobile home or trailer park or any mobile
home or trailer park which expands by adding additional trailers or area
to the present court site shall provide an approved water hydrant when
any trailer or building located in such park is more than 300 feet from an
approved hydrant Water hydrants shall be provided so that no trailer or
building 1s more than 300 feet from an approved hydrant by normal
access routes. Fire extinguishers are required in mobile home parks per
Chapter 174 of Franklin municipal ordinances

b.Notwithstanding the above, the need and location of any fire hydrant
shall be determined by the AHJ as he/she deems necessary to protect life
and property. [Added 7-24-2012 by Ord No 2012-2086]
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3) Inspection, testing, maintenance and repair
a. Private fire service mains and water tanks shall be inspected, tested and

maintained in compliance with the requirements established in NFPA 25.
(1) Property owner shall immediately advise the fire department and

the Water Utility as to hydrants which have been damaged, are
inoperable, or have been found deficient in required fire flow.

(2) All inoperable hydrants shall be repaired as soon as is practically
possible or within a reasonable time frame as determined by the
AHJ.

(3) All records of inspections shall be maintained on site and made
available to the AHJ upon request

b. Hydrants must be accessible at all times Proh1b1ted obstructions may
include but are not limited to snow, parked vehicles, materials,
equipment, storage and refuse. No obstruction shall be within a four-foot
radius of the hydrant.

E. Access box system requirements.
1) An access box system has been adopted for use by this fire department. The

following structures shall be equipped with an access box at or near the main
entrance or such location as required by the AHJ·

a.Commercial or industrial structures protected by an automatic alarm
system or automatic fire suppression system, or such structures that are
secured in a way that restricts access during an emergency

b.Multifamily residential structures that have restricted access through
locked doors and have a common corridor for access to the living units.

c. Nursing homes, community-based residential facilities (CBRFs), child day­
cares and other health facilities.

d.AII educational occupancies.
e.The AHJ shall have the authority to require any structure to install and

maintain an access box.
f. Exception: Any building or site that has twenty-four hour, seven-day-a­

week security guard service or any occupancy that remains open 24 hours
a day, seven days a week, does not require an access box, unless required
by the AHJ.

2) All newly constructed structures subject to this section shall have the access box
installed and operational prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit. All
structures in existence on the effective date of this section and that are subject to
this section shall have one year from the date of bemg ordered by the AHJ to
have an access box installed to complete installation

3) The owner or agent of a structure required to have an access box shall keep the
following inside the box:

a. Keys to locked points of ingress and egress whether on the interior or
exterior
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b.The keys to locked mechanical equipment, electrical and elevator control
rooms, fire alarm and/or sprinkler riser rooms

c. The keys needed to open any alarm panels
d.Floor plans or maps as required by the AHJ
e. The keys to other areas as directed by the AHJ.
f. Number of keys required: [Added 7-24-2012 by Ord No 2012-2086]

(1) Occupancies smaller less than 10,000 square feet shall provide a
minimum of two master keys

(2) Occupancies of at least 10,000 square feet but less than 50,000
square feet shall provide a minimum of three master keys.

(3) Occupancies of 50,000 square feet or more and/or those
occupancies with special hazards shall provide a minimum of
four master keys.

(4) The access box shall be installed at the owner's expense.
(5) The size and type of access box must be acceptable to by the AHJ.
(6) If the locks to the building are changed, the AHJ must be notified

and new keys placed in the access box within 24 hours
F. Occupancy inspection The fire department shall conduct inspections of public buildings

and places of employment prior to the issuance of local occupancy permits A record of
the inspection shall be retained by the fire department

G. Building plan review. The fire department shall conduct plan reviews and issue approvals
of fire-safety related elements prior to construction of any public buildings or places of
employment.

H. Fire pump rooms. [Added 7-24-2012 by Ord No 22012-2086]
1) All fire pump rooms at grade level shall have a minimum of one single door access

and egress directly to the outside of the structure
2) All egress doors shall swing out from the fire pump.
3) A clear aisle of a minimum of 48 inches in width shall be provided for access to

the fire pump which shall be totally accessible and have clearly labeled valves and
controls capable of manipulation in full personal protective equipment (PPE),
including self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA)

4) Keys for all doors to the fire pump room must be labeled and in the access box

§133-17. Miscellaneous use provisions.

A. Fire-damaged buildings (securing) All dwelling and buildings within the municipality
damaged from fire shall be secured within 24 hours of release of the property by the AHJ.
The owner of the damaged property shall assume the liab1l1ty for the protection of the
public until the property is secured

B. Fireworks.
1) Sales. Except as provided in 5167.10(2) and (4), Wis Stats, no person shall sell or

possess with the intent to sell fireworks
2) Possession. No person shall possess, manufacture, use, display, discharge or sell

any fireworks without a permit
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3) Use. Except as provided in§167.10(3), Wis Stats, no person shall possess or use
fireworks without a user's permit issued pursuant to Subsection C(4) below.

4) User permit.

a.As provided in 5167.10(3), Wis Stats, fireworks user's permits may
be issued for festivals or celebrations after proper application to the
municipality.

b.The AHJ shall require cert1f1cate of liability insurance or similar proof
of coverage on an amount deemed appropriate.

c. Fireworks displays shall be required to be conducted in accordance
with the conditions and requirements set forth m NFPA 1123, Code
for fireworks Displays.

d.Permits to display or discharge fireworks shall be issued as follows:
(1) An application for a permit may be obtained at the Fire

Department.
(2) Applications shall be submitted not less than seven days prior to

the date of such display
(3) No accumulating or purchase of fireworks shall be allowed prior

to the issuance of the permit.
(4) After review of the application and inspection of the site, a

permit shall be issued or denied at the discretion of the AHJ upon
due consideration of the provisions of this chapter and the
promotion of public safety and security of adJommg property.

(5) The AHJ reserves the right to reinspect the display and landing
sites at any time to ensure public safety

(6) NFPA 1123 and 1124 will be used as a guide for these inspections.
(7) The cost of such permits shall be as set forth under 5133-21 of

this code.
(8) All persons applying for a permit must also submit proof of

liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 and a copy of any
contract with companies which will be responsible in whole or
part for the fireworks, storage, or display

(9) All display companies and personnel who are paid to set off
fireworks within the city shall return to the area of fireworks
display within 18 hours of the display and during daytime hours
to carefully search for and dispose of unexploded fireworks

(10)The Franklin Police and/or Fire Department personnel are
authorized to enlarge the area required to be searched by the
display companies and their personnel

5) No permits. Permits will not be issued to sell or manufacture fireworks.
6) Use of caps and sparklers. No unlicensed person may use fireworks, caps, or

sparklers in a municipal park or at a fireworks display for which a permit has been
issued 1f the display Is open to the public
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7) Pyrotechnics Pyrotechnics are proh1b1ted in public buildings and places of
employment unless authorized by the AHJ and shall be used 1n accordance with
NFPA 1123.

8) The fire chief and/or his or her designee may disallow the display of fireworks due
to local circumstances, such as extremely dry cond1t1ons or other unforeseen
circumstances.

9) Sky lanterns. The use of free-floating sky lanterns and similar devices util121ng an
open flame shall be prohibited

C. High-piled combustible storage. High-piled and rack storage of combustible commodities
shall comply with any and all applicable DSPS and IBC codes and standards and the
conditions and requirements of Chapter 32 of the International Fire Code (2015), which is
herein adopted by reference in this code

D. Outdoor burning.
1) Restricted Burning (permit required) Outdoor burning of any kind may be

restricted upon issuance of a burning ban order by the AHJ for environmental
conditions such as prolonged dry periods, or for other reasons at the discretion of
the AHJ.

a.Open Burning. There shall be no open burning of any combustible
waste material except as allowed by permit and subject to the
following regulations.
(1) A Franklin Burning Permit must be obtained from the Office of

the City Clerk (9229 w Loomis Rd ) by the listed property owner
prior to ignition (Permits shall only be issued to owners of one­
and two- family residential properties).

(2) Wind velocity shall not exceed nine miles per hour
(3) Contents of the pile may contain only dry leaves, brush, and other

dry plant material
(4) Burning of construction or packaging materials is prohibited.
(5) The size of the burn pile shall not exceed four feet in width or

three feet in height.
(6) Open burning shall be constantly supervised by a competent

person, at least 16 years old, until the fire is extinguished.
(7) The pile to be burned shall be a minimum of 50 feet from

buildings and 25 feet from any public roadways
(8) If smoke travels in such as manner as to cause a nuisance to

neighbors, or obscure any public roadway, the fire shall be
required to be extinguished

(9) Open burning shall only be permitted from 7 00 a m to ½ hour
after sunset.

(10)Open burning shall be permitted from April 1 to June 15 and
October 15 to November 30

(11) Flammable or combustible liquids shall not be used to ignite or
accelerate the fire at any point
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(12)A garden hose or other means of extmgu1shment must be present
and readily accessible at all times

b.Bonfires. Bonfires may be conducted for public ceremonies,
celebrations, and special events; only with a permit approved by the
fire department, and subject to the following cond1t1ons and
requirements:
(1) An application shall be obtained from and submitted to the fire

department no less than seven days prior to the date of the
event.

(2) The cost of such permit shall be as set forth under 5133-21 of this
code. (Fees shall be refunded 1f a bonfire permit application Is
denied by the AHJ)

(3) After review of the application and inspection of the site, a
permit shall be issued or denied at the discretion of the AHJ upon
due consideration of the provisions of this chapter and the
promotion of public safety and the security of adJoinmg property.

(4) No accumulating of items to burn in the bonfire shall be allowed
prior to the issuance of the permit

(5) The AHJ reserves the right to re-inspect the bonfire site at any
time to ensure public safety

(6) Fire shall be no larger than 10 feet m diameter or 10 feet tall.
(7) The fire area shall be protected by a fire ring or in some other

fashion acceptable to the AHJ to prevent fire spread or a fire
hazard

(8) Fires shall contain only wood, other building products are
prohibited

(9) Fires shall not be started or accelerated using flammable liquids.
(10) Fires must be attended at all times by a competent person of at

least 18 years of age who has obtained the permission of the
property owner.

(11)The fire must be at least 50 feet from all structures, roadways
and lot Imes.

(12) If smoke travels in such a manner that it obscures roadways, the
AHJ reserves the right to require that the fire be extinguished.

(13)A garden hose or other means of extmgu1shment must be present
and readily accessible at all times

c. Prescribed burns. Prescribed burns may be conducted in order to
control invasive weeds, grasses, and brush for the purpose of
restoring native prairie plant species and improving wildlife habitat,
with the following conditions and restrictions
(1) Prescribed burns shall be conducted only by a professional

environmental consulting or engineering firm demonstrating
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adequate proof of insurance, and with the approval of the fire
chief.

(2) Prescribed burn requests shall be evaluated and approved or
denied on a case-by-case basis at the sole discretion of the fire
chief, after consideration of geographic location, present
conditions, and potential impact on adJoining properties,
structures, and roadways

2) Permissible burning (permit not required)
a. Grills

(1) For other than one- and two- family dwellings, no hibachi, grill, or
similar devices used for cooking, heating, or any other purpose
shall be used or kindled on any balcony, under any overhanging
portion, or within 10 ft (3m) of any structure.

(2) For other than one- and two- family dwellings, no hibachi, grill, or
other similar devices used for cooking shall be stored on a
balcony.

(3) Listed equipment permanently installed in accordance with its
listing, applicable codes, and manufacturer's instructions shall be
permitted.

(4) Electric grills shall be permitted to be used and stored on
balconies, provided that they are UL-listed and intended for
outdoor use; and provided they are left uncovered so as to be
readily identified as meeting the requirements of this code

b. Recreational fires:
(1) Portable fire pits shall not be used or kindled on any combustible

surface, balcony, or under any overhanging portion; or within 25
feet of any structure unless contained in an approved manner.

(2) Total fire area shall not exceed three feet in diameter and two
feet in height.

(3) Only dry firewood may be burned, burning of yard waste,
construction materials, or other refuse is prohibited.

(4) Recreational fires shall be attended at all times by a competent
person at least 16 years old, who has obtained the permission of
the property owner

(5) Flammable or combustible liquids shall not be used to ignite the
fire.

(6) Smoke shall not be a nuisance to nuisance to neighbors or public
roads

E. Possession of ignition devices.
1) Defined.

a. "Ignition device," for the purpose of this section shall be defined as:
(1) Matches.
(2) Lighters.
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(3) Any other materials when used for the purpose of 1gn1tion.
b.Minor: any child under 18 years of age

2) Possession prohibited. No minor may possess any ignition device, unless under
the direct supervision of, or with direct permission of, a parent or legal guardian.

3) Delivery prohibited. No person may sell, give, deliver or make accessible any
ignition device to a minor without the perm1ss1on of the minor's parent or legal
guardian.

4) Confiscation. Any ignition device possessed by a minor may be confiscated by any
peace officer, fire chief or authorized des1gnee of the fire chief Once confiscated,
these ignition devices shall become the property of the confiscating authority and
shall be processed accordingly as evidence in the commission of a crime or made
inoperable and disposed of properly

5) Penalty.
a.Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this subsection

shall, for each and every violation, be punishable by forfeiture, plus
any costs or surcharges as required by law

b.In addition to any other penalties provided for in this code, the judge
of any court of any competent Jurisd1ct1on may order any person
found guilty of violating this ordinance to any educational program as
the court deem appropriate and include as part of the penalty therein
that such person pay the costs of such educational program

F. Christmas tree sales. For the purpose of this subsection, the following minimum
standards shall apply to the storage, handling, and display of live Christmas trees and
foliage:

1) Trees and foliage shall be stacked not closer than 10 feet to any gasoline pump or
other device for the transfer of petroleum products

2) Aisles or clear spaces of not less than three feet shall be maintained at all times.
3) A fire extinguisher with a 2A-10BC rating or greater shall be provided by the

merchant for each 75 feet of travel display and/or storage area.
4) All storage and sales of live Christmas trees and foliage shall be held outside of

buildings.
5) It shall be unlawful to light a match or any flame-producing device or to smoke or

carry a lighted cigar, cigarette, or pipe in areas where live Christmas trees of
foliage is displayed, sold, or stored The person in charge of the Christmas tree
sales shall post a "NO SMOKING" sign in locations designed to give persons
entering the area notice of this regulation

G. Blasting.
1) Permit required. All persons or entities who perform blasting in the city shall

obtain the proper permit prior to storage or use of blasting agents or explosives.
Application for a permit may be obtained at the fire department Applications
shall be submitted not less than seven days prior to the date of such blasting
project. No accumulation of blasting agents or explosives shall be allowed prior to
the issuance of the permit. After review of the application and inspection of the
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site, a permit shall be issued or denied at the discretion of the AHJ upon due
consideration of the provisions of this chapter, promotion of public safety and
security of adJoining property. The AHJ reserves the nght to reinspect the project
site at any time to ensure public safety The cost of such permit shall be as
provided in 5133-21 of this code

2) Exemptions. Persons or entities engaged in the active operation of quarrying
activities, as a legal, nonconforming, permissive or special use of land, prior to the
effective date of this chapter, shall be exempt from the permit requirement
hereunder.

H. Carbon-monoxide (CO) detectors. [Added 7-24-2012 by Ord No 2012-2086]
1) Intent. The intent of this section 1s to decrease the leading cause of poisoning

deaths in the United States by requiring the installation and maintenance of
carbon monoxide (CO) detectors

2) Installation required. Installation shall be required, installed, tested and
maintained as set forth in 5101.149 Wis Stats

I. Smoke Alarms [Added 7-24-2012 by Ord. No. 2012-2086]
1) Installation required. A "ten year" smoke alarm with a sealed battery or smoke

alarms hardwired to the structure's electrical power with a battery backup and
interconnected with each other shall be installed in all multi-family and mixed use
occupancies not later than January 1, 2013 Smoke alarms must be installed mall
bedrooms, in the common hallway outside of the bedrooms and/or at the head
of all stairways and/or m locations required by the AHJ

2) Testing and maintenance.
a. The owners of multifamily occupancies are responsible for monthly

testing and documentation of the same for all smoke alarms not
located within tenant areas

b.The owner and/or occupant of mixed-use occupancies are
responsible for monthly testing and documentation of the same for
all smoke alarms located within areas they occupy

3) Once notified of a missing or defective smoke alarm, the owner of a multifamily
occupancy shall repair or replace the smoke alarm within five days

J. Outdoor, ordinary combustible-fired or fuel furnaces. An outdoor wood-fired furnace
shall not be installed or used within the City [Added 7-24-2012 by Ord No. 2012-2086]

§133-18. Flammable, combustible, and hazardous materials.

A. The following items shall not be stored in any mult1fam1ly dwelling m the community:
1) Charcoal, except in a metal container equipped with a metal cover.
2) Oily rags or oily dust mops.
3) Flammable liquids.
4) Bottle gases. propane, acetylene, oxygen or other substances of similar nature.
5) Gasoline motors and gasoline power equipment
6) Dangerous or hazardous amounts of flammable, combustible or explosive

material as determined by the AHJ
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7) Dangerous accumulations of rubbish, waste paper, boxes, shavings, or other
highly flammable materials as determined by the AHJ.

8) Dangerous accumulations of dust or waste materials in air conditioning systems.
B. Flammable, combustible and hazardous matenals shall be identified in accordance with

NFPA 704.

§133-19. Special inspections required.

A. At the adoption of this code all CBRFs adult family homes, adult day-cares and child day­
care centers (group) will be inspected not less than once a year by the Fire Department. A
courtesy fire inspection is recommended for all family child day-cares

§133-20. Fire inspection fees. [Amended 2-21-2006 by Ord. No. 2006-1873]

A. A fire inspection fee shall be charged to the property owner and/or property occupant,
jointly and severally, and respectively for each part or portion of a building, structure or
premises subject to a separate zoning compliance permit and/or a separate occupancy
permit requirement, including for each return or repeat inspection of each building,
structure, and premises or part or portion thereof [Amended 2-6-2007 by Ord No. 2007-
1907]

B. The annual fee shall constitute a special charge against the property inspected and shall
be entered upon the tax roll as a charge against the property unless previously paid, and
all proceedings in relation to the collection, return, and sale of the property for
delinquent real estate taxes shall apply to the collection of any unpaid inspection fees.

C. The fee for the required fire inspections shall be charged to and paid by the owners of
multifamily residential property, mixed use property, commercial property, industrial
property, health-care-facility property, schools, churches and other places of worship,
child day-care centers, rooming houses, community-based residential facility property,
adult- family-home property, adult- day- care fac1hty property, nursing home property
and assisted living property. Inspection fees to be charged and paid under this section
shall be in the amount of $20 for an inspection which does not exceed 20 minutes in
duration; $30 for an inspection which does not exceed 40 minutes in duration; $40 for
each inspection which does not exceed 60 minutes in duration, and $40 pro rata for each
portion of an inspection hour in addition to and immediately following an initial hour of
inspection. Total inspection fees charged to any single property or facility shall not
exceed $500 mn a calendar year.

D. Should reinspections be necessary for any purpose, the base fee for all reinspectIons shall
be $75 for any portion of an hour, however this fee shall be waived if all conditions and
violations have been corrected and the building and/or space is in full compliance with
the requirements of this code.

§133-21. Fees.

A. Fees shall be established for permits shall be payable to the municipality--Fees are subject
to change.

B. Permit fees. The fees established in Table 133-21A apply to permits required by this code.
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Table 133-21A

Permit Fee

Bonfires $50 per fire

Open Burning $15 per year
Blasting $100 per project

Fireworks $50 per event
High-piled storage $300 per permit*

Addition, alteration, or removal of 1- $50 per project
20 sprinkler heads or alarm
components to an existing svstem

$100 per project; m addit10n to
Installation of any fire protection any plan review and inspection
system; including fire sprinkler, fire fees charged by authorized third
alarm, wet chemical, clean agent, party contracted plan review
water mist, or other consultant.

§133-22. Violations and penalties.

A. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this code, or who fails to comply with any
order made hereunder, or who builds in violation of any detailed statement of specifications or
plans submitted and cond1t1onally approved hereunder, or any certificate or permit herein from
which no such appeal has been taken, or who fails to comply with such an order as affirmed or
modified by a court of competent jurisdiction within the time fixed herein, shall for each and
every violation and noncompliance be subject to the following

B. Imposition by forfeiture of no more than $500 per day by the Municipal Court
C. Imposition of a penalty for each such violation shall not excuse the violation or permit it to

continue, and such violations or defects shall be corrected or remedied within the time stated in
the order. Each and every day that a violation of this code occurs constitutes a separate offense.

D. False alarms. If the fire Department responds to three or more false alarms in one calendar year,
the Fire Department may.

1) Fine the building owner or occupant the amount as per City of Franklin§ 76-7 to
reimburse the Fire Department for the cost of equipment and personnel that was used
to respond to the alarm.

2) Require that the fire alarm be serviced, upgraded, or replaced to bring the alarm system
into compliance with current code in order to prevent future false alarms

E. Any contractor that begins installation and/or alteration of any system regulated by this code
prior to obtaining the required permit will be charged a triple fee

§133-23. Appeals.
A. Whenever the AHJ shall disapprove an application or refuse to grant a permit applied for, or

when it is claimed that the provision of this Code do not apply or that the true intent and
meaning of this Code has been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the applicant may appeal
the decision of the AHJ.
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B. Appeals shall be submitted, in writing, to the Chief of the Fire Department for a review of the
initial determination within 30 days from the date of the decision of the AHJ

C. All appeals shall follow Wisconsin Statute Chapter 68, Municipal Administrative Procedure.
D. Whenever the Fire Official shall disapprove an application or refuse to grant a license or permit

applied for, or when it is claimed that the provisions of this chapter do not apply or the true
intent and meaning of this section have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the
applicant may appeal from the decision of the Fire Official to the Board of Zoning and Building.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be mn force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2019, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin thisday of , 2019.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- ---- ---
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APPRO".:tv REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
COUNCIL ACTION 11/05/2019

Reports and
Recommendations

Motion from the Director of Health and Human Services ITEM NUMBER
to authonze proper officials for the City of Franklin to
sign the addendum to the 2019-2022 contract to #
administer the retail food and recreation programs for the (
Wisconsin Department ofAgriculture, Trade, and
Consumer Protection.

Background: Beginning November 1, 2019 a change has been implemented to the Wisconsin
Department of Agriculture, Trade, and Consumer Protection (DATCP) State Agent Contract
regarding the licensing of multijurisdictional temporary and mobile restaurants. Any licensing
and fee collection for these operators moving forward will be the responsibility of the Agent or
Department where the business operation is located. The Franklin Health Department (FHD)
has been an Agent for DATCP since 2007 allowing for local, timely, and thorough inspection
and licensing of all brick and mortar restaurants, hotels, motels, and public pools as well as the
local, Franklin only, temporary/mobile restaurants.

Analysis: Prior to November 1, 2019, the Wisconsin Division of Health Services (OHS) and
DATCP were responsible for the licensing of multijurisdictonal mobile and temporary
restaurants. FHD could only collect license fees for those temporary or mobile businesses that
operated solely in Franklin. This change will allow more consistency among all mobile and
temporary vendors and allow better working relationships with the local health department.

Options:
1. Authorize the signatures to execute the addendum to the current State Agent contract.
2 Decline the proposed addendum
3. Table or postpone contract execution pending review by the city attorney.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends authorization to
execute the addendum to the 2019-2022. State Agent Contract with the Wisconsin DATCP.

Fiscal Note: This was an anticipated change at the State level and will result in additional
time for the FHD staff to complete all licensing as outlined in the new contract. FHD will in
turn collect add1tonal revenue from the fees of these vendors which previously paid license
fees only to the State. The additional revenue will help offset the mcrease in staff time to
complete the licensing process each year. An additional 0.5 FTE was also requested in the 2020
Franklin Health Department budget to help with the anticipated changes.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion authorizing proper officials for
the City of Franklin to sign the addendum to the 2019-2022 contract to admmister the retail
food and recreational programs for the W1sconsm Department of Agriculture, Trade, and
Consumer Protection.

Health Department: CD



ADDENDUM TO THE CONTRACT TO ADMINISTER THE RETAIL FOOD AND
RECREATIONAL PROGRAMS FOR THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF

AGRICULTURE, TRADE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION
July 1, 2019 -- June 30, 2022

Agent Jurisdiction: City of Franklin Health Department

The followmg paragraph has been deleted from Section II

A The Agent shall ssue heenses to all faerhrtes designated m thus contractwwthmn tsJursdeton excepE

Mobile retail food establishments that cross geographealboundares, mn conduetmng them
business, shall be licensed by the Department under Wts Stat $ 97 30 (2) (a).

a If the mobile retail food establishment has a servee base, as defined in Wis Admm Code ch
ATCP5Append Part 1 201 10 (B), loeated wwthn thenrjunsdetonal boundary, the Agent
shall assue the sernee base hceense

b The Agent may charge an tnspecton fee for any mspechoR ofa Departmeflt hceRsed mobile
retail food establishment

2. Temporary retail food estabhsluaeRts that crossJunsd1et10nal boundanes, m eonductmg their
busmess, shall be hcensed by the Department under Wis Stat § 97 30 (2) (a)

a The Department shall provide a gmdaFJ:ce documeRt for the Agent to use to detennme which
temporary retail food establishment lreense apphes.

The Agent may charge an inspection fee for any speetion of a Department licensed
temporary retail food establishment

The following paragraphs have been added to Sectton IL

H The Agent shall honor, without issumg an addtttonal ltcense m its ownJunsd1ct10n, all licenses issued by the
Department or other Agent JUnsdict1ons for a mobile retail food establishment servmg meals (mobile
restaurants) The followmg shall also apply

The mobile retail food estabhshment hcense and service base hcense shall be issued by the
JUnsd1ct1on where the service base is located or the address where the mobile umt is stored, 1f a
service base variance 1s granted by the Department, or as specified m sub 2.

2 The Agent or the Department issumg the retail mobile service base hcense may allow another
Jtmsdtct1on to issue the retail mobile hcense, 1fthe mobile retail food establishment operates
solely outside the jurisdiction where the mobile service base 1s located

3. Enforcement activ1ties for all operations of the mobile retail food estabhshment shall be
conducted by the hcensmg enttty, regardless ofwhere the establishment may operate w1th111 the
State Inspcctton reports generated by other Jttnsd1ct1ons may be used to support enforcement
activities

4. The licensee shall 1mmediately correct any violations posmg an nnmediate danger to public
health found on site or the mspectmg regulatory authonty shall issue a temporary closure order
at tme of mspcctmn



5 An inspection fee may be charged by any Agent program conducting an inspection on a mobile
unit licensed by another Junsd1ct1on The fee shall be based on the reasonable cost to conduct
the mspect1011

6. Current out-of-state mobile retail food cstabhshmcnts shall contmue to mamtam a Department­
ssued license unless the Department determines that the license should be held by another
jurisdiction

An Agent shall honor, without 1ssumg an additional license 111 1ts own jur1sdcton, all hcenses issued by the
Department or other Agent Junsd1chons for a temporary retail food establishment The following shall also
apply

The temporary retail food establishment license shall be issued m the Jtmsd1ct10n m which the
operator s located or the temporary event occurs.

2 Enforcement act1v1lies for all operations of the temporary retatl food establishment shall be
conducted by the hcensmg entity, regardless ofwhere the establishment may operate w1thm the
State Inspection reports generated by other JUnsd1ctions may be used to support enforcement
actrv1ttes

3 The licensee shall 1mmediately correct any vtolations posmg an immediate danger to public
health found on site or the mnspectmng regulatory authonty shall a temporary closure order at
time of inspection

4 An mspcct10n fee may be charged by any Agent program conductmg an mspechon on a
temporary retail food establishment licensed by another junsdtcton The fee shall be based on
the reasonable cost to conduct the mspect1011

5. Current out-of-state temporary retail food cstabhshments shall continue to mamtam a Department-issued
hcense unless the Department determmes that the Icense should be held by another Junsd1ct10n

Signed th1s day of,2018.

For City of Franklin Health Department

S1gnature

Pnnt Name and Title ----------------------

Signed th1s day of, 2018

For the Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protect1011

Steven C Ingham, Adnumstrator
Division of Food and Recreational Safety
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

BY----------
Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

Dated:-----

ATTEST:

BY------------
Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

Dated:-----

BY _
Paul Rotzenberg, Director of
Finance and Treasurer

Dated:-----

APPROVED AS TO FORM

BY----------
Jesse A. Wesolowski, City
Attorney

Dated'-----



CONTRACT TO ADMINISTER THE
RETAIL FOOD AND RECREATIONAL PROGRAMS

FOR THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMEi\T OF AGRICULTURE,
TRADE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION

god
gr<d

Cy
•

Tl11S Contract 1s made between the Wisconsin Department ofAgriculture, Trade and Consumer
Protection ("'the Department,,) and Cit) of Franklin Hea1th Department ("the Agent"), pursuant
to Wis. Stat §§ 97.41 and 97.615 and Wis Admm Code ch ATCP 74, authorizing the Department
to enter 111to a written contract dcs1gnatmg a local health department, defined 111 Wis Stat $ 250.01
(4), to act as the Department's local Agent to admmrster the retail food and recreational
establishment program The Department designates and authorizes City of Franklin Health
Department to act as the Department's Agent for the purpose of enforcmg Wis Stat. $ 97 30 and
Subchs. III and IV of ch. 97, and the applicable provisions of the W1sconsm Ad1mmstrat1ve Code

The Agent's Jtmsd1ctron under this contract mcludes the followmg geographic area(s)· Cit) of
Franklin.

This contract shall run from July 1, 2019 -- June 30, 2022 and shall remam 111 effect for three
fiscal years unless otherwise specified, and shall remam m effect dunng the three fiscal years
unless spec1fically tenmnated, revoked, or suspended, as provided m the contract The
Department shall issue contracts for future contract penods to the Agent by January l of the last
fiscal year of the current contract The Agent shall commit to contmue as the Department's
Agent for the future contract penod, by s1g111ng and returnmg the contract by March 1 of the last
fiscal year of the current contract

The Agent hereby agrees to protect publc health and safety, as the Agent of the Department
under W1s Stat.§ 97 30 and Subchs III and IV of ch 97, and Wis. Admm Code ch ATCP 74,
and the terms and conditions of thts Contract The Agent agrees to issue licenses to, inspect,
and regulate 1etarl food estabhshments, campgrounds, recreational and educat1onal camps,
pubhc swunming pools and water attractions, hotels, motels, tounst roommg houses, and bed
and breakfast establishments, as specified 111 tlus Contract, enforcmg all apphcable prov1s10ns of
the Wisconsin Statutes and Administrative Code and associated Department policies,
mterpretl\ e memos and procedures mcluding, but not necessanly lmuted to, Wis Stat § 97 .30
and Subchs III and IV of ch 97, and Wis. Admin Code chs ATCP 72 (Hotel, Motel and
Tounst Roommg Houses), 73 (Bed and Breakfast Establishments), 74 (Local Agents and
Regulation), 75 (Retail Food Establishments) and Appendix (W1sconsm Food Code), 76
(Safety, Mamtenance, and Operat1011 of Pubhc Pools and Water Attractions), 78 (Recreat1onal
and Eclucat1onal Camps), and 79 (Campgrounds). If the Agent mspects mdiv1dual vendmg
machmes, the Agent will receive reimbursement from the Department

The Department agrees to fulfill its 1espons1b1httes to the Agent reqmred by Wis Stat § 97.30
and Subchs III and IV of ch 97, Wis Admm Code ch ATCP 74, and this Contract

Pursuant to ATCP 74.06 (7), the Depm1ment shall whenever feasible provide nottce to an Agent
ptogram at least one fiscal year before makmg any changes to Department pohc1es and
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procedures not specified m the contract that would ad\ er!>el) affect the budget of an Agent
program

This Contract incorporates any amendments to the statutes or admmmstratre rules cited mn this
Contract, as \\ ell as any adhtonal statutes or rules, related to retail food and recreat10nal
cstabl1shment l!ccnsmg that may be enacted or adopted duumng the term oftlus Contract The
Agent agrees that all of 1ts obhgattons under tlus Contract mclude any of these amendments,
enactments or adoptions

I. DEFINITIONS

A Agent means a local health department (LHD) as defined m Wis Stat.§ 250 01 (4),
that has entered mto a contract with the Department and 1s author1zed undc1 the
terms of that contract to admuuster a retail food establishment, lodgmg, and
recreational satcty regulator) program, pursuant to Wis Stat $$ 97 41 and 97 615
(2), 1n the local health department's area ofJUnsd1ction

B Agent Program means the retail food establishment, lodging, and recreat10nal
safety regulatory program operated by an Agent

C Agent Program Plan means the plan developed by the Agent for the admm1strat1011
of the Agent program and enforcement ofWis Stat $ 97 30 and Subchs III and IV
of ch 97, related provisions of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, and any
apphcable local ordmances or regulat10ns cited 111 its enforcement actions for the
types of fac1ht1es for wluch the Agent has been delegated Agent status

D. Agent Standard means a member of the Agent's mspect10n staff, responsible for
leadmg standardization exercises, as prescribed m the Department's Standanllzat1on
Manual, for the environmental health mspection personnel m the Agent's
Jt1nsd1ct1011, who has successfully completed the m1tial standard1zat1on process, 1s
current mn their inspection standardization maintenance exercises, and has received a
letter of completion from the Department.

E Complaint means an allegation, presented to an Agent or the Department, of a
possible public health hazard orolaton of any provision of the Wisconsin Statutes
and Adn11mstrat1ve Code md1cated m this contract or a local pubhc health ordmance
or regulation

F. Conflict of interest means a confhct between the p11vate mterests and the official
respons1bth1ties of a person in a position of trust As provided mn Wis Stat. $ 19 59
(I), a conflict of interest occurs when the exercise of a person's officral
respons1b1hhes gives the person the opportumty to obtam financial gam or anythmg
of substantial value for the pnvate benefit of lumself or herself, his or her 1111111ed1ate
family, or an orgamzation with winch he or she is assocrnted
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G Contract means a signed. witten agreement between a local health department and
the Department settmg forth the obltgat10ns of each party m the operation of an
Agent program

H The Department means the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and
Consumer Protcct1011

Enforcement Action meanc:; a statutonl)-authonzed action nnposed on a licensee
for non-compliance with a provus1on of the Wisconsin Statutes or Administrative
Code. or a local public health ordmance or regulat10n Enforcement actions mcludc,
but are not lmuted to, holdmg orders, c1tahons, forfeitures, temporal") orders, hcense
suspension, or revocation of a license

J Establishmentor Facility means a retail food establishment, hotel, motel, tounst
roommg house, bed and breakfast estabhshment, food vendmg maclune, campmg
resort or other campground. recreational educational camp, pubhc swimmmg pool or
water attraction licensed pursuant to Wis Stat ch 97

K Fiscal Year means Jul) I of one year through June 30 of the next year

L Follow up Inspection means a non-mandatory mspectton by the Agent to ensure
non-critical violations, cited mn a routme inspection. have been corrected by a
licensee.

M. Foodborne Disease Outbreak means the occurrence of two or more cases of a
snmlar illness of persons, re,;;ultmg from the mgestlon of a common food.

N. Inspection Fee means a fee charged by the Agent program, the amount ofwhch 1s
reasonably related to the cost of performmg an assessment of an establishment's
compliance with the statutes and rules, under which a license 1s granted, mcludmg
the followmg

An mspect10n man establishment not under the Department's regulatory
authonty.

2 An Agent mspecton n 1ts jurisdiction of a Department hcensed mobile or
temporary retail food establishment

0 Inspector means any emplo1ee mspectmg establishments for the Department or the
Agent under the jurisdctton of an Agent program

P License means the legal autho11t:y granted by the Department or its Agent to operate
an estabhshment

Q Licensee means the person or enttt} licensed to operate an establishment
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R Local Public Health Ordinance or Regulation means an ordmance adopted by a
village. e1ty or county, or a regulation adopted b) a local board of health, as the
Department's Agent, pursuant to Wis Stat § 97 41 (7) or 97 615 (2) (g)

S Memorandum of Understanding(MOU) means an agieement bet\\een the
Department and another state agency for designatmng each agency's responsibihties
m shared governance

T Nen Agent means an Agent that has entered mto its first contract with the
Department 01 an Agent that has applied to ieenter mto a contract with the
Department after ternunat1011 of a prev10us contract

U Person means an mdividual, mmTied couple, legal entity of a pattnersl11p.
corporation, or lumtcd hab1hty compan), nmmctpaht). county, tmvn, or state or
local agency.

V Pre-licensing Inspection means an mspechon that must be completed before a
license ts granted and the licensee ma) begm operatmg

W Program Evaluation means an assessment by the Department of the Agent's
adherence to the prov1s10ns of tlus Contract

X Registered Emiromnental Health Specialist/Registered Sanitarian or
REHS/RS means a person who holds an REHS/RS credential awarded by the
National Environmental Health Assoc1at1on

Y. Registered Sanitarian or RS means an mdiv1dual who 1s a Wtsconsm-rcgistered
sa111tanan, pursuant to Wis Stat. $440 98 and Wis Adnun. Code. chs. SPS 174 to
177, or 1s rccogn1zed as a 1egistered environmental health spec1al1st/registered
sanitarian

Z. Reimbursement means the portion of the hcense fee, collected by the Agent, that 1s
remitted to the Department, pursuant to Wis Stat § 97 41 (5) or 97.615 (2) (e)

AA Reinspection means a mandatory 111<;pect1011 to ensure that pnonty, cnttcal or
recurring v1olat10ns have been corrected, mcludmg

a An observed v1olatton of unmedmte danger to pubhc health (pnonty or critical)
that 1s not corrected dunng the 1mpechon,

b Six or more pnonty (cntlcal) v10lattons observed and noted,

c Repeat v10lat10ns noted dunng two prev10us mspcct10ns (3 consecutl\ e tunes), or

d As determined 1n consultation with a supervisor, an excessive number of
\ 10lat10ns that show a lack of rnanagenal control observed durmg an mspect1011.
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BB Routine inspection means the annual evaluation of a licensee's operation of 1ts
estabhshment

CC Sanitarian means a person who 1<; qualified to conduct inspections as an Agent of
the Department and meets the reqmrements undei Wis. Admm Code § ATCP 74 08
2).

DD Standard means a Department (state standard) or Agent employee (Agent standard)
who is ceit1fied as correctly mterpretmg and enforcmg Wis Admm Code chs
ATCP72, 73, 75 and Its Appendix, 76, 78, and 79

FE Standardization exercise means an c, aluatton conducted by a standard to
determine it a samtanan 1s correctly mterpretmg and entorcmg \Vis Admm Code
chs ATCP 72, 73, 75 and its Appemhx, 76, 78, and 79

FF. Standardization (initial) means a santaran's first successful completion of
reqmred field exercises by using nsk based mspect10n methods, as specified 111 the
Department's Standardization Manual

GG. Standardization (maintenance} means a samtanan'<; succes.,ful completion of field
exercises by usmg nsl based mspectJon methods, required ever) three years to
maintain standardization certification, as specified mn the Department's
Standardization Manual

HH State Fees means the Department's fees m Wis Stat $$ 97.41 (5) and 97.615 (2)
(e), leved to recoup Department costs related to settmg standards for, momtormg
and evaluating the activities of, and providing education and training to, Agent local
health departments.

II. State License Fees means the license fees set by the Department, pursuant to Wis
Stat §§ 97.30 (3) and (3m), 97 613, and 97 67 (4)

JJ. Waterborne Disease Outbreak means the occurrence of two or more cases of a
s11m lar illness ofpersons after the 111gest10n of drmkmg water from the same source,
or after exposure to water from the same source used for recreat10nal purposes, and
for which epdemologic evidence implicates water as the probable source of the
illness

II. ISSUING LICENSES

A The Agent Program shall issue licenses 111 its Jtmsd1ct1on, 111 accordance with s. 97.30.
Stats , and subchs III and IV of ch 97, Stats, and shall ensure that no person 111 its
JUnsd1chon, subJect to regulatton under those statutes, operates an establishment
without a vahd license except
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Mobile retail food estabhslunents that c10ss geograplucal boundaries, 111

conducting their business, shall be hcensed by the Department under Ws. Stat 8
97 30 (2) (a)

a If the mobile retail food establishment has a service base, as defined m WIs
Admm Code ch ATCP 75 Appendr Part 1-20 I IO (B ). located w1tlun their
jurisdictional boundary, the Agent shall 1ssue the service base license

b The Agent ma) charge an mspectton fee for any mspectron of a Department­
licensed mobile retail food establishment

2 Temporary retail food establishments that cross jun1sdetonal boundaries, in
conducting their busmess, shall be licensed by the Department under Wis Stat §
97 30 (2) (a)

a Thc Department shall provide a gmdancc document for the Agent to use to
determme \\ h1ch temporar} retail food establishment license applies

b. The Agent ma) charge an mspeetion fee for any mspectlon of a Department­
hcensed temporary retail food establishment

3 Any establishment that 1s sellmg, holdmg, or d1stnbutmg food and exempt from
the reqmrement to hold a retail food establishment license, pursuant to s 97.30
(2) (b), Stats., 1s under the regulatory authonty of the Department and ma) not be
licensed, charged a fee, or inspected m an, manner related to food, danr, or meat
processing, or wholesale or retail food operations by the Agent

B The Agent ~hall reqmre a person who applies for, or a licensee \\ho requests renewal
of. a hcense to mclude, at a mnmmum, the following 111fonnat10n.

I Indl\'ldual, Mamed Couple or Legal Entity who will hold the hcense and a
complete street address

2 Domg Bw,mess As (DBA) Name and complete address of the establishment

3 License number and exp1rat1011 date of any current lcense

4 Type of Establishment, for Icensmng purposes

5 Numbers of units, rooms. or sites and complexity, 1f applicable

C A license issued by the Agent shall expire on June 30 of each year, except that a new
license issued dunng the pcuod begmmng on Apnl l and cndmg on June 30 shall
e-.:p1re on June 30 of the following year (15-month license), e>..cept as follows The
Agent of a city of the 1st class that has entered mto a Conhact with the Department
ma) issue a required license for a retail food estabhshment or bed and breakfast
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establishment at an) tune dunng the year. which shall expire one year from the date
of its issuance

D Thc Agent, as 1equtred 111 Wrs Stat $ 97.605 (4), shall allow f01 the holder of a
license to transfe1 the hcense to

An mndv dual who 1s an immediate family member 1f the holder 1s transferring
operation of the hotel, tounst roommg house, bed and breakfast establishment, or
\endmg machme to the nnmedrnte fmml) member

2 A sole proprietorship that reorgamzes as a business entity or a business entry that
rcorgamzcs as either a sole propnctorsh1p or a different type of bu<;mess entity
may transfer a !tcense issued under tlus section for operation of a hotel, tounst
roommg house, bed and breakfast establishment, or vcndmg machme commissary
to the newly formed busmess entity or sole propnetorshtp tf the followmg
conditions are satisfied

a) The hotel, toun<;t roommg house. bed and breakfast establishment, or vcndmg
machme commissary remams at the location for wluch the hcense \\as issued

b) At least one md1v1dual who had an ownerslup mterest 111 the sole
proprietorship or business entity to which the lcense was issued has an ownership
mterest 111 the newly formed sole propnetorsh1p or busmess entity

E The Agent, as reqmred 111 Wis Stat. $ 97.67 (2) shall allow a license to be transferred
from an mndvdual to.

l. An immediate famtl} member, as defined ms 97 605 (4) (a) 2, if the md1\ 1dual
1s transferrmg operation of the campground, campmg res011. recreational or
educational camp, or pubhc sw1mmmg pool to the nnmedtate family member

2. A sole propnetorsh1p that reorgamzes as a busmess entity, as defined ms 179 70
( l ), or a busmess entity that reorgamzes as a sole propnetorslup or a chfferent type
of busmess enttt} may transfer a hcense issued under this section for a
campground, campmg reso1t, recreatronal or educational camp, or pubhe
swmumng pool to the newly formed busmess entity or sole propnetorsh1p 1f al I of
the followmg conditions are satisfied

a) The campground, campmg resort, recreational or educat10nal camp, or pubhc
swnnmmg pool remams. at the locat10n for which the hcense was issued

b) At least one md1v1dual who had an ownen,lup mterest m the sole
propnctorshtp or business enttt} to which the license was issued has an
ownership mterest 111 the newly formed sole proprietoushp or busmess entity
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F I he Agent shall nottf} the Department when, m the perfotmance of 1ts duties, It
encounters an unlicensed establishment that falls under the Department's licensrng
and mnspectton author1t

G The Department shall notufj the Agent when. m the performance of its duties. 1t
encounters an unlicensed establt<;hment that falls under the Agent's hccnsmg nnd
mspectton authonty

III. INSPECTIONS

The Agent Program samtanans shall mspcct all e5tabhshmcnts covered 111 the contract for
compliance with Wis Stat $ 97.30, subchs III and IV ofWis Stat ch 97, and Wis
Admin. Code chs ATCP 72, 73, 75 and 1ts Appendix, 76, 78, and 79

A The Agent Program shall follow standard mspectton method~ and procedures
prescnbed by the Department

B. Each fiscal yea1 the Agent shall conduct one routme mspection of each hcensed
establtshment under its JUnsdictton, e-xcept for\ ending machmcs and temporary rctatl
food estabhshments The Agent may propose a different mspectton frequenc1 to the
Department whch may only be implemented 1f approved by the Department m
writmg.

C The Agent Program shall collect food and water samples as necessary or as requested
by the Department.

D The Agent Program shall perform a pre-hcensmg mspectlon of a hcense apphcant's
estabhshment fot comphance with all apphcable ordmances, rules, and statutes The
pre-hcensmg mspect10n shall be conducted before the applicant 1s issued a license
and conducts busmess, e'\.cept as specified for nucro-markets m Wts Stat $ 97 30 (2)
(d).

E The Department may conduct 111spect1ons at an establishment 111 the Agent Program's
Jurisdiction for all of the following purposes

1. Traming or standardzat1on of Department staff or Agent Program staff

2. In response to an emergency

3 For momtormg and evaluatmg the Agent Program's hcensmg, mspection, and
enforcement program

4. At the request of the Agent Program
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F Whenever feasible, the Department shall nottf) the Agent of the Department's mtent
to inspect an establishment mn the Agent program's jurisdctton The Agent may
accompany the Department dunng such mspectJons

G The Agent ma) elect, m wntmg to the Department, to mspect vendmg machmes

H The Agent shall give pno11t) to pre-hcensmg inspections, mspect10ns mvoh mg
emergency complaints, food or waterborne illness investigations, and re-mspections

A routme mspect10n -;hall be unannounced except when 1t is necessat} that the owner
or operator be present for the mspection, or,, hen the Agent is conductmg a follow-up
111spect1on, remspectton or other act1, tt} where havmg the owner or operator present
1s important for contmued comphance

J If a routmne inspection is performed mn conjunct1on with another investigation,
separate mspectton report<; shall be completed for the mvest1gat1on and the routmne
mspectton Each report shall be signed b} the emironmental health mspectlon staff
person and the licensee, or ltcenscc's designated person m charge

K The Agent shall perform mspechon duties rcqmred b), and m compliance with, the
Department's MOUs. The Department will provide the Agent a cop) of each MOU 1t
executes

L The Agent may, with wntten approval fiom the Depm1ment, enter mto wntten
contracts with other units of government or other persons to perform mspectton
activities related to enforcement responsibilities under thus Contract The Agent
assumes ultnnate respons161hty for the performance and qualtty of the 111spect1011s and
for the enforcement of all applicable prov1S1ons of the Wisconsm Statutes and
Aclmm1strattve Code under this Contract

M. The Agent shall not charge an mspectton fee for a routme mspectton of an)
establishment !tcensed by the Agent

N The Agent shall mclude 111 its mspecuon report the followmg 111fon11at1011 for each
\ 10lat10n observed dunng an mspectton

V1olahon Observation -A factual descnptton, mcludmg location, of the observed
violation

2 Code Reference - C1taton and a bref descrptton of the statute, administrative
rule, or local ordmance for the observed v1olat1on

3. Correctrve Acton -A statement md1catmg what action the licensee has taken, or
shall take, to regam comphance with the adn11mstrat1ve rule, statute or local
ordmance
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N The Agent shall perform an e\.1t mterv1ew with the licensee's designated person mn
charge and obtain a signature A copy of the inspection report shall be leftth the
person 111 charge at the complet1011 of the mspect10n or e-mailed 01 othern 1se
p1 esentcd \\ 1thm 2 busmess da) s after complct1on of the mc;pcct10n If the person in
charge refuses to sign the mnspecton report, an md1cat10n shall be made on the
inspection report of the refusal to provide a signature

0 If the Agent became the Department's Agent on or aftet Apnl 1, 2009, the Agent
shall use the Depa11ment's electronrc software program for conductmg and
documentmg mspections. If the Agent has been the Department's Agent before Apnl
1, 2009, the Agent may use the Department's electonc software program or the
Department-approved paper forms for conductmg mspect10ns The Department will
pro\ 1de. mamtam and support this software. The Agent may be responsible for
add1honal user licenses or development costs specific to the Agent's program

IV. COMPLAINTS AND FOODBORNE DISEASE INVESTIGATIONS

A The Agent shall mvesttgate e\ ery complamt that 1t receives agamst any hcensee
under its JUrtsdtctlon The Agent shall pnonhze and mve:;ttgate complaints accord111g
to the procedures 111 tlus section and procedures adopted by the Agent program under
the contract with the Department The complamts shall be addressed m decreasmg
order of pnonty as follows

An allegation mchcatmg a serious or 11nmment pubhe health hazard 1s assoc1atecl
with a licensee or establishment under the Agent Program's jursdct1on

2 An allegation mdtcatmg a potential publtc health problem, that 1s neither a serious
or unnunent publtc health hazard, ts associated with a ltcensee or establishment
under the Agent Program's JUnsd1ct1011

3 An allegation of a volaton, not mndcating a public health hazard, associated with
a hcemee or establishment under the Agent Program's Jtmsdict1on

4 The Agent shall notlf) and consult with the Department and other affected
agencies havmgJtmsd1chon, as necessary, about complamts or foodbome or
waterborne diseases that may be of significant concern to those agencies The
Agent Program shall coordmate complamt mvest1gat10ns, as necessary, with other
agenctes having jurisdiction

B. The Agent shall conduct an mvest1gat10n 1f there is a complamt concernmg an
exempt retail food establishment, as defined 111 Wis Admm Code§ ATCP 75.03 (9),
within 1ts Jtmscltct1on, or upon Department request

C Each complamt, and documentation of its mveshgat1011, shall be phys1cally or
electro111cally lmked with the establtshment hcensmg and mspectton mfonnat1on
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D When the Agent rece1\ es mformahon that mdtcates a foodbome or waterborne
disease outbreak has occurred, the Agent shall conduct an mvesttgatlon In
conductmg the 111\ est1gat1on, the Agent shall follow the cntena m W1scons111 's
Foodbome and Waterborne D1sea,;;c Outbreak Invest1gahon Manual The Agent shall
conduct an investigation of the facility, in which the outbreak occurred, as soon as
epidemiological evidence lmnks that facility with the outbreak In addition

The Agent shall not1f) the Department and the Department of Health Ser\'JCes'
(DHS) Commun1cable Disease Epidemiology Section (CDES )

2. Upon the Agent's request, the Department shall assist m the mvesttgatlon

3. In the event the outbreak becomes cross-Junsd1cttonal, the Department, 111
coordmat1011 with OHS CDES, will coordmate the activ1t1es of the Agent and other
governmental agencies m order to most qmckly and effective]) end the outbreak.

E The Agent, 1f requested by the Department. shall conduct effect1vene,;s checks
pertammg to product recalls or other s1tuat10ns m which food must be removed from
sale or service

V. ENFORCEMENT AND SAMPLING

A The Agent Program shall take necessar) actions to enforce the prov1s1ons of Wis
Stat $ 97.30 and subchs III and JV ofWis Stat. ch. 97 and related adnu111strnt1ve
rules m Wis AdmCode chs ATCP 70, 72, 73,75 and its Appendix, 76, 78, and
79, and any local ordinances or regulat10m,, adopted pursuant to Wis Stat $$ 97.41
(7) and 97.615 (2) (g). for establishments mer which the Agent Program has been
delegated authority under the contract when an observation 1s made mcludmg, but not
limited to, the followmg

An 11nmediate danger to pubhc health as reqmred 111 Wis Stat $$ 97 12 and 97.65.

2 Noncompliance with written orders

3 Contmued repeat v10lat10ns noted on mnspecton reports

4 Operatmg without a reqmred establishment license

B Enforcement actions may include license revocation, license suspension, fines or civil
forfe1tmes, orders to close, temporary or final hold orders on eqmpment. food,
processes, or estabhshments, and the placement of conditions on licenses

C The Agent Program shall mamtam a witten enforcement policy that 1s distributed to
its mspectlon staff and shall male 1t available to the Depai1ment dunng evaluations,
whenever 1t 1s substantively changed, or upon request
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D The Agent Program shall not,t} the Department, 111 wntmg \\ 1thm IO days. after
taking any enforcement action agamst an establishment mvolvmng license suspenson.
license revocation, or court or adnumstiatn e actions

E The Agent Program shall be responsible for costs mcuned m enfotcement action~
taken m the Agent Program's juusdiction

F The Agent Program shall take samples requested by the Department

G. The Agent P10gram ma) conduct any requc,;;tcd sample analyses mn a laboratory
cert1 fied by the Department, pursuant to ch ATCP 77 for those analyses All costs
associated with collecting and testing these samples shall be assumed by the Agent
Program

H The Agent Program shall share laboratory results with the Department

If the Agent Program does not have the laboratory capab1ht) to perform reqmred
analyses, or chooses not to perfonn those analyses, 1t shall submit samples to the
Department's Bureau of Laboratory Services for analysis The Agent Program shall
assume the cost of collcctmg samples and sluppmg them to the Department's
laborator The Department shall assume the cost of the laboratory analysis of those
samples

J. If the Department has notified the Agent Program of dcfic1cnc1es by an) I 1ccnsee, 111
complying with the enforcement provis10ns of tlus chapter or an} other rules or
statutes applicable under the contract, and the Agent Program does not act
expecht10usly or tah.e effective action with the licensee, the Department ma) act,
pursuant to Wis Stat $$ 97 12, and 97 65, to enforce compliance with this chapter

K The Department shall provide technical assistance to the Agent for enforcement
act1v1ttes upon the Agent's request

L The Agent program may deny, suspend, or revoke a hcense or impose cond1t1ons on a
license, as provided m Wis Stat. $ 93.06 (7) and (8) Except as otherwise provided by
statute, rule, or local ordmance, the suspension or revocat1011 of a license shall comply
with the pnor notice reqmrements ofWis. Stat $ 227 5 l.

VI. STAFFING

A The Agent Program shall have sufficient employees to implement the program
according to the terms of th1s Contract

B. Except as :c.pec1fied 111 (D), each samtarnm employed by the Agent Program shall meet
one of the followmg reqmrements·

(I) Is RSeligible, which means hamg met one of the following cniter1a
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(a) Holdmg a baccalaureate or higher degree m env1ronmcntal health from an
accredited college 01 unn ers1t) and completmg at least 30 semester or 45
quarter hour academic credits in cnvronmental, phys1cal, biological,
chenucal. or em 1ronmental health courses

(b) Holdmg a baccalaureate or lugher deg1 ee m ph) steal or b1olog1cal sciences
from an accredited college or university and completing at least 30 semester or
45 quarter hour academic credits in environmental, phy stcal, biological,
chenucal, or cnv1ronmental health course'>

(c) Holdmg a baccalaureate 01 higher degree from an accrechted college or
university.

(cl) Holdmg an associate degree from an accrechted college, community
college or tcchmcal institute m cnv1ronmcntal, physical, b10log1cal, or
chenucal sciences

(2) Is an RS 111 trammg

(3) Holds a vahd Wtsconsm Registered Samtanan or REHS/RS credential

C The Agent Program shall employ at least one Registered Samtanan to conduct
mspectons and superuse any inspectors or sanitarians who are not registered
srimtanans The Agent Program shall only lure samtanans who are Registered
Sa111tanans or will become Registered Samtanans w1thm five years after the date of
hire Inspectors or samtanans who were employed by the Agent Program pnor to
July 1, 2018, and are not ehg1ble to become Reg1~tered Samtanans w1thm five years,
shall pe1form mspechons under the superv1s1on of a Registered Samtanan and shall
be deemed competent to perform mspechons by passmg standard12at1011 exercises

D Only Tounst Roommg House (TRH) mspechons may be conducted by personnel who
either do not have an RS credential or will not be eltg1ble to obtam the RS credential
w1thm five years pro, 1ded that.

1. A RS-credentialed employee supervises the non-credentialed emplo) ees, and

2 Each TRH hcem,e 1s mspected at least once every 5 years by an employee who
has the RS credential or will be ehg1ble to obtam the RS credential w1tlun five
years, and

3. A wntten plan of 1mplementat10n and trackmg for TRI-I mspect1ons shall be
provided to the Department for review and approval; and

4. Each year, the TRH mspectlon tiackmg documentat1on shall be provided 111 the
self-assessment for review by the Department
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5. The md1v1dual conductmg the TRH mspect10ns has met the mm1mum trammg
requirements for TRH mspecuon,;; m the Department',;; tra111111g manual

E If an Agent Program lose,;; its onl)- Registered Samtanan, the Agent Program shall
!me a Registered Sa111tanan replacement w1th111 120 da)S or, upon the Agent's wntten
request, the Department ma allow the Agent add1tional tune to hne a qualified
replacement A replacement who 1s not a Registered Samtanan may be hed, 1f
approved by the Department, 1f the Agent has a signed agreement with another Agent
for a Registered Samtanan to provide superv1s01) O\ers1ght and the 1eplacement lme
shall become a Registered Sarntanan ,, 1th111 six months of bcmg hired A copy of the
supervisory oversight contract shall be provided to the Department and shall include
the amount of time allotted for oversight activities and what specific duties the
supervising Registered Sanitarian will provide.

F The Agent shall designate a samtanan or Registered Samtanan, as requued by the
Department, to undergo the standard1zat10n e:-..erc,se evaluating enforcement of ch
ATCP 75 Appendix as prescribed m the Department's Standard1zatton Manual After
successfully completmg the e:-..erc1ses, the staff person shall be: designated as the
Agent Standard As the Department develops standardization processes for programs
other than the retail food program, the Agent will compl) \\1th the ,;;tandard1zat1on
process m those programs

G. The Agent Standard shall perfonn Depat1ment-reqmred e-xercises with the
Department to mamtam his or her status as the Agent Standard. as prescribed m the
Department's Standardrzaton Manual

H The Agent Standard shall perform standard1zat1011 and mamtenance exercises with
other sanitarians mn their jurisdiction, using procedures specified by the Department 's
Standard1zat10n Manual

I. The Agent 1s reqmred to send at least one san1tar1an or Registered Samtanan to attend
ti ammg pronded by the Department

J An employee of the Agent shall participate on Department rulemaking and policy
advisory comnuttees when requested

K The Agent may not pcnmt an employee to conduct an mspect1011 ma s1tuat10n 111
which the employee, a member of his or her family, or an orgamzatton with which the
employee 1s associated or has a financial interest or where the employee's
relat1onsh1p with any person at the inspected establishment could cause the employee
not to be able to conduct an obJecttve, unbiased mspectlon

L The Agent Pog1am 1s solely responsible for all employmentrelated issues involving
the persons it emplo) s 111 the program and for the act10ns or onussions of the Agent
Program's employees, except as otherwise provided by law
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M Upon the Agent's request, the Depm1ment shall pro\1de techmcal assistance and
training to staff

VII. EDUCATIONAL OUTREACH

The Agent will cooperate \"1th the Department rn conductmg trammg programs for
licensees and employees of cstabhshmcnts located 111 its Junsd1ct1011.

VIII. REPORTS AND RECORDS

A The Agent shall mamtam a file of the current records for each licensed fac1ht) w1thm
its Jt1nsd1ct1on Records shall mcludc the name, address, ID number and type of
establishment or facility. A file shall cont<un at least the latest three (3) years of
im,pcct1011 reports, follow-up mvest1gat1on rep01tc;, reports of enforcement actions,
confim1ed complamt follow-ups and summanes, foodborne chsease outbrea1..
mnformat1on, and approvals of vanance requests, HACCP plans and waivers

B. If the Agent 1s not using the Department's electronic inspection and hcensmng
software, the Agent shall use mspect1on repo1t forms approved by the Department for
all pre-hcensmg mspectJons, routme mspections, re-mspechons, and follow-up
Inspections

C The Agent shall subnut reports as requested by the Depmtment The Department may
re\ iew or request a copy of any mspecton report, c01Tespondence, or order served on
any licensee w1thm Agent's Jlmsd1ct10n, annual program budget reports, proJecttons,
and an} other report the Department determmes 1t needs to momtor the Agent's
performance, mcludmg, but not Inmted to, CDC nsk factor reports, self- assessments,
or any other required reports, pursuant to Wis Stat § 97 41 (7) or 97 615 (2) (g) or
Wis AdmCode ch ATCP 74

D The Agent Program shall accurately and completely document the cost of the Agent's
program that 1s adnumstered under the contract with the Department The cost may
mclude dnect costs for hcensmg, mspect1on, complamt handhng and 111vesttgat1on,
enforcement, mformatton management, reportmg, and any other acttv1t1es earned out
w1thm the limits of the contract with the Department. The costs may also mclude
documented mndirect costs normally associated with the program These costs may
mclude staff, eqmpment, fac1ht1es, contract service, and other documented costs
allocated to the program Upon request. the Agent shall provide copies of these
records to the Department

E By the 10th of the month immediately following the month mn whch the Agent issues
a ltcense, or rece1\es notJficat1011 from a licensee of a change affectmg its license, the
Agent shall provide a report of all such license issuances and changes to the
Department Thus requirement applies to temporary restaurants, as defined mn Wis
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Admm Code ch. ATCP 75 TlllS reportmg requirement 1s satisfied b) the Agent's use
of the Department -; clcctro111c hcensmg and mspechon -;oftwarc

F B) Scptembe1 30th of each year, the Agent shall give the Department a complete list
of the names and addresses of the licensees to whom licenses "ere issued b) the
Agent during the previous fiscal year Thus reporting requirement is satisfied b the
Agent's use of the Department's electromc hcensmg and 111spection software

G W1th111 ten(_ IO_) da) s after the date on which 1t tak.es place, the Agent shall report to
the Department, 111 wntmg, an) change 111 the assignment of a supervisor of the
environmental health inspection personnel who are not currently Wisconsm
Registered San1tau1ans/REHS and any change in the organization of the mspect1on
staff~ mcludmg authority lme changes If the Agent employs only one or t\\ o
samtanans, the Agent shall report any change m assignment of environmental health
mspect10n personnel who are providing services under tlus Contract

H The Agent shall submit the CDC Risk Factor Tracking Sheet annually to the
Department for the purpose of enablmg the Department to dctcnnmc the types of
violations found mn facilities throughout the State ofWisconsin This reporting
requirement 1s satisfied by the Agent's use of the Department's electromc !teensmg
and mspectwn software

I As reqmred b) Wis Admm Code ch ATCP 74, the Agent shall mamtam and keep
readily available for use by mspectJon -;taff and re\'Jew b) the Department, a copy of
its Agent Program Plan The plan shall mclude, at a mmmmum, all the components
1dentfied in Wis. Admm Code ch ATCP 74 and an)- other mfom1at1on the
Department requests m wntmg that 1t deterrnmes 1s necessary or relevant for its
revtew of the plan The mnmum components mclude

(1) Employee positions that will issue lcenses or conduct investigations and
inspections

(2) Staffing and budget plans for 1ssmng licenses, makmg mvest1gat1011s and
mspechons. pr0v1dmg techmcal assistance, and enforcmg apphcable state
statutes and rules and local ordinances

(3) A hst of the licenses that ma) be issued by the Agent A local ordmance may
comhme and expand hcense categories, so long as those categories mclude all of
the types of estabhshments that shall be licensed under tlus Contract

(4) A hst of the fees to be charged by the Agent to licensees A local ordrnance may
establish local license fees that differ from fees charged under Wis Admm Code
chs ATCP 72, 73, 75 and its Appendix, 76, 78, and 79, for licenses issued b} the
Department All license fees shall be based on the Agent's reasonable p1ogram
costs, pursuant to Wis Stat $ 97 41 (4).
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(5) A descnpt10n of the mspection and enforcement program to be implemented by
the Agent mcludmg a cop) of applicable \ 1llagc, Cit), or count) ordmanccs 01
regulat10ns

(6) Procedures to ensure cooperation bet\, een the Agent and approp11ate kderal,
c;tatc, local, and tibal ageneres 111 the event of a natural disaster or other
emergency.

(7) Procedures for 111vest1gatmg complamts concermng licensees under this Contract
and unlicensed activity that may require hcensmng and Inspection

(8) Procedures for notufj mng the Department when the Agent receives mformation or
a complamt concemmg an establishment that may need to be licensed or
rnspected b), the Department w1thm the Agent's geographical area

(9) Procedures for un esttgatmg rcpmts of suspected foodbome disease, mcludmg
cooperation with the Department

( l O) Procedures to ensure the tune penod \\ 1th111 wluch the Agent will make a
dctcnnmat1on on an apphcation for a ltcense docs not exceed 30 day~ followmg
receipt of a complete apphcatton

(11) Any other mnformat1on that the Department may reasonably require for 1ts revue
of the Agent',;; program plan

IX. REii\IBURSE\IENT BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR VENDING INSPECTIONS

A The Agent shall submit a hst of vendmg machme mspecttons it conducted clunng the
previous fiscal year to the Department, no later than August 30 unless the Department
mn 1ts sole discretion etends the deadline for submission, to receive reimbursement
from the Department for performmg the mspect10ns

B No later than September 30 of the next fiscal year, the Depmtment shall reunburse the
Agent for mspect1011s of vendmg machmes dunng the previous fiscal year, as
reqmred m W1s. Stat ~ 97.615 ( l }. If the Department ell..tends the deadhne for
subnuttmg mspection mformahon, the Department may rennburse the Agent up to 30
days after rece1vmg this mformatton The rennbursement amount for vendmg
machme mspecttons is the portion that remams after deductmg the Department's
clencal and automated hcensmg processmg costs from the license fee.

C Fee reimbursements for the mspectton of vending machines moved from one Agent's
juusdiction to another Agent's jurisdiction will be credited to the Agent making the
first mspechon dunng the fiscal year
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X. REIMBURSEMENT TO THE DEPARTMENT FOR STATE FEES
COLLECTEDBYAGENT

A The Agent shall reunburse the Department for the state fees from the ltccn-;c foes the
Agent collects, as provided under sub B

B The state fees shall not exceed 20% of the state hcense fees the Department sets by
administrative rule for the types of faerltes for which the Agent issues licenses The
calculation of the state fees 1s based on state license fees only, not premspect10n,
reinspect1on and inspection fees

C As of the date of this Contract, the state fees are 10% of the state license fees The
Department ma) mcrease the state tees up to 20% of the state license fees by
announcmg a change 111 the percentage one year pnor to the lcensing year for which
the change applies Retail food and recreat10nal establishment license fee
rennbursement shall be

A fee equal to 10% of the applicable state license fee, regardless of the license
fee actually charged by the local Agent, 1f the Agent prepares and submits to the
Department, by September 30 of that year, an annual selfassessment as required
by Wis Stat §§9741 and97615

A fee equal to 20% of the applicable state license, regardless of the hcense fee
actually charged by the Agent, 1f the Agent fa1ls to submit the annual self­
assessment 111 par I to the Department, by September 30 of that year A fee
payment under thus paragraph does not exempt the Agent from the duty to prepare
and submit an annual self-assessment.

D The Department shall provide the Agent with a reimbursement sununat} form to be
used by the Agent to identify all the fac1hhes for wluch the Agent has issued licenses
dunng the hcensmg year. The summary shall be formatted by the Agent to mnclude
the complexity assessment ratmg assigned to each 1etail food estabhshment licensed
during the hcensmg year

E State fees for each licensee shall be based on the state license fee. detenmned by the
license category as follows

Retail Food Establishments - Restaurants -me detennmed m,mg the table 111 Wts
Admn Code $ ATCP 75 105 (B) for the restaurant license catcgot} The Agent
may use the restaurant license category assignment formula 111 that subchapte1 01 a
complexity tool approved m wntmg by the Department

2 Retail Food Establishments - Values, lt<;tcd m Wis Admm Code § AT CP 75 03
(3), shall be used m determmmg the ltcense categor)

3 Recreation Faciht1es - Values, ltsted in Wis Admin Code chs ATCP 72, 73, 76,
78 and 79, shall be used m deternumng the lcense catego1
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F No later than September 30 of each year. the Agent shall return the completed
summar) form and reimburse the Department for the state fees

G If the Agent Program has contiacted "1th the Department. pursuant to Wis Stat §
97 4 I and Wis Admin Code $ ATCP 74 06, for the Department to collect fees and
issue licenses, the Agent Program shall pa) the Department for the actual cost of
prov ding these services

XI. COSTS

The total fees the Agent collects may not exceed the Agent's 1easonable costs of rs:,umg
licenses to makmg mvest1gattons and mspectmns o[ and prov1dmg educat10n, trmnmg and
techmcal assistance to licensed establishments. plus the state fees

XII. EVALUATION AND TRAINING

A At least once each year, the Agent Program shall submit a self-assessment ma
format determined b) the Department. The Department shall evaluate the Agent
Program based on the following reqmred 111format1on m the self-assessment

I. The Agent Program's compliance with the contract terms

2 The Agent Program's progress in meeting program standards adopted b) the
Department

3 The Agent Program's records and reports reqrnred pursuant to Wis Admm. Code
$ ATCP 74 20

B The Department shall conduct an onstte evaluat10n, at least once every three years, to
assess the Agent's compliance with the provisions of this Contract, programstandards
set by the Department, and applicable statutes and admm1strahve rules The
Department ma) conduct the onstte e\ aluation process at any reasonable time and
shall give the Agent reasonable advance notice. The onstte evaluation process shall
mclude an office component and a field component The office component shall
mclude, but 1s not l11111ted to, review of ordmances, regulations, mspechon reports,
budget mformat10n, and other reqmred documentation The field component shall
include Department personnel performing maintenance standardzat1on with the
Sanitarian who is the Agent Standard, as well as evaluating other san1tar1ans, 1f
applicable

C In addition to the required evaluation, thc Department may perform additional
e, aluat10ns of the Agent's pet formance at any reasonable time ,, 1th reasonable
advance notice

19



D The Department shall provide the Agent program \\ 1th the Department's written
findings based on the review of the self assessment o1 an on-site e, aluat1on The
Department may, as deemed necessar). mcreasc the evaluatwn frequenc).

E The Agent shall submit to the Department any rcqmrcd corrective action plan
detailmg how the Agent,, rll meet contract requirements

F The Department shall review the correct,,e action plan and may make add11Lonal
comments or approve the corrective action plan 1f deemed acceptable

G The Agent shall document progresc; on the approved co1Tect1ve action plan on their
next one or two yearly self-assessments as necessary.

H The Agent shall mclude the approved cotTective act1011 plan m its Agent Program Plan
and distribute it to 1ts staff as required m Sccton IV E

I. If the Agent fails to meet the conditions specified mn the corrective acton plan, the
Department shall

I. Nottf} the Agent, m wntmg, of the defic1enc1es m meetmg the correct!\ e action
plan and place the contract 111 a cond1ttonal status with a deadline for the Agent to
meet the corrective action plan conditions

2 Remove conchttonal status of the contract tf defic1enc1es are corrected within the
conditional time per1od

3. Notify the Agent of its intent to termmate the contract and revoke Agent status, as
provided pursuant to Wis. Admn. Code § ATCP 74.26, tf defic1enc1es remam
uncorrected after a cond1t1onal deadlme has passed

4 The Agent may request a heanng on the termmatton 111 wntmg, as provided in
Wis Admm Code§ ATCP I 03 (3), mcludmg the mfomiatton reqmred m Wis
Admm. Code § ATCP 1 06. The Department shall hold a heanng, 1f requested by
Agent, w1thm 15 days afte1 the Department receives the request, unless the
Agent agrees to a different date.

J Notwithstandmg these provisions, the Department may exercise 1ts right to
immediately suspend a contract, pursuant to Wis Admn. Code $ ATCP 74 26 (3), to
protect public health or safety

XIII. NONDISCRIMINATION

A In connection with the performance ofwork under this Contract, the Agent agrees not
to dsermmnate agamst any employee or applicant for employment because of age,
race, 1eligion, color, handicap, sex, phstcal condition, developmental disability as

20



defined ms 51 01(5). Stats, sexual orentatton as defined ms 111 3213m), Stats,
or national ongm This prons10n shall mclude, but not be limted to, the folio\\ mg
emplo) ment, upgtadmg demot10n or transfer recnutment or recnutment aclverhsmg,
lay off or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation. and selection for
training, including apprenticeship Except with respect to sexual orientation, the
Agent shall take affinnat1vc action to ensure equal emplo) ment opportu111t1cs. The
Agent shall post 111 conspicuous places, available for employ ees and applicants for
employment, notices to be provided by the Department setting forth the provisions of
the nond1scnmmat1on clause

B The Department assumes no hab1htj for the Job safety or welfare of the Agent
employees, or for the actions or omissions of the Agent employees relating to the
admm1strahon of the retail food and recreattonal program, e\.cept as otherwlse
provided by law

XIV. PRl\'ACY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORl\IATION

A Defimhons The followmg defimt10ns apply to this section

'Confidentwl Infonnatron" means all tangible and mtang1ble mformation and
matenals, mcludmg all Personally Identifiable Informatton, bemg disclosed 111

connect10n with this Contract, m any form or medmm (and without regard to
whether the mforrnatton 1s owned by the State or by a thud part)), that satisfy at
least one of the followmg cntena

a) Personally Identifiable Information as defined m 2,

b) Infonnat10n not subject to dlsclosure under Wis Stat ch 19, subch II, Public
Records and Prope11y, that 1s related to the Department's employees, customers.
technology (mcludmg data bases, data processmg and commumcat1ons
networkmg systems), schematics, spec1ficatJons, and all mformatton or
materials deuved therefrom or based thereon; or

c) Information express!) designated as confidential in writing by the Department

2 '·Personally Identifiable Infonnatton" means an mdrvdual's last name and the
md1v1dual's first name or first 1111tJal, m combmation with, and lmked to, any of the
following elements, 1f the element 1s not publicly avmlable mfonnation and 1s not
encrypted, redacted, or altered 111 an) manner that renders the element unreadable

a) The Individual's Social Security number,

b) The 111dn,1dual's Dnver's License number or state 1dent1ficat10n number,
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c) The number of the mdidual's financial account, including a credit or debit
card account numbe1 or an) secunt) code. acce<;<; code. or password that would
perm1t access to the mdvudual's financial account.

d) The individual's DNA profile, or

e) The Individual's unique biometric data, including fingerprint, voce print, retmna
01 me;; unagc. or an) other umquc ph) s1Cal representation. and an) othe1
mformat1on protected by state or federal law

3 ' Corrective Act10n Plan" means a plan, developed by the Agent and approved by
the Department, that the Agent must follow m the event of any threatened or actual
use or d1sclosure of an) Confidential Information not spec1ficall) authonze<l by
this Contract, or 111 the event that any Confidential Infonnat10n 1s lost or cannot be
accounted for by the Agent

B. Duty of Non-Disclosure and Security Precautons

I. The Agent shall not use Confidential Information for any purpose other than the
l1m1ted purposes set forth m tlus Contract and all related and necessary actions
taken m fulfillment of the obligations thereunder. The Agent shall not disclose
such Confidential Infom1atton to an} persons other than those Agent
Representatn es who have a busmess-related need to have access to such
Confidential Information m furtherance of the limited purpose~ oftlm Contract
and who have been appnsed of. and agree to mamtaun, the confidential nature of
such mformation m accordance with the terms of tlus Contract The Agent shall be
responsible for the breach of tlus Contract by any smd Representatives

2. The Agent shall mst1tute and mamtam such security procedures as are reasonable
to mamtam the confidentiality of the Confidential Informat1011 \\l11le 111 its
possesswn or control mcludmg transp01tat10n or transn11ss1011, whether phys1call)
or electromcally.

3 The Agent shall msure that all 111d1cahom, of confidenhaht} contamed on or
mcluded m any item of Confidential Information shall be reproduced by the Agent
on any reproduct10n, mod1ficat10n, or translation of such Confidential Infomrnt10n
If requested by the Department, Agent shall make a reasonable effort to add a
proprietary notice 01 md1cat1011 of confidentmht) to an)' tangible matenats within
its possession that contam Confidential Information of the Depaiimcnt, as chrectcd

4 The Agent shall return to the Department all Personally ldcnt1fiable lnfonnation 1t
mamtam~ po~sesses or controls, collected on behalf of this Contract. upon
tcrmmat1on of this Contract and shall destroy all copies

C Legal Disclosure IfAgent or any of ns Representatives shall be under a legal
obligation mn any administrative. regulatory o1 judicial circumstance to disclose any
Confidential Intormat1011, the Agent shall give the Department's Office of Legal
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Counsel prompt notice thereat (unless 1t has a legal obhgat10n to the cont1a1y) to
allow the Department to mspcct the Confidential Information and seek a prokct1vc
order or other appropriate remed). In the event that such protective 01der or other
remedy is not obtamed, Agent and tts Representatives shall furnish only that portion
of the mformatton that 1s legal!) required and shall disclose the Confidential
Information ma manne1 reasonabl) designed to presen e It<; confidential nature
Agent or its representatives shall not be obhgated to \\att on aJl) action or 111act1011 by
the Department, under tl11s c;cchon, at an) tune when Agent 1s required to Idcase
mfonnatlon under other authont) of law

D Unauthonzed Use, Disclosure or Loss

Immediately upon becommng aware of any threatened or actual use or disclosure of
any Confidential Information that 1s not specifically author1zed by this Contact, or
that an) Confidential Informatwn has been lost or 1s unaccounted for, the Agent
shall notify the Department's Office of Legal Counsel of the problem Such notice
shall mclucle, to the best of the local Agent's knowledge at that tune, the persons
affected, their identities and the Confidential Information disclosed

,.., The Agent shall take 1mmed1ate steps to mitigate any harmful effects of the
unauthonzed use, disclosure or loss The Agent shall cooperate with the
Department's efforts to seek appropnate mJunctn,e rehef or to otherw1<;e prevent or
curtail such threatened or actual breach. or to recover the Confidential Informat1on,
mcludmg complymg with a Correctrve Acton Plan

XV. TERMINATION, REVOCATION OR SUSPENSIOl\" OF AGENT CONTRACT

A TERMINATION The Agent ma} tenmnate this Contract upon 90 days written notice
to the Department The notice shall specify the reasons for tenmnatton and the last
day the Agent will have Agent status

B REVOCATION If the Department finds that the Agent has failed to compI) with the
reqmrements fo1 Agent status under Wis Stat.§ 97 41(2) or 97.615 (2) (b), Wis
Admn Code ch ATCP 74, or the terms and cond1t10ns of this Contract, the
Department may revoke Agent status. as provided by statute, upon 90 days written
notice to the Agent The notice shall specify the reasons for revocat1011 and the last
day that the Agent will have Agent status

C SUSPENSION If the Depmtment finds that suspens10n of tlus Contract 1s necessary
to protect the public's health or safety, the Depaitment may nnmedmtely suspend this
Contract upon notice to the Agent The Agent may request a heanng on the
suspension 111 wntmg, as provided m Wis Adnun Code§ 1.03 (3), mcluclmg the
mformatton requned m Wis. Admm Code § ATCP l 06 The Department shall hold
a hearing, 1f requested by Agent, w1thm 15 days after the Department receives the
request, unless the Agent agrees to a different date The ::.uspen!:>1011 shall rernarn 111

effect until the final hearing decision 1s 1ssued

23



D Re1mbur::,ement upon Tei 111111<1tton 01 Re, ocat10n

Vendmg It this Conll<1ct 1::, termmt1tecl or re,oked, the Agent shall 1ecene
rcnnbur::,cmcnt tor 111spcct1011::, ot, cnclmg machmcs and vcndmg mach111c
comn11::,::,ane::, perfo1mecl unde1 the Cont1<1ct up to and mcludmg the date of
tcrmmatlon or 1c\ocat1on

2 Othc1 Licenses Ifth1s Contract 1s tcmunatcd 01 1c,okcd, the Agent shall
rennbmse the Department for the prorated amount. for the 1ema111der of the fiscal
y ear, of all license fees received b) the Agent The re1mbmscmcnt shall be based
on tlm, formula Days left 111 fiscal ) ear/365 tunes the state hcen::.e fees fo all the
establishments the Agent has hccnscd

E Upon tc1111111at1011 01 rc,ocahon ofth1s Contract. the Agent shall transfc1 all
rnspechon and enfo1cement records to the Depaitment

day of cY\O...-r t.h. . 2019.

For Cit) ofFrankhn.,
(&uhe Day DechHeall#. £laa ervces

Prmt Name and Title

CITY OF F 7NK.LIN

BY . ~ (2£),1_-
St~ Ison, Ma)or

ATTEST»aa.% i
}")+»st

BY · o_).:r/ ~
Pa ·11 Rotzenbe1g, D11 cto1 of
Fmance and Trea::,mer

Dated 3/ j{/; 1

Dated ~Jog /__cJ.o!C/
I •

o« 3/el

24



Dea •3/9lg
I

seeds '8lMas or22ah zoo

Fm the Department ofAgnculture, Ttadc and Consumer Protcct1011

Steven C. Ingham, Adn11111strato1
Di son of Food and Recre.\tmnal Safe!)
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APPROVAL

oho
REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

COUNCIL ACTION 11/05/2019

Reports and
Recommendations

Motion to allow the Director of Health and Human ITEMNUMBER
Services to accept the 2020 Consolidated Contract Grants
for the following programs: Childhood Immunizations, G.g.
Maternal Child Health, Lead, Communicable Disease,
Emergency Preparedness, and Preventive Health
Services

Background: TheWisconsm Division of Health Services awards annual block grants in a
variety of programs to local health departments. The Franklin Health Department (FHD) has
again been awarded grant fundmng for the following programs for 2020:

• Childhood Immunizations ($$6,598)
• Maternal and Child Health ($7,188)
• Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevent1on (1,197)
• Communicable Disease ($4,100)
• Public Health Emergency Preparedness ($39,352)
• Communities Readiness Initiative ($9,484)
• Preventive Health Services ($4,379)

These grants assist the FHD in offering additional programming and services to residents
based upon annual analysis and assessment of community needs in addition to the services
required of us by State and Municipal codes.

Analysis: In 2019, these funds allowed annual events like the Bike Rodeo, Community 5K, and
Kids Club Vegetable Garden which promote health and safety to continue in the community
with health messaging reaching over 800 residents The funds also allow FHD the opportunity
to offer continuous community services such as car seat installation, sharps collection, breast
feeding support, adult speaker series events, and a variety of childhood growth and
developmental screening opportunities to those that live and work in Franklin. Preparedness
funds assist FHD in planning for natural and public health disasters at the Community level
and allow for training of city staff and volunteers to handle such emergencies.

Options:
1. Allow the Director of Health and Human Services to accept the 2020 Consolidated Grant

awards for the Franklin Health Department.
2. Decline the acceptance of 2020 Consolidated Grant awards.

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human ServICes recommends approval to
accept the Consolidated Contract Grants for 2020 awarded to the Franklin Health Department

Fiscal Note: Without the additional grant funds above, many of the programs and services
Franklin residents have become accustomed to would be reduced or become unavailable due
to a loss of funds.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion to allow the acceptance of the 2020
Consolidated Contract Grants for the following programs· Childhood Immumzations, Maternal Child
Health, Lead, Commumcable Disease, Emergency Preparedness, and Preventive Health Services.

Health Department" CD
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Logout GACMainMenu Prnt GA0•Grants and Contracts

Contract # 43570 Agency

Back to General Contract Information

Available
Funds
For

Objective

Program

Contract Programs
Franklin

Childhood
Lead - Con

Funding
Period

01/01/2020
to $1,197
12/31/2020

01/01/2020
Immunization to $6 598

12/31/2020

MCH
01/01/2020
to $7,188
12/31/2020

Expenditures/Program Match

Remaining Contract Contract Match Amounts
Funds For Objective 5tatement Agency Required
Objective Totals Of Work Funds Reported

Totals

$0

$0

$0

$1,197

$6,598

$7,188

Contract Year-

Go To

Objectives List
.--------, Statement OfI$0 I Works List
'Profile/Consortium

Sign-of
Program Contacts
Objectives Lusf

-Statement Of[$o ] work«s Lustn'Profile/Consortium
Sign-off
Program Contacts
Objectives List

.-------~ Statement or
[$5,391 ] works Lust
gnn'Profile/Consortium

Sign-off
Program Contacts

2020

Select
For Action

Locking

Totals $14,983 $0 $14,983

I Cancel/Refresh I
Back to top I www.dhs.w1scons1n.gov Wisconsin.gov I MylogmAccount GAC
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Sign Envelope ID: 6DB173A2-B53C-4O80-943C-CD224A82E179

DHS CARSSTAFFINTERNAL USE ONLY
CARS PAYMENT INFORMATION

The uiforrnat10n below ,s used by the OHS Bureau ofFiscal Services, CARSUrut, to fac1lttate the processmg and recording ofpayments made under thus Agreement

Agency#· Agency Name· AgencyType. CARS Contract Start CARS Contract End Program Total Contract
Date Date

472787 FRANKLIN 060 See below See below $52,936
HD

ProfileID# Profile Name Profile Note l'rof"de CurrentAmaunt Profile Change Amount Profile Total Amount Funding Controls

I55800 COMM 7/l/2019-6/30/2020 - $4,100 34 100 NIA

DISEASE
CTRL&PREV

155015 BIOTFOCUS 7/l/2019-6/30i2020 - $39,352 $39,352 NIA

A PLANNING
155190 BIOT 7/1/2019- 6/30/2020 - $9,484 $9,484 NIA

PREPARE-
CRJ

. - - - -
- - - - -
- . - -

- - - -
- - - -
- - -
- . - .

$52,936

Page 3 of7
Revs1on 6/19/2019 (previous vers.ons obsolete)



2018-2020 Preventive Health and Health Services (PHHS)
Allocation Spreadsheet

LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENTS
Agency Agency Base

Agency Name Number Type Allocation DPH Contract Monitor
Adams County 1 X30 $5,708 Joe Larson
Appleton City 449983 X60 $6,648 Janet Kazmierczak
Ashland County 2 X30 $6,223 Jim Lawrence
Barron County 3 X30 $6,686 Christa Cupp
Bayfield County 4 X30 $5,249 Jim Lawrence
Brown County 5 X30 $17,736 Janet Kazmierczak
Buffalo County 6 X30 $4,505 Joe Larson
Burnett County 7 X30 $5,130 Christa Cupp
Calumet County 8 X30 $4,650 Janet Kazmierczak
Chippewa County 9 X30 $8,487 Timothy Ringhand
Clark County 10 X30 $6,413 Timothy Ringhand
Columbia County 11 X30 $7,056 Sheri Siemers
Crawford County 12 X30 $4,587 Joe Larson
Cudahy 472761 X60 $6,402 Curtis Marshall
DePere 472779 X60 $4,304 Janet Kazmierczak
Dodge County 14 X30 $8,545 Sheri Siemers
Door County 15 X30 $5,441 Janet Kazmierczak
Douglas County 16 X30 $6,946 Christa Cupp
Dunn County 17 X30 $7,210 Christa Cupp
Eau Claire 256321 X60 $10,920 Joe Larson
Florence County 19 X30 $4,457 Jim Lawrence
Fond du Lac 20 X30 $10,004 Janet Kazmierczak
Forest County 21 X30 $4,906 Jim Lawrence
Franklin 472787 X60 $4,379 Deborah Heim
Grant County 22 X30 $7,214 Christina Beach-Baumgartner
Green County 23 X30 $5,449 Christina Beach-Baumgartner
Green Lake County 27 X30 $4,730 Janet Kazmierczak
Greendale 703090 X60 $3,819 Curtis Marshall
Greenfield 472803 X60 $5,868 Curtis Marshall
Hales Corners 472811 X60 $2,728 Curtis Marshall
Iowa County 25 X30 $5,034 Christina Beach-Baumgartner
Iron County 26 X30 $4,610 Jim Lawrence
Jackson County 27 X30 $5,243 Joe Larson
Jefferson County 28 X30 $7,152 Sheri Siemers
Juneau County 29 X30 $5,866 Joe Larson
Kenosha County 30 X30 $14,450 Deborah Heim
Kewaunee County 31 X30 $4,238 Janet Kazmierczak
Lacrosse County 32 X30 $11,256 Timothy Ringhand
Lafayette County 33 X30 $4,743 Christina Beach-Baumgartner
Langlade County 34 X30 $5,578 Jim Lawrence
Lincoln County 35 X30 $6,177 Jim Lawrence
Madison 256099 X60 $33,928 Christina Beach-Baumgartner
Manitowoc County 36 X30 $8,006 Janet Kazmierczak
Marathon County 37 X30 $12,467 Jim Lawrence
Marinette County 38 X30 $6,884 Janet Kazmierczak
Marquette County 39 X30 $5,085 Janet Kazmierczak



APPROVALso REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG.DATE
NOV 5, 2019

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDA

TIONS

ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR THE PLEASANT VIEW PARK
PAVILION (4901 W. EVERGREEN STREET) FOR $7,303.68

ITEM NO.

G,9.
BACKGROUND
Construction on the Pleasant View Pavilion 1s progressing The pavilion needs electric service.

ANALYSIS
The attached WE Energies work order must be signed to authonze the mstallation of service. If
the signed order and a check is not delivered before December 1, 2019, additional winter charges
will be required.

The cost of this work was unknown m design because of new homes bemg bmlt to the west on
W. Evergreen Street. The development and location oi homes had an impact on the length of
facilities needed.

Funding is tight and Staff is proposing that some anticipated repairs to Ken Wendi Park that were
not completed in 2019 be re-appropriated to thrs request I he Ken Wendl repairs have been
included in the 2020 budget.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize staff to order electric service, or
B. Provide further direction to staff

FISCAL NOTE
Finance may have additional comments at the meeting

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Direct Staff to order electric service from WF Energies to1 $7,303 68.

Engineering Department: GEM
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August 8, 20:1.9

City of Franl<lin
Attn: Tom Iglinski
9229 W Loomis Rel
Franklin, WI 53132

Subject: Request for new electric service at 4901 W Eve9ieent I n kd

Dear Tom·

Thank you for applying for electric service athe eddies» I sted abov Your next st» 1w

j_ Carefully review and sign the enclosed instc1llat1on agru~I11ent
o These documents outline the proposed mstallcrt1on, the ro11ci111< ,, , lild (<'n ·1 11d u,r ac:soc1c1ted costs

2 Review and sign your site sketch
o The site sketch represents an approximate location of tho c quipm nl and» ir to, used to vertfy tts

location.

3. Remit payment, if applicable, using one of the i"ollow111g options H ~H i Pn P Uw· 1,10, 1 , i qtK'<..t rnirnlx,r shown
below on your checl, rn when paymg via pl1one or onl11 H·

o Personal checl<.
o Online at we-energies com/payconst, uct1onb1II
o Phone at 855-570-0998

4. Sign and return the following 111 the enclosed envelop
o The drawing mc:lucled with this letter
o A copy of this letter
o Payment if using personal checl<
o Your signed line extension installation agreement

5. Send or fax the Electric Ready for Service care! when tlw site Is r0 ,ch.
o Your site 1s ready for service when all the rPqutrE'm ·nb on Ln i'Pc>rly foi ,, ,

schedule installation when we rcceIvE· your completer.I c ,ll ,,

o Construction will not begin until payment c111d d rr11.11w'1p 11 r I, r ii'lf' llhp tu) 01 C ,_, rnf1cate of Compliance
have been received.

o If there is not an Electric Ready for Service card enclosed, th it means it n boon mailed to your
builder/developer.

ud are met We will

If you, your contractor, or your electrical lll0pector have quc,.,t,rn 1s ciboui_ t:1I', in·ro-111 -, -1 r I you have any natural gas
needs, please contact me at (414) 423-5008 1 look forward to Ho1!(1r1fi ,, tlh yu11 lo 111,11,, yo11; project a success

Sincerely,

l.Haq·-le
Geri Gaglione
Energy Services Consultant

Enclosures



Installation Agreement (Standard I mhedded C1 edit)

Customer: City of Franklm - Pleasant View Pav1 hon
Work Request#: 4221304
Political Distdct: City ofFranklm
Service Address: 4901 W. Evergreen St
We Energies Representative: Gen Gaglione
Phone: (414) 423-5008
Type: Commercial Class: Underground Sze: 200A, 120/240 volt

Refundable Distribution:
Credit Available:

Subtotal:
Nonrefundable Distribution:
Service Charges:
Total Charges:

$ 7,31041
$ 1,114 00
$6,196 41
$ 1,107 27
$ 0 00
$ 7,303 68

Please review the following cond1t10ns of 111stallat1on

✓ The mstallatton cost shown above covers electric fac1ht1es only The total charge.s <;hov.-n are vahd for mnety (90)
days from the date of this agreement and must be paid pnor to the sci\ 1c..e be111g enc, g1z.ed In the event we encounter
unusual cond1t10ns or ctrcumstances while 111stallmg your service, add111011al chargts may apply.

✓ Because our costs are higher dunng the wmter months, seasonal chat fC'> arc 111 effeu bet\\ een Dec. l and March 31
You will be assessed seasonal charges during our winter construction season unless you request to delay installation
until after March 31, or your site 1s ready and the Ready for Sen 1c..e c..ard 1s retunll.d to w, by Dec 1

✓ The installation cost shown above has been reduced by the stan.:lmcl embedded c1ecl 1 101 which your 111stallat10n
qualifies. Embedded credits can not be used to reduce the cost of 110111 cfundc1ble d1stnbut1on or other 1tems such as
excess facilities, seasonal and service charges Those dollars, with the cxceptton of the service charges, may be
eligible for refund withm five years from the 111,;tallat1on up to thc orgmal dollar amount paid

✓ An outlet locat10n letter will be sent to your electncal contract01 mclKalllH!. !ht po1111 ot termmat1011 of our cables to
your bmldmg

✓ All trenches opened by We Energies for unde1ground 111stallat10n \\ Ill be rough backfilled and c..ompacted usmg
ex1sting so1l. Excess earth, stones and debnis will be left on the site Plase note that we do not restore

✓ Locate and mark any buned obstrnct10ns and pnvate underground laulilte!> (septic !me, private electric Imes, fencmg
dram tiles, etc) Also, mark any future or planned structures (poob outbu1ld111gs, dee\..., patios, etc) We Energies is
not responsible for damages to unmarked, pm,ate lac1ht1es

✓ We require adequate rights of way for the mstallat1on and mamienance of the ser'> 1u_ equipment, 1ncluchng the right to
clear brush and remove trees and shrubs along the route of our lacrhtrs ou may b re,pons1 ble for costs assoctated
with relocation of our facthtJes 1f future change'> to your plan'> rnterfe1 c \\, tlh them \cct.ptance of this agreement
grants us these rights

✓ Complete and return the enclosed Ready for Service ca,d by mm! 01 fa\ when the site Is fully ready for mstallat1on.

My signature below indicates my agreement to the imtallation contmgcmie, outlined above.

Authorized' Signature: Date.

Title:------------------- Company:

Return one signed cop) to We lnergies in the emelope p1 ,nided.
Contact the We Energies representative shown above if you have questions.
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a« REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE

Nov 5, 2019

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2018­
2345, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2019

ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR TID3 TO
APPROPRIATE ADDITIONAL DEVELOPER
GRANT FUNDS DELAYED FROM 2018

ITEM NUMBER

Background
The City included a $5 million grant to the Developer of The Statesman multifamily project on S 27h
Street in November, 2017. The Grant was payable in equal installments as each of the six apartment
buildings received occupancy permits

The 2019 TID3 Budget assumed that the first of the Grants would be paid in 2018. The 2019 Budget
included only five of the six grant payments. The Developer has now received occupancy permits for
last of the apartment buildings.

TID3's Jan 1, 2019 fund balance was $833,335 higher than expected as the first of the grants were
delayed to 2019 With the completion of the sixth building, the last of the grant funds are now due.

The attached TID3 budget amendment provides $833,335 of appropriations for the sixth and final
grant.

Analysis
TID3 borrowed $3 million earlier in 2019 to finance the Developer Grants, which when combined with
increment accumulated from prior years will fund all the Developer Grants.

Recommendation

The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends approval of the proposed budget
amendment to provide appropriations for the final Developer Grant for the Statesmen
Apartment Complex.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting an ordinance to amend Ordinance 2018-2345, an Ordinance adopting the 2019
annual budgets for TID3 to appropriate additional developer grant funds delayed from 2018.

Roll Call Vote Required
Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2019---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2018-2345, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2019 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR TID3 TO APPROPRIATE ADDITIONAL

DEVELOPER GRANT FUNDS DELAYED FROM 2018
....••.....

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2019 Annual
Budgets for TID3 on November 13, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the City provided a developer' s grant for the Statesmen apartments on S 27th
Street in November, 2017 payable as each building received its occupancy permit; and

WHEREAS, the first grant was delayed from 2018 which was assumed to have been paid
in 2018 when the 2019 TID3 budget was adopted, providing no 2019 appropriations; and

WHEREAS, the sixth and final apartment building received an occupancy permit on
October 10, 2019 causing the final $833,335 developer grant to become due and payable; and

WHEREAS, TID3 has sufficient funds to provide for the entire $5 million grant.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That a 2019 Budget for TID3 be amended as follows:

Economic Development
Developer Grants Increase $833,335

Section 2 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to publish a Class 1
notice ofthis budget amendment within ten days of adoption of this ordinance.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
thisday of,2019.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
NOV 5, 2019

Reports &
Recommendations

RELEASE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT FOR THE PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS AT THE WELLNESS CENTER LOCATED

AT 8800 S. 102STREET

ITEM NO.

G!t,
BACKGROUND
Pursuant to the development of the Wellness Center located at 8800 S 102nd Street, please be
advised that Staff has reviewed the public improvements contamed 111 the development agreement
and find that all items have been completed.

ANALYSIS
Staff recommends releasing the escrow deposit of $2,421 86

OPTIONS
A. Approve release of escrow; or
B. Provide further direction to staff.

FISCAL NOTE
Does not impact budgets.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to authorize staff to release the escrow deposit for the public improvements at
the Wellness Center located at 8800 S I 02nd Street

Engineering Department: GEM
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REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE

November 5, 2019

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

Franklin Economic Development Annual Report ­
Acknowledge and File

ITEM NUMBER

Director of Economic Development Calh Berg began on June 18, 2018 and produced an annual report
covering from that time through June 18, 2019. The report has been shared to the Ctty website and
through the Business Appreciation Celebration. The report is intended to update the Common Council
and taxpayers of the City on both activities of the department and the economic climate of the City of
Franklin during that time. This agenda item is strictly informational and provides an opportunity for
Council to acknowledge the report and place rt on file

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

No action requested. This presentation is only for providing updates from the Economic Development
Department.

Economic Development Department- CB



Annual Report
City of Franklin

Economic Development

2018-2019
Department Activities and

Scan of the Economic Landscape

Celebrating Quality of Life
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

The Economic Development Department (EDD) was represented in a number of ways and
communicated with the public, stakeholders, and customers using several channels throughout
the year. While not all-inclusive, these numbers offer a way to gauge the level of interest,
involvement, interaction, and outreach between the department and others

By the Numbers

While many economic development activities are difficult to quantify, there are a few
benchmarks that help convey the amount of traffic and interest in Franklin economic
development initiatives

• 18,628 emails
• 580 Total Likes on Facebook Economic Development Commission Page
• 68 New Likes on the Facebook Economic Development Commission Page
• 65 posts on the Facebook on the Facebook Economic Development Commission Page
• 437 meetings
• 20 Common Council Meetings

Development Connections and Prospects

Interest in the City of Franklin continues to grow, with development inquiries and proposals
coming from developers, construction firms, realtors, and financial institutions. The types of
development proposed are across the board from industrial, commercial, and residential, with
particular interest in the tax increment districts (TID's) as well as major thoroughfares such as
Rawson Avenue, Ryan Road, and 27Street

Ashley Capital
Capstone Quadrangle
Cardinal Capital
CCB Technology
Colliers
Confidential Developer
Cushman-Wakefield Boerke
Gerald Nell
HAS Commercial
Johnson Bank
Kahler Slater
Kapur & Associates
KSingh

Lee & Associates
MLG
Northwest Mutual
Odyssey Hotel Group
PNC Bank
Point Real Estate
The Concord Group
The Learning Experience
The Ryan Companies
Various Local Realtors
VJS
Zilber

1



Business Support

Through the process of developing new business and assisting existing businesses, the EDD was
able to connect with a number of Franklin businesses throughout the year Several new
companies also joined the Franklin business community, which is another way to measure
growth of the community as a whole

Business Interaction New Businesses

Allis Roller
Ascension Hospital
BTL Pallets
Carma Labs
Central Aquatics
Drizzle Cheesecake
Edward Jones
FedEx
Forte Theater Company
Franklin Business Park Consortium
Franklin Village
Goodwill
Hermie USA
Krones, Inc.
Oakwood Golf Course
Payne & Dolan
The Polish Cultural Center
ROC Ventures
Root River Center/Swagger
Southwestern Suburban Symphony
The Conservancy for Healing & Heritage
Gift of Wings
The Polish Center
The Root River Center
Terracon
Waste Management
Wheel & Sprocket
XPO Logistics

Bridgewater Performance
Ceco Concrete
Concentra Medical Center
Dead stock
Floor & Wall Carpet Company
Flyers Energy, LLC
Image 360
Mars Family Foundation, Inc.
Mimaki
Mo's Barbershop
Rainbow Child Care Center
Reliance Partners
Rockstar Athletics
Star Trucking, LLC
Terracon Consultants
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Community, Partner, and Stakeholder Connections

The EDD interacted with other individuals and organizations throughout the year in order to
position Franklin as a collaborative partner and to ensure that Franklin is included in
opportunities to advance economic development goals for the City Some of the notable
outreach activities/organizations are included here:

Aerotropolis/Gateway to Milwaukee
Alliance for Regional Development
Employ Milwaukee
Franklin Business Park Consortium
Franklin High School Business Capstone Course speaker
Franklin Library Strategic Planning
Landmark Credit Union
Congressman Bryan Steil
Milwaukee 7
Milwaukee Area Technical College
Milwaukee County Economic Development
Racine County EDC
Regional Transit Leadership Council
Saber Business Alliance
Site Location Partnership
Small Business Administration
South Suburban Chamber of Commerce
Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission
Visit Milwaukee
Wisconsin Association of Convention Centers and Visitors Bureaus
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources
Wisconsin Department of Tourism
Wisconsin Department of Transportation
Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development
Wisconsin Economic Development Association
Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation
Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority
Wisconsin Manufacturers & Commerce (chamber/association)
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Regional Activities

The EDD made a point of participating in a number of meetings, conferences, and other
initiatives in order to bring back best practices, gather information about new programs and
opportunities that could be applied in Franklin, and ensure that potential partners are
continually reminded of the assets and strengths that can be leveraged for development and
growth in Franklin Activities that address those goals included.

2019 Annual Meeting and Party with the Partners (Visit Milwaukee)
CARW 2018 Market Update
CARW 25" Anniversary Celebration
CARW at Ballpark Commons
CARW Holiday Party
Chamber Annual Awards Dinner
Chamber Legislative Committee Member
Chamber Networking Breakfasts
CRE Networking Meeting
Focus on Manufacturing Breakfast
Franklin Business Appreciation Celebration
Governor's Small Business Summit
Intergovernmental Cooperation Council
MATC -- Oak Creek
MATC -- West Allis
MATC Lunch with Representative Jesse Rodriguez
Milwaukee 7 Annual Meeting
Milwaukee 7 Economic Development Forum
NAIOP Development Showcase
NAIOP 2019 Capital Markets Update
NAIOP Annual Meeting
Quarry Tour
Regional Transit Leadership Council Meet and Greet
Saber Business Alliance Recognition Breakfast
Saber Business Alliance Tour
Sixth Annual Summit on Regional Competitiveness
State of the Cities 2018
State of Wisconsin Business & Industry Luncheon
Top Golf Benchmarking Tour
Wisconsin Economic Development Association (WEDA) Annual Conference
WEDA Governor's Conference on Economic Development
WEDA Legislative Day
Wisconsin Governor's Conference on Tourism
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Public Relations

City Tours
Any individual or organization involved in business development and interested in deal-making
in Franklin was invited on a personal familiarization tour of the City Throughout the year, the
following participants learned of the breadth and scope of the community and the number of
development projects both underway and contemplated for the City

• CBRE
• JVS Development
• KSingh

• WEDA
• Wisconsin Economic Development

Corporation

Media
The EDD was approached many times throughout the year by various members of the press.
The most notable was a WTMJ interview on City Development Opportunities which aired on the
Morning News Program in April, 2019

Internal Relations
The EDD is responsible for administration of the Economic Development Commission (EDC) and
the Tourism Commission Each board met on average monthly with additional concurrent
meetings specific to the Branding Initiative In addition to these two commissions, staff
attended several meetings held by other city-sanctioned entities (listed below) in order to
provide broader coverage and knowledge when helping customers, build an understanding of
how the City functions overall, and learn how the EDC and Tourism Commission could
potentially collaborate on projects.

• Community Development Authority
• Environmental Commission
• Finance Committee
• Parks Commission
• Plan Commission
• Quarry Monitoring Committee
• Technology Commission
• Zoning Board of Appeals

Building Permits
Building permits are one way to measure economic vitality in the City From June of 2018 till
June 2019, the following and number of business permits were recorded by the Inspections
Department·

Type $ #
Residential $19.9M 57
Commercial $43.4M 64
All $63.3M 121
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Community Assets/ Opportunities

Franklin has many strengths and assets that enrich the community There are three relative
newcomers to the mix who are seeking awareness of their goals and exposure for their
business as they look to grow in Franklin and to provide more value and opportunity to
residents and visitors alike

Forte Theatre Company

Forte Theatre Company is trying to create a thriving, professional theatre company in Franklin
Currently they are using other facilities in or near Franklin to put on shows and readings while
they work towards leasing or purchasing a permanent home in Franklin Forte also has a
Theatre School that offers after school classes and summer camps in Franklin, Brookfield, Hales
Corners, New Berlin, and Oak Creek.

Southwestern Suburban Symphony

The Symphony strives to produce three concerts per season and have held concerts in various
locations including the Polish Center and the Indian Community School Although the
Symphony currently does not have a physical location, the Conductor and Executive Director
resides in Franklin and has been looking to locate the symphony in Franklin

Conservancy for Healing and Heritage

The Conservancy for Healing and Heritage is a 36-acre parcel of land off the NE corner of
Rawson Avenue and 76' Street and is home to Kopmeier Lake, a ten acre glacier lake and the
only one of its kind in Milwaukee County Spring-fed with no invasive species, it is the most
pristine lake in the region With a chapel on the grounds and plans for healing gardens and
nature trails, the Conservancy was originally intended as a respite for cancer patients seeking
treatment at the Reiman Cancer Center nearby, but has grown into a destination for residents
and visitors alike who are seeking to commune with nature and gain comfort and spiritual
healing.
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CELEBRATIONS AND EVENTS

July 2018. Mimaki Ribbon Cutting

Mimaki, a Japanese-based company specializing in digital printing and cutting products with
locations in several major US Cities, opened their new Milwaukee Technology Center in
Franklin.

July 2018. Rhythm of Life Chiropractic Grand Opening

Rhythm of Life expanded their operations at Franklin Village to include an outdoor patio and
provide more room for patient operations.
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August 2018. Veridian Homes Groundbreaking

Veridian Homes breaks ground on Aspen Woods, a 69-unit single family home development
located on 51" and Puetz

October 2018. Business Appreciation Celebration

The Franklin Economic Development Commission hosted the 2018 Business Appreciation
celebration at Tuckaway Country Club More than 125 guests enjoyed Keynote speaker Dr Bill
Mitchell, CEO of Aguila, A Foxconn Company, and VP Business Operations Americas, Foxconn
The following businesses were awarded (and those in parentheses nominated) in these four
categories:

Excellence in Large Business

Excellence in Small Business

Excellence in Leadership

Excellence in Innovation

Carlisle IT (Northwestern Mutual Payne & Dolan, Vesta, Inc.)

Innovative Health & Fitness (Anderson Dental, Mimosa, Southwestern
Suburban Symphony)

David Dull, Allis Roller (Richard Simonson, Carma Laboratories, Seth
Tiegen, Ascension, Tom Schulz, Krones)

ROC Ventures (Krones, Ascension, Aurora)
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2018 Business Appreciation Celebration Photo Collage
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February 2019. Krones, Inc. Training & Technology Center Grand Opening

Krones, Inc holds a ribbon cutting and employee luncheon to celebrate the opening of their
newly built 40,000 square foot, state-of-the-art Training and Technology Center in the Franklin
Business Park.
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February, 2019. Landmark Ribbon Cutting

The South Suburban Chamber of Commerce and Franklin officials help Landmark Credit Union
officially open their doors to their new location on Rawson Avenue in front of the Franklin
Centre

March, 2019. Workforce Summit
The City of Franklin partnered with Employ Milwaukee to hold the first of a series of Workforce
Summits, designed to address the issues surrounding employee attraction, retention, and skill
building. This first event was hosted by Ascension and focused on Employ Milwaukee Training
Grant programs and creative ways to find and keep talent.
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June 2019. Hermle 20-year Anniversary

Machine Builder Hermie USA, Inc, commemorated their 20 year anniversary in the USA (and 16
years in the Franklin Business Park), with a nod to their German heritage and a refreshments for
their employees

June 2019. Routine Field Ribbon Cutting

Routine Field, home of the professional baseball team the Milwaukee Milkmen and UW­
Milwaukee Panthers, held their home game opener in June, 2019. Despite heavy rain storms,
fans filled most of the 4,000 seats in the stadium to celebrate the newest community asset in
Franklin.
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PROJECTS

Tax Increment Financing Districts (TIDs)

In additional to zoning and ordinances, TIDs are another way for the City to designate areas for
specific types of development primarily industrial and mixed-use development. The City
currently has five active TIDs

TID 3
This TIO was originally created for the 2000-employee Northwest Mutual campus As a final
project before closing in 2025, Zilber is developing apartments and a daycare Development
began with demolition of an old motel next to Little Cancun on 27 Street and continues with
the near-completion of the Statesman and Kindercare Four of six buildings, each of which has
30 units, are completed as is the clubhouse with swimming pool and fitness center and the
daycare is almost completed
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TID4

Designated as a future corporate park for the City, the parcels in the SE corner of the City have
garnered a lot of attention from the development community and by confidential prospects
looking to expand or consolidate to this area The expenditure period for this TID ends in June
of 2020 and is slated to close in 2025; however, based on the level of interest and the support
of the Common Council, staff is in the process of creating a new TID With the increment
currently collected in TID 4, property is being acquired along ELM Road for future public
infrastructure easements and additional easement purchases are being contemplated on other
property for roads, water, and sewer All property in this TID is privately held by several owners,
and all of the large, undeveloped parcels are actively for sale
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TIO 5 and 7

In 2012, ROC Ventures started The Rock Sports Complex on a closed and failing landfill,
developing six major league baseball replica fields, a large outdoor "Umbrella Bar" with food
trucks and live music, and the regional Halloween attraction "The Hills Has Eyes" on the
adjacent Crystal Ridge Ski Hill ("The Snow Park")

Encouraged by the 125,000 annual visitors, ROC Ventures began expanding The Rock by
acquiring the landfill in 2017, adding the adjacent Snow Park, and created Ballpark Commons
(BPC), a 168-acre sport-anchored mixed-use development that incorporates The Rock and the
Oak Leaf Trail (which circles all of Milwaukee County), with additional retail, commercial, office,
residential, and other health and recreational components

There was no existing usable public infrastructure in place and the landfill was failing so through
a public-private partnership the City of Franklin created TIO 5 to provide $22M+ to assist with
what was estimated to be $34M+ in public infrastructure costs In 2018 as public infrastructure
construction began, it became clear that construction costs would be higher than anticipated,
due in great part to challenges associated with landfill development, and the developer
requested additional assistance for public infrastructure Simultaneously, Mandel Group
proposed a 265-unit, 5-building high-end apartment complex and requested TIO assistance to
make the project financially feasible :- ··•p· .. -· ' c::1
To meet the needs of both F

rnew requests, the City i ! 5

created TID 7, which i.-. .-..-i $

designates the apartment
portion of TIO 5 as a new
district to allow TIF financing
for the multi-family project

Additionally, the City stepped
up to provide more financing
to assist TIO 5 in completing
the public infrastructure
Between the two TIDs, the
City was able to provide a
total of $43M in TIF financing
and Roe Ventures and
Mandel Group have
guaranteed between $160­
180M in private investment

we'y
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BPC Completed Developments include:
• 4,000-seat stadium for pro team Milwaukee Milkmen and UW-Milwaukee Panthers
• 46,000 SF mixed-use office and retail building, home of Wheel & Sprocket, ROC Ventures,

and a coffee shop (confidential at the time of this report)

BPC Ongoing Projects include:
• Velo Village - 5-building, 265-unit luxury apartment complex with underground parking
• Luxe Golf (like Top Golf) with two restaurants and a beer garden
• New Perspectives Senior Living - full continuum of care, 150 units
• Performance & Wellness Village - sports medicine, orthopedic, fitness center, in partnership

with Exos, Milwaukee Wave, and Midwest Orthopedic Specialty Hospital

BPC Phase 2 Developments to include:
• 22,000 SF mixed-use, 1st floor commercial, 65 apartments
• Hotel
• Brew Pub
• 11,000 SF

commercial
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TIO 6

In August, 2018 Bear Development asked the City to create a TIO in the SW corner of the City
for a mixed use development The developer had a large industrial user committed to building a
$120,000 s.f building, which would be the anchor for the development, which also included
commercial and residential components

By November, 2018, the City had created TIO 6 to provide Bear Development with $21M in TIF
assistance as part of the $64M total project costs This assistance enables the developer to put
in all components of public infrastructure, including water, sewer, and roads

Construction is slated to begin and the development will include Ryan Meadows, 72 single­
family homes to the east, a conservancy in the south-central area, and the Loomis Business
Park, consisting of commercial development along Ryan and Loomis to the North and Strauss
Brands will expand and diversify their business to the West Many prospects have indicated an
interest in locating in the commercial and industrial areas and TIO 6 is an economic
development tool to attract new business to the community
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Branding

After years of discussion, staff brought the Economic Development Commission and the
Tourism Commission together in the summer of 2018 to work jointly on creating a new brand
and logo for the City The commissions invited five firms to present proposals for a branding
initiative and THIEL Brand Design was selected to spearhead the project The two commissions
selected two logos for presentation to City Council, who selected the final logo and the tagline
"Celebrating Quality of Life"

By June 2019, departments began incorporating the new logo into stationery, vehicles, and
other branded City property THIEL provided the City with Brand Standards and a Usage Guide
to ensure that the brand and logo are used correctly and to help staff correctly order branded
items

The Tourism Commission continues to expand the brand to include campaignable themes that
complement the logo and support the brand while creating targeted messaging THIEL provided
the Tourism Commission with a menu of activities, including print, TV, radio, social media, and
virtual advertising; place-making (banners, welcome signs, etc.), brochures, billboards, etc
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Tourism Commission Projects

In addition to the Branding initiative, the Tourism Commission engaged in other notable
activities described here

Community Inventory of Assets

The Wisconsin Department of Tourism facilitated an exercise over the summer of 2018 with the
Tourism Commission to identify and categorize assets in the City of Franklin

This asset list, shown on the next page, became a baseline document used for production of the
City Showcase Video Series by the CGI Company, and for THIEL Brand Design's community
survey during the Branding Project. The asset list also forms a basis for an impactful marketing
campaign in conjunction with ROC Ventures

Wisconsin Department of Tourism 50-50 Co-Op Grant Program

The Wisconsin Department of Tourism runs a Co-Op advertising program whereby eligible
tourism-based businesses can buy into any of a set of advertising opportunities, such as social
media content, Wisconsin Traveler emails, and digital ad programs These programs can be
costly for smaller Franklin businesses who do not have robust marketing budgets The
Commission created a grant program that reimburses an advertising business for 50% of their
media buy upon proof of activity and sharing of results The commission created a $20,000
annual budget with a $2,000 maximum reimbursement annually per advertising business
Members of the commission have started building awareness for the program within the
community

Community Promotional Videos

The Tourism Commission engaged CGI Communications to produce a cost-free Community
Showcase Video Program that focuses on Tourism, Economic Development, Quality of Life, and
Community Assets The videos will be featured online and will include local company
advertising alongside the community videos A local videographer took footage of many assets
throughout the community over the course of two days and that footage is being combined
with additional local photos and videos Final product is anticipated third quarter of 2019 and
will be part of the future Tourism Commission website as well as on the City's website, pending
review

Web Development

The Commission contracted with THIEL Brand Design to produce a website for tourism which
should be live by the end of summer

21



Routine Field Co-op Advertising Campaign

The commission approved spending of $14,080 on a one-year contract to partner with the
Routine Field and the Milwaukee Milkmen by participating in the following

• Milwaukee Milkmen Delivery Route Concourse Sign - this will be a keyed map of the
City denoting locations for lodging, restaurants, tourism-based businesses, parks, and
other assets of interest to visitors taking in a baseball game at the stadium,

• Boom with a Beat -- Fireworks and Music Themed Milwaukee Milkmen Games - the
Tourism Commission will sponsor one of these performances as a way to build name
recognition;

• Milwaukee Milkmen Game Presenting Partner -includes marketing booth, logo
inclusion on all digital, social, web, and email collateral;

• Milk on Tap! Show Sponsored Segment - Commission selects location and is recognized
as sponsor of the on line video

• Dominant Signage in Bathrooms at Routine Field - the Commission provides flyers to
market current events, businesses, or programs These flyers will be placed on stall
doors and bathroom walls at Routine Field

Tourism Community Support and Advertising

The commission used the campaignable theme "the space to be FESTIVE" twice in the summer
of 2019 The commission donated $1,000 to Franklin Park Concerts Inc to sponsor one of the
concerts in the Summer Concert Series and used the theme on the banner which advertised the
sponsorship

The commission sponsored the volunteer t-shirts for the 2019 Civic Celebration for $3,579.65
and used the same campaignable them in white, which was on placed on the back of the shirts

the space to be
FESTIVE

SPONSORED BY THE FRANKLIN TOURISM COMMISSION
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Attraction Name Attract ion T■ne Cateaor• Reach"
4th of Julu Parade Parades Secial Events L
Boerner Botanical Gardens Arboretum I Botanical Gardens Nature u
Boerner Botanical Gardens EBird 'Watchina Nature u
Boerner Botanical Gardens Fall Foliae Nature u
Boerner Botanical Gardens Nature Trails Nature u
Boerner Botanical Gardens 'w'oodlands Nature u
Boerner Garden - 'w'her Nature Center Bird W'atchin Recreation U
Boerner Garden Summer Concerts Music Festi11als and Concerts Secial Events u
Boerner Gardens Holida• Celebrations & Festivals Snecial Events u
China Linhts Boerner Gardens Ethnic I Multi-Cultural Celebrations Snecial Events 0
Corn Stand- 7'6th and Ruan Farmers• Market Secial Events L
Croatian Fest Ethnic Celebrations I Festi11als Cultural & Heritan• u
Croatian Fest Ethnic I Multi-Cultural Celebrations Snecial Events u
Croation Soccer Club Ball Parks I Tournaments Recreation TI
Food Truck Event at The Bock - surnme Culinaru Fairs and Events Seoial Events H
Franklin Hinh School Ball Parks I Tournaments Recreation L
Franklin Historic Park Earl11 Settlements Cultural & Heritaru 1:
Franklin Historic Park Historic Districts Cultural & Heritau L
Franklin Savanna Prairies and Grasslands Nature L
Froemmina Park-on Oak Leaf Trail Parks Recreation L
Gifts of 'w'ina Kite store Kite Fluin Recreation H
Hills Have Enues - Halloween E11ent Ghost Towns I Haunted Buildinas Cultural & Heritaa H
Huner Task Force Tours Farm Tours Snecial Events H
Kania Plauaround - Adaoti11e Plauaround Parks Recreation H
Kenwindle Park- tennis - navilion Parks Recreation H
Leend Park- Pickle ball Ball Parks I Tournaments Recreation L
Leaends Park Music Festi11als and Concerts Secial Events H
Leaends Park - Band Shell- Concerts Parks Recreation H
Lenjon Park Buildinns Memorials and Monuments Cultural & Heritan• L
Leaion Park Buildinas Recreated Villaes Cultural & Heritae L
Loons Park Leaend Park Tennis Recreation L
Mallard in 'w'hitnall Park Lakes Nature TI
MKE Count• Comolea Show Antiaue and Collectibles Show Secial Events H
MKE Count11 Comolea Show Arts Crafts & Hobbu Fairs Snecial Events H
MKE Countu Comnlea Show Boat Shows Snecial Events H
MKE Land Conse111ancu Parks Recreation H
MKE Snorts Comolea Music Festivals and Concerts Snecial Events u
MKE Soorts Comnlea - Boller Derb Ball Parks I Tournaments Recreation U
Natille Amer ican School Relininm, I Soiritual Obse111ances $ial Events u
Oakleaf Nature Trails Nature u
Oak Leaf Boerner Gardens 'w'hitnall Par Hikinn I 'w'alkinn Recreation u
Oakwood Park - Golf Parks Recreation H
Oakwood 'w'hitnall Golf Recreation H
Parks Picnicinn Recreation H
Parks Snow Skiina - Cross-Countr11 Recreation H
Polish Fest at Polish Center Ethnic Celebrations Festivals Cultural & Heritao, H
Polonia Soccer Club Ball Parks I Tournaments Recreation TI
Sacred Heart Catholic Sermnaru Beliaious Sites and Facilities Cultural & Heritar u
Sacred Heart Catholic Seminar11 Relinious I Soiritual Obse111ances Snecial Events u
Southwestern Suburban Sumohon11 Sumnnhon ? Orchestral Secial Events L
St Martin Road Fall Foliaae Nature L
St Martins Fair Aacultural Fairs Snecral Events H
St Martins Fair Flea Markets Snecial Events U
St Martins Fair - Mondaus Farmers? Market Secial Events L
St. Martins District I Church Historic Districts Cultural & Heritaa L
St. Martins District I Church Relijous Sites and Facilities Cultural & Heritan, L
St. Martins Park- Doa trails Parks Recreation H
The Aloha Trail Ball Parks I Tournaments Recreation u
The Oak Lea - naved Boller Bladin Recreation H
The Rock Star Gazina Sites Nature L
The Rock Snow Skiina - Downhill Recreation u
The Rock Snow Skiin - Snowboard Recreation u
The Rock Music Festivals and Concerts Secial Events u
The Rock - Umbrella Bar Natural Lookout Points Nature H
The Rock - 'w'hitnall Park Sleddin Recreation H
The Rock and Balloark Commons Sorts Events Secial Events u
The Rock Snorts Comolea Ball Parks I Tournaments Recreation u
The Root River Rivers Streams and 'Waterwa5 Nature H
'w'her Nature Center EBird 'W'atchin Nature u
Wher Nature Center 'w'ildhfe Sanctuaries and Preser11es Nature u
'w'hitnall Park - Golf winter snorts hikin Arboretum I Botanical Gardens Nature TI
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Tourism Assets in the City of Franklin
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FRANKLIN TOURISM COMMISSION
50/50 GRANT PROGRAM

STRETCH YOUR AD MONEY TWICE AS FAR!
Advertise with the Wisconsin Department ofTourism Co-op Program
and the franklin Tourism Commission will reimburse you.

GET HALF YOUR MONEY BACK
IN THREE EASY STEPS:
1. Make a media buy with Wisconsin

Department of Tourism
http://industry. travelWL\consm.wm/
marketing-opportunities/co-op­
advertising

2. Submit proof ofpaymenr, ad copy,
and any available metrics regarding
your ad buy to the Tounsm
Commission via City Hal/

3. Receive reimbursementfor 5o%
ofyour spend, up to $2,000 annually

Sbmussins areorly accepted from busnesses located
in Franklin, Wisconsin, and 50/50 grants are only available
fer co-op advertisingwith the Wisccmin De!p3rtl!..!m of
TaLrism. ~r acl,•ertising pla'Ifcnns are not eligible.

All documentation must CE submitted to ,he Toonsm
Connissin by Decerrber 20th, 2019.

The Tcunsm Comm ission has albca,cd $20.000 fur tl-<s
program in 201'9. Bus1r.es= should check inwith the
Cin?Clilr of Eccncrric Oe,.-elopm.en1 pnor to commim-ent
with tha 'Wisconsin Department of Tourism to ensure
program funds are sill available.

FOR MORE INFORMATION
PLEASE CONTACT:

Calli Berg, Director of Economic Development
City of Franklin
414-427-7566
cberg@franklinwigo
9229 Loomis Road. Franklin WI 53132

City of Franklin 9229 West Lucisad Franklin, WI51132-9630 PHONE [414] 427-7556 F[414] 427-7591 franklimwi. go

50-50 Co-op Advertising Grant Program
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FRANKLIN EMPLOYERS - SNAPSHOT
This marketing piece demonstrates to prospects and developers that Franklin supports a
diverse array of businesses that employ significant numbers of people and supports a
diversified manufacturing base as well

ofFran
2019 Employers Ranked by# of Employees

20 Largest Employers

Northwestern Mutual
Ascension
Franklin Public Schools
Krones, Incorporated
Milwaukee County Corrections
Baptista 's Bakery
M.ann.a. Inc.
1/esta Inc
Senior Flexonio::s-GA Precision
Waste Management
Electronic Cable Sp-ecs Inc
Wal-Mart
Central Garden and Pet
Athletico Fhysical Therapy
Carlisle Interconnect Technologies
Conway Trucking
City of franklin
XPO Logistics
Target
Sam's Club

Insurance/Investment Services
Hospital
K-12 Education
Bottling/Labeling Equipment
Government
Commercial Bakery
Restaurant Adm ini stration
Medical Device Contract Manufacturer
Machine Shops
Landfill and refuse collection
Electrical Contractors
Retailer
Aquariums, Pet Products
Health Care
Wire harnesses
Trucking
Government
Logistics
Department Stores
Retail

2,000
869
554
537
535
418
400
351
350
340
315
302
300
300
269
257
256
250
249
249

15 Largest Manufacturers

Krones, Incorporated
Baptist's Bakery Inc
Vesta
Senior Flexonics-GA Precision
Electronic Cable Specs Inc
Central Garden and Pet
Carlisle Interconnect Technology
General Thermodynamics
Strauss Brands Inc
Nova Coil
Proteus Packaging Corp (Ou.ad Graphics)
Carma Laboratories Inc
Allis Roller LLC
Transpak Corporation
Meltric

537
418
351
350
315
30
29
18D
1CD
10
10
1CD
90
70
58

Note. employmentfigures arefor Franklin facilities only
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RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT MAP - SNAPSHOT
This map represents notable large-scale residential development that has recently taken, or will soon be taking, place in Franklin.
Interest in residential development continues unabated, and there is opportunity and space to create additional housing units as
demand for Franklin living grows.
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Franklin Residential Development

A. Aspen Woods/Veridlan Homes - 69 single-family

B. Bear Development - 79 single-family

C. Neumann Development- 68 single-family

D. Neumann Development - 56 duplex

E. Zilber Development- 180 apartment

F. Ballpark Commons - 219 apartment

G. Autumn Leaves Memory care - 46 unit.5

H. Ballpark Commons- 139 senior living units

Woodlands Edge - 48 senior living units

Single Family Total 216
Multi-Family Total 455
Senior/Assisted Total 233

224 total units

City ofFranklin



2020 AND BEYOND

Economic Development builds community wealth using three basic tenants. retention,
attraction, and expansion Much of the work planned through 2020 and beyond revolves
around activities that support those basic tenants

• Continue TID project management and administration
• Continue relationship building with area developers and development influencers
• Adopt a Customer Relationship Management tool to populate and maintain an

accurate city-wide database that reflects critical information and contact
information for the business community

• Update the EDC web content, including demographics and marketing information
• Implement an economic development marketing strategy guided by the EDC.

Components may include advertising in trade journals, virtual attraction campaigns,
and round tables and other content aimed at the business community

• Begin a retention visit program
• Establish TID application procedures and developer agreement templates
• Train and transfer Tourism Commission administration duties to their new hire
• Produce the 2020 Business Appreciation Celebration

Celebrating Quality of Life
27



APPROVAL» REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
NOV 5, 2019

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDA

TIONS

STAFF DIRECTION REGARDING INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT FOR FRANKLIN CORPORATE PARK AND

PURCHASING PUMP STATION EQUIPMENT FROM
USEMCO FOR $182,816.00

ITEM NO.
, yr>(en,>,

BACKGROUND
As instructed by Common Council, Staff is progressing on the development of Tax Increment
District No. 4 (TID 4), now known as Franklin Corporate Park Stat1 needs addit10nal guidance
as these efforts are proceeding.

ANALYSIS
Staff needs guidance on the issue concernmg TID expenditures pnor to the June 21, 2020, deadline.
The utility corridor project along S. Hickory Lane (the north/south road from W Oakwood Road
to W. County Line Road that the existing W Elm Road will tee) 1s ant1c1patmg that all construction
will be complete prior to this deadlme Additional construction. such as the improvements of W.
Elm Road, can occur if Staff is directed to have other projects bid and awarded prior to the deadline
with the contract amount to be paid to an escrow account

Staff needs permission to bid the S. Hickory Lane Utility Corridor p10Ject Ruekert & Mielke has
provided Staff with a project schedule that anticipates construct10n complet10n by June 1, 2020.
To meet this schedule, advertisements need to be sent to the newspaper'> on, or before, November
13, 2019. Bids are anticipated to be received on Decembe1 11, 2019. and awarded by Common
Council on December 17, 2019.

Staff needs authorization to purchase eqmpment for the pumpmg station pie-fabricated building
and pump controls. See attached summary of the quotes from Ruekert & Mielke with quotes from
USEMCO and Starnet/Arrow. Staff discussed the details of the quote with Ruekert & Mielke and
is recommending to Common Council that eqmpment should be purchased from USEMCO for
$182,816.00. This equipment has a long production lead time and the contractor will be instructed
to make arrangements for delivery and install the eqmpment m the utility project anticipated to be
awarded on December 17, 2019. If by chance the comtruct1on contract 1s not awarded, this
equipment could be delivered to the Ut1hty Operations Centc1 cmd be u-.,ed m the future at the same
location or for another yet-to-be-determined pump station site Without ordering this equipment
now, it is unlikely that the utility contractor will be able to have final payment prior to the June
2020 deadline.

OPTIONS
A. Guidance to Staff on escrow question, and
B. Authorize Staff to bid S. Hickory Lane Utulty Con1do1 project and
C. Authorize Staff to purchase pump station eqmprnent tiom USLMCO, and/or
D. Provide further dtrection to staff

FISCAL NOTE
Finance may / may not have additional comments at the meetmg



RECOMMENDATION
(Options A, B, and C) Direct Staff to proceed as 1f project elements (choose one) may / may not
be escrowed prior to June 21, 2020; direct Staff to proceed with b1ddmg S Hickory Lane Utility
Corridor Project; and direct Staff to purchase pump station equipment from USEMCO for
$182,816.00.

Engineering Department: GEM



Glen Morrow

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

Van Weelden, Mark <mvanweelden@ruekert mielke com>
Thursday, October 31, 2019 3 23 PM
Glen Morrow, Mike Roberts
Petersen, Anthony, Arnott, David Wohlers, Patrick
Corporate Park Wastewater Pumping Station Building Quotes
USEMCO Proposal pelf, Arrow Proposal pdf

Glen and Mike,

As we discussed yesterday, there has been ongoing work to secure two quotes for the future build mg at the pumping
station site. We apologize for the delay in getting them over, but there were some setbacks in personnel at
Starn et/Arrow, so we had to transition equipment reps in the middle of the process

Attached are the two quotes USEMCO and Starnet/Arrow provided The prices for the scopes included are $182,816.00
and $177,776 36 for USEMCO and Starnet/Arrow, respectively However, there are a number items to keep in mind
when comparing the quotes related to the scopes from each company R/M provided 1dent1cal specifications to both
equipment reps in an attempt to achieve the closest comparison possible, but there are inevitable difference m the two
proposed packages based on the way both companies construct their buildings These differences are described below:

The USEMCO building includes the 8" process p1pmg, fittings, and valves to be enclosed m the bu1ldmg Based
on our estimate and coordination with a contractor, we value this scope item at approximately
$25,000. Starnet/Arrow, does not include these items in their scope, instead relying on the contractor to install
the valve assembly and placing the building on top For this reason, you can effectively reduce the quote price
from USEMCO to $157,816 00.

o Note that the inclusion of process piping in the scope of the USEMCO building provides some non­
economic benefit through less coordination with the contract on the location of the valve assembly, etc.

The other key d1fferent1ator in the two scopes is the control systems included in each build111g As we discussed
briefly yesterday, the Starnet controls have the ArcSafe UL Listed feature which adds a level of safety to the
systems which surpasses the USEMCO controls This discussion really comes down to the City's comfort level
with the different systems, as consistency with other applications in the City may be favorable
USEMCO includes one day of startup services which 1s not 111cludes in the Starnet/Arrow quote They value this
day of work at $1,000 00
USEMCO includes level control devices (floats and level transducer) while these are not included in the Arrow
package.
Arrow includes a generator enclosure while USEMCO does not
Note that the dimensions of the build mg are slightly different for each system, with USEMCO at 25'x10' and
Arrow at 24'x12'. This difference will not have a large impact on the facility floor plan, but Arrow's building may
have slightly more clearance on either side of the generator

Please review as soon as possible and let us know which building the City would hike to move forward with We request
that you let us know your selection by the end of the day on Tuesday November 5 so that we can integrate the building
system into our drawing sets

If you have any other questions or concerns, don't hesitate to call me

Thank you,



fa'$'usEmco
PROPOSAL NUMBER: Q1901151 - Revised
BID DATE:

PROJECT: Franklin, WI

ENGINEER:

SALES REPRESENTATIVE:
USEMCO, INC.
1602 Rezin Road
Tomah, WI 54660
608-372-5911
ATTN: Bill Draeger

One- USEMCO Walk-In PumpMate above grade valve and control chamber factory assembled on a common
epoxy coated steel base, enclosed m a modular steel buuldmng and mclude the followmg.

• Estimated Weight 28,000 lbs.
• Nominal dimensions 25'Long x 10' Wide x 8'Inside height - Two rooms
• Shingled gable roof
• Br1ckwal siding
• R30 Insulation 111 walls & ce1hng
• 72" Wide double Insulated steel entry door- Generator room
• 36" Wide msulated steel entry door - Control/Valve room
• 8" Sewage piping & valves
• Arr release valve - Manual ball valve
• Dehumidifier
• Heaters
• Ventilation
• l 00 KW Natural gas generator& 200 Amp automatic transfer switch
• Motonzed louvers
• Interior LED lights
• External hght w/photo cell
• Internal wiring wthin building (PVC ngid conduit)
• External juncton box
• 480 Volt 3 Phase 4 Wire service
• NEMA 1 (Pamted steel) Control Panel
• 200 AMP Mam breaker
• (2) Pump breakers
• (2) NEMA size 2 FVNR starters NOTE: Wall space is provided for future 50 HP VFD's
• 10 KVA Transfo1mer w/pnmary & secondary protection
• Twenty crcuut load center
• UL 698 Label
• Duplex GFI Outlet
• Station low temperature alarm thermostat
• Intnns,cally safe transducer & back-up float ctrcmt
• USEMCO "SENTRY" vanable speed touch screen controller - AB M1crolog1x 1400 PLC
• (2) Hand-Off-Autos
• (2) Run hghts
• (2) Seal fatl relays - KSB
• (2) Overtemp relays
• Dry contacts for Scada
• Ship Loose Items or Spares as follows.

❖ Submersible transducer
❖ (3) Floats
❖ Touch up kit



NOTE: 1. Some states require that fabricated structures not built on site posses a state certification label. This quote does
not include any state label. The customer assumes all liability if the local building inspector requires a state label to
approve the project.

Price: $182,81600FOB factory. Thus price does not mclude any taxes which may apply. Any applicable taKes are the sole
responsibility of the buyer Freight charges allowed to the job site or rail siding of USEMCO's selectron Unloading and special
transportat10n expenses related to Job site conditions are not included.

Pnces quoted and contained herem are firm provided quotation 1s accepted within 30 days from date of bid and 1f
approved submittals are received within 60 days after mailed from USEMCO for approval

Two (2) Operat10nal and Mamtenance manuals will be supplied at tune of start up Add1t1onal copies may be purchased
for $50.00 each

Terms. Net thirty (30) days from the date of Invoice, or at start up, whichever occurs first, if credit is approved, otherwise
due in full upon delivery These tenns are mdependcnt of and are not contmgent upon the manner in wluch the purchaser may
receive payment from others The sale of the eqmpment descnbed above 1s made solely and expressly subject to the tenns and
cond1t10ns on the face and reverse side hereof.

Shipment 1s estunated 16-18 weeks after receipt m USEMCO's office of complete approved submittal data.
One day of fact01y tramed service representative tune for strutup purposes 1s mcluded m pnce. If add1t10nal days are required,
USEMCO will furnish a factory tramed service representative for $1,000 00 per day, plus travel tune and expenses

This proposal 1s subJect to change until Buyer's offer 1s accepted by USEMCO Our sales representative does not have
authority to accept tlus offer

Buyer offers to purchase the eqmpment this__day
of,20__
Buyer: LWAllen
Address 4633 Tompkins Dnve

Madison WI53716

Offer accepted thus_day of
,20
USEMCO, Incorporated
PO Box 550 Tomah, Wisconsin 54660
Phone· 608-372-5911

By: Bill Buckles By _
Bill Draeger



llstarnet
TECHNOLOGIES

Phone (262) 886-0228
Fax (262) 886-0221
8520 Hollander Dnve
Franksville, WI 53126 - 0374

PROPOSAL
Date: October 24, 2019

Attention: Ruekert-Mielke
Project: G1224 Arrow I ArcSafe Proposal
Location: Franklin, WI Lift Station

Quote: NV191224
Version: 1

This proposal is based upon the information available at the time that t was created Proposal is subject to changes due to changes in project conditions Please
contact factory for updates to proposal if changes are made to the design which may affect this proposal

SCOPE OF SUPPLY
NO. QTY. ITEM DESCRIPTION

1.1 1 Prefab Lift Station

1.2 1 Pump Controls

1.3 1 System Integration

Arrow G1224 Prefabricated Control Building
Specified Extenor Siding & Roofing and Fiberglass Insulated Door w/ Keypad
Interior & Exterior Lighting
Magnetic Door Switch
Thermostatically Controlled Heating & Ventilation
Service Entrance Main Fused Disconnect
Exterior Termination Junction Boxes and Vented Skirt for Airgap

ArcSafe® UL Listed Pump Control Center (PCC)
24Vdc Power Supplies
24Vdc Uninterruptible Power Supply
Cummins 100 KW enclosed generator
Relay Logic Backup Controls w/ Alternating Relay
Intrinsic Safe Barner (Transducer) & Relay(s) (Floats)
Phase Monitor Relay
30mm HD LED Push-to-Test Indicators, Pushbuttons, and Selector Switches
NEMA Size 1 FVNR Starters
Install of (FBO) Pump Protection Modules
Control Power Transformers w/ Primary & Secondary Fusing
Elapsed Runtime Meters
Molded Case Circuits Breakers
65kA Transient Voltage Surge Suppressor
5kVA Lighting Transformer
120V Distribution Circuit Breakers

System Integration Services
Custom CAD Drawings & PDF Submittals
Configuration of Provided Equipment
Pre-shipment Testing of provided equipment
Operation & Maintenance Manuals
Freight for provided equipment

Page 1 of 4



SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED ITEMS

3x Utility Metering Equipment
X Offloading
- Level Devices8
x. Pump Protection Modules
.X Flow Meter, Valves, Piping, Gauges
24 Remote Telemetry Unit
x Foundation8
x Field Wiring & Installation
2x Demolitions / Removals / Relocations
Startup & Training

Tax(es) [Add if Applicable]
Any Items and Services not listed in the Proposal

QUOTATION

Total NET Price to Ruekert-Mielke for Listed Items & Services: $177,776.36
Freight is included.

Respectfully Submitted,

Nick Valdez
Electric Pump
501-515-3737 [Mobile]
nickv@pumpcon com

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal
The terms and conditions are hsted on the final 2 pages of this proposal
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS PROPOSAL

ITEMS AND SERVICES
Scope of Supply is limited to the items and services that are specifically named and/or described within the Quotation

PRICING AND PAYMENT
Pricing is valid for ninety (90) days Terms are NET 30 Add 1 5% per month for late payment Pricing is based on the information available at the time of this
proposal Pricing includes items listed in this proposal within the nature outlined in this document Seller may charge partial payments, progress payments, for
item(s) as they are available for delivery even if the customer is not ready to receive the item(s)

TAXES
In Wisconsin we will add tax unless customer has provided a resale or exemption certificate with the purchase order Purchases made outside of Wisconsin,
customer is responsible for paying state use tax directly if applicable

PURCHASE
Starnet Technologies requires either a signed and returned copy of this proposal or a purchase order which references this proposal Starnet Technologies is an
equipment manufacturer and supplier. nol a subcontractor, and as such will not accept a subcontract

CANCELLATION
Cancellation of purchase is only allowed with sufficient nobce as determined by the seller Seller may charge a percentage of the total sale price for partial
completion occurring prior to order cancellation

RETURNS AND EXCHANGES
Full or partial returns and/or exchanges are subject to the seller's discretion Additional charges may be added for exchanges if rt is evident that the exchange is
due to design or specification errors or inadequacies which are outside of the seller's control or influence Charges for exchanges will be based on the cost(s) for
additional time and material as determined by the seller Add1l1onal charges will be added for returns if they are not covered under agreed upon warranties during
the warranty period

FORCE MAJEURE
Seller is not responsible for any damages or losses that are due forces outside of its reasonable control These include but are not limited to acts of God improper
handling or storage by purchaser, acts of government or government agencies, floods, fires, lightning strikes, etc Seller will be given adequate time added to project
deadlines to provide replacements for ,terns covered under warranty or purchased in addition to original order

SUBMITTALS
Submittal documents, 1f required and included in this proposal, (CAD drawings, data sheets, and other required information) should be available in 4 to 8 weeks after
receipt of purchase Up to seven (7) Hard Copies and one (1) Electronic Copy, if required, will be provided upon request after receipt of purchase Each additional
Hard Copy submittal required will be charged at one-hundred dollars ($100 00) per copy Return of approved subm1llal and/or signed copy of approved review sheet
is treated as notice to begin production Resubmittal(s), if required, will be provided at no additional charge if onginals are returned for edits/additions/replacements
Resubmittal(s), if required, will be charged at one-hundred dollars ($100 00) per copy if originals are not returned

EQUIPMENT CABLES
If cables are provided as integral to equipment (e g Floats, Transducer, Mag Meter Cables) they will be provided at fifty (50) feet length standard Each add1tIonal
foot will be charged as an adder with pricing being dependent on equipment manufacturer's current rate

DELIVERY
Freight, whether prepaid or prepaid & added, is FOB origin Freight for items included in this proposal is provided for shipment to one location The location of
delivery is presumed to be either the jobsite or the customer's facility Offloading of equipment upon delivery is not included Customer or Contractor must provide
means for offloading equipment. Some equipment may require a crane or forklift to offload, if a machine is required for offloading 111s to be provided and scheduled
by the Customer or Contractor

INSURANCE
Insurance will be provided for equipment stored al our facility and in transport when delivered by a Starnet Technologies provided truck Starnet provided insurance
does not cover equipment once it is in the possession of the Customer or Contractor

SCHEDULING
A two (2) week notice for scheduling of any site visits is recommended Starnet technicians who perform start-up and similar duties often have appointments and
obligations up to two (2) weeks out Starnet will lry to accommodate with a shorter notice 1f we have someone available Scheduling is based on a first come first
served basis

Continued on next page
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS PROPOSAL (Continued)

START-UP
lf Start-up is applicable \o \his project and listed in the "Scope of Supply" for ths proposal, one day of on-site or phone support is included A lime and matenal
charge will be added for additional site visits if they are due to insufficient faciht1es or causes outside of the responsibility of Starnet Technologies

WARRANTIES
A one (1) year warranty is provided standard on Stamet provided equipment On-site work for warranty covered replacements is not included and will be charged at
standard time and material rates as applicable Warranties may be voided by improper installation, unauthorized modifications, or inadequate storage of provided
equipment Warranty period begins at the lime of start-up

TRAINING
If Training is applicable to this project and listed in the "Scope of Supply" for this proposal, one day of on-site training is included Additional time required for training
will be charged at our standard rates

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS
Operation and maintenance manuals, if applicable and listed in this proposal, will be available at or after startup of provided equipment. These manuals, if provided,
will not be provided until receipt of final payment. Up to four (4) Hard Copies and one (1) Electronic Copy, if required, are included in this proposal Each additional
Hard Copy of Operation and Maintenance required will be charged al one-hundred dollars ($100 00) per copy

CONFIDENTIALITY
This proposal has been provided with the confidence that it will not be shared with or presented in whole or in part to anyone who is a competitor of Starnet
Technologies The information contained in this document is confidential in nature and is strictly intended to be viewed by customers and official representatives of
Starnet Technologies and/or specific product lines manufactured by Starnet Technologies (e g Arrow products)

LIABILITY
It is understood and agreed that seller's t1ab1bty whether in contract, in tort, under any warranty, in negligence or otherwise shall not exceed the return of the amount
of the purchase price paid by buyer and under no circumstances shall seller be liable for special, indirect or consequential damages. The price stated for the
merchandise is a consideration In limiting seller's liability No action, regardless of form, arising out of the transaction under this agreement may be brought by buyer
more than one-year after the cause of action has accrued

AGREEMENT
By signing and returning or providing a purchase order which references this proposal the purchaser acknowledges that they have read, understand, and agree to the
terms and conditions of this proposal If there are any questions or comments in regards to any of the items, services, terms, or conditions of this proposal please
contact Starnet Technologies or an official representative as applicable
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APPROVAL, f
S

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG.DATE
Nov. 5, 2019

Reports &
Recommendations

SUBMITTAL OF THEW. PUETZ ROAD SURFACE
TRANSPORTATION URBAN PROGRAM (STP) GRANT

APPLICATIONS FOR THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION (WISDOT) 2020-2025 PROGRAM CYCLE

ITEM NO.

G,//
BACKGROUND
Many previous budgets have forecasted that Puetz Road would be improved to extend the S. 42 Street
to S. 76 Street cross-section from S. 27 Street (STH 241) to St. Martins Road (STH 100). A Surface
Transportation Urban Program (STP) grant was unsuccessfully sought in 2013. On August 6, 2019,
Resolution 2019-7531 authorized Concord Group to assist in the preparation of the STP grant for the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WISDOT) 2020-2025 program cycle. The grant applications
were due October 15, 2019, and the timing did not allow Staff to present the completed applications to
Common Council at the October 15, 2019, meeting.

ANALYSIS
With the assistance of the Concord Group, Staff submitted two applications. The two sections are S. 27th
Street (STH 241) to S. 42Street and S. 76 Street to St. Martins Road (STH 100). The two applications
are attached.

The 27 Street (STH 241) to Hunting Park Drive (42" Street Extended) section is 1.0 miles long. The
construction costs are estimated to be approximately $5.3 million and the total project costs are over $6.1
million. If awarded, Franklin's portion would be 20%. Design is requested to commence in FY 2021 and
construction in FY 2023. Note that the state FY ends June 30 of each year.

The 76Street (CTH U) to St. Martins Drive (STH 100) section is 1.3 miles long. The construction costs
are estimated to be approximately $7.4 million and the total project costs are almost $8.7 million. If
awarded, Franklin's portion would be 20%. Design is requested to commence in FY 2022 and
construction in FY 2024.

These projects will be evaluated with projects from other communities and scored accordingly.

FISCAL NOTE
These estimates have been submitted to Finance for consideration of borrowing and spending in future
years.

OPTIONS
A. Place on File and wait for the project scoring and rankings. Or
B. Direct Staff to rescind one or both applications. Or
C. Refer back to Staffwith further direction.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
(Option A) No action needed.

Engineering: GEM



WisDOT 2020-2025 STP-Urban Program Application

NOTE: This application is required for each new potential 2020-2025 program cycle project.
Please review the application instructions (see link below) to assist you in
completing the application.

STP-Urban Application Instructions

Project Description

Project Sponsor: City of Franklin Facility Owner: City of Franklin

Project Location:

Municipality: City of Franklin

On Route: Puetz Road

At Route (Start): 27th Street (STH 241)

County. Milwaukee

Offset: (tenths of a mile)

Toward Route (End): Hunting Park Drive (42nd Street Extended)

Is the project a planning, administration, or other non-infrastructure project? D Yes
the type of project and provide a brief explanation: SELECT

[21 No If yes, please select

Please indicate the project's distance from the applicable urban/urbanized area boundary: SELECT

NOTE: Attach an 8½ x 11 map showing the project location. A WISLR map is REQUIRED (refer to the following link:
http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/wislr/default.aspx

Length of Project: 1.0 (tenths of a mile)

Average Daily Traffic (ADT): 2700 ADT Year· 2009 Posted or Statutory Speed Limit(s): 30 (mph)

Functional Classification: Minor Arterial

Functional classification map change anticipated during this program cycle? D Yes ] No

NOTE: Roadway must be functionally classified as a Collector or higher to be eligible for funding.

Existing Facility

Number of Lanes: 2 Lane Width: 12 Cross Section: [] Rural D Urban

Pavement Type: Asphalt If Combination, explain: Pavement Width: 24

Pavement Rating: 3 Pavement Condition: PoorYear Last Improved:

Shoulder Type. Gravel/Turf If Combination, explain: Shoulder Width: 1-3

Existing Sidewalk? D Yes [21 No

Are sidewalks designated as part of a regional or local bicycle or pedestrian system? D Yes ] No

Existing bicycle/pedestrian accommodations? D Yes ~ No

Are bicycle/pedestrian accommodations designated as part of a regional or local bicycle or pedestrian system?

[]ves ] No

0 Lighting: Spot Lighting Style: Standard

A-1



Sub-standard alignment? Horizontal: D Yes

Vertical: [] ves
J No
] No

Any federal-aid-eligible structures within the existing facility? [] Yes [] No If yes, please indicate the structure ID

#(s):

Does a railroad facility exist within 1000 feet of the project limits? D Yes ~ No If yes, specify: SELECT

Known Safety Issues? D Yes [gl No If yes, specify: (consider applying for Highway Safety Improvement

Program [HSIP] funds if applicable)

Project Justification

Explain why the project is needed, including the scope and appropriate detail on the project's uniqueness and
complexity. Describe specific deficiencies such as pavement cracking, edge raveling, surface deterioration, substandard
geometrics, etc. Include and separately identify any 100% locally funded components of the project that are part of the
overall improvement.
Puetz Road in the City of Franklin is a Minor Arterial roadway. Land within the proposed project limits that fronts
Puetz Road is currently zoned predominantly single family residential land use and includes a large section of land
designated as the Franklin Woods Park and Nature Center. The main parking lot entrance to Franklin Woods is located
approximately at 3634 W. Puetz Road.

As stated previously under the Existing Facility description, the pavement is in poor condition and has a PASER rating
of approximately 3. The existing rural cross seection contains 2- 12' driving lanes with an approximate 1'-3' shoulder
that is predominantly turf surface with a gravel shoulder underlayment. Additional issues that are impacting safety
and needing improvements for the roadway are as follows:

1. Improve/promote safety issues and eradicate road narrowness/visibility constraints with reconstructing the
roadway with a proper cross section suitable to handle a minor arterial transportation system.
2. Modifying a vertical curve at a hill to improve site/stopping distance issues.
3. Improve local street intersections within the project limits.
4. Construct a proper uniform road section, similar to the roadway improvement performed from Hunting Park
Drive to South 76th Street, that includes applicable ROW acquisition, drainage improvements, overhead
power/telephone relocation, and associated incidental roadway improvements, etc.
5. Construct a complete pavement reconstruction of the roadway suitable to support the anticipated vehicle
loadings.
6. Drainage system upgrades for rural ditch system both roadway edges and at all navigable stream crossings.
7. Properly assess and design wetland/environmental improvements.
8. City will be acquiring necessary uniform 80' ROW throughout project limits as part of project.

In summary, the project intent is to align the proposed improvements between project limits of 5TH 241 (27th Street)
and Hunting Park Drive with those previously constructed between Hunting Park Drive and S. 76th St immediately
west of this project.

Proposed Improvement

NOTE: Applicants should refer to the traffic data and design standards information in the instructions prior to
completing this section of the application.

Improvement Type: Reconstuction If Combination, explain: Overall Length: {feet)

] Rural Cross Section Length: 1.0 (tenths of a mile)

[] ura Cross Section Length: (tenths of a mile)

Will the project add lanes? [] Yes [] No If Yes, describe which part(s) of the project will receive
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additional lanes.

Grading: [] Minimal [] Moderate [_] Extensive

New Pavement Type. Hot Mix Asphalt If Combination, explain:

New Shoulder Type: Asphalt/Gravel If Combination, explain:

0 Sidewalk Width: Length:

Are bicycle/pedestrian accommodations required? 0 Yes

0 Curb and Gutter Length:

D Signals D Roundabout

Width: 12 Length: 5,335 Feet

Width: 10 Length: 5,335 Feet

[] No If yes, specify:

NOTE: Refer to FDM 11-26 for modern roundabout information
(http://wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-11-26.pdf).

D Railroad improvements

D Freight-related improvements

[] Lighting: Spot Lighting Style: Standard

[] Beam Guard

[] Permanent and Temporary Pavement Marking

[] Permanent and Temporary Signing

[] storm Sewer:

D Lateral Storm Sewer Lines

D Trunk Storm Sewer Lines

Structure #(s).

Estimated Total Length:

Estimated Total Length:

Sizes and Descriptions:

Estimated Diameter(s):

Estimated Diameter(s):

D Storm Sewer Included in Non-participating Construction Cost estimate (see page A-5)

[] structure Structure Type: SELECT Work Required: SELECT

Traffic Management During Construction: Road Open with Staged Construction

Do you anticipate submittal of an exception to standards request? 0 Yes [] No

If yes, please describe:

Environmental/Cultural Issues

Agriculture [] es ] No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Archaeological sites D Yes 0 No » Not Investigated Comments·

Historical sites 0 Yes 0 No [8J Not Investigated Comments:

Lakes, waterways, floodplains [8J Yes 0 No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Wetland ] ves 0 No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Stormwater management [8'.I Yes 0 No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Hazardous materials sites D Yes 0 No [8J Not Investigated Comments:

Hazardous materials on existing structure LJves 0 No [8J Not Investigated Comments:

Upland habitat [] ves 0 No [8J Not Investigated Comments:

Endangered/threatened/migratory species D Yes 0 No t8J Not Investigated Comments.

Section 4(f) [8J Yes 0 No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Franklin Woods Park and Nature Center

Section 6(f) [] ves ] No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Through/adjacent to tribal land [] es ] No □ Not Investigated Comments:
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Miscellaneous Issues

Construction Schedule Restrictions (trout, migratory bird, local events): N/A

Has there been any real estate acquired or transferred in anticipation of this project? [] Yes DX] No

If yes, please explain.

Right of Way: (NOTE: It is recommended that local funds be used to acquire right of way.)

Check all that are applicable.

0 None D Less thanacre

[] Parklands D Large parcels

[] More than ½ acre

[] strips ] Temporary interests

Other Funding Sources: Has the municipality anticipated, requested or been approved for other federal or state funding

from WisDOT for the improvement? [] Yes ] No If yes, please indicate all of the other funding sources that are

anticipated, have been requested, or approved with the associated project ID(s):

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) [_] Anticipated [] Requested □ Approved ID:

Local Roads Improvement Program (LRIP) [] Anticipated [] Requested □ Approved ID:

Railroad Programs (see instructions) [] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Local Bridge Program [_] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Surface Transportation Program - Rural [] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMA0) [] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Transportation Alternatives Program [_] Anticipated [] Requested □ Approved ID:

Transportation Economic Assistance Program [] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Disaster Damage Aids [_] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Other: [_] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Other Concept Notes: Provide any additional relevant project information that has not been covered in another section

of the application.
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CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Cost Estimate, Project Priority, and Scheduling (do not include pages A-5 and A-6 in the Concept Definition
Report [CDR])

Applicants should reference the following WisDOT web page prior to completing this section of the application:
http.//wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/astnce-pgms/highway/tools.aspx

NOTE: Requesting design and construction projects in the same fiscal year is not allowed. All applications must
include a sheet documenting the calculations performed to create the estimate(s).

] nea Projects? All requests for design must be tied to a construction project. Please indicate which projects will be

tied (if applicable):

[] construction:

Basis for Construction Estimate: [] itemized [] Per Mile [] Past Projects

X] other, specify: Percent of construction
Project Priority: Construction 3

0 FY 2021 0 Y2022 ] FY 2023 0 FY 2024

Roadway:

Federal Share of the Participating Construction Cost (80%)

Local Share of the Participating Construction Cost (20%)

Non-Participating Construction Cost (100% Local)

Structure(s) (if applicable):

Federal Share of the Participating Construction Cost (80%)

Local Share of the Participating Construction Cost (20%)

Non-Participating Construction Cost (100% Local)

A. Subtotal Construction Costs

B. Construction Engineering Costs

C. State Review for Construction (see instructions, page 1-8, Table 1)

[]2o2s

Construction with State Review Cost Estimate (sum lines A, Band C)

] Desien:

D 100% Locally Funded (state review is required to be included as 100% locally funded) OR

~ 80% Federally Funded ("state review only" projects are not allowed)

Project Priority: Design 1

~ FY 2021 0 FY 2022 0 FY 2023 0 FY 2024 [] FY 2025

A. Plan Development (see instructions page 1-9, Table 1)

B. State Review for Design (see instructions, page 1-9, Table 1)

Design with State Review Cost Estimate (sum lines A and B)

$4,267,406

$1,066,852

$

$
$
$
$5,334,258

$
$
$

Percentage: 13% $693,454

Percentage: % $

$

NOTE: WisDOT Region staff may revise estimates in the Plan Development, State Review for Design, and State Review

for Construction categories based on the complexity of the project or other factors.
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CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION (continued)
[] Real Estate: (Recommend funding with local funds.)

Project Priority: Real Estate Acquisition 2

[]2o21 ] Y2022 []2023 [] v2024 [] Y 202s

Total Real Estate Cost (Round to next $1,000) $105,000

Cost Estimate, Project Priority, and Scheduling (do not include pages A-5 and A-6 in the Concept Definition
Report [CDR])

[] uy (Compensable utility costs must be $50,000 minimum per utility. Recommend funding with local funds.)

Project Priority:

0 FY 2021 L] Y 2022 [] r 2023 0 FY 2024 0 FY 2025

Total Utility Cost (Round to next $1,000)

NOTE: WisDOT Utility Policy link: http://wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-18-01.pdf

[ oher (Planning, Administration, or Other Non-infrastructure):

Project Priority:

0 FY 2021 0 FY2022 [] Y 2023 [] FY 2024 0 FY 2025

Total other Cost (Round to next $1,000)

$

$

WisDOT Information - Shaded area to be completed by WisDOT staff only.

Additional Confidential Information

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY -- enter the following information at application review

WisDOT Region Reviewer: Date:

Wis DOT Region Comments on Application:

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY -- enter the following information after project approval

Approved Federal Funding Amount: Construction:$

Other:$

Design: $ Real Estate: $ Utility: $
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Key Program Requirements Confirmation

Please confirm your understanding of the following project conditions by typing your name, title and initials in the boxes at
the bottom of this page A Head of Government/Designee with fiscal authority for the project sponsor, not a consultant,
must initial below AND sign the next page of this application.

a. All Federal Funding will be limited at the estimate amount unless an increase is approved by WIsDOT. Additional costs
incurred over the limit will be 100% the responsibility of the project sponsor.

b. A federally funded design project must be tied to a construction project. Stand alone design projects are no longer
eligible for funding (this does not apply to MPO area projects)

c Only new projects may apply, existing projects are ineligible for additional funds through the new cycle process. Existing
projects requiring additional funds are encouraged to use the existing Project Change and Cost Increase processes.

c Federally-funded projects must be designed in accordance with all applicable federal design standards (even if the
design for a federally-funded project was 100% locally funded).

d. The sponsor must provide matching dollar funding of at least 20% of project costs.

e. The sponsor must not incur costs for any phase of the project until that phase has been authorized for federal charges
and the WisDOT Region has notified the sponsor that it can begin incurring costs. Otherwise, the sponsor risks incurring
costs that will not be eligible for federal funding.

f As the work progresses, the state will bill the project sponsor for work completed which is not chargeable to
federal/state funds. Upon completion of the project, a final audit will be made to determine the final division of costs. If
reviews or audits show any of the work to be ineligible for federal funding, the project sponsor will be responsible for
any withdrawn costs associated with the ineligible work.

g. The project sponsor will pay to the state all costs incurred by the state in connection with the improvement that exceed
federal financing commitments or are ineligible for federal financing. In order to guarantee the project sponsor's
foregoing agreements to pay the state, the project sponsor, through its duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and
authorizes the state to set off and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the state from any
moneys otherwise due and payable by the state to the municipality.

h. If the project sponsor should withdraw the project, it will reimburse the state for any costs incurred by the state on
behalf of the project.

i. For 100% locally funded design projects, costs for design plan development and state review for design are 100% the
responsibility of the local project sponsor. Project sponsors may not seek federal funding for only state review for design
projects.

j. The sponsor agrees to state delivery and oversight costs by WisDOT staff and their agents These costs include review of
design and construction documents for compliance with federal and state requirements, appropriate design standards,
and other related review. These costs will vary with the size and complexity of the project. The sponsor agrees to add
these costs to the project under the same 80% federal and 20% local match requirements.

k Transportation construction projects using federal funds except sidewalks, are likely general improvements that
primarily benefit the public at large and for which special assessments cannot be levied under s. 66.0703, Wis. Stats.
Municipalities desiring to obtain the required local project funding through special assessments levied against particular
parcels should seek advice of legal counsel See Hildebrand v. Menasha, 2011 WI App 83.
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I confirm that I have read and understand project conditions (a) through (k) listed above.

Name. Glenn E. Morrow, P.E. Title: City Engineer/Director of Public Works

Accepted (please type your initials here): Jim
Contact Information and Signatures

Application prepared by a consultant? ] ves 0 No If yes, consultant information and signature required below.

Consultant Company Name: The Concord Group Company Location (City, State)· Milwaukee, WI

Consultant Signature (electronic only):JmeyR.Joehnk, P.E. Date:

10/14/19
NOTE: On Local Program projects, 1t is not permissible for a consultant to fill out applications gratis (or for a small fee)
for a municipality and then be selected to do the design work on a project. A municipality could start their consultant
selection process early enough and make the application part of the scope of services with the understanding that all
costs incurred prior to authorization will be the responsibility of the local municipality.
See FDM 8-5-3 for additional information: http.//wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm[fd-08-05.pdf

Sponsor Agency: City of Franklin

Contact Person: Glen E. Morrow, P. E. (Note: must be Head of Government or

Designee)

Title: City Engineer/Director of Public Works

Address: 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132

Telephone: 414.425-7510

Email: gmorrow@franklinwi.gov

Only one project sponsor is allowed per project. As a representative of the project sponsor, the individual that signs
below confirms that the information in this project application is accurate. A local official, not a consultant, must sign
the application. I understand that completion of this application does not guarantee project approval for federal
funding.

Head of Government/Designee Signature (electronic only): GlenvE. Morrow
Date: 10/14/19

Local Unit of Government Agency (when owner differs from sponsor):

Owner Signature (when owner differs from sponsor) (electronic only): Date:

WisDOT Information - Shaded area to be completed by WisDOT staff only.

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY - enter the following information at application review

NOTE: Please add any WisDOT application comments in the comments section on the Confidential page A-6.

Subprogram: Project Improvement Type:

Anticipated Environmental Document Type (e.g., CE, ER, EA, EIS}:

Region Reviewer's Name:

Reviewer's Title:

Date Received:
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Wis DOT Region Reviewers Signature: Date:

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY- enter the following information after project approval

Project ID(s):
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Suite 2850

Chicago, IL 60603

312 424 0250T

www.concord-cc.com

City of Franklin

Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction
27th St-42nd St

Franklin, WI

Conceptual Estimate
October 14, 2019
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City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

27th St-42nd St
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

NOTES REGARDING PREPARATION OF ESTIMATE

This estimate was prepared based on the following documents provided by
the City of Franklin:

1. Puetz Road Reconstruction Drawings provided by City of Franklin
dated August 18, 1997.

2. Puetz Road Reconstruction Project Manual provided by City of Franklin
dated October 10, 1997.

3 Information regarding the project was also obtained via meetings, phone conversations,
and email messages that clarified the project scope.

BIDDING PROCESS - MARKET CONDITIONS

This document is based on the measurement and pricing of quantities wherever information is provided and/or
reasonable assumptions for other work not covered in the drawings or specifications, as stated within this
document. Unit rates have been generated from current material/labor rates, historical production data, and
discussions with relevant subcontractors and material suppliers The unit rates reflect current bid costs in the area.
All unit rates relevant to subcontractor work include the subcontractors overhead and profit unless otherwise stated

Pricing reflects probable construction costs obtainable in the Franklin, Wisconsin area on the bid date.
This estimate is a determination of fair market value for the construction of this project. It is not a prediction
of low bid Pricing assumes competitive bidding for every portion of the construction work for all subcontractors
with a minimum of 3 bidders for all items of subcontracted work and a with a minimum of 3 bidders for a
general contractor. Experience indicates that a fewer number of bidders may result in higher bids, conversely
an increased number of bidders may result in more competitive bids.

Since The Concord Group has no control over the cost of labor, material, equipment, or over the contractor's
method of determining prices, or over the competitive bidding or market conditions at the time of bid, this
statement of probable construction cost is based on industry practice, professional experience and qualifications,
and represents The Concord Group's best judgment as professional construction cost consultants familiar with
the construction industry. However, The Concord Group cannot and does not guarantee that the proposals, bids,
or the construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by them.

ASSUMED CONSTRUCTION PARAMETERS

The pricing is based on the following project parameters.

1. East Side construction start date of Spring, 2023
2 East Side substantial completion date of Fall, 2023
3. The contract will be competitively bid to multiple contractors.
4. All contractors will be required to pay prevailing wages.
5. There are no phasing requirements.
6. The contractors will have full access to the site during normal working hours
7. Estimate includes pricing as of September 2019

Project. 2019G953 Notes Page 2 of 4
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City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

27th St-42nd St
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

EXCLUSIONS
The following are excluded from the cost of this estimate·

1. Professional Design Fees
2. Testing Fees
3, Owner Contingencies/Scope Changes
4. Premium Time/ Restrictions on Contractor Working Hours
5. Finance and Legal Charges
6. Environmental Abatement Costs
7. Contaminated Soil Removal
8 Unsuitable Soil Removal
9. Temporary Facilities
10. Land Purchases
11. Tree Replacement
12. Relocating Electrical Power Poles

Project 2019G953 Exclusions Page 3 of 4
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City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

27th St-42nd St
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

01000 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS $0
o2000 EXISTING CONDITIONS $0

03000 CONCRETE $0
04000 MASONRY $0
05000 METALS $0

06000 WOODS, PLASTICS & COMPOSITES $0
07000 THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION SYSTEM $0
08000 OPENINGS $0

09000 FINISHES $0
10000 SPECIALTIES $0
11000 EQUIPMENT $0

12000 FURNISHINGS $0
13000 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION $0
14000 CONVEYING EQUIPMENT $0

21000 FIRE SUPPRESSION $0
22000 PLUMBING $0
23000 HEATING, VENTILATING & AIR CONDITIONING $0

26000 ELECTRICAL $0
27000 COMMUNICATIONS $0
28000 ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY $0

31000 EARTHWORK $1,269,452
32000 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS $1,368,697
33000 UTILITIES $587,554

UNIDENTIFIED SCOPE ITEMS
GENERAL CONDITIONS/BOND/INSURANCE
CONTRACTOR'S FEES
ESCALATION TO MID-POINT OF CONSTRUCTION

15.0%
85%
4.0%
15.9%

$483,855
$315,312
$160,995
$663,460

CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY 10.0% $484,933

Project 2019G953 East Side Page 4 of 4
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City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

27th St-42nd St
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COST

31000
3110

EARTHWORK
Site Pr paration & xc vatuon

Remove pavement
Remove fence
Clearing
Grubbing
Excavate for hill shaving
Excavate for open ditch
Excavate for roadway
Haul off excavated material
Stockpile topsoil on site

22,759 SQYD 6 74
300 LNFT 2 16

7 ACRE 5,686.63
7 ACRE 1,165 76

1,778 CUYD 5 29
19,040 CUYD 5.29
14,330 CUYD 5 29
31,379 CUYD 24 66
3,768 CUYD 5.37

UB(TL Sit>Prep ration & Ex va on

153,393
649

39,863
8,172
9,402

100,684
75,777
773,681
20,235

$1,181,855
31600

Erosion control

Er51on 3 Sedimentation Cc ntror

GU3TOTAL.

TOTAL: EARTHWORK

32000
2100

32600

EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS
Pavement

Crushed aggregate base course
Crushed aggregate base course, open graded #2
Asphalt pavement, type LV, 3" thk
Asphalt pavement, type MV, 6" thk
Roadway line striping
Geotextile fabric, type DF at pipe underdrain
Restore existing driveway to previous condition

Landscaping

Spread stockpiled topsoil for sod, TLE/PLE
Seeding, fertilizer and fine grading, machine, PLE
Seeding, fertilizer and fine grading, machine, TLE
Sod lawn - allow

32700 Site Furnishings

Pole mounted signage - Allowance

TOTAL: EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS

33000
33200

UTILITIES
Site Water Service

Fire hydrant, relocate existing including auxiliary valves

5,355 LNFT
Erosion & Sedunentaton Control

16 36 87,597

$87,597

$1,269,452

5,900 CUYD 36 so 215,339
4,297 CUYD 41.65 178,962
1,607 TON 84 40 135,636
5,422 TON 75 58 409,808
5,355 LNFT 2 21 11,838
64,260 SQFT 1 12 72,164

51 EACH 1,884 29 96,099
SUBTOTAL Pavement $1,119,846

3,768 CUYD 5 50 20,741
171,360 SQFT 067 114,520
133,875 SQFT 0 67 89,469
1,000 SQFT 097 968

SUBTOTAL: Landscaping $225,697

25 EACH 926 15 23,154
U,OTt· Sit furnishings $23,154

$1,368,697

27 EACH 8,314 88 224,502
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City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

27th St-42nd St
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COST

$224,502

33300 Ste Sanitary&5on 3 1>1

Storm sewer pipe culverts, RCP, avg 24"
Storm sewer system modifications - Allowance per intersection
Subsoil drainage pipe, perforated PVC, 6"

SUBTOTAI

1,020 LNFT
4 EACH

10,710 LNFT
Srtr S 7 Hta ry & <; 'H m

8158
21,358 00

8 99
et

83,215
85,432
96,278

$264,924

33800 rte Electrical
Miscellaneous site electrical - Allowance 5,355 LNFT

SUBTOTAL, S1Electcal
18 32

TOTAL: UTILITIES

98,128
$98,128

$587,554



WisDOT 2020-2025 STP-Urban Program Application

NOTE: This application is required for each new potential 2020-2025 program cycle project
Please review the application instructions {see lmk below) to assist you in
completing the application.

STP-Urban Application Instructions

Project Description

Project Sponsor: City of Franklin Facility Owner City of Franklin

Project Location:

Municipality· City of Franklin

On Route: Puetz Road

At Route (Start): 76th Street (CTH U)

County: Milwaukee

Offset. {tenths of a mile)

Toward Route (End): St. Martins Drive (STH 100)

Is the project a planning, administration, or other non-infrastructure project? [] es
the type of project and provide a brief explanation: SELECT

[8J No If yes, please select

Please indicate the project's distance from the applicable urban/urbanized area boundary: SELECT

NOTE: Attach an 8x11 map showing the project location. A WISLR map is REQUIRED (refer to the following link:
http://wisconsindot gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/wislr[default.aspx

Length of Project: 1.3 (tenths of a mile)

Average Daily Traffic (ADT). 2500 ADT Year: 2009 Posted or Statutory Speed Limit(s): 35 (mph)

Functional Classification: Minor Arterial

Functional classification map change anticipated during this program cycle? D Yes ] No

NOTE: Roadway must be functionally classified as a Collector or higher to be eligible for funding.

Existing Facility

Number of Lanes: 2 Lane Width: 12

Pavement Type: Asphalt If Combination, explain:

Cross Section: C8J Rural O Urban

Pavement Width 24

Pavement Rating: 3 Pavement Condition· PoorYear last Improved

Shoulder Type: Gravel/Turf If Combination, explain- Shoulder Width: 1-3

Existing sidewalk? [] Yes [] No

Are sidewalks designated as part of a regional or local bicycle or pedestrian system? D Yes l:8J No

Existing bicycle/pedestrian accommodations? [] Yes [X] No

Are bicycle/pedestrian accommodations designated as part of a regional or local bicycle or pedestrian system?

0 Yes cgj No

[] Lighting: Spot lighting Style: Standard

A-1



Sub-standard alignment? Horizontal: D Yes IZl No
vertical: [] ves [] No

Any federal-aid-eligible structures within the existing facility? [] Yes [] No If yes, please indicate the structure ID

#(s)

Does a railroad facility exist within 1000 feet of the project limits? D Yes IZl No If yes, specify. SELECT

Known Safety Issues? D Yes [8J No If yes, specify:

Program [HSIP] funds if applicable)

(consider applying for Highway Safety Improvement

Project Justification

Explain why the project is needed, including the scope and appropriate detail on the project's uniqueness and
complexity. Describe specific deficiencies such as pavement cracking, edge raveling, surface deterioration, substandard
geometrics, etc. Include and separately identify any 100% locally funded components of the project that are part of the
overall improvement.
Puetz Road in the City of Franklin is a Minor Arterial roadway. Land within the proposed project limits that fronts
Puetz Road is currently zoned predominantly single family residential land use and has a setion of wetlands/open
space and associated Legend Creek drainage way near the west section of the project.

As stated previously under the Existing Facility description, the pavement is in poor condition and has a PASER rating
of approximately 3. The existing rural cross seection contains 2- 12' driving lanes with an approximate 1'-3' shoulder
that is predominantly turf surface with a gravel shoulder underlayment. Additional issues that are impacting safety
and needing improvements for the roadway are as follows:

1. Improve/promote safety issues and eradicate road narrowness/visibility constraints with reconstructing the
roadway with a proper cross section suitable to handle a minor arterial transportation system.
2. Modifying vertical curves at two hills to improve site/stopping distance issues.
3. Improve local street intersections within the project limits.
4. Construct a proper uniform road section, similar to the roadway improvement performed from Hunting Park
Drive to South 76th Street, that includes applicable ROW acquisition, drainage improvements, overhead
power/telephone relocation, and associated incidental roadway improvements, etc.
5. Construct a complete pavement reconstruction of the roadway suitable to support the anticipated vehicle
loadings.
6. Drainage system upgrades for rural ditch system both roadway edges and at all navigable stream crossings.
7. Properly assess and design wetland/environmental improvements associated with the Legend Creek drainage
way.
8. City will be acquiring necessary uniform 80' ROW throughout project limits as part of project.

In summary, the project intent is to align the proposed improvements between project limits of S. 76th Street (CTH U)
and St. Martins Drive (STH 100) with those previously constructed between Hunting Park Drive and S. 76th St
immediately east of this project.

Proposed Improvement

NOTE: Applicants should refer to the traffic data and design standards information in the instructions prior to
completing this section of the application.

Improvement Type. Reconstuction If Combination, explain: Overall Length: (feet)

[] Rural Cross Section Length 1.3 (tenths of a mile)

D Urban Cross Section Length (tenths of a mile)

Will the project add lanes? [] Yes [] No If Yes, describe which part(s) of the project will recerve
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additional lanes

Grading: D Minimal ] Moderate D Extensive

New Pavement Type: Hot Mix Asphalt If Combination, explain:

New Shoulder Type· Asphalt/Gravel If Combination, explain-

□ Sidewalk Width: Length:

Are bicycle/pedestrian accommodations required? D Yes

D Curb and Gutter Length:

D Signals [_] Roundabout

!Z1 No If yes, specify.

NOTE: Refer to FDM 11-26 for modern roundabout information
(http://wisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-11-26.pdf).

[] Railroad improvements

[_] Freight-related improvements

ueting: Spot Lighting Style: Standard

[] Beam Guard

[] Permanent and Temporary Pavement Marking

] Permanent and Temporary Signing

[] storm Sewer:

D Lateral Storm Sewer Lines

D Trunk Storm Sewer Lines

Structure #(s):

Estimated Total length:

Estimated Total length:

Width: 12 Length: 6,955 Feet

Width: 10 length: 6,955 Feet

[] storm Sewer Included in Non-participating Construction Cost estimate (see page A-5)

[] structure Structure Type: SELECT Work Required: SELECT

Sizes and Descriptions:

Estimated D1ameter(s):

Estimated Diameter(s):

Traffic Management During Construction: Road Open with Staged Construction

Do you anticipate submittal of an exception to standards request? D Yes [Z] No

If yes, please describe:

Environmental/Cultural Issues

Agriculture [] ves No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Archaeological sites [] ves 0 No !ZI Not Investigated Comments·

Histoncal sites L] ves 0 No ~ Not Investigated Comments:

Lakes, waterways, floodplains ] ves [J No □ Not Investigated Comments·

Wetland ] ves 0 No □ Not Investigated Comments·

Stormwater management ] ves 0 No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Hazardous materials sites L] ves 0 No !ZI Not Investigated Comments·

Hazardous materials on existing structure []es 0 No !ZI Not Investigated Comments:

Upland habitat D Yes 0 No !ZI Not Investigated Comments

Endangered/threatened/migratory species [] ves 0 No !ZI Not Investigated Comments

Section 4{f) D Yes ] No □ Not Investigated Comments:

Section 6(f) [] ves ] No □ Not Investigated Comments.

Through/adjacent to tribal land D Yes ] vo □ Not Investigated Comments:

Miscellaneous Issues
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Construction Schedule Restrictions (trout, migratory bird, local events). N/A

Has there been any real estate acquired or transferred in anticipation of this project? D Yes [ZI No

If yes, please explain.

Right of Way: (NOTE: It is recommended that local funds be used to acquire right of way.)

Check all that are applicable

D None D Less thanacre

D Parklands [] Large parcels

[] More than ½ acre

] strips [] Temporary interests

Other Funding Sources: Has the municipality anticipated, requested or been approved for other federal or state funding

from WisDOT for the improvement? [] Yes 12:J No If yes, please indicate all of the other funding sources that are

anticipated, have been requested, or approved with the associated project ID(s):

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) [] Anticipated [_] Requested □ Approved ID:

Local Roads Improvement Program (LRIP) [_] Anticipated [] Requested □ Approved ID.

Railroad Programs (see instructions) [_] Anticipated [_] Requested □ Approved ID:

Local Bridge Program [_] Anticipated [_]Requested □ Approved ID:

Surface Transportation Program - Rural [_] Anticipated [_]Requested □ Approved ID:

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) [_] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Transportation Alternatives Program [_] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID.

Transportation Economic Assistance Program [] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Disaster Damage Aids [] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Other: [_] Anticipated □ Requested □ Approved ID:

Other Concept Notes: Provde any additional relevant project information that has not been covered in another section

of the application.

A-4



CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Cost Estimate, Project Priority, and Scheduling {do not include pages A-5 and A-6 in the Concept Definition
Report [CDR])

Applicants should reference the following WisDOT web page prior to completing this section of the application:
http://wisconsindot.gov/Pages/doing-bus/local-gov/astnce-pgms/highway/tools aspx

NOTE: Requesting design and construction projects in the same fiscal year is not allowed. All applications must
include a sheet documenting the calculations performed to create the estimate(s).

~ Tied Projects? All requests for design must be tied to a construction project. Please indicate which projects will be

tied (if applicable):

[] construction:

Basis for Construction Estimate: [] Itemized [] Per Mile [] Past Projects

IZI Other, specify: Percent of construction
Project Priority: Construction 6

0 FY 2021 0 FY 2022 [] Y 2023 iZI FY 2024

Roadway:

Federal Share of the Participating Construction Cost (80%)

Local Share of the Participating Construction Cost (20%)

Non-Participating Construction Cost (100% Local)

Structure(s) (if applicable):

Federal Share of the Participating Construction Cost (80%)

Loca I Share of the Participating Construction Cost (20%)

Non-Participating Construction Cost (100% Local)

A. Subtotal Construction Costs

B. Construction Engineering Costs

C. State Review for Construction (see instructions, page I-8, Table 1)

[] Y 2o2s

Construction with State Review Cost Estimate (sum lines A, B and C)

] Design:

[] 100% Locally Funded (state review is required to be included as 100% locally funded) OR

~ 80% Federally Funded ("state review only" projects are not allowed)

Project Priority: Design 4

0 FY 2021 iZI FY 2o22 [] Y 2o23 [] Y 2024 [] FY 2025

A. Plan Development (see instructions page 1-9, Table 1)

B. State Review for Design (see instructions, page 1-9, Table 1)

Design with State Review Cost Estimate (sum lines A and B)

$5,920,355

$1,480,089

$

$
$
$
$7,400,444

$

$

$

Percentage: 15 % $1,110,067

Percentage: % $

$

NOTE: WisDOT Region staff may revise estimates in the Plan Development, State Review for Design, and State Review

for Construction categories based on the complexity of the project or other factors.

A-5



CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION (continued)
[] Real Estate: (Recommend funding with local funds )

Project Priority: Real Estate Acquisition 5

[]v2021 [] Y2022 ] Y2023 [] Y2024 [] Y202s

Total Real Estate Cost (Round to next $1,000} $160,000

Cost Estimate, Project Priority, and Scheduling (do not include pages A-5 and A-6 in the Concept Definition
Report [CDR])

[] Utility: (Compensable utility costs must be $50,000 minimum per utility. Recommend funding with local funds.)

Project Priority:

0 FY 2021 0 FY 2022 0 FY 2023 0 FY2024 [l Y 2025

Total Utility Cost (Round to next $1,000)

NOTE: WisDOT Utility Policy link: http://wisconsindot.gov/rdwv/fdm/fd-18-01.pdf

D Other (Planning, Administration, or Other Non-infrastructure):

Project Priority:

0 Y2o21 [] r 2022 0 FY2023 [] FY 2024 [] FY 2025

Total Other Cost (Round to next $1,000)

$

$

WisDOT Information - Shaded area to be completed by WisDOT staff only.

Additional Confidential Information

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY -- enter the following information at application review

WisDOT Region Reviewer: Date:

WisDOT Region Comments on Application:

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY-enter the following information after project approval

Approved Federal Fundmg Amount: Construction: $

Other: $

Design: $ Real Estate: $ Utility: $

A-6



Key Program Requirements Confirmation

Please confirm your understanding of the following project conditions by typing your name, title and initials in the boxes at
the bottom of this page. A Head of Government/Designee with fiscal authority for the project sponsor, not a consultant,
must initial below AND sign the next page of this application.

a All Federal Funding will be limited at the estimate amount unless an increase is approved by WisDOT. Additional costs
incurred over the limit will be 100% the responsibility of the project sponsor.

b A federally funded design project must be tied to a construction project. Stand alone design projects are no longer
eligible for funding (this does not apply to MPO area projects).

c. Only new projects may apply, existing projects are ineligible for additional funds through the new cycle process. Existing
projects requiring additional funds are encouraged to use the existing Project Change and Cost Increase processes

c. Federally-funded projects must be designed in accordance with all applicable federal design standards (even if the
design for a federally-funded project was 100% locally funded).

d. The sponsor must provide matching dollar funding of at least 20% of project costs.

e. The sponsor must not incur costs for any phase of the project until that phase has been authorized for federal charges
and the WisDOT Region has notified the sponsor that it can begin incurring costs. Otherwise, the sponsor risks incurring
costs that will not be eligible for federal funding.

f. As the work progresses, the state will bill the project sponsor for work completed which is not chargeable to
federal/state funds. Upon completion of the project, a final audit will be made to determine the final division of costs. If
reviews or audits show any of the work to be ineligible for federal funding, the project sponsor will be responsible for
any withdrawn costs associated with the ineligible work.

g. The project sponsor will pay to the state all costs incurred by the state in connection with the improvement that exceed
federal financing commitments or are ineligible for federal financing. In order to guarantee the project sponsor's
foregoing agreements to pay the state, the project sponsor, through its duly authorized officers or officials, agrees and
authorizes the state to set off and withhold the required reimbursement amount as determined by the state from any
moneys otherwise due and payable by the state to the municipality.

h. If the project sponsor should withdraw the project, it will reimburse the state for any costs incurred by the state on
behalf of the project.

i. For 100% locally funded design projects, costs for design plan development and state review for design are 100% the
responsibility of the local project sponsor. Project sponsors may not seek federal funding for only state review for design
projects.

The sponsor agrees to state delivery and oversight costs by WisDOT staff and their agents. These costs include review of
design and construction documents for compliance with federal and state requirements, appropriate design standards,
and other related review. These costs will vary with the size and complexity of the project. The sponsor agrees to add
these costs to the project under the same 80% federal and 20% local match requirements.

k. Transportation construction projects using federal funds except sidewalks, are likely general improvements that
primarily benefit the public at large and for which special assessments cannot be levied under s 66 0703, Wis Stats.
Municipalities desiring to obtain the required local project funding through special assessments levied against particular
parcels should seek advice of legal counsel. See Hildebrand v Menasha, 2011 WI App 83

A-7



I confirm that I have read and understand project conditions (a) through (k) listed above

Name: Glenn E. Morrow, P.E. Title: City Engineer/Director of Public Works

Accepted (please type your initials here): Jim
Contact Information and Signatures

Application prepared by a consultant? ] ves 0 No If yes, consultant information and signature required below.

Consultant Company Name: The Concord Group Company Location (City, State): Milwaukee, WI

Consultant Signature (electronic only\:JmeR.Joehk, P.E. Date:

10/14/19
NOTE: On Local Program projects, it is not permissible for a consultant to fill out applications gratis (or for a small fee)
for a municipality and then be selected to do the design work on a project. A municipality could start their consultant
selection process early enough and make the application part of the scope of services with the understanding that all
costs incurred prior to authorization will be the responsibility of the local municipality.
See FDM 8-5-3 for additional information: http ljwisconsindot.gov/rdwy/fdm/fd-08-05.pdf

Sponsor Agency: City of Franklin

Contact Person: Glen E. Morrow, P. E. (Note: must be Head of Government or

Designee)

Title: City Engineer/Director of Public Works

Address: 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132

Telephone: 414.425-7510

Email: gmorrow@franklinwi.gov

Only one project sponsor is allowed per project. As a representative of the project sponsor, the individual that signs
below confirms that the information in this project application is accurate. A local official, not a consultant, must sign
the application. I understand that completion of this application does not guarantee project approval for federal
funding.

Head of Government/Designee Signature {electronic only): GlenvE. Morrow
Date: 10/14/2019

Local Unit of Government Agency (when owner differs from sponsor):

Owner Signature {when owner differs from sponsor) (electronic only): Date:

WisDOT Information - Shaded area to be completed by WisDOT staff only.

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY- enter the following information at application review

NOTE: Please add any WisDOT application comments in the comments section on the Confidential page A-6.

Subprogram: Project Improvement Type·

Anticipated Environmental Document Type (e.g., CE, ER, EA, EIS):

Region Reviewer's Name:

Reviewer's Title:

Date Received:

A-8



WisDOT Region Reviewers Signature: Date:

FOR WISDOT USE ONLY -- enter the following information after project approval

Project ID(s):

A-9
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55 East Monroe Street

Suite 2850

Chicago. IL 60603

312 424 0250 T
www.concord-cc.com

City of Franklin

Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction
76th St-St. Martins Rd

Franklin, WI

Conceptual Estimate
October 14, 2019

Project: 2019G953

Prepared For:
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Rd.
Franklin, WI 53132



City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

76th St-St. Martins Rd
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

NOTES REGARDING PREPARATION OF ESTIMATE

This estimate was prepared based on the following documents provided by
the City of Franklin:

1. Puetz Road Reconstruction Drawings provided by City of Franklin
dated August 18, 1997.

2. Puetz Road Reconstruction Project Manual provided by City of Franklin
dated October 10, 1997.

3. Information regarding the project was also obtained via meetings, phone conversations,
and email messages that clarified the project scope.

BIDDING PROCESS - MARKET CONDITIONS

This document is based on the measurement and pricing of quantities wherever information is provided and/or
reasonable assumptions for other work not covered in the drawings or specifications, as stated within this
document. Unit rates have been generated from current material/labor rates, historical production data, and
discussions with relevant subcontractors and material suppliers. The unit rates reflect current bid costs in the area.
All unit rates relevant to subcontractor work include the subcontractors overhead and profit unless otherwise stated.

Pricing reflects probable construction costs obtainable in the Franklin, Wisconsin area on the bid date.
This estimate is a determination of fair market value for the construction of this project. It is not a prediction
of low bid. Pricing assumes competitive bidding for every portion of the construction work for all subcontractors
with a minimum of 3 bidders for all items of subcontracted work and a with a minimum of 3 bidders for a
general contractor. Experience indicates that a fewer number of bidders may result in higher bids, conversely
an Increased number of bidders may result in more competitive bids.

Since The Concord Group has no control over the cost of labor, material, equipment, or over the contractor's
method of determining prices, or over the competitive bidding or market conditions at the time of bid, this
statement of probable construction cost is based on industry practice, professional experience and qualifications,
and represents The Concord Group's best judgment as professional construction cost consultants familiar with
the construction industry. However, The Concord Group cannot and does not guarantee that the proposals, bids,
or the construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by them.

ASSUMED CONSTRUCTION PARAMETERS

The pricing is based on the following project parameters:

1. West Side construction start date of Spring, 2024
2. West Side substantial completion date of Spring, 2025
3. The contract will be competitively bid to multiple contractors
4. All contractors will be required to pay prevailing wages
5. There are no phasing requirements
6. The contractors will have full access to the site during normal working hours
7. Estimate includes pricing as of September 2019.

Project 2019G953 Notes Page 2 of 4



City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

76th St-St. Martins Rd
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

EXCLUSIONS
The following are excluded from the cost of this estimate:

1. Professional Design Fees
2 Testing Fees
3. Owner Contingencies/Scope Changes
4. Premium Time/ Restrictions on Contractor Working Hours
5. Finance and Legal Charges
6 Environmental Abatement Costs
7. Contaminated Soil Removal
8 Unsuitable Soil Removal
9. Temporary Facilities
10. Land Purchases
11. Tree Replacement
12. Relocating Electrical Power Poles

Project 2019G953 Exclusions Page 3 of 4



City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

76th St-St. Martins Rd
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

01000 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
02000 EXISTING CONDITIONS

03000 CONCRETE
04000 MASONRY
05000 METALS

06000 WOODS, PLASTICS & COMPOSITES
07000 THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION SYSTEM
08000 OPENINGS

09000 FINISHES
10000 SPECIALTIES
11000 EQUIPMENT

12000 FURNISHINGS
13000 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION
14000 CONVEYING EQUIPMENT

21000 FIRE SUPPRESSION
22000 PLUMBING
23000 HEATING, VENTILATING & AIR CONDffiONING

26000 ELECTRICAL
27000 COMMUNICATIONS
28000 ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY

31000 EARTHWORK
32000 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS
33000 UTILITIES

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$1,686,061
$1,707,041
$861,694

UNIDENTIFIED SCOPE ITEMS
GENERAL CONDITIONS/BOND/INSURANCE
CONTRACTOR'S FEES
ESCALATION TO MID-POINT OF CONSTRUCTION

15.0%
8.5%
4.0%
21.9%

$638,219
$415,906
$212,357

$1,206,399

CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY 10.0% $672,768

Project 2019G953 West Side Page 4 of 4
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City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

76th St-St. Martins Rd
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COST

31000
31100

EARTHWORK
Site Prep »ratton & Ex vat

Remove pavement
Remove fence
Clearing
Grubbing
Excavate for hill shaving
Excavate for open ditch
Excavate for roadway
Haul off excavated material
Stockpile topsoil on site

29,559 SQYD 6 74
400 LNFT 2 16

9 ACRE 5,686 63
9 ACRE 1,165 76

3,556 CUYD 5 29
24,729 CUYD 5 29
18,611 CUYD 5 29
42,001 CUYD 24 66
4,894 CUYD 5 37

SUBTOTAL >rte Prepa? ion€ Exavarron

199,225
865

51,748
10,608
18,804

130,767
98,415

1,035,577
26,281

$1,572,291
31600

Erosion control

Er5tor & S hrenttto 1 Conto

SUBTOTA!

TOTAL: EARTHWORK

32000
32100

32600

EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS
Pavement

Crushed aggregate base course
Crushed aggregate base course, open graded #2
Asphalt pavement, type LV, 3" thk
Asphalt pavement, type MV, 6" thk
Roadway line striping
Geotextile fabric, type DF at pipe underdrain
Restore existing driveway to previous condition

Landscapr g

Spread stockpiled topsoil for sod, TLE/PLE
Seeding, fertilizer and fine grading, machine, PLE
Seeding, fertilizer and fine grading, machine, TLE
Sod lawn - allow

32700 Ste Furntshangs

Pole mounted signage - Allowance

TOTAL: EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS

33000
33200

UTILITIES
Site Water Service

Fire hydrant, relocate existing incduding auxillary valves

6,955 LNFT
Eros on & Sedimentation Control

16 36 113,770
$113,770

$1,686,061

7,663 CUYD 36 50 279,685
5,581 CUYD 41 65 232,439
2,087 TON 84 40 176,150
7,042 TON 75 58 532,251
6,955 LNFT 2 21 15,375

83,460 SQFT 112 93,726
29 EACH 1,884 29 54,645

FUBIOIA Pav rent $1,384,270

4,894 CUYD 5 50 26,939
222,560 SQFT 0 67 148,737
173,875 SQFT 0 67 116,201
1,300 SQFT 097 1,258

SUBTOTAL. Landscaping $293,134

32 EACH 926 15 29,637
UIOit 1 > Furnishings $29,637

$1,707,041

35 EACH 8,314 88 291,021



fr
i J.E-

G HOUP _

City of Franklin
Franklin Puetz Rd Reconstruction

76th St-St. Martins Rd
Conceptual Estimate

10/14/2019

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COST

SU8TOTA1 5it Water Serve

33300 Site anrtay & Storm Sew 1

Storm sewer pipe culverts, RCP, avg 24"
Storm sewer system modifications - Allowance per intersection
Subsoil drainage pipe, perforated PVC, 6"

SU8IT u
33SOU Site Electrical

Traffic signal modifications - Allowance
Miscellaneous site electrical - Allowance

580
8

1
6,955

LNFT
EACH

13,910 LNFT
rte 5 M 3yR Sorn

LSUM
LNFT

$291,021

81 58
21,358 00

8 99

47,318
170,864
125,044

$343,226

100,000 00
18 32

SUBTOTAL Srt> lecical

TOTAL: UTILITIES

100,000
127,447

$227,447

$861,694
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APPROVAL

a. it
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

11/5/2019

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

Employee Benefit-Related Insurance Coverages,
Carriers, and Premium Shares, including Health
Insurance, Stop Loss, Broker Services, Voluntary
Long-Term Disability Insurance (LTD), Life and
Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance
(AD&D), Including Voluntary Supplemental Life

Insurance and a Voluntary Vision Plan

ITEM NUMBER

The Personnel Committee reviewed this topic at their meeting of October 21, 2019, and unanimously
approved the following motion: Motion to recommend Sun Life for our stop loss renewal, for the Life,
AD&D, and Long-Term Disability with adding the aspect of the life insurance that employees can
purchase extra at their own cost; increasing the stop loss point from $70,000 to $80,000; and includes the
Vision Plan with 1 program (VSP Choice) pending clarification of vision plan benefits.

Life and AD&D, LTD, and Stop Loss: Attached are rate proposal sheets for Life and AD&D and the
LTD. Following that is a rate sheet related to the Stop Loss renewal. Hartford, with whom the City has
had LTD and AD&D for the last five years, is again proposing to freeze their rates for a two-year term.
Standard, a new company, has offered lower rates reducing those costs for the City and its employees by
about $13,684, about half of which is in the employee funded LTD portion. Sun-Life, the City's current
Stop Loss carrier has proposed LTD rates that match Hartford's, but their Life and AD&D coverage cost
is about $6,700 more. The kicker, however, is that Sun Life will offer a 4% reduction in the Stop Loss
renewal quote if the City moves its Life and AD&D and LTD over as a package. Given that the Stop Loss
renewal is over $600,000, the savings would be nearly $25,000. As such, a net savings of around $18,000
is worth packaging these coverages with Sun Life, which is what our broker, staff, and the Personnel
Committee recommend. Given that the LTD cost remains unchanged to the employee for 2020, it is
appropriate for the City to attempt to garner the added savings from packaging all products with the
same carrier. [Please note that in moving to a new LTD carrier any employee already in the LTD would
be guaranteed continuation under the new carrier. Others may be required to provide medical
documentation. The option exists to allow automatic entry of any employee qualifying for the benefit.
The Director of Administration does not recommend this at this time, but will complete additional
review prior to the meeting.]

Related to Sun Life's Stop Loss coverage, the proposed renewal was approximately a 6% increase, which
is reduced to a 2% increase with the package savings. The premium, however, can be reduced from the
pre-discount rate of $678,132 to $611,987 by increasing the Stop Loss attachment point from $70,000 to
$80,000. This is the level of claims at which Stop Loss begins to reimburse a covered member's claims.
The break-even point then is between 6 and 7 claims of over $70,000. Considering our experience the last
5 years, it is good strategy for the City that could save money. A longer-term average would suggest
more of a break-even expectation. Associated Benefits and Risk Consulting (Associated) (previously
Diversified), our broker, does note that our attachment level is generally lower than other municipalities
in their book of business. Note, also, that the 4% discount is still applied to the $611,987, so the final Stop



Loss premium is reduced to $587,508, with our 2019 premium at $639,887. Lastly, it is important to recall
that the City's move to Sun Life two years ago was done in part to potentially take advantage of a
dividend program they offered. That has been a beneficial decision as the dividend received in 2018 was
$137,832 and in 2019 was $141,195. Our broker, staff, and the Personnel Committee recommend
remaining with Sun Life for stop loss coverage and increasing the stop loss attachment point to $80,000.

Health Insurance: It has been mentioned during the course of the year that anecdotal evidence suggests
that the City's health insurance structure that was instituted for 2019 was an aggressive step that
substantially reduced the overall health benefits and negatively impacted hiring and retention. Attached
is a detailed, but summary, description of the health insurance benefits offered by our comparable
communities. Plans have lots of different features and nuances, so comparison is challenging. The
"Potential Net Position" (the third row on the handout) considers the employee's initial deductible less
any employer contribution. The "Potential Net Maximum Out-of-Pocket" cost (the fifth row on the
handout) considers the worst-case scenario for an employee with a large claim event. It summarizes the
potential impact of how their deductibles, co-insurance, and offsetting employer contributions could
impact the employee where the maximum out-of-pocket is reached. Based upon these other plans, and
without considering networks, one could argue the other plans all generally exceed Franklin's 2019
benefit plans. A wholesale redesign, however, simply isn't an option given budgetary restrictions.

Associated, staff, and the Personnel Committee recommend the following changes to the High
Deductible Health Plan (HDHP):

1. Reduce the maximum out-of-pocket (MOoP) from $6,000/$12,000 (single/family) to $4,500/$9,000,
which matches our PPO, and reduce the maximum out-of-network from $12,000/$24,000 to
$9,000/$18,000.

2. Continue the employer contribution in 2020 but changing it from $750/$1,500 in January to
$750/$1,500 in January and $375/$750 in June.

3. Add a commitment that the City will provide a 2021 employer contribution to a HDHP HSA of
$375/$750 in both January and June for new employees or for those active employees that enroll in
the HDHP in both 2020 and 2021.

4. Freeze the Employee Premium Share rates for 2020 at $96.06/232.34 (single/family).

This results in a MOoP slightly below Brookfield's, but our employer contribution is slightly below as
well. Our employee premium share has been strategically moving toward being more competitive with
the private sector market place, but that has made us fall behind our municipal comparables. As such,
freezing the dollar amount of the PPO and the HDHP employee premium share at least holds us stable
for a year to allow communities to make some progress toward our position. These actions are intended
to improve the impacts on hiring and retention largely by impacting the overall perception of the plan
and reducing the risk to employees of having an unsecured $12,000 out-of-pocket cost. At the same time,
it should continue to drive employees to consider the HDHP. Although it is largely subjective,
Associated anticipates an additional 5 to 10% HDHP participation under this design.

[Please recall that the City's pharmacy plan changes periodically as United Health Care (UHC) reviews
national trends and pharmaceutical circumstances, the premium care physician designations are updated
at least once each year, and UHC offers a variety of plan program add-ons during the course of year,
which programmatic adjustments are all treated as administrative determinations.]



Additional Voluntary Benefits: As part of the contract settlement with the Police Union, the City agreed
to "explore offering supplemental insurance for employee's so long as the provider offers it without cost
to the City." The Sun Life policy can add this option without cost to the City, although there may be
some administrative effort. Rates are set by Sun Life and with most such policies coverage for family
members can be added if the employee is also providing additional supplemental coverage on
themselves.

Attached is a sheet that provides the coverage and monthly premium costs for an optional, employee­
funded vision plan. It is with VSP Vision Care, a large national provider with many Wisconsin
participating doctors. Offering this can improve our hiring and retention at no additional City cost.

Dental Insurance: No changes in the benefits are contemplated. Recommended dental insurance
premiums are still under review and will be brought to the meeting, along with a recommendation to
incorporate into the motion.

Broker Services: Diversified has served us well and assisted us in achieving our desired health plan
expenditure levels through their networking and contacts. That status has not changed since they were
bought out by Associated about a year ago. As Diversified, their rates had remained unchanged since
2011. With Associated, we did experience a slight increase for 2019. Negotiations are in progress for any
2020 rate increase. The Director of Administration suggests that if the increase can be retained at 1% or
less, then Associated should continue, but if the increase is more than that, the Director of Administration
will bring back a recommendation at that time.

Self-Insurance Fund, Sworn Police Officer Mental Health Pilot Program: At the Personnel Committee
meeting, a number of police officers expressed concern that the current health plan, particularly the
HDHP, makes it expensive to pursue mental health treatments. In 2016, the Director of Administration
proposed to the Police Union a meeting to develop a city-funded program to offer and encourage police
officers to pursue mental health treatment if needed. At the time, the Union declined the offer.
Following the Personnel Committee meeting, the Director of Administration resent the suggestion to the
Union to pursue such a program. It turns out that the Police Chief and Captain Goens have been looking
into similar options since Oak Creek, Hales Corners, and Wauwatosa have recently instituted programs
of a similar nature using a locally respected clinic that specializes in addressing the mental health of
police officers. This time the Union offered to meet, which meeting was very productive.

There is no question that many statistics show that police officers have a high suicide rate and suffer from
significant pressures that can impact their mental health. Unfortunately, there is also evidence that
indicates a significant stigma to seeking mental health treatment. There is no doubt whatsoever that
individual officers and the department as a whole are better served if officers who may benefit from
mental health treatment receive such care. It is fair to state that the benefit accrues to the entire City. The
City has an Employee Assistance Program that offers some initial care and assessment, but it is not
intended for ongoing treatment beyond a few sessions. Our health insurance program provides
coverage, but can still have substantial costs that might deter the employee. What is needed is something
that provides these services with a high degree of confidentiality at low or no cost to officers in need.



Given the critical value of a program, the Director of Administration and Police Department intends to
start a City-funded, pilot program for sworn police officers to be able to seek added mental health care.
To save implementation time, it will be largely patterned off the Oak Creek, Hales Comers, and
Wauwatosa programs. No long-term or penalty-free contractual commitments will be entered into
without approval from the Common Council. Costs will be charged directly to the self-insurance fund as
is done with other wellness programs. Average monthly costs will be assessed after an initial 4- or 5­
month start-up period, and if they are exceeding an annualize cost of $20,000 -$25,000, the program can
be re-evaluated for adding cost oversight or cost auditing features. Future consideration may be given as
to whether other employee groups should be included. The intent is to start a program quickly and bring
in the structure (bureaucracy) later if program levels warrant the added oversight. If the Common
Council wants a detailed program write-up prior to institution, please provide such a direction to the
Director of Administration and Police Chief.

The items requested for approval in the Council Action Sheet are consistent with the 2020 proposed
budget as forwarded by the Common Council to the upcoming public hearing.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to recommend as follows:

1. Sun Life for Stop Loss renewal and for the Life, AD&D, and Long-Term Disability, with increasing the
stop loss attachment point from $70,000 to $80,000 and adding the aspect of the life insurance that
employees can purchase extra coverage at their own cost;

2. Authorizing VSP Vision Care as an employee-funded, optional vision care benefit with 1 program
(VSP Choice) option;

3. Changing the HDHP benefits by reducing the maximum out-of-pocket from $6,000/$12,000
(single/family) to $4,500/$9,000 and reducing the maximum out-of-network from $12,000/$24,000 to
$9,000/$18,000, continuing the employer contribution in 2020 but changing it from $750/$1,500 in
January to $750/$1,500 in January and $375/$750 in June, and committing to a 2021 employer
contribution of $375/$750 in both January and June for new employees or those active employees that
enroll in the HDHP in both 2020 and 2021.

4. Continuing with Associated Benefits and Risk Consulting as our broker, provided the increase for
2020 does not exceed 1%.

5. Freezing PPO employee premium share rates at $160/$386 (single/family) and HDHP rates at
$96.06/232.34 for those that participate in the Health Risk Assessment (HRA), maintaining a 4.5%
added employee premium share for those that do not participate in the HRA, and other such related
rates as determined by the Director of Finance and Treasurer.

6. Authorizing the Director of Administration to institute and administer a Self-Insurance Fund funded,
Sworn Police Officer Mental Health Pilot Program and to modify the employee handbook to
incorporate such benefits as he determines is appropriate.

7. [Insert recommendation on dental premiums that will be brought to the meeting.]

DOA - MWL



City ofFranklin
Life andAD&DL long_ Term Disabilitv

2020 Renewal Cost Illustration

Hartford Hartford
Current Renewal Standard Sun Life

Life and AD&D

Volume $20,660,000 $20,660,000 $20,660,000 $20,660,000

Rate per $1,000 0.193 0.193 0.160 0.220

Mo. Premium $3,987 38 $3,987.38 $3,305 60 $4,545.20

Annual Premium $47,848.56 $47,848.56 $39,667.20 $54,542.40

Rate Guarantee 2 years 3 years 2 years

LongTerm Disability

Volume $1,019,000 $1,019,000 $1,019,000 $1,019,000

Rate per $100 0.470 0.470 0.425 0.470

Mo. Premium $4,789.30 $4,789.30 $4,330.75 $4,789.30

Annual Premium $57,471.60 $57,471.60 $51,969.00 $57,471.60

Rate Guarantee 2 years 3 years 2 years

Total Ann. Program Premium $105,320.16 $105,320.16 $91,636.20 $112,014 00

Declined to Quote - Prudential, Lincoln Financial Group



City of Franklin
Stop Loss Renewal

2020 Cost Illustration

Initial Renewal

Current Renewal
Sun Life Sun Life Sun Life Sun Life

Stop Loss Attachment Pomt $70,000 $70,000 $80,000 $90,000

Specific Monthly Rates
Single (53) $133.91 $144.62 $130.16 $117.14
Family (133) $337.64 $364 65 $328.19 $295.37

Aggregate Monthly Rates $710 $7.46 $7.46 $7.46

Total Mo. Premium $53,323.95 $57,550.87 $51,935.31 $46,880.19
Total Annual Premium $639,887 40 $690,610.44 $623,223.72 $562,562.28

Premium Credit for adding Life, AD&D and Long Term Disability Plans - $27,624

Revised Renewal

Current Renewal
Sun Life Sun Life Sun Life

Stop Loss Attachment Pomt $70,000 $70,000 $80,000

Specific Monthly Rates
Single (53) $133.91 $14194 $127.75
Family (133) $337.64 $357.90 $322.11

Aggregate Monthly Rates $7.10 $7.46 $7.46

Total Mo. Premium $53,323.95 $56,511.08 $50,998.94
Total Annual Premium $639,887.40 $678,132.96 $611,987.28

Sun Life
$90,000

$114.98
$289.90

$7 46

$46,038.20
$552,458.40

"Premir'creditfora±dingLife;AD&#ff'ts?term DisabilityPlans •
$70,000 Stop Loss Point- $27,125
$80,000 Stop Loss Point - $24,479
$90,000 Stop Loss Point - $22,098



V,
LU

Ez
:::::,
2z
0u C

0LU_,
CD
<(
a:
<(
C.s
0 '+-

o °CQJ
E
te
o
0..
QJ
0

E

LL
0
V,

!::
LL
LUz
LU
CD
LUuz
$
:::::,
V'lz
:::c
~
<(
LU
:::c
LL
0
>a:
<(zs
:::::,
V'l

C

-"'
C
o
I...

LJ..
CJ)
rl
0
N

----00
rl

----0rl
""Og
m
0..
QJ
I...a..

_?:- 0 0
E8 8
.:1:. l.D 1.1)

0
(l_
(l_

.!!:! 0 0
00 0 U"l
CO l'­
vi rn N

0
0

"'

0
"'N

0
0
Ts,
<t
rl

0
0
N
Cl

0
0
lO
t

8 a
0 0
rl rl

---- ---­"' 0rl M

a8
0
rl

2:­
E
C
0z

Clco
<J>

0
0
0....

0
0
0
N....

0
0
0
M

0a.a.
_.!!:! 0 0
00 0 0
CO U"l
vi u, q-

0
0

"'
0
0
8

0
0
U)
rl

0"'.-, N
8
0
rl

0
N

8 e? o
rl

0

"rl<J>

? o
E oe 8

$s
.E u
"'

0
0
0.... 0

0
cu
C
0z

- zX ro
"' EE o
n
"' rlu,Vl-V\-0neLfa g
00
N <t

n Aro rlu..::,­
cu---.
0) s.
aO
E o.
0 CU o._
o T
a»­2 (r_ :r:

.!I! 0ac o
vi N

0

8
<t

0
0
0
N

0g
lO

0
0
0
M

0
0
0
lO

0
0
0
M

u
NM

0 0 0
rl <t r--

>E
Oo
0 <J>z

~
s
QJ
QJ
C
0
E
0
C
QJs

0
(l_
(l_

g
"'

0

"'N

0
0

?

0
0
0
N

0
0
0
t

0
0
0
N

0 0
N N 0 000

rl M "1

co....
$. 8

rl

ES o
t; rs
0 <J>z

,-.
Cl
rl
<J>

0
(l_
(l_

2- 0 0
E8 8
.:J:. a, l.D

9 o o
e8 85 sf m

0
~

0
0
0co

0
0
0
<t

0
0~

0 0 U"'I O 0
rl N Lil U1

>
5a
C l'-
0 <J>z

Cl
N
N
tn

u
."l
:,
-c:,
-c:,
C

ii: 0
(l_
(l_

oE o
.:J:. :=3

.!I! 0
000

5 9
0
8....

0
0

8

0g
M

0
0
0
lO

0g
M

g
I::!

0

8m 0 0

8
0
rl

co
lO
tn

e
0
N

rl
M
rl

0

0

0

0

0

0
0 03goo
ID .-,

0

- zX ro
"' EE on
"' rl?

fr g g n
0 0
N

$
,.;
N

0s
<I>

"'E
0
-c:,
QJ
%u

o o
E o g
e8
.!!:! 0 0o
CO U"l
vj rtl N

0

8....

8
"'

0
0
0co

0
0
0
<t

0
0
0
M

0
0n "' "'N N

a8
0
rl

Clco
Nu-

?> oE oe 3
00
00
t
rt n

(l_
:r:
0
:r:

.!I! 0
000

5 »
00
00
NU)
rl ....

0
0co
0.....

0
0
<tco

0
0;;,;

0
0
N
t

0 0
R
0
rl

>
~ N;u-z

0

9
<J>

0
Cl
U-

=g
E o
(J'_ N

8
0
N

0
0
0
lO

0
0
0

'°

0
(l_
(l_

.!I! 0uo
C 0+

0
0
0
M

0
0
0
M "'"'N N

8
0.....

LOO LO ro
..--t rTl '<;f" C
<J> <J> <J>

8
0
N

8
0
rl

0co
U

Cl
Cl
M-n

g
N
<J>

z
8
C
"'a
C
6u

N
4-
0
rl
QJ
tl.O
ro
0....

QJ
.µ

"'"zgC ro ,._
0 '+- 0
~ 0 u
E,._ ~ 0

n, C..E u 0
C QJ "O

..s::: V\
.µ -"':-2
QJ ..a
> "O
QJ QJ
3 "O
0 "'..s::: ..s:::

V\

00 C

rl "'0 .µ
N n,

"O



V'I
LLJ
1-
z
:::::,zz
0u C
LuI....I +-'c
$«

C

~ Es ?
0 '+-
u i

C
aJ
E
t:'.
ro
0..
aJ
0

u.
0
V'I
!:::u.wzw
CCI ~

ro....
LL
en
rl
0
N-00
rl-0rl
"O
9
ro
0..
aJ....
a..

LLJuz
$
:::::,
V'Iz
:c
~
<(
LLI:c

C

0
N
0
N

E
--"'
Ca

2 oE o
s 8

0 0
0 Ill
0 ,-..
en '°

0..
I
0
I

! o
OD 0
C 0
iii ff)

0 0
N
M
N
V>

g
0
N

.Ez
C
rn
u..

o
E o
e 8

00
00

"'"'rl ....

0..
I
0
I

09 o
OD 0
C 0
vi "'

o
"'"',-..;:::

0 0
0 0
0 "'N 0
rl rl

0
0

8 0 0

e
0eg
rl
I­
a?
0
rl

8
DO,-..
rl

>o
t rd
C rl
O n-z

rl
rl

"'-n
N
M
N
V>

0

<Ol
rl
0
N
z
::J
"'z
<(

8:
0
0..
0..

OW o
OD 0
C Ill
i.ii T""t

0

8....

0

8.....

0

8en
0
0
0en

0
0
Ill...

8
Ill

a?
0s
I­
a8
Ill
rl

8
N
0
N

a&
00....
N

e
M
0
N

..c '°~ en
C rlg

DO
rl
0
N
z
::J
"'z
<(

8:
00
rl
0
N

?o
E o
s&

9 o
OD 0
C 0
vi .....

0aa
N

0
0
0

'°

0
0
0

"'

0
0
0

'°

0
0
0

""

Ill 0
N <t--... --...
..... rl
I- I-­
Ill Ill
rl "'

8
0
N--...
rl
I-
8
Ill.....

~.5
en
rl

"O
C
QJ
a'.l

U
QJs <(

er:
I

?o oee g~ ~ .---,

0
Ill
'°.....

0
0
0

'°

0
0
0

"'
0

n?
N

o o
u» 9--...--...
rl rl
I- I-­
Ill 0
N Ill

8
0
N

0n
X

28 ?
8
Ill
N

00
N
rl-n-

0
U1
N
U-

0..
I
0
I

~ a o
E g g
{g m

0
0
0
N

0
8.....

0
0
U1

'°

0
0

8

0
0
U1
Ill

0
0
Ill

"'
0 0 *0N

0

E
g

0 0 o <(
+ Z

E

0
0

'°­+R
Ill
rl

R
U1
rl

a--
E
C
0>

"'0rl
V>

QJ
·.:::s
0..
C
::,
Vl

C

g :g_g
O
.-I :Ji T""-1

I
o1I

0..
I
0
I

0
0
0

"'

0
0
U1
rl

0
0
Ill
rl

0
Ill,-..

0 0

0 0

0

0

au

0 0 a 0

0 0

0
C

0
N
0
N

8
N

a?
0

8
N

?
0

>
E
C
0z

? o
E o
s8

0
0
0
N

0
0
0
N

8
N

g o
OD 0
C 0i.ii M

0a
0.....

0
0
0.....

0
0
9

g
0..... 0 0 8

0

g9
0

"e #
rl *0rl 8

0
rl

_:o:-
..c Ill
~ rl
C rlg

00en
Nn

00g
V>

E
1;
a'.l

3
QJz

00
00
OON
MN

0..
I
0
I

09 o
OD 0
C 0
5 m

00
00en .-.
rl .....

0 0
0 0
0 N
O v

0 0
0 0
0 rl
"' rl

0 0 8
0

0 0 0 0

>
£ U1
C 00uz

Ill
Y
N
<I>

QJ
Q.

~
C~
0..

C
0
E·;:
l;\ D..
~ 0o
D.. X
ni ..
C ::i'
0
E,,
a

('J
4-
0
('J
Q)
b.O
(ll

0...



..
:6
ls
E E
CD GI

8 0 .e I0
0 C?. i0 8 GI

c'0 Eon ... :l i eti> ... .±() ... a :g
0 I! - J:

Ill 'E Ill _., 0
Cl) iJ ;g C) 'I::: • =§

,...
C') t 111

E .c GI ...... 0 a, N J! ,2
.E 111 Ill Ill GIQ) 1H .e 1ii lif Q. Q)

oi .fi e
G) ::, 0 C) ego» .e 111

C
.,,

§ fi J:
C, C ;I!. N ,-. Ill ,-. s 0

111 ... GI C GI 2:-f ,! >< 0 0 » o Ill fl g .,. lcoa,cor--coco;7;r--.-;!!;.-.., 4,0 00

g ::i on ... 0 O O 0 a, gas:g«33a8 (').., Cs 'o 0 C?.o o li.Slii 00 05 a,C: 8 - - Ill tf !!!,o O O O O ~ 0 0 _.: N,.;. 10 38 s0 :, ... J ... se e·g . ...............................
V> 3l - ....... sR% .e I I E0 3 'o et= &E C

0 9 .e ::, "O 3 .8
GO Q. 0. i .. .r s::, ::, a, ,,
0 .c:: & p .. E s 0

i 0
<( .:::: C E ,g l on

a Q) g Ill fl) ri- C: E .e en C t: ti>g I!! I!! ,2 ~J!! e 0 B 0. E "' Q. Q.5 ::, .c ..c li:::i u: s (.) 0 00
8 0 on

0 C E ...'s o 0 G) Q)
0 g E "E 1u- Ege ... ... g a::& C

:::sO 8 :::,..,
3 <'-i-.....
0z
C'G

't;E
E C 8

0

I 2:::s -e :Ss C(/) e C 'ii 9s s:::
Q) I l CD

2 &C s "O t5 0 IQ %.... Q)

3g IO % ·gs= ::, lZ · ·mg" ,q: '<t:

t $ e e5 E .E a5 3 .33 35# &e9=8 0 Qm l NP>l">•• ao car--"- ,q:u 0 " Gt e .Q 5 "OQ. :f .g #» s:::
E ::s C J2 llJ
w (!) 8. l $Gt

0 l!
6



YOUR VSP VISION BENEFITS SUMMARY
CITY OF FRANKLIN and VSP provide you with an
affordable vision plan.

PROVIDER NETWORK:
VSP Choice

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/o1/2020

VsQn,a,eto,Ule

Benefit Description Copay Frequency

WellVision Exam

PRESCRIPTION GLASSES

Frame

Lenses

Lens Enhancements

Contacts (Instead of
glasses)

PRIMARY EYECARE

EXTRA SAVINGS

Your Monthly
Contribution

• Focuses on your eyes and overall wellness

• $150 allowance for a wide selection of frames
• $170 allowance for featured frame brands
• 20% savings on the amount over your allowance
• $80 Costco•/Walmart" frame allowance

• Single vision, lined bifocal, and lined tr1focal lenses
• Polycarbonate lenses for dependent children

• Standard progressive lenses
• Premium progressive lenses
• Custom progressive lenses
• Average savings of 20-25% on other lens enhancements

• $130 allowance for contacts; copay does not apply
• Contact lens exam (fitting and evaluation)

• As a VSP member, you can visit your VSP doctor for medical
and urgent eyecare. Your VSP doctor can diagnose, treat, and
monitor common eye conditions hike pink eye, and more serious
conditions like sudden vision loss, glaucoma, diabetic eye disease,
and cataracts. Ask your VSP doctor for details.

$10 Every calendar year

$25 See frame and lenses

Included in
Prescription Every other calendar year

Glasses

Included in
Prescription Every calendar year

Glasses
$0

$95- $105 Every calendar year$150 - $175

Up to $60 Every calendar year

$20 As needed

Glasses and Sunglasses
• Extra $20 to spend on featured frame brands. Go to vsp.com/offers for details.
• 20% savings on additional glasses and sunglasses, including lens enhancements, from any VSP provider within

12 months of your last WellVison Exam.
Retinal Screening
• No more than a $39 copay on routine retinal screening as an enhancement to a WellV1s1on Exam
Laser Vision Correction
• Average 15% off the regular pnce or 5% off the promotional pnce, discounts only available from contracted

facilities

$6.85 Member only $10.95 Member + 1 $11.18 Member + children $18.03 Member + family

YOUR COVERAGE WITH OUT-OF-NETWORK PROVIDERS
Get the most out of your benefits and greater savings with a VSP network doctor Call Member Services for out-of-network plan details.
Coverage with a retail chain may be different or not apply. Once your benefit is effective, visit vsp.com for details. VSP guarantees coverage from VSP network providers only. Coverage
information is subject to change. In the event of a conflict between this information and your organization's contract with VSP, the terms of the contract will prevail Based on applicable
laws, benefits may vary by location. In the state of Washington, VSP Vision Care, Inc. is the legal name of the corporation through which VSP does business.

Only available to VSP members with applicable plan benefits. Frame brands and promotions are subject to change Savings based on doctor's retail price and vary by plan and purchase
selection. average savings determined after benefits are applied Ask your VSP network doctor for more details

©2019 Vision Service Plan. All rights reserved.
VSP VSP Vision Care for life Eyeconic, and WellVision Exam are registered trademarks, VSP Diabetic Eyecare Plus Program is servicemark of Vision Service Plan. Flexon is a registered
trademark of Marchan Eyewear Inc. All other brands or marks are the property of their respective owners.



SEE HEALTHY AND LIVE HAPPY
WITH HELP FROM CITY OF FRANKLIN AND VSP.

Enroll in VSP® Vision Care to get personalized care from a
VSP network doctor at low out-of-pocket costs.

VALUE AND SAVINGS YOU LOVE.

$ Save on eyewear and eye care when you see a VSP network
doctor. Plus, take advantage of Exclusive Member Extras
for additional savings.

PROVIDER CHOICES YOU WANT.
~#dWith an average of five VSP network doctors within six
%ea»" miles of you, it's easy to find a nearby in-network doctor

or retail chain. Plus, maximize your coverage with bonus
offers and additional savings that are exclusive to Premier
Program locations.

Prefer to shop online? Use your vision benefits on
Eyeconic---the VS preferred onhne retailer.

UAL{TY VISION CARE YOU NEED.
'CJ'C] You'll get great care from a VSP network doctor, including

a WellVision Exam--a comprehensive exam designed to
detect eye and health conditions.

VsQncareforlife

Using your benefit is easy!
Create an account on vsp.com
to view your in-network
coverage, find the VSP network
doctor who's right for you, and
discover savings with exclusive
member extras. At your
appointment, Just tell them you
have VSP.

GET YOUR PERFECT PAIR

2 uP+ TO %
TO SPEND ON

FEATURED FRAME BRANDS
bebe CALVIN KLEIN COLE HAAN FLEXON

LACOSTE fie

SE MORF BRANDS AT VSP COM/OFFERS

SAVl'\IGS ON LENS
ENHANCEMEl\lTS

■



City of Franklin
Department of Administration

November 5, 2019

Mayor and Aldermen,

Item G. 15 on tonight's agenda references two items about which I would provide supplemental
information.

First, it noted that recommended dental insurance premiums would be brought to the meeting. These rates
impact a small portion of the funds costs and revenues, but an increase is recommended by the Director of
Administration and the Finance Director. Following are the rates.

Single Family
Current 39 26 103 00

Recommended 2020 42 00 108 00

Second, regarding the LTD, the second paragraph of page 1 indicates the following:

"The option exists to allow automatic entry of any employee qualifying for the benefit. The
Director of Administration does not recommend this at this time, but will complete
additional review prior to the meeting."

Upon further review, there is no clear evidence that future rates will be negatively impacted by allowing
individuals who previously passed up participation to now join without medical certification. Our broker
concurs and says any such risk can be addressed by changing carriers in the future. As such, the very low
risk of an impact on future rates for all is outweighed by the potential significant benefit for the immediate
potential benefit for a few existing employees. Note that this enrollment benefit does not waive the
industry-standard restriction on a limitation against pre-existing conditions for claims with the first two (I
believe) years. As such, I recommend that provided Sun Life will allow any current employee to join (which
we understand they will), the option to join the Sun Life LTD be extended to all qualifying employees.

Therefore, the following should be inserted into the motion for number 7.

"7. Dental premiums for 2020 shall be $42/single and $108/family and automatic
allowable enrollment into the Sun Life LTD shall not be restricted by the City to current
participants."

Mark W. Luberda
Director of Administration

9229 West Loomis Road Franklin, Wisconsin 53132-9630 phone (414) 858-1100 franklinwi gov



rs REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE
Nov 5, 2019

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

September, 2019 Monthly Financial Report ITEM NUMBER

G,tl,

Background

The September, 2019 Financial Report is attached.

The Finance Committee has not reviewed this report.

Please note that certain interfund advances will occur in Sept/Oct/Nov to fund project costs in the
Capital Improvement Fund until loan proceeds are available in December. It is also possible that
certain TID5/7 projects costs are advanced from other funds until Debt Proceeds are available,
currently planned for early Dec 2019.

Receipts of landfill siting revenue are exceeding the 2019 budgeted revenues. Absent direction from
Common Council, the Finance Director is crediting Capital Funds for the excess revenue.

Highlights of the report are contained in the transmittal memo.

The Finance Director will be on hand to answer any questions.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to Receive and place on file

Finance - PAR



Franklin
if

WISCONSIN
Date·

To:

From

Subject

Oct 17, 2019

Mayor Olson, Common Council and Finance Committee Members

Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Finance & Treasurer P~
Sept, 2019 Financial Report

The Sept, 2019 financial reports for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TIO Funds, Library
Fund, Tourism Commission, Solid Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement
Fund, Street Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Utility
Development, Sanitary Sewer Fund, Water Utility Fund, Self Insurance Fund, Post Employment
Insurance Fund and combining statement of other Non-Major Funds are attached

The budget allocation is completed using an average of the last five years actual spending
against the Original Budget, amendments to the 2019 budget are excluded from the Year To
Date budget allocation. Caution is advised in that spending patterns may have changed.
Comments on specific and trending results are provided below to aid the reader in
understanding or explaining current year financial results.

Cash & Investments Summary- is provided to aid in understanding the resources available to
meet current activities. Cash & investments are positions with safety and liquidity as primary
objectives as stated in the City's Investment policy Investment returns are secondary in the
investment decisions, while return potential is not ignored.

The City borrowed $20 1 million dollars in February. $10.6 million was used to refund the TIO 5
Note Anticipation Note sold in May 2018. $3 million provided financing for a Developer's grant in
TIO 3, and $6 million will finance project costs in TIO 6

Cash & Investments in the General Governmental Funds totaling $47.7 million decreased $2.7
million since last month. General fund payroll requirements and the reduced revenues is the
biggest reason for the reduction. TIO project costs also used $866,000



Sept, 2019
Financial report

Cash Balances - Sept & Aug 2019
$20,000,000

$18,000,000

$16,000,000

$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

$­

.K
A
"/.-------------------!
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General Debt Serv TIF NonMajor Sewer Water Self Ins Other Tax Fund
Current Month /. Prior Month

GENERAL FUND revenues of $24.2 million are $0 6 million greater than budget. Collection of
Engineering inspection fees have generated $417,000 more than budget (as the 2019 budget
understated expected revenues). Investment income is also $253,500 over budget related to
increased interest rates.

Year to Date expenditures of $19.2 million are $593,000 less than budget. Expenditure items of
note are:

• Reduced prisoner boarding costs has underspent by $33,000. Reduced professional
services in Administration has also generated $21,000 in underspending

• Police and Fire Personnel costs are underspent $347,000 to budget,
• The overspend in Pubhc Works is caused by recognizing Engineering services gross,

rather than netted against revenues as in prior years Note the added revenues
commented upon earlier.

• The contingency expenditure represents tax refunds related to challenges to assessed
values

A $5 1 million surplus is $1.2 million greater than budget. That surplus is partially related to
additional interest earnings and partially to underspending

DEBT SERVICE - Debt payments were made March 1 as required. The increased development
activity of late has permitted more impact fee transfers than expected in the budget.

TIF Districts ­
TIO 3 -- The 2019 increment was collected and the TIO borrowed $3 million in February

to finance a Developer Grant. Five of six buildings have received occupancy permits, and the
grants were paid.



Sept, 2019
Financial report

TIO 4 - The 2019 increment was collected and payments are being made on the
Engineering contract planning infrastructure for a business park on S 27 Street.

TIO 5 - The 2019 Increment was collected The TIO borrowed $10.6 million to make a
$10 million note payment. Developer draws continue. Total expenditures on the infrastructure
are $19 7 million A schedule of payments by category is attached.

TIO 6 - The TIO borrowed $6 million to finance developer project costs. The City
committed $9 million for infrastructure in the Loomis & Ryan Rd development to be constructed
by the Developer The Developer is performing late and no infrastructure expenditures have
been made

TIO 7 -formed in May, 2019, this multi-family project related to Ballpark Commons has
seen only organizational expenditures. The Developer's Agreement was approved late summer.

LIBRARY FUND -Activity is occurring as budgeted.

TOURISM COMMISSION -- Revenues will not occur until Q4, when General Fund has received
the first Hotel Tax dollars The marketing expenditures relate to the branding work.

SOLIDWASTE FUND -- Activity is occurring as budgeted.

LANDFILL SITING REVENUES - These revenues impact the four Capital Funds and the
General Fund. The 2019 Budget of $1.6 m1lhon anticipated a 72% increase over the prior year.
Receipts thru Sept 30 total $1.7 million matching the entire annual budget. Revenues are
currently estimated to total $2.6 million for 2019, with added amount to recover structural deficits
in the Equipment Replacement and Street Improvement funds.

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND -- tax revenues are in line with budget. The new City servers have
been purchased. The Police have ordered the planned vehicles. A $26,000 text 2-911 project
initiated in 2016 has numerous technical delays. The Fire Dept has completed the thermal
imaging project. Engineering has purchased the GIS locating equipment. Highway has
completed the Router replacement.

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND -- Revenues are in line with budget. The Fire Dept has
placed the $633,000 Purchase Order for the fire engine replacement. The Breathing Apparatus
equipment has not been ordered.

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND- State Road Aids were placed in this fund as opposed to
2018 when tax levy was placed here. The revenues will amve later as a result.

The 2019 program is complete Work on the Rawson Homes road project is still in process.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND- See the earlier note on landfill siting revenues

The City Hall roof, HVAC project is currently underway. The Police Shooting Range project is
under contract The round-about project at Drexel & S 51" Street is complete, however required
several budget amendments The Rawson Homes storm sewer project is nearing completion for



Sept, 2019
Financial report

2019 Road work will spill over to 2020 The pavilion at Pleasant View Park is under
construction

DEVELOPMENT FUND -- Impact fee collections are tracking with the 2019 budget. As more of
the Ballpark Commons developments commence, impact fee collections will exceed budget.

Transfers to the Debt Service fund were made to fund debt service costs Not all the transfers to
the Debt Service Fund are needed there, so approximately $90,000 of transfers out are being
recorded in the Capital Improvement Fund.

The Park Impact fee expenditures represent a commitment for a trail to a developer. The Park
Impact fee holding period ends at the end of November 2019, should qualifying park
expenditures utilizing fees not occur prior to then, rebates will begin. The Pleasant View Park
pavilion project should extend the expenditure period into mid 2020.

Water Impact fees have been held for nearly six years. Oversizing payments to developers will
utilize some of the fees but not very soon. A Water tower project is in the planning stage for
2021 or later and will use all of those fees and more

As of Sept, 2019, there are $4.3 million of Park and $1.8 million ofWater Impact fees on hand.
All other fee types total $415,000.

UTILITY DEVELOPMENT FUND -- A large deferred assessment was paid in January.

SANITARY SEWER FUND- Revenues are on plan, while expenditures are $499,000 less than
plan Sewer rehabilitation expenditures are occurring slower than expected. Operating income
of $32,600 is $512,000 better than budget on the slower rehabilitation expenditures.

FRANKLIN WATER UTILITY - Revenues of $4.4 million are $203,000 less than budget due to
reduced volume in wetter conditions than normal

Operating expenses are below budget on a delay in abandoning a well, reduced volume
demand and administrative fees.

Operating profits of $187,400 are $86,000 ahead of budget on the delayed abandonment
charge

SELF INSURANCE FUND -- Revenues of $2.5 million are 7% below budget. Participation in the
plan decreased as a result of the revised health insurance program.

Total operating costs of $2.1 million are 23% below budget.

A $434,000 surplus compares favorably to the break-even budgeted performance.

RETIREE HEALTH FUND -- Insurance results are much better than 2018. Medical claims are
much lower than 2018 Results can quickly change depending upon group activity, especially
considering the small size of the group



Sept, 2019
Financial report

Investment results are more volatile in 2019 than recent years. Thru Sept investment results
have generated $778,000 in gains, with total investments now exceeding $6 million

Caution is advised, as equity market returns can be volatile, evidenced by the sharp fourth
quarter downturn in 2018



City of Franklin
Cash & Investments Summary

September 30, 2019

American Institutional Local Prior
Cash Deposit Capital Government Fidelity Total Month

Management Management Invest Pool Investments Total

General Fund $ 839,732 $ 4,282,994 $ 4,578,424 $ 3,165,206 $ - $12,866,357 $ 14,524,096

Debt Service Funds 29,374 441,429 536,599 1,007,402 1,098,852

TIF Districts (160,897) 12,969,314 2,696,177 15,504,594 16,370,859

Nonmajor
Governmental Funds 724,446 8,453,472 9,128,729 18,306,647 18,365,719

Total Governmental
Funds 1,432,655 26,147,209 16,939,929 3,165,206 47,684,999 50,359,526

Sewer Fund 393 1,412,677 1,413,070 1,483,270

Water Utility 22,106 1,683,541 417,838 2,123,485 2,253,594

Self Insurance Fund 21,203 577,406 1,824,792 2,423,401 2,369,149

Other Designated Funds 14,169 14,169 14,357

Total Other Funds 57,870 3,673,624 2,242,630 5,974,124 6,120,370
Total Pooled
Cash & Investments 1,490,525 29,820,833 19,182,559 3,165,206 53,659,123 56,479,896

Retiree Health Fund 96,685 6,093,478 6,190,163 6,158,356

Property Tax Fund 237,065 107,729 344,794 327,157

Total Trust Funds 333,749 107,729 6,093,478 6,534,956 6,485,513
Grand Total
Cash & Investments 1,824,274 29,928,562 19,182,559 3,165,206 6,093,478 60,194,079 62,965,409

Average Rate of Return 213% 168% 2 18%

Maturities:
Demand 1,824,274 29,928,562 13,200 3,165,206 181,182 35,112,424 36,824,883
Fixed Income & Equities 3,791,993 3,791,993 3,810,196
2019- Q4 1,998,694 1,998,694 2,996,518
2020- 01 1,038,967 1,038,967 1,038,674
2020- 02
2020- 03 996,048 996,048 996,101
2020- Q4 4,512,189 172,961 4,685,151 4,692,604
2021 8,050,389 575,526 8,625,915 8,649,401
2022 2,573,072 372,050 2,945,122 2,954,033
2023 377,268 377,268 378,162
2024 206,080 206,080 206,724
2025 208,860 208,860 209,754
2026 207,558 207,558 208,360

1,824,274 29,928,562 19,182,559 3,165,206 6,093,478 60,194,079 62,965,409

10/14/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Cash & Investments September 2019



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the 9 months ended September 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019 2019 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 18,139,675 $ 18,139,675 $ 18,115,439 $ 18,136,992 $ 21,553
Other Taxes 686,800 686,800 368,293 428,127 59,834
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,736,127 1,736,127 1,120,154 1,062,586 (57,568)
Licenses & Permits 1,041,490 1,041,490 816,838 830,997 14,159
Law and Ordinance Violations 546,000 546,000 429,014 331,915 (97,099)
Public Charges for Services 2,056,950 2,056,950 1,470,741 1,905,669 434,928
Intergovernmental Charges 207,500 207,500 114,302 155,960 41,658
Investment Income 265,000 265,000 198,750 452,257 253,507
Miscellanous Revenue 159,650 159,650 132,333 156,991 24,658
Transfers from Other Funds 1,109,250 1,139,875 A 860,542 787,500 (73,042)

Total Revenue $ 25,948,442 $ 25,979,067 $ 23,626,406 $ 24,248,994 $ 622,588
102 64%

2019 2019 2019 2019 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government $ 3,200,440 $ 3,239,416 A $ 2,538,942 $ 2,292,082 E $ 246,860
Public Safety 17,784,187 17,771,999 A 13,588,966 13,028,516 E 560,450
Public Works 3,571,132 3,701,736 A 2,587,365 2,920,270 E (332,905)
Health & Human Services 750,797 740,862 571,558 465,933 105,625
Culture & Recreation 182,702 184,243 A 129,904 138,654 E (8,750)
Conservation and Development 640,776 738,514 A 541,013 466,064 E 74,949
Contingency & Unclassified 2,069,728 1,826,304 6,175 27,396 E (21,221)
Anticipated Underexpenditures (375,320) (317,444) (238,083) (238,083)
Transfers to Other Funds 274,000 282, 100 30,075 32,100 (2,025)
Encumbrances (208,202) 208,202

Total Expenditures $ 28,098,442 $ 28,167,730 $ 19,755,915 $ 19,162,813 $ 593,102
9700%

Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures (2,150,000) (2,188,663) 3,870,491 5,086,181 $ 1,215,690

Fund Balance, beginning of year 7,336,277 7,336,277 7,336,277

Fund Balance, end of period $ 5,186,277 $ 5,147,614 $ 12,422,458

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year

10/10/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\General Fund2019 3rd Quarter



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
For the 9 months ended September 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019 2019 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 18,139,675 $ 18,139,675 $ 18,115,439 $ 18,136,992 $ 21,553

Other Taxes:
Cable television franchise fees 480,000 480,000 240,324 247,082 6,758
Mobile Home 23,500 23,500 17,625 14,331 (3,294)
Room tax 183,300 183,300 110,344 166,714 56,370

Total Other taxes 686,800 686,800 368,293 428,127 59,834

Intergovernmental Revenue:
State shared revenue-per capita 418,900 418,900 72,230 65,008 (7,222)
Expenditure restraint revenue 160,200 160,200 159,920 142,891 (17,029)
State computer aid 228,350 228,350 228,350 228,051 (299)
State transportation aids 520,000 520,000 390,000 315,635 (74,365)
Fire insurance dues 155,000 155,000 155,000 164,859 9,859
Other grants & aid 253,677 253,677 114,654 146,142 31,488

Total Intergovernmental Revenue 1,736,127 1,736,127 1,120,154 1,062,586 (57,568)

Licenses & Permits:
Licenses 162,190 162,190 154,258 173,028 18,770
Permits 879,300 879,300 662,580 657,969 (4,611)

1,041,490 1,041,490 816,838 830,997 14,159

Law & Ordinance Violations:
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 546,000 546,000 429,014 331,915 (97,099)

Public Charges for Services:
Planning Related Fees 86,300 86,300 65,205 75,115 9,910
General Government 8,450 8,450 6,893 6,466 (427)
Architectural Board Review 5,200 5,200 4,044 3,400 (644)
Police & Related 8,000 8,000 4,864 11,053 6,189
Ambulance Services - ALS 1,090,000 1,090,000 820,795 721,846 (98,949)
Ambulance Services - BLS 250,000 250,000 184,701 319,316 134,615
Fire Safety Training 1,000 1,000 550 1,571 1,021
Fire Sprinkler Plan Review 50,000 50,000 38,466 68,820 30,354
Fire Inspections 23,000 23,000 17,290 12,682 (4,608)
Quarry Reimbursement 44,000 44,000 28,882 9,390 (19,492)
Weed Cutting 9,000 9,000 4,589 6,060 1,471
Engineering Fees 33,750 33,750 20,537 437,136 416,599
Public Works Fees 15,000 15,000 9,091 21,440 12,349
Weights & Measures 7,600 7,600 2,192 8,663 6,471
Landfill Operations - Siting 240,000 240,000 180,000 144,732 (35,268)
Landfill Operations - Emerald Park 67,500 67,500 41,184 50,187 9,003
Health Department 118,150 118,150 41,458 7,792 (33,666)

Total Public Charges for Services $ 2,056,950 $ 2,056,950 $ 1,470,741 $ 1,905,669 $ 434,928

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year

10/10/2019 L\41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\General Fund2019 3rd Quarter 2



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
For the 9 months ended September 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019 2019 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Intergovernmental Charges:
Milwaukee County - Paramedics $ 126,700 s 126,700 s 77,332 $ 106,122 $ 28,790
School Liaison Officer 80,800 80,800 36,970 49,838 12,868

Total Intergovernmental Charges 207,500 207,500 114,302 155,960 41,658

Investment Income:
Interest on Investments 240,000 240,000 180,000 212,710 32,710
Market Value Change on Investments (60,000) (60,000) {45,000) 74,252 119,252
Interest - Tax Roll 85,000 85,000 63,750 160,998 97,248
Other Interest 4,297 4,297

Total Investment Income 265,000 265,000 198,750 452,257 253,507

Sale of Capital Assets

Miscellaneous Revenue:
Rental of Property 50,000 50,000 47,396 52,468 5,072
Refunds/Reimbursements 37,000 37,000 16,054 11,160 (4,894)
Insurance Dividend 40,000 40,000 40,000 82,047 42,047
Other Revenue 32,650 32,650 28,883 11,316 (17,567)

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 159,650 159,650 132,333 156,991 24,658

Transfer from Other Funds:
Self-Insurance Fund (75) 59,250 89,875 44,937 (44,937)
Water Utility-Tax Equivalent 1,050,000 1,050,000 815,605 787,500 (28,105)
Total Transfers from Other Funds 1,109,250 1,139,875 860,542 787,500 (73,042)

Total Revenue $ 25,948,442 $ 25,979,067 $ 23,626,406 $ 24,248,994 $ 622,588
102 64%

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year

10/14/2019 L \41803 VOL1 FinanceQtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\General Fund2019 3rd Quarter 3



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Expenditures
For the 9 months ended September 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019 2019 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government:
Mayor & Aldermen - Labor $ 65,891 $ 65,891 $ 50,685 $ 49,418 $ 1,267
Mayor & Aldermen - Non-Personnel 31,541 31,541 26,950 24,272 2,678
Municipal Court - Labor 186,933 189,878 A 146,233 142,860 3,373
Municipal Court - Non-Personnel 58,450 58,450 46,650 13,822 32,828
City Clerk Labor 319,569 313,868 A 241,554 232,720 8,834
City Clerk - Non-Personnel 27,200 27,200 20,862 17,684 3,178
Elections - Labor 32,525 32,358 A 24,786 13,642 11,144
Elections - Non-Personnel 10,100 10,100 8,100 5,731 2,369
Information Services - Labor 127,381 129,467 A 91,816 98,760 (6,944)
Information Services - Non-Personnel 392,468 441,213 A 346,137 317,668 E 28,469
Administration - Labor 311,278 317,208 A 244,337 244,142 195
Administration - Non-Personnel 133,475 138,475 A 100,723 58,832 41,891
Finance - Labor 464,090 437,740 A 338,307 314,156 24,151
Finance - Non-Personnel 122,870 122,992 A 84,171 67,950 16,221
Independent Audit 37,025 37,025 27,538 27,430 E 108
Assessor - Non-Personnel 229,550 229,550 172,176 148,980 23,196
Legal Services 348,650 348,650 259,192 225,659 33,533
Municipal Buildings - Labor 97,479 103,080 A 82,581 79,910 2,671
Municipal Buildings - Non-Personnel 117,015 117,780 A 78,556 83,086 E (4,530)
Property/liability insurance 86,950 86,950 147,588 125,360 22,228

Total General Government 3,200,440 3,239,416 2,538,942 2,292,082 246,860

Public Safety:
Police Department - Labor 8,887,426 8,742,288 A 6,724,707 6,495,903 228,804
Police Department - Non-Personnel 1,197,800 1,217,273 A 877,890 772,929 E 104,961
Fire Department - Labor 6,009,935 6,033,305 A 4,640,819 4,522,152 118,667
Fire Department - Non-Personnel 505,860 505,860 374,075 383,690 E (9,615)
Public Fire Protection 283,300 283,300 214,098 209,811 4,287
Building Inspection - Labor 860,216 844,837 A 650,051 541,438 108,613
Building Inspection - Non-Personnel 32,050 137,536 A 99,726 94,993 4,733
Weights and Measures 7,600 7,600 7,600 7,600

Total Public Safety 17,784,187 17,771,999 13,588,966 13,028,516 560,450

Public Works:
Engineering - Labor 612,306 611,697 A 472,899 402,206 70,693
Engineering - Non-Personnel 30,860 30,860 23,272 398,912 (375,640)
Highway - Labor 1,736,098 1,700,490 1,308,316 1,221,206 87,110
Highway - Non-Personnel 833,318 1,000,139 A 552,566 703,601 E (151,035)
Street Lighting 349,500 349,500 223,948 189,077 34,871
Weed Control 9,050 9,050 6,364 5,268 1,096

Total Public Works $ 3,571,132 $ 3,701,736 $ 2,587,365 $ 2,920,270 $ (332,905)

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year

10/10/2019 L \41803 VOL 1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\General Fund2019 3rd Quarter 4



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the 9 months ended September 30, 2019

2019 2019 2019 2019 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Health & Human Services:
Public Health - Labor $ 634,447 $ 624,512 A $ 479,803 $ 396,273 $ 83,530
Public Health - Non-Personnel 73,250 73,250 56,680 46,810 9,870
Animal Control 43,100 43,100 35,075 22,850 12,225

Total Health & Human Services 750,797 740,862 571,558 465,933 105,625

Culture & Recreation:
Senior Travel & Activities 22,000 23,450 A 17,577 13,585 3,992
Parks - Labor 112,477 112,568 A 81,335 101,599 (20,264)
Parks - Non-Personnel 48,225 48,225 30,992 23,470 7,522

Total Culture & Recreation 182,702 184,243 129,904 138,654 (8,750)

Conservation & Development:
Planning - Labor 375,395 353,196 A 271,577 243,542 28,035
Planning - Non-Personnel 74,450 155,900 A 112,407 68,165 E 44,242
Economic Dev- Labor 103,431 106,043 81,964 94,310 (12,346)
Economic Dev - Non-Personnel 87,500 123,375 A 75,065 60,047 E 15,018

Total Conservation & Development 640,776 738,514 541,013 466,064 74,949

Contingency & Unclassified:
Restricted - other 1,861,000 1,714,174
Unrestricted 206,228 89,630 A 12,000 (12,000)
Unclassified 2,500 22,500 A 6,175 15,396 (9,221

Total Contingency & Unclassified 2,069,728 1,826,304 6,175 27,396 (21,221

Anticipated Underexpenditures (375,320) (317,444)A (238,083) (238,083)

Transfers to Other Funds:
Capital Outlay Fund 250,000 258,100 A 6,075 8,100 (2,025)
Other Funds 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000

Total Transfers to Other Funds 274,000 282,100 30,075 32,100 (2,025)

Total Expenditures $ 28,098,442 $ 28,167,730 $ 19,755,915 $ 19,371,015 $ 384,900

Less Encumbrances (96,638)
Net Expenditures $ 19,274,377

% of YTD Budget 9756%

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year

10/10/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\General Fund2019 3rd Quarter 5



City of Franklin
General Fund
Balance Sheet

ASSETS
Cash & Investments
Accounts & Taxes Recervable
Due from/Advances to Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
Prepaid Expenditures & Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds & Governments
Special Deposits
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - Inventories, Prepaids, Advances, Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities & Fund Balances

9/30/2019
$ 12,858,776

888,125
159,234
56,945
27,566

$ 13,990,646

$ 559,344
746,034
151,656
59,393
51,761

1,568,188

186,800
12,235,658
12,422,458

$ 13,990,646

10/10/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\General Fund2019 3rd Quarter 6



Assets
Cash and investments
Special assessment receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned & unavailable revenue

Unassigned fund balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Debt Service Funds

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2018 2018
Special Debt 2019 Special Debt 2018

Assessment Service Total Assessment Service Total
$ 738,235 $ 269,167 $ 1,007,402 $ 677,545 $ 267,085 $ 944,630

58,474 58,474 83,018 83,018
$ 796,709 $ 269,167 $1,065,876 $ 760,563 $ 267,085 $ 1,027,648

$ 58,474 $ $ 58,474 $ 83,018 $ $ 83,018
738,235 269,167 1,007,402 677,545 267,085 944,630

$ 796,709 $ 269,167 $1,065,876 $ 760,563 $ 267,085 $ 1,027,648

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Special Debt Year-to-Date Amended Special Debt Year-to-Date

Revenue Assessment Service Actual Budget Assessment Service Actual
Property Taxes $ $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $1,300,000 $ $1,300,000 $1,300,000
Special Assessments 5,729 5,729 51,449 51,449
Investment Income 18,172 9,700 27,872 2,145 2,658 4,803
GO Debt Issuance

Total Revenue 23,901 1,309,700 1,333,601 1,300,000 53,594 1,302,658 1,356,252

Expenditures:
Debt Service

Principal 1,405,000 1,405,000 1,405,000 1,330,000 1,330,000
Interest 134,137 134,137 134,138 148,898 148,898
Bank Fees 1,200 1,200 1,050

Total expenditures 1,540,337 1,540,337 1,540,188 1,478,898 1,478,898

Transfers in 231,419 231,419 240,188 (60,000) 392,254 332,254
Net change in fund balances 23,901 782 24,683 (6,406} 216,014 209,608

Fund balance, beginning of year 714,334 268,385 982,719 982,719 683,951 51,071 735,022

Fund balance, end of period $ 738,235 $ 269,167 $ 1,007,402 $ 982,719 $ 677,545 $ 267,085 $ 944,630

10/16/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\Debt Service\September 2019



~, st st
O') O')
LO LO
'St 'St
0 0
LO LO
LO LO
r- r-

(It (It

l
<h*

<D <D
r- r-
N N
cici
0 0
LO LO
CD CD

3 3

...
Cl).a
E
!
Cl)en l

r-- r--
e
N N
o5 or-- r--
r- r-cry cry

3

(") (")
0 0o o
r- r-r-- r-­
N N
st st

9

O') O')
O') O')
r-- r-­oco <X)
LO_ LO_
r- r-

<h*

(") (0
(") (")­CD LO

(0
<X)

(It

'8;
o_ '

(It

e
N
st '
ri

fR-

0
(")
o•v

.l!l
C:
Q)

E 91ii Q)
Q) (/)zz
o/j ~

I-;Cl) (II
(/) (.)

?

Cl)
(,)
C:
«I
"iii
al
"C
C:
:I
LI.
"C
C:
«I
(/)
Cl)

E:.c
«I
:i

fR-

00
00
N'

Eh

(0
(")

LO
(0
00

Cl) (/)

5
<U ;t::
>-=
(II .a
0.. .!!! ai.c

"C 0
ge
t; Cl)

::::J
0

.l!l
C:
::::J
0uu u
<( <(

0 O')
0 (0

' 0 O')
ri -st

<X)
(l()

'8;
'0

0 .-
0 C\I

' 0 sto.-

0
(")

'Ov

(l()
<X)

' C\I

(/)
"C
C:
.2

(0
C')

'°(0(l()

ai(/) .c
-g a :a
.2 E _:;;
9
- «I(/) ..:::ig--
C: .!!
«I 0
> 1-
"C
<(

lO 'St
C\I O')
<O LOgs
<O LO

-st '°.-

Eh

LO <O
O') .­r-- N
ri ci
(l() 0
'St LO
CD CD

9

fR-

lO C')
.- 0
C') CC!.
.- .-r-- r-­
N N
'St 'St

Eh

C') O')
(0 O')

:%
C\I (l()
I'- LO_

9-

8
C:
«I
'iii
ID
"C
C:
::::J
LL

8 "C
C: C:
«I «I
'iii "'.0 Cl)

o =
C: ..0
.2 «I

..:::i"C
Cl) «I
C: -Cl 0
iii 1-
(/)
<(

GI
(,) 0)
C: ....
g co"iii Nm
"C C')
C: ...
:I GI
LL .a

Egs
«I a.

GIu,II)
GI
II) "C
C: GI
GI "Ca. C:
)( GI
w II)

ai.S
:I C:
C: 0
g! E
? g
s z
., GI
i .s
E%
,21 LLgs
u,

JI

a

l

l

a

00 O') C') (l() (l() (0
lO LO .- C'l O l'-
00 I'- 0 <O C'l LOto
lONOCO'StO

lO C'l N_ 'St
i ot V

fR-

Eh

C\I O C\I
.- N C'l

' 0 (") C')
'Stai C\I
0) ('I) C')

<O_ r-­
(0 CD

.- (") C\I N CO
lO C\1<00(")
0 ' - O­ci CDciai
C') 0) 0 C\I

<O_ r--
o o.-

Eh

t­V O -V
C\I I'- 'St 'St ' 00.o
.- C\I N 0) lOo­.-

C'l <O O <O LOco r--vcoco
<O ' 'St C'l CO C'l
ssi <'io...:cn
.- (l()O)Q(l()
.- 'St O<O

cry 'St

3

Cl)

E Cl)

0 "' ::::J?8s
- Cl) >%8 9
E a. -- Sn
95'
EID

' C\I C')
(0 r--

3

C') 0 (0
(0 C'l lO
0 .-
CD -st CD
N
N

Eh

C'l <O 'St <O
-o'St I'- <O 'Stv
N C\I N 0)
00 .- C\I
ci LO.-

fR-

.- (l()
N <O
.- 'St '
'Stai
(0 0)

(") (0
(0 (0

' (l() (")
LO CD
(") (")

N
CD
r-

00 lO
'St <O' r-- 0)LO cry
0 r--
00

<O lO
lO st

I co I N_
ai
lO
'St
t

Nr-­t
N
0
N
i

0
st

ai
<D

9 3

00
N
(")

ai
0
LO
@

lO
r-
lO
LO
00
<D
ai

(")
N
lOcry
lO
(0

(It

(It

LO
0)
r-­cry
00
'St
CD

(It

(It

(")
<D
<D
r-
Nr--

a.
Q)
CJ)
(/)
0
j::

<(s
9
0).-
0
9p
0:::
0n.
w
0:::
_J
<(
5z
<(zu::
>­
_J

I
1-z
0s
#
5
8
C:
(II
C:u::

<D
LO
<X)
0)
r--­r-

0)
lO
t
r-m
0cry

(It

C:
Q)s
«I
0..
C:
0

ii3
!2l:a
0
o/j

(/)

9
P
i5
C:
Q)
0..
X
Q)

s
"C
C:
2.
ai>
0
Q)
::::J
C:g
Q)
0:::

iiig
s
Cl
C:
E
C:
0)
Q)
.0

&c:
(IIro
.0
"C
C:
::::J
LI.

"C
0
5
0..

0
"O
C:
Q)

&
C:
(IIro
.0
"O
C:
::::J
LI.

0).-
0

'r-0



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #3

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets 2019 2018
Cash & investments $ 1,586,799 $ 1,965,672
Total Assets $ 1,586,799 $ 1,965,672

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $
Accrued liabilities 865,136 1,323, 600
Total Liabilities 865,136 1,323,600

Assigned fund balance 721,663 642,072
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,586,799 $ 1,965,672

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 1,180,900 $ 1,180,900 $ 1,180,900 $ 1,114,683 $ 1,381,191
State exempt aid 479,831 479,831 478,256 482,476 464,931
Investment income 25,000 25,000 19,704 90,340 22,162
Bond proceeds 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,001,886
Total revenue 5,185,731 5,185,731 5,178,860 4,689,385 1,868,284

Expenditures
Debt service principal 985,000
Debt service interest & fees 111,500 111,500 96,125 64,121 15,084
Administrative expenses 113,350 213,350 84,455 98,468 30,933
Interfund interest 74
Capital outlays 984,323 1,354,311
Development incentive & obligation payments 4,589,265 4,589,265 3,441,949 4,458,656 109,000
Total expenditures 4,814,115 5,898,438 3,622,529 4,621,245 1,141,089

Revenue over (under) expenditures 371,616 (712,707) $ 1,556,331 68,140 727,195

Fund balance, beginning of year 653,523 653,523 653,523 (85, 123)

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,025,139 $ (59,184) $ 721,663 $ 642,072

10/11/2019 L \41803 VOL1 FinanceQtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\CDA TIF 3Sept



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #4

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash & investments
Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2019 2018
$ 4,271,603 $ 3,556,431
$ 4,271,603 $ 3,556,431

$ 288 $ 75,496
288 75,496

4,271,315 3,480,935
$ 4,271,603 $ 3,556,431

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 1,023,600 $ 1,023,600 $ 1,023,600 $ 1,011,224 $ 1,059,413
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 132,800 132,800 132,800 121,759 132,871
State exempt aid 19,700 19,700 18,500 21,414 16,195
Investment income 20,000 20,000 15,000 99,424 29,268
Bond proceeds 5,000,000 5,000,000
Total revenue 6,196, 100 6,196,100 1,189,900 1,253,821 1,237,747

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 188,750 188,750 85,313
Administrative expenses 10,350 10,350 7,762 27,762 5,984
Professional services 29,500 161,724 22,125 137,149 212,894
Capital outlay 8,000,000 8,714,802 6,000,000 714,802 1,201,850
Encumbrances (805,748) (1,267,917)
Total expenditures 8,228,600 9,075,626 6,115,200 73,965 162,811

Revenue over (under) expenditures (2,032,500) (2,879,526) $ (4,925,300) 1,179,856 1,074,936

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,091,459 3,091,459 3,091,459 2,405,999

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,058,959 $ 211,933 $ 4,271,315 $ 3,480,935

10/11/2019 L 41803 VOL 1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\CDA TIF 4Sept



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #5

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets 2019 2018
Cash & investments $ 3,179,217 $ 14,458,973
Total Assets $ 3,179,217 $ 14,458,973

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 2,030 $
Due to other funds 29,695
lnterfund advance from Development Fund 75,000
Total Liabilities 2,030 104,695

Assigned fund balance 3,177,187 14,354,278
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,179,217 $ 14,458,973

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 31,500 $ 31,500 $ 23,625 $ 30,951 $ 30,500
State exempt aid 400 400 300 123
Investment income 25,000 25,000 18,750 96,862 121,006
Bond proceeds 10,000,000 10,000,000 7,500,000 10,600,102 23,386,959
Total revenue 10,056,900 10,056,900 7,542,675 10,728,038 23,538,465

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 10,875,810 10,875,810 10,850,635 10,822,413 337,663
Administrative expenses 20,700 20,700 15,525 28,706 36,345
Professional services 10,000 124,279 93,209 128,684 63,223
Capital outlay 4,000,000 3,000,000 5,292,426 8,625,675
Development incentive & obligation payments 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,000,000 49,686
Encumbrances (35.863) (27,279)
Total expenditures 14,906,510 19,020,789 16,959,369 16,236,366 9,085,313

Revenue over (under) expenditures (4,849,610) (8,963,889) $ (9,416,694) (5,508,328) 14,453,152

Fund balance, beginning of year 8,685,515 8,685,515 8,685,515 (98,874)

Fund balance, end of period $ 3,835,905 $ (278,374) $ 3,177,187 $ 14,354,278

10/11/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Fmance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\CDA TIF 5Sept
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #6

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets 2019 2018
Cash & investments $ 6,500,216 $
Total Assets $ 6,500,216 $

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 3,421 $
Advances from other funds 13,000
Total Liabilities 16,421

Assigned fund balance 6,483,795
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 6,500,216 $

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Investment income $ $ 132,300 $ 85,000 $ 94,012 $
Bond proceeds 9,837,382 6,137,000 6,638,320
Total revenue 9,969,682 6,222,000 6,732,332

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees $ $ 195,375 $ 52,350 $ 226,063 $
Administrative expenses 8,550 5,100 4,130
Professional services 26,156 6,156
Capital outlay 9,000,000 8,000,000
Encumbrances (1,156)
Total expenditures 9,230,081 8,057,450 235,193

Revenue over (under) expenditures 739,601 $ (1,835,450) 6,497,139

Fund balance, beginning of year (13,344) (13,344) (13,344)

Fund balance, end of period $ (13,344) $ 726,257 $ 6,483,795 $

10/11/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\CDA Tl F 6Sept



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #7

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets 2019 2018
Cash & investments $ (33,241) $
Total Assets $ (33,241) $

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 1,094 $
Advances from other funds
Total Liabilities 1,094

Assigned fund balance (34,335)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ (33,241) $

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Investment income $ $ $ $ $
Bond proceeds 240,000
Total revenue 240,000

Expenditures
Debt service interest, fees, bond issuance $ $ 153,208 $ $ $
Administrative expenses 5,200 1,162
Professional services 33,173
Capital outlay 2,750,000
Encumbrances
Total expenditures 2,908,408 34,335

Revenue over (under) expenditures (2,668,408) $ (34,335)

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of period $ $ (2,668,408) $ (34,335) $

10/11/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\CDA TIF 7Sept



City of Franklin
Library Fund
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Operating Restricted
Assets 2019 2018 2019 2018

Cash and investments $ 875,493 $ 781,197 $ 152,745 $ 159,520
Accrued receivables 68,068

Total Assets $ 875,493 $ 849,265 $ 152,745 $ 159,520

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 18,587 $ 13,716 $ 2,676 $ 1,970
Accrued salaries & wages 26,067 22,352
Assigned fund balance 830,839 813,197 150,069 157,550

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 875,493 $ 849,265 $ 152,745 $ 159,520

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance - Operating Fund
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property taxes $ 1,312,700 $ 1,312,700 $ 1,312,700 $ 1,312,700 $ 1,303,200
Reciprocal borrowing (restricted) 68,000 68,000 27,147 671 68,526
Investment income 8,500 8,500 6,375 23,870 10,642
Transfers in 8,100 8,100

Total Revenue 1,389,200 1,397,300 1,346,222 1,345,341 1,382,368

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits 955,268 963,368 739,322 682,473 681,361
Contractual services 12,750 12,750 11,151 9,593 11,371
Supplies 28,900 28,900 20,519 25,260 23,902
Services and charges 63,328 63,328 53,093 77,045 59,017
Contingency 6,240 6,240 2,000
Facility charges 230,850 230,850 165,936 140,809 167,525
Capital outlay 91,020 91,020 66,579 68,991 74,295
Encumbrances (6,240)

Total Library Costs 1,382,116 1,396,456 1,056,600 - 1,004,171 1,019,471

Total expenditures 1,382,116 1,396,456 1,056,600 1,004 171 1 019,471

Revenue over (under) expenditures 7,084 844 289,622 341,170 362,897

Fund balance, beginning of year 489,669 489,669 489,669 450,300

Fund balance, end of period $ 496,753 $ 490,513 $ 830,839 $ 813,197

10/10/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Library 3rd Quarter 2019



City of Franklin
Tourism Commission

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2019 2018
$ 310,501 $ 214,253

$ 310,501 $ 214,253

$ 250 $
310,251 214,253

$ 310,501 $ 214,253

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Room Taxes $ 226,000 $ 226,000 $ $ 437 $ 179
Investment Income 5,439 2,359

Total revenue 226,000 226,000 5 876 2,538

Expenditures:
Sundry Contractors 10,000 10,000 7,500 14,080
Supplies 50,000 50,000 37,500 77
Training & Memberships 7,500 7,500 5,625 439
Tourism Events 50,000 50,000 37,500 3,734
Marketing 50,000 86,937 37,500 70,381
Encumbrances (16,940)

Total expenditures 167,500 204,437 125,625 71 694 77
Revenue over (under) expenditures 58,500 21,563 (125,625) (65,818) 2,461

Fund balance, beginning of year 376,069 376,069 376,069 211,792

Fund balance, end of period $ 434,569 $ 397,632 $ 310,251 $ 214,253

Amount shown is actual expenditures plus encumbrance

10/10/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\Tounsm 3rd quarter 2019



City of Franklin
Solid Waste Collection Fund

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

2019 2018
$ 944,220

349
$ 944,569

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries & wages
Restricted fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$ 910,762
44

$ 132,270
458

811,841

$ 910,806

$ 125
430

910,251
$ 944,569 $ 910,806

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2018
Adopted YTD Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Actual Actual
Grants $ 69,000 69,000 $ 68,858 $ 68,984
User Fees 1,220,400 1,219,729 1,215,549 1,211,405
Landfill Operations-tippage 361,800 236,712 240,795 239,135
Investment Income 9,500 7,809 25,756 10,902
Sale of Recyclables 2,204 1,044

Total Revenue 1,660,700 1,533,250 1,553,162 1,531,470

Expenditures:
Personal Services 16,931 11,966 10,345 11,097
Refuse Collection 713,750 523,095 533,636 462,151
Recycling Collection 380,720 279,117 295,915 256,692
Leaf & Brush Pickups 63,800 47,850 20,000 20,000
Tippage Fees 469,000 351,750 310,702 263,671
Miscellaneous 3,500 2,625 1,470 1,285
Printing 1,800 1,350

Total expenditures 1,649,501 1,217,753 1,172,068 1,014,896

Revenue over (under) expenditures 11,199 315,497 381,094 516,574

Fund balance, beginning of year 430,747 430,747 393,677

Fund balance, end of period $ 441,946 $ 811,841 $ 910,251

10/10/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Sohd Waste September 2019



City of Franklin
Capital Outlay Fund

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2019 2018
$ 672,750 $ 529,364

$ 672,750 $ 529,364

$ 43,641 $ 10,007
629,109 519,357

$ 672,750 $ 529,364

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ 452,800 $ 452,800 $ 452,800 $ 452,800 $ 450,500
Grants 5,000 5,000 3,750 8,998 2,021
Landfill Siting 317,000 317,000 291,165 308,490 135,200
Investment Income 6,000 6,000 4,500 15,138 4,959
Miscellanous Revenue 25,000 25,000 15,559 12,170 22,070
Transfers from Other Funds 250,000 250,000 187,500 101,000

Total Revenue 1,055,800 1,055,800 955,274 797,596 715,750

Expenditures:
General Government 158,610 247,203 138,710 106,561 97,420
Public Safety 473,795 602,585 497,716 451,316 477,318
Public Works 34,020 66,520 43,081 51,617 53,666
Health and Human Services 1,020 1,020 765 1,006 3,563
Culture and Recreation 9,000 29,766 20,175 20,623 9,828
Conservation and Development 1,500 3,510 2,250 503 1,018
Contingency 50,000 51,385 51,385 2,303 6,525
Contingency - Pending Additional
Consideration 100,000 49,258
Contingency - Restricted 250,000 250,000
Encumbrances (40,399) (99,905)
Transfers to Other Funds

Total expenditures 1,077,945 1,251,989 803,340 593,530 549 433

Revenue over (under) expendrtures (22,145) (196,189) 151,934 204,066 166,317

Fund balance, beginning of year 425,043 425,043 425,043 353,040

Fund balance, end of period $ 402,898 $ 228,854 $ 629,109 $ 519,357

A Portion of Municipal Building, Police, Highway & Parks appropnations are contingent upon Landfill Siting
revenue growth

10/1 1/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Outlay September 2019



City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2019 2018
$ 3,255,902 $ 2,784,253

$ 3,255,902 $ 2,784,253

$ $ 10,689
3,255,902 2,773,564

$ 3,255,902 $ 2,784,253

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 350,000
Landfill 376,700 376,700 345,059 377,220 184,000
Investment Income 29,000 29,000 21,750 77,691 6,848
Property Sales 30,000 30,000 18,267 727 19,231

Total revenue 610,700 610,700 560,076 630,638 560,079

Expenditures:
Public Safety 1,006,670 1,006,670 854,577 633,395 84,162
Public Works 190,000 210,431 125,126 210,431 250,424
Encumbrances (823,395) (236,256)

Total expenditures 1,196,670 1,217,101 979,703 20,431 98,330

Revenue over (under) expenditures (585,970) (606,401) (419,627) 610,207 461,749

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,645,695 2,645,695 2,645,695 2,311,815

Fund balance, end of period $ 2,059,725 $ 2,039,294 $ 3,255,902 $ 2,773,564

10/10/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\Equip Replacement September 2019



City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

2019 2018
$ 290,724
$ 290,724

$ 297,924
$ 297,924

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$ 44,809
245,915

$ 2,917
295,007

$ 290,724

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

$ 297,924

2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Property Taxes $ 18,200 $ 18,200 $ 18,200 $ 714,700
Landfill Siting 133,000 133,000 170,550 113,800
Investment Income 4,000 4,000 12,602 8,134
Local Road Improvement Aids 700,000 700,000 600,000
Refunds and Reimbursements

Total revenue 855,200 855,200 801,352 836,634

Expenditures:
Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year 975,000 1,105,000 1,156,213 903,044
Encumbrances (201,388) (75,151

Total expenditures 975,000 1,105,000 954,825 827,893
Revenue over (under) expenditures (119,800) (249,800) (153,473) 8,741

Fund balance, beginning of year 399,388 399,388 399,388 286,266

Fund balance, end of period $ 279,588 $ 149,588 $ 245,915 $ 295,007

10/14/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Street Improvement September 2019



City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets 2019 2018
Cash and investments $ 2,574,975 $ 3,417,687
Accrued receivables 8,949 847

Total Assets $ 2,583,924 $ 3,418,534

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 1,142,738 $ 7,833
Contracts Payable 228,231
Escrow Balances Due 78,915
Assigned fund balance 1,212,955 3,331,786

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,583,924 $ 3,418,534

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 201

2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Block Grants $ $ $ $
Other Grants 1,150,000 1,150,000
Landfill Siting 560,000 560,000 682,412 93,394
Transfers from Other Funds 92,000
Transfers from Impact Fees 384,511 384,511 102,932 16,015
Transfers from Connection Fees 1,000,000 1,000,000
Bond Proceeds 2,100,000 2,750,000
Donations 11,085
Refunds & Reimbursements 65
Investment Income 20,000 20,000 76,486 21,805

Total revenue 5,214,511 5,864,511 953,895 142,299

Expenditures:
General Government 1,815,000 1,822,940 1,760,861 12,339
Public Safety 1,665,000 1,707,696 1,475,857 112,069
Public Works 2,550,000 3,340,565 2,562,618 581,763
Culture and Recreation 843,109 846,434 570,199 345,601
Sewer & Water 1,000,000 1,000,000
Contingency 100,000 99,984 23,663 3,084
Bond/Note Issuance Cost 75,000 75,000
Transfers to Other Funds 101,000
Encumbrances {3,328,886) (549,850)

Total expenditures 8,048,109 8,892,619 3,064,312 606,006

Revenue over (under) expenditures (2,833,598) (3,028,108) (2,110,417) (463,707)

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,323,372 3,323,372 3,323,372 3,795,493

Fund balance, end of period $ 489,774 $ 295,264 $ 1,212,955 $ 3,331,786

10/1 1/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Improvement September 2019



City of Franklin
Development Fund

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Payable to Developers- Oversizing
Assigned fund balance

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2019 2018
$ 6,779,275 $ 5,340,936

$ 6,779,275 $ 5,340,936

$ $
103,934 59,799

6,675,341 5,281,137
6,675,341 5,281,137

$ 6,779,275 $ 5,340,936

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2018
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Impact Fee. Parks $ 400,000 $ 315,888 $ 227,257 $ 503,205

Southwest Sewer Service Area 35,000 33,056 25,608 4,689
Administration 7,500 6,137 5,161 12,045
Water 425,000 330,150 304,343 524,049
Transportation 25,000 21,620 44,714 34,731
Fire Protection 50,000 41,107 50,131 80,264
Law Enforcement 75,000 61,636 92,410 147,141
Library 75,000 59,010 63,799 138,655

Total Impact Fees 1,092,500 868,604 813,423 1,444,779
Investment Income 60,000 45,000 153,507 18,054
lnterfund Interest Income 74
Total revenue 1,152,500 913,604 966,930 1,462,907

Expenditures:
Other Professional Services 35,253 15,000 15,253 3,321
Transfer to Debt Service
Law Enforcement 205,000 205,000 133,800 130,220
Fire 43,100 43,100 39,333 45,226
Transportation 73,250 73,250 18,000 43,541
Library 133,100 133,100 132,286 113,267
Total Transfers to Debt Service 454,450 454,450 323,419 332,254

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Park 384,511 43,239 128,218 16,015

Total Transfers to Capital Improveme 384,511 43,239 128,218 16,015

Sewer Fees 500,000
Water Fees 500,000 166,667 317,130

Encumbrances (352,235) (3,321)

Total expenditures 1,874,214 679,356 431,785 348,269

Revenue over (under) expenditures (721,714) 234,248 535,145 1,114,638

Fund balance, beginning of year 4,058,562 6,140,196 4,166,499

Fund balance, end of period $ 3,336,848 $ 6,675,341 $ 5,281,137

10/10/2019 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2019\Development Fund September 2019
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City of Franklin
Summary of Park Impact Fee Availability

September 30, 2019
Spent Current Impact Fees
By Impact Fee Interest Expenditures Total

2019
1st Qtr 2028 56,316 00 35,88344 000 92,19944
2nd Qtr 2028 113,421 00 8,687 63 000 122,108 63
3rd Qtr 2028 53,925 00 000 102,932 46 (49,007 46)
4th Qtr 2028 000 000 000

2019 223,66200 44,571 07 102,932 46 165,300 61

2018
2018 869,037 00 47,96442 202,038 51 714,962 91

2017
2017 66,591 00 33,12342 66126 99,053 16

2016
Total 209,983 00 28,120 12 212,221 99 25,88113

2015
Total 137,670 00 55,55815 607,299 51 (414,071 36)

2014
Total 184,592 00 133,563 95 626,18210 (308,02615)

2013
Total 317,206 00 84,950 58 124,91210 277,244 48

2012
Total 263,398 00 102,473 34 365,871 34

2011
Total 163,106 00 44,506 30 207,612 30

2010
Total 145,479 00 66,27318 4687 211,705 31

2009
Total 80,215 00 86,651 98 5,459 02 161,407 96

2008
Total 133,074 00 95,987 90 10,913 04 218,148 86

2007
Total 220,706 00 172,806 38 823,897 23 (430,384 85)

2006
1st Qtr a: 26,79863 243,623 63
2nd Qtr 32,334 72 222,181 72
3rd Qtr f1246o 47,200 50 159,661 50
4th Qtr 127,774 00 38,616 60 392,618 08 (226,227 48)

Total 646,907 00 144,950 45 392,618 08 399,239 37
2005

Total 1,006,69600 63,38262 471,25140 598,827 22
2004

Total 1,028,25500 17,433 14 28,52346 1,017,164 68
2003

Total 668,9170 6,283 52 675,200 52
2002

Total 275,62009 3,11410 278,73410

Balance 6,417,452 00 1,187,143 55 3,608,957 03 4,098,570 98
Spent 3,498,621 00

10/14/2019 H \U\F\J\D\Park Impact Fees\PARK IMP FEES-History
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City of Franklin
Utility Development Fund

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets 2019 2018
Cash and investments - Water $ 853,111 $ 640,576
Cash and Investments - Sewer 1,138,818 899,933
Special Assessment - Water Current 201,739 140,867
Special Assessment - Water Deferred 170,661 314,587
Special Assessment - Sewer Current 191,587 241,026
Special Assessment - Sewer Deferred 70,898
Reserve for Uncollectible (16,776) (16,776)

Total Assets $ 2,539,140 $ 2,291,111

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $
Unearned Revenue 547,211 750,602

Total Fund Balance 1,991,929 1,540,509

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,539,140 $ 2,291,111

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Special Assessments
Water $ 28,400 $ 6,687 $ 145,791 $ 23,695
Sewer 29,200 4,505 70,898 5,830

Connection Fees
Water 2,000 2,000
Sewer 35,000 28,376 31,920 79,500

Total Assessments &
Connection Fees 94,600 41,568 248,609 109,025

Special Assessment Interest 17,900 280 213
Investment Income 10,000 7,500 30,782 17,893
Total revenue 122,500 49,348 279,391 127,131

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Water 500,000
Sewer 500,000

Total Transfers to Capital lmproven 1,000,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures (877,500) 49,348 279,391 127,131

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,712,538 1,413,378

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,991,929 $ 1,540,509

10/10/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Utility Development September 2019



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Net Assets

For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 Current Prior
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals

Operating Revenue
Residential $ 2,044,600 $ 1,532,380 $ 1,548,839 $ 1,512,629
Commercial 557,100 425,953 455,415 453,433
Industrial 460,700 351,054 321,628 315,630
Public Authority 172,000 128,599 131,431 112,701
Penalties/Other 37,000 18,838 17,128 17,312
Multi Family 505,000 378,750 379,109 373,963
Miscellaneous Revenue 6,750 5,063

Total Operating Revenue 3,783,150 2,840,637 2,853,550 2,785,668

Operating Expenditures
Salaries and benefits $ 519,746 $ 399,547 $ 388,322 $ 358,117
Contractual services 146,965 108,669 133,068 81,039
Supplies 73,750 55,312 45,664 39,677
Facility charges 70,450 52,366 37,504 32,323
Shared meter costs 7,000 5,250
Sewer service - MMSD 2,448,000 1,836,000 1,837,548 1,812,769
Other operating costs 23,800 18,239 13,362 10,115
Allocated expenses 116,500 87,375 96,641 90,305
Sewer improvements 701,049 622,483 208,677 74,070
Depreciation 179,900 134,925 135,000 131,040
Encumbrances (74,860)

Total operating expenditures 4,287,160 3,320,166 2,820,926 2,629,455

Operating Income (Loss) (504,010) (479,529) 32,624 156,213

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
Intergovernmental 500,000 375,000
Miscellaneous income 1,825 2,950
Investment income 461,500 346,125 260,032 258,630
Interest expense (447,500) (335,625) (447,534) (246,381)
Retirement - GASB 68 (10,000) (7,500)
Capital expenditures (137,119) (102,840) (10,137)
Encumbrances 8,648

Total non-operating revenue (expenditures) 366,881 275,160 (187,166) 15,199

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions (137,129) (204,369) (154,542) 171,412

Retained Earnings- Beginning 1,578,345 1,578,345 1,578,345 1,647,847
Transfer (to) from Invested mn Capital Assets 116,900 87,675 1,212 97,281
Retained Earnings- Ending 1,558,116 1,461,651 1,425,015 1,916,540

Capital Contributions 5,025,000 3,768,750
Deprecation - CIAC (2,018,100) (1,513,575) (1,513,575) (1,509,030)
Transfer (to) from Retained Earnings (116.900) (87,675) (1.212) (97,281

Change in Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,890,000 2,167,500 (1,514,787) (1,606,311)

Net Investment in Capital Assets-Beginning 61,590,890 61,590,890 61,590,890 63,241,982

Net Investment in Capital Assets-Ending 64,480,890 63,758,390 60,076,103 61,635,671

Total net assets $ 66,039,006 $ 65,220,041 $ 61,501,118 $ 63,552,211

10/10/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Sewer 3rd Quarter 2019



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Current assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Miscellaneous receivable

Total current assets

Non current assets
Due from MMSD

Sanitary Sewer plant in service
Land
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Net sanitary sewer plant in service

Deferred assets
Pension assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to Franklin Water Utility
Due to General Fund - non-interest bearing

Total current liabilities

Non current liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Pension lablty (GASB 68)
General Obligation Notes payable - CWF

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows
Pension liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted balances - LT receivable
Retained earnings

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2019 2018

$ 1,413,069 $ 1,690,144
1,134,124 1,087,629

6,980 7,030
2,554,173 2,784,803

17,555,340 18,799,969

725,594 725,594
3,308,050 3,298,163

78,754,451 78,754,451
1,223,202 1,089,854

95,510
84,106,807 83,868,062
(24,030,704) (22,232,391)

60,076,103 61,635,671

89,558 386,276

$ 80,275,174 $ 83,606,719

$ 876,918 $ 655,499
29,109 28,084

194
77,143 82,127

983,170 765,904

75,360 75,021
57,415 361,331

17,555,341 18,799,970

18,671,286 20,002,226

102,770 52,282

42,520,763 42,835,702
17,555,340 18,978,559
1,425,015 1,737,950

61,501,118 63,552,211

$ 80,275,174 $ 83,606,719

10/10/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Sewer 3rd Quarter 2019



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) $ 32,624 $ 156,213

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 135,000 131,040
(Increase) decrease in assets·
Accounts receivable (184,345) (241,223)
Taxes receivable 108,886 97,015
Due from other funds 44,579
Due from MMSD & Other Governments
Miscellaneous receivable 1
Prepaid expenses 2,291

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 256,342 (144,989)
Accrued expenses
Due to other funds (20,714)
GASB 68 pension

Total Adjustments 318,174 (134,291)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 350,798 $ 21,922

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Due from MMSD & Other Governments

Due to general fund
Notes payable
Acquisition of capital assets
Investment in deferred assets/liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest and other income
Interest exepense

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

1,244,629 1,214,723

(1,244,629) (1,214,722)
(135,277) (33,759)

(135,277) (33,758)

261,857 261,580
(447,534) (246,381)

29,844 3,363

1,383,225 1,686,781

$ 1,413,069 $ 1,690,144

10/10/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Sewer 3rd Quarter 2019



k{eso
Franklin Municipal Water Utility

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Net Assets

For the period ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Annual Year to Date Current Prior
Account Description Budget Budget Year to Date Year to Date

Operating Revenue
Metered Sales-Residential $ 3,067,900 $ 2,370,966 $ 2,213,080 $ 2,259,768
Metered Sales-Commercial 686,200 531,950 519,581 539,362
Metered Sales-Industrial 494,700 370,297 330,307 358,578
Other Sales to Public Authority 259,000 193,187 205,671 183,712
Metered Sales-Multifamily 765,200 573,900 558,171 564,372
Metered Sales-Irrigation 123,000 92,250 92,309 123,721

Total Metered Sales 5,396,000 4,132,550 3,919,119 4,029,513

Unmetered Sales 7,500 2,645 9,884 8,587
Private Fire Protection 124,100 92,967 93,506 92,380
Public Fire Protection 543,000 403,511 408,217 406,930
Forfeited Discount 53,500 26,562 24,303 27,230

Total Operating Revenue $ 6,124,100 $ 4,658,235 $ 4,455,029 $ 4,564,640
Operating Expenditures
Operation and maintenance expense

Source of Supply 3,042,800 2,277,364 2,338,558 2,290,980

Pumping 135,850 99,062 117,284 107,248

Water Treatment 18,500 12,818 9,823 2,648

Transmission & Distribution 479,435 348,890 241,093 274,100

Customer Accounts 52,750 37,919 49,523 32,719

Administrative and general 451,220 373,447 277,538 357,277

Total Operation and Maintenance
Expenditures 4,180,555 3,149,500 3,033,819 3,064,972

Depreciation 528,715 377,797 396,900 308,700
Taxes-Property Tax Equivalent 1,050,000 818,088 787,500 787,500
Amortization 130,666 98,000 31,545 98,001
GASS Employee Benefit Costs 15,000 11,250
Loss on Abandoned Property 82,000 82,000 5,900
Taxes-FICA 28,477 20,251 17,818 19,770

Total Operating Expenditures 2 6,015,413 4,556,886 4,267,582 4,284,843

Operating Income $ 108,687 $ 101,349 $ 187,447 $ 279,797

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
Total non-operating revenue 41,619 41,674 80,516 84,472

Income before capital contributions $ 150,306 $ 143,023 $ 267,963 $ 364,269

Retained earnings - beginning 3,294,662 3,294,662 3,294,662 2,538,239
Transfer (to) from invested in capital assets 979,285 734,464 (784,027) 248,466
Retained earnings - ending $ 4,424,253 $ 4,172,149 $ 2,778,598 $ 3,150,974

Capital contributions 2,940,000 209,365
Depreciation - CIAC (841,475) (631,106) (631,125) (584,370)
Transfer (to) from retained earnings (979,285) (734,464) 784,027 (248,466)
Change in net investment 9,967,746 7,922,557 152,902 (832,836)

Net investment in capital assets - beginning 42,367,393 42,367,393 42,367,393 43,529,045

Net investment in capital assets - ending $ 52,335,139 $ 50,289,950 $ 42,520,295 $ 42,696,209

Total net assets $ 56,759,392 $ 54,462,098 $ 45,298,893 $45,847,183

10/14/2019 Findata H20 3rd Quarter 2019 Income statement



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 & 2018

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from City of Franklin

Total current assets

Utility plant in service:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Construction in Progress
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Net utility plant in service

Deferred Assets:
Pension Assets
Deferred Costs

Total deferred assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Advance from municipality
Pension liability
Compensated absences reserve
Bond Payable

Deferred Liabilities:
Pension & OPEB Liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Retained earnings

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2019 2018

$ 2,123,485 $ 2,420,639
1,881,891 1,912,103

(22,357)
4,005,376 4,310,385

162,885 162,885
3,394,166 3,392,666
1,059,406

55,613,608 55,651,603
4,607,360 4,625,691

64,837,425 63,832,845
21,266,997 20,096,785

43,570,428 43,736,060

102,915 447,267
10,514 74,724

113,429 521,991

$ 47,689,233 $ 48,568,436

$ 81,868 $ 96,634
922,624 874,518
123,200 139,700
66,480 418,383
75,360 75,021

1,005,647 1,059,575
2,275,179 2,663,831

115,161 57,422
2,390,340 2,721,253

42,520,295 42,696,209
2,778,598 3,150,974

45,298,893 45,847,183

$ 47,689,233 $ 48,568,436

10/14/2019 Findata H20 3rd Quarter 2019 Statements



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows

For the period ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation & Amortization
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to other funds
Advance from municipality

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

$ 187,447 $ 285,697

428,445

(482,039)

173,499
2,291

(678,791)
910,739

(16,500)

406,701

(438,019)
61,617

161,856

(614,662)
863,000
(55,014)
(16,000)

337,644 369,479
525,091 655,176

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Interest paid on long term debt
Principal on long term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest, property rental & other income

(1,162,036)
(31,238)
(55,000)

(1,248,274)

115,246

(607,937)

2,731,422

$ 2,123,485

(168,028)
(32,287)
(55,000)

(255,315)

120,652

520,513

1,900,126

$ 2,420,639
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Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

1 Operating revenues are less than budget by $168,279 for the first three quarters.
Actual third quarter billings were used for the statements.

2 Operating expenditures are less than budget by $289,304 for the first three quarters.
The cost of wholesale water purchased from Oak Creek was estimated based on
consumption billed to Franklin customers.

Water Connection Fee
Prior to May 31, 2002, the City collected a water connection fee on new construction and
connections to existing properties, to be used to fund water main construction projects.
The water connection fees on hand on September 30, 2019 total $853,111.

Water Impact Fee
Since May 31, 2002 a water impact fee on residential and commercial construction replaced
the water connection fee. Water Impact Fees collected in 2019 total $304,343.
Water Impact fees on hand at September 30, 2019 are $1,857,339.

10/9/2019 Fmdata H20 3rd Quarter 2019 Notes



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund - Actives

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Unrestricted net assets

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2019 2018
$ 2,518,701 $ 2,035,600

309 900
$ 2,519,010 $ 2,036,500

$ 33,849 $ 30,620
290,700 290,700

2,194,461 1,715,180
$ 2,519,010 $ 2,036,500

City of Franklin Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance

For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Medical Premiums-City $ 2,837,218 $ 2,837,218 $ 2,130,932 $ 1,820,246 $ 1,853,252
Medical Premiums-Retirees
Medical Premiums-Employee 642,507 642,507 481,852 393,919 343,364
Other - Invest Income, Rebates 30,000 30,000 22,500 216,655 44,787
Medical Revenue 3,509,725 3,509,725 2,635,284 2,430,820 2,241,403

Dental Premiums-City 112,550 112,550 71,092 83,686 81,275
Dental Premiums-Retirees 3,675 3,675 3,675 2,472 3,600
Dental Premiums-Employee 56,450 56,450 42,319 42,739 41,800
Dental Revenue 172,675 172,675 117,086 128,897 126,675

Total Revenue 3,682,400 3,682,400 2,752,370 2,559,717 2,368,078

Expenditures:
Medical
Medical claims 2,833,650 2,833,650 1,926,588 1,192,534 1,597,906
Prescription drug claims 157,286 252,102
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage 22 (18,130)
Total Claims 2,833,650 2,833,650 1,926,588 1,349,842 1,831,878

Medical Claim Fees 145,850 145,850 114,492 125,297 111,840
Stop Loss Premiums 667,300 667,300 502,480 414,541 418,653
Other - Miscellaneous 118,250 118,250 27,758 9,290 19,435
HSA Contributions 94,375
Transfer to Other Funds 59,250 98,125 44,438
Total Medical Costs 3,824,300 3,863,175 2,615,756 1,993,345 2,381,806

Dental
Active Employees & COBRA 189,000 189,000 139,592 128,988 152,432
Retiree 3,675 3,675 2,826 3,091 4,856

Total Dental Costs 192,675 192,675 142,418 132,079 157,288

Claims contingency

Total Expenditures 4,016,975 4,055,850 2,758,174 2,125,424 2,539,094

Revenue over (under) expenditures {334,575) {373,450) $ (5,804) 434,293 (171,016)
Net assets, beginning of year 1,760,168 1,760,168 1,760,168 1,886,196

Net assets, end of period $ 1,425,593 $ 1,386,718 $ 2,194,461 $ 1,715,180

10/10/2019 Findata Qtrrpt Self Insurance September 2019



City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Cash and investments
Investments held in trust- Fixed Inc
Investments held in trust - Equities
Accounts recervable

Total Assets

2019 2018
$ 96,685

2,301,485
3,791,993

33,643

$
1,986,650
3,902,791

24,938
$ 6,223,806

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Due to City
Net assets held in trust for post emp 6,088,210

Total Llab1hties and Fund Balance $ 6,223,806

$ 4,496
131,100

$ 5,914,379

$ 7,378
131,100
28,391

5,747,510
$ 5,914,379

City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance

For the Nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenue

2019
Year-to-Date

Actual

2018
Year-to-Date

Actual
ARC Medical Charges - City
Medical Charges - Retirees
Implicit Rate Subsidy

Medical Revenue

Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medical claims
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims-Retirees

Medical Claim Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Miscellaneous Expense
ACA Fees

Total Medical Costs-Retirees

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Annual Required Contribution-Net
Other- Investment Income, etc
Total Revenues

Net Revenues (Expenditures)

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of period

$ 213,086
152,195
36,974

$ 235,383
128,294
97,896

402,255 461,573

212,347
92,184
(1,393}

365,316
96,767

(642)
303,138
37,864
60,736

345
172

461,441
14,465
64,695

330
160

402,255 541,091

80,105
778,701

(79,518)

253,265
858,806

858,806

5,229,404

253,265

173,747

5,573,763

$ 6,088,210 $ 5,747,510

10/14/2019 Fmdata Qtrrpt Retiree Health Fund September 2019



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR CITY OF FRANKLIN
Period Ending 09/30/2019

LIBRARY- TOURISM HEALTH CIVIC
RESTRICTED- COMMISSION FIRE DEPT ST MARTINS DEPT GRANT OTHER DONATIONS CELEBRATIONS

GL Number FUND FUND GRANT FUND FAIR FUND FUND GRANTS FUND FUND TOTAL

REVENUES
TAXES 437 437
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 7 895 181,519 189 414
LICENSES & PERMITS 20,372 300 20 672
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 9057 93 598 102 655
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 44 326 16,306 24 468 39 497 124,597
INVESTMENT EARNINGS 66 5,439 5,505
Total Revenues 53 449 5876 7 895 20372 197,825 24 468 133 395 443 279

EXPENDITURES
PERSONAL SERVICES 27,125 32,214 19,496 78,836
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 9 901 14 903 6 791 31 595
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 10,644 14,080 21 359 64,919 111 002
SUPPLIES 18,403 5,839 675 37,408 15,976 25 854 104 156
SERVICES & CHARGES 6,344 57 614 14 868 24,561 20 897 124 283
FACILITYCHARGES 667 529 1197
CLAIMS CONTRIB AND AWARDS 410 410
CONTINGENCY
Total Expenditures 36 468 71,694 6,368 52 570 130,445 15,976 137,957 451,478

Excess (deficiency) of
Revenues vs Expenditures 16,980 (65,818) 1 527 (32, 198) 67 380 8 492 (4 561) (8,199)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
FUND TRANSFERS 11,000 13,000 24 000

OTHER FINANCING USES
CAPITAL OUTLAY 7 533 3,251 10056 5,000 13,500 39 340

Net Change in Fund Balance 9448 (65 818) (1 724) (21,198) 57 323 (5000) (5,008) 8 439 (23,539)

Fund Balance - Beginning 140,621 376,069 22,572 5,604 169,623 315 150,606 70,139 935,549
Fund Balance - Ending 150,069 310,251 20,848 (15,594) 226,946 (4,685) 145,599 78,577 912,011

10/11/2019 Qtrpt Minor Funds 3Q19
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

November 5, 2019

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendation to opt-out of the Federal Negotiation
Class pertaining to the National Prescription Opiate

Litigation

ITEM NUMBER

G,I7,
Recently, the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio approved a "Settlement Class" in an
attempt to resolve thousands of governmental lawsuits and claims against manufacturers, distributors, and
retailers of prescription opiate drugs seeking, among other things, reimbursement for funds spent addressing the
opioid crisis. If the City does not opt-out of the settlement class by November 22, 2019, the City will be forced
to join the class, will have little to no voice in settlement negotiations, and will be bound by any settlement
agreed to by class representatives. Earlier this year, the Common Council retained the law firm of Phipps,
Deacon & Purnell to represent the City in pursuing claims related to this matter. That law firm is advising that
the City opt-out of the settlement class in an effort to retain control over any lawsuit or settlement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to opt out of the Federal Negotiation Class pertaining to National Prescription Opiate Litigation.

Legal Services Dept.: cs
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CLASS ACTION NOTICE AND FREQUENTLY ASKED
OUESTI01'S ('4fAQs")

To: All U.S. Counties, Cities, and Local Governments as
listed at ww,v.OpioidsNegotiationClass.info

A (our! authonzed !ht.\ nottce 1ht,,., not a wltutatwn from a lawyer

• Countte') and cities across the country have sued manufacturers, d1~tnbutors, and retailers of
prescription opiate drugs seeking, among other things, re11nbursement for monies spent
addressing the op101d crisis All federal actuons have been centralized mto one court in Oh10 and
ai e entitled, In re Nauonal Prescnpt10n Opiate L1t1gation, MDL No 2804 (ND Ohio)
Add1t1onal cases are pending tn state courts

• The Court in ln re National Prescnption Opiate L1t1gat10n has ce1i1fied a voluntary ''Negotiation
Class" ("Class") The Class 1s defined as all counties, parishes, and boroughs (collectively,
"counties?); and all incorporated places, including without limitation cities, towns,
townships, villages, and municipalities (collectively "cities"). The Class includes all counties
and cities, whether they have filed a lawswt or not The complete crn rent list of Class Members
1s available at the Class website wvrw Op101d!:>Negotiat1onClass mfo This list may be updated
as the Court may order
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• NO SETTLEMENT HAS BEEN REACHED. HOWEVER, IF YOUR COUNTY OR CITY
STAYS IN THE CLASS, 1t will be bound 1f a Class settlement 1s approved in the future Your
county or city will likely NOl be provided another opportumty to be excluded from this Class
action, so you should read th15 notice carefully and consult with your counsel regarclmg your
county or cty's rights

• The Court has ce1t1fied two Racketeer Influenced and CoITupt Orgamzat1011s Act ("RICO'')
claims unde1 Rule 23(b)(3) and two Conttolled Substances Act ( 'CSA") issues under Rule
23(c)(4) (see FAQ 7) The Class 1s certified solely to consider and vote on any future settlement
offe1 s made to the Class by one or more of 13 defendants (see FAQ 5) The purposes of the Class
are (a) to urnty c1t1es and counties mto a srngle negotratmg entity to max11mze their bargarnmg
power and (b) to provide finality to op1oith lttigat10n fo1 any setthng Defendant

• Thus Negotiation Class will not decide any claims or defenses in opords hit1gatton on the merits
It 1s ce1i1fied as a Negotiation C'lass only, to fac1htate Cla')s Members' approval or reJect1on of
proposed settlements There are no proposed settlements at this time, and no guarantee that there
will be in the future However, your legal rights are affected and it is recommended that you
consult with counsel regarding the choice you have to make now.

Y2321 v04

Questions? Visit www .OpioidsNegotiationClass.info
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STAY IN THE
CLASS

REQUIRES
NO ACTION

Stay in the Class. Await the negotiation outcome, but retain the right to pursue
your own lawsuit in the meantime. Give up certain rights if a Class settlement
is reached and approved by the Class and Court, but get a share of any Class
settlement.

By taking no action mn response to this Notice, you remain in the Class As a
Clas::. l\:Iembe1, you will still retain :rour nght to pursue vour ovvn case unless
and until any possible Class settlement is approved by the Court As a Class
Member, you have the nght to vote on any settlement proposed to the
Negottaton lass A settlement will not be accepted unless supported b'r 75° o

of the voting Class l\:lernbe1s, counted bv number, population, dnd allocat1on,
for both ltt1gat111g and non-l1t1gatrng entities, and approved by the Court
Settlement funds will be d1stnbuted at the county level and each county's share
and city's suggested share - can be viewed now by utihzing the Allocation

Map at the Class website, www.Opioids NegotiationClass.info If the Court
approves any settlement, thatJudgment will prohibit Class Members from sutng
the settling Defendant(_s) about the claims and issues m the ltt1gat1on

REMOVE
YOURSELF
FROMTHE
CLASS

REQUIRES
ACTIONBY

NOVEMBER 22,
2019

Get out of the Class. Get no portion of any settlement. Keep rights.

Those who exclude themselves fiom the Class cannot vote on, will not have the
right to be paid under, and will not be bound by, any Class settlement You keep
any nghts to negotiate separately about the same legal claims 111 this lawsuit,
even 1f the Court approves a settlement for the Class Class Members may
exclude themselves from ("opt out'' of) the Class by having an author1zed officer
or employee complete and sign the l::xclus1on Request 1--orm enclosed here and
sub1mt It on or before November 22, 2019 by emaII or mail Ill accordance with
the mstructrons m FAQ 26 below

• Class representatives and Class counsel will represent the Class 111 negotiations with Defendants
who choose to do so You may enter an appearance through an attorney (at your own expense) 1f
you desire but 1t ts not required Class Membership does not elnmnate ex1stmg agreements \.v1th
ndrvdual counsel The procedure for payment of Class/common benefit attorneys' fees/costs 1n
connection wtth any Class settlement must be approved by the Court Details of the proposed
options and procedures for fees and costs are posted on the Class website

• For complete 111format1on on the Class, the settlement allocat10n formula~ the Class cert1ficat1on
motion and Order, the list of included Class lvJembers, the \Otmg p1oces-, to be used by the Cla::.::, 111

acceptmg or rejecting any Class settlement offer, and an Allocat1011 Map detenmrnng yow
.1llocat1on of any proposed settlement, go to www.Opioids~egotiationClass.info lmpoltant
mformat1on on the Op101d5-related 1It1gat1011, 111cluchng all penrnent Order,;; and Schedules, and
Frequently Asked Questions will be available on the Class website on an ongomg and current basIs

Your rights and options are further explained below.
Any questions? Read on and visit www.pioidsegotiationClass.info.

DO NOT WRITE OR C.\LL THE CORT OR THE
CLERK'S OFFICE FOR ll\lFOR\IATIOl't

Y2322 v 04

Questions? Visit www.OpioidsNegotiationClass.info
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Wln 1s a N0got1at10n Cla,;s bcmg to1111cd I What 1s 1b purpoo;;c 1

2 I<; th IS the first '\Jcgotiat10n ( las<; \ct1onl
3 wh use a Clas::. mcchamsm'
➔ \Vho ,lrL• the Cl<1ss Rcprc<;cntatn cs 1

-i \\ ho arc the Defendants?
6 Has alass settlement been reached \\ 1th Defendants vet 1

T!IL (I!\','-> ( I /\IM<., /\ND h~l I\
7 What claim-; and IS!>UC!> arc ccJ11ficd for the l\Jcgotut10n C Ltss 1

8 Hae. the ( Olllt decided any claum, or 1.;;sucs 1

WI 10 h I!\ I HI CASS
CJ \\: hat entities arc mcluckd 111 the !\cgot1at10n C la:c.c.,'
l O Arc counties and cttcs wth state court-filed act1om co1151dcrcd part ot the '\Jegot1at10n Class) h
l l \\ ill the Ncgot1at10n Clas:; end the op101d h11gat10n that m, Count\ or C 1t, has filed 1 6
l 2 Ho,, docs the Ncgot1at10n Class affect other t, pcs of op101d pla111t1ffs that are not counties or ctes? 6

Till 1\JJ <,011'\IIOJ\i Cl'\'-,\ PROU '-'> 7

I 1 1'.o\\ that thc Court has apprO\ ed th1-, process \d1at \\ 111 happen nc-.t'' 7
I4 If nn Count) or Ct chooses to pat t1c1patc 111 th<- Ncgot1at1on Class hm, \\ di 1t kno\\ \\ hen there

1s a proposed Class settlement} 7
I5 If there 1s a proposed Clas!> settlement docs the Court !>till hav(.. to appro,c 1t1 7
16 If there is a proposed settlement and m, Count\ or Cit, h included m the '\cgot1.1t1on Class but 1t

d1:c.approvcs of the settlement term'>. can m, Count, or Ct object to the settlement) 7
I 7 HO\\ long \\ ill the Negot1atton C la::.s 1:ist') X

OING 8
IX If there is a proposed Class settlement. ho\\ ,,ti! the \-otmg be done? 8
I 9 If there is a proposed C'la!>s 5cttlcmcnt hO\\ mam ,-ote!', arc needed to apprO\c It) X

ALT OAIONI CI ASS SIMINI FUNDS 9
20 If there 1s a Class settlement ho,\ \\ ill m, Count\ or Cit" "share of the settlement be dctennmcd 1 9
2 l What happens 1fa count\ and its con<;tttucnt c1t1cs makt:: different dcc1<,1011s about sta, mg in the

Class' I0
22 H there ts a <.cttlcmcnt bct,,ccn a Defendant and a State or ~talcs \\hat nnpact \\tll thts Negottat1on

Uass hm e on the d1v1s1on of monies bet\, ccn a State ,:md the c1t1es and counties \\ 1th111 the State) I 0
21 Will Ncgotiat1on Class Reprcscntatn c,;, rcccn t, am thmg more than other Class \:lcmbcrs'l LO
24 What is the Spccraleds Fund? I0

\ ()I !Ji. RI(drl \ 1\NI) OP'i ION\ I 0
25 an mv count 01 cit, C\.cludc itself from the "-kgotiat1011 Class> I 0
26 How does m, count, or cit\ C"-Cludc tt'>el f from the ~cgotiat1on ( lass I I I
27 H 111\ count\ or cit, sta,., 111 the Negottaton lass can 1tc,cludc 1t<;clflatc1 1f1t doc.,n t like a

propm,ccl settlement) I I
TT TT' I ;\WYfR <., RrPRf<;f'\JTil\J(, Tnr CT !\<;<; I I

28 Who arc tlic Class ( oun::,cl I I I
29 Hem do Clas'> Counsel get paid I I l
30 Under this propo::,a] \\hat happen~ tom, Count, 01 (m s current kc Jgrcemcnt ,, ith out<;1dc

C
C

(J
z
ts
(!
;

4 C
C

,.j. "CC
C

4 C'
C

4 C
C
C

4 C
C
C

'i C
C
C

'i C
r
C'

'i ­C'
C

; C
C
C

'i C
C

6
6

counsel 1

GI I 11~.(, MOIH lt'-il OR'Vl·\ 1101\1
3I HO\\ can l1l\ ( ount, or C 1t\ keep up \\ 1th ,, hat s gomg on m th1<, c::i-,c'1

v223 v04

Questions? Visit www.OpioidsNegotiationClass.info
3

12
12
12



BASIC INFORMATION

r he purpose of the \Jegot1at1011 Class 1s to create a cohe51ve group of c1t1es and counties to negotiate
Classwide settlements on a voluntary basis, with Defendants who make d1stnbute, or sell op101cls
nationwide Class Representatives and Class Counsel will represent the Negotiation Class Class
Members will vote on any Class settlement proposal [f 75% of those lassMembers who vote (as
described 111 r-AQ 18 and 19 below) support a proposed Settlement, Class Counsel will ask the Court
to approve it The ultimate purpose of the Negottatton Class 1s to make -,ettlement easier to obtain

\ es This tS a new use of the Class action mechamsm under Federal Rule of Cl\,11 P1ocedu1e 22>
reflecting the urnque nature of the national op101ds l1t1gatton Unlike any mass litigation before,
thousands of cltles and counties nat1onw1de are pwsumg claun~ agam5t maJor defenclanb The goal
is to recover money to help fight the opt01ds ep1dem1c, prO\tde prevention and treatment services
gomg forward, and change Defendants' practices

Jo111ing all c1t1es and countieo;, togethe1 as a '\legotiat1011 Class gives them maximum negotiating
power makes the negotiation of comprehensive settlements a mo1e practical proces:, enables
Defendants to know the group with which tbev are negot1at111g, and enables Class l\1embers to vote
on resulting settlement offers

The Com1 ha~ authorl7ed the followmg 49 counties and crnes to serve as the Negotiation Class'::.
Cla~s Representatives (I) County of Albanv New York, (2) City of Atlanta, Georgia, (,) Bergen
County 1\few Jersey, (4) City of Baton Rouge/East Baton Rouge Pansh, L0Uts1ana (") Broward
Countv Flonda, (6) Camden County, '\Jew Jersey, (7) Cass County North Dakota, (8) City of
Chicago, Illinois, (9) Cobb County, Georgia, ( I0) City of Concord, l\iew Hampshire,
(11) Cumberland County, \fame, (12) City of Delray Beach Flonda, (13) Denver, Colorado,
( 14) Escambia County, Flonda, (I')) Essex County, New Je1sey, ( 16) County of Fanrnn. Cieorgia,
( 17) Fianklm County, Ohio, (18) Galveston County, Te'\:as, (19) County ofGoodmg, Idaho, (20) C1tv
of G1and Fork'> 'forth Dakota, (21) County of Hennep111, M111nesota, (22) Ctty of lnclianapol1s,
Ind1ana, (23) County of Jefferson, Alabama, (24) Jeffer.-;on County/City of Lou1svdle, Kentucky
(25) Jersey City \le\v Jersey, (26) Kanawha County, \\est Virgrnia, (27) K111g County, Washington
(28) City of Lakewood Oh10, (29) Citv of Los Angeles Califorrna, (30) City of Lowell
1\tfassachusetts, (11) City of Manchester vew Hampshire, (12) \1ancopa County, Arizona,
03) \:1ecklenburg County ~orth Carol111a (34) The Metropolitan Government of l\iashvdle and
Davidson County, Tennessee (35) Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, (36) Monterey County
Califo1111a, (37) City of i'-.01walk Connecticut, (38) County of Palm Beach f·londa (39) Paterson
City f\iew lersev, (40) City of Phoenrx, A.tizona (41) Pnnce Georges County l\Iarvland
(42) Riverside County altornia, (43) CIt of Saint Paul,Minnesota (44) City of Roanoke Virginia,
(45) County of Rockland, Neu York, (46) City and County of San Francisco Calformua, (47) County
of Smith Texas (48) Countv ofTul,;;a Oklahoma and (49) Wayne County M1ch1gan
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The Court has authonzed the Negotiat10n Cla'>S to negotiate with 11 Defendants (111clud1ng their
affiliates) ( 1) Purdue, (2) Cephalon, (3) Fndo, {--1-) T\lalltnckrodt, ('i) Acta\ 1s, (6) Jan%en,
(7)McKesson (8) Cardinal (9) AmerisourceBergen, (10) CVS Rx Services Inc, (1I) Rite- A1d
C orporat1on, ( 12) Walgreens, and (13) Wal-Mart The "-legot1at1on Class 1s authonz.ed to negotiate
settlements with any of these 13 Defendants on any of the claims or issues identified below in FAQ
7, or other claims or issues an5111g out of the same factual predicate If Class Counsel seek to negotiate
for the Class with any other defendants, they can file a motion askmg the Court to amend the Class
certificatuon ot de
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No No Class settlement ba:c. been reached yet with any Defendant But the existence of a 7\legotiation
Class makes the po::,s1b1ltty of Cla5s settlement more feasible because a Defendant Vvtll know the
group with which 1t 1s negot1atmg There is no guarantee, however that there wtll be a Class
::,ettlement and 1t 1s possible that there will be settlements that do not encompass the Class, such as
settlements between one or more Class Members and one or more Defendants

THE CLASS CLAIMS AND ISSUES

ln this T\/egotiatJon Class, the Court ce1t1fied two federal Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt
Orgamzat1on::, Act(' RlCO'') claims and two federal Controlled Substances Act(' CSA') issues The
RICO clattn5 and the 1ssues related to the CSA are similar across the country and the Class The first
RICO claim alleges that five Defendants misled physicians and the public about the need for and
add1ct1veness of prescnpt1on op101ds, all 111 an effort to mcrease sales The second RICO clam, alleges
that eight Defendants ignored their responsibilities to report and halt suspcous opioid sales, all in an
effort to amficially sustam and mcrease federally-set l11111ts (quotas) on op10id sales lhe CSA issues
allege that the CSA reqmred Defendants to create sy stems to 1dent1fy, suspend, and report unlawful
opoid sales, and that Defendants fatled to meet those obhgat10ns As noted 111 FAQ 5, above, the
Negotiation Class 1s author1zed to negotiate Class 5ettlements concernmg these claims and issues 01
other claims or 1ssue5 ansmg out of the same factual predicate However, this Negotiation Class
does not involve claims by State governments against the Defendants and no Class settlement
will release or otherwise interfere with any State government's current or future litigation This
Negotiation Class concerns claims only of counties and cities. You can read more about these
claims and ssues in the Court sMemorandum Opinion certifying this Class, which is posted at
www podsNegotiatonC'lass info

No The Court has not decided any Classw1de churns or defenses on the men ts and the Court will not
render any Classwide decrstons on the merits of any claims asserted by the Class or individual
Members of 1t By establishing this Negotiaton Class and issuing this notice the Court is not
suggestrng the lass would win or lose this case IhIs Class has been certified for negottatron
purpo:c.es onlv
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WH IS IN 1 HE CL\SS

f'he '\iegot1at10n C l<l-..s 1::, defined a,;;

All counties, parishes, and boroughs (collectively, counties"); and all incorporated places,
including without limitation cities, towns, townships, ,illages, and municipahtie,; (collecfrvely
"cities").

\ complete current list of Class \:)embers is available at ww,,.OpioidsNeg:otiationClass.info.
The list ma) be updated as the Court may order.

The terms counties' and 'cites ate used only as shorthand The Class includes political
subdrvtstons with other names such as parishes villages towns, townships etc The hst of Class
\lembers was de\ 1sed pnmanh, from the L ~ Cem,us Bureau II~ts of governmental entities that
provide sen ices to their residents Check the Cities and C ount1es lists posted on the Class \vebs1te to
confirm whether you are a Negotiation ClassMember

Yes Counties and c1t1es that sue in state court areMembers of this l\egot1at1on Class, with the optlon
to opt out However, nothmg about \llembersh1p 111 the Negotiation Class 111terfe1es with the 11ghts
of any federal or state court plamuffs to p1oceed with then own cases for ht1gat1on, tnal, or mchviclual
c;ettlement Onlv 1f and when a Class settlement has been reached has been approved by 7c,o o of the
votrng Class \:!embers as descnbed 111 FAQ 19 and has been approved by the Court, would Class
\!!embers lose their ability to proceed on their 0\-\11, m exch,mge for the settlement benefits that they
would recerve

Not now and only 1f a Class settlement 1s later reached and approved Your county's or city's
f\/Iembershtp tn the Negotiation Class Will not 1mmed1ately affect any op101d sun it has filed, whether
in Cederal or state c.,ourt It also will not stop your county or city fiom filmg or pursu111g a lawsULt,
and It will not affect any scheduled hearings or tnab 111 any la\.vSu1t Hmvever 1f there is a final Class
settlement, apprmed bv the reqwred 7')0'o of the vot111g Class Members and by the Court the find!
settlement will likely end all other op101ds-related ht1gatlon 61 ought by Class Members In the
meantime you do not need to opt out of the Class to file contmue to prosecute, or settle your own
case, and you mav keep any settlement or judgment you obtain If any county or city obtains a
Judgment or settlement with a Defendant before the ¾egot1at1on Cla~s does, hovvever, it 1,,\11! not
receive add1t1onal compen')at1on through any later Negotaton Class settlement But by rema1rnng rn
the Class, your county or city does risk foregoing its own lawsuit (although it would obtain money
from a Clas<; -,ettlement) 1f a Class settlement 1~ reached and approved

The i\egot1 at1 on Class doe" not direct!\ affect the ht1gat1on or settlement of the cld1 ms of other tvpe-.
of plaintiffs, such as Indian Tribes third party pavois and others that are proceeding in federal or
state courts These plaintiffs can organtze themselves as groups or propose their own lasses, for
trial 01 settlement purposes
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THE NEGOTIATION CLASS PROCESS

!he c1eat1011 of the Negot1at10n Class has these next steps

• On September 11, 2019, Judge Polster, the federal Judge o,erseemg all of the national
opods litigation, certified the Negotiation lass to go for ward

• On 01 before September 20, 2019, Class Act10n l\iottce will be sent via F11~t-Cla:;..s mail and
posted to the Class website www.OpioidsNegotiationClas~.info to all ClassMembers

• ClassMembers have until November 22, 2019 to decide whether to part1c1pate or to opt out
of the Class Th1':, 1;;, the 'opt-out penod" All Clas5 Members aie automatically 1ncludecl Ill
the Class If a Class Member wants to part1C1pate, 1t does not need to do anythmg at this
pornt Only Class Members that wish to exclude themselves ( opt out ) and not par11c1pate
in the Class must act they must submit a copy of the enclosed Exclus1011 Request Form on
or before No"\-ember 22, 2019, u5111g the 111struct1ons 111 FAQ 26

• After the dose of the opt-out penod the Court will enter an order confitmmg the
Membership of the Class saying who 1~ rn and \,\ho 1s out of the Class

• After that, the Cla-;s will operate 1f and only 1f, one or more of the Defendants wishes to
negotiate with the Class as a whole through the Negottat1on Class mecham 5m

e If a proposed Class settlement ts reached, the proposal will be submitted to the entire C!a~'>
Membership fOI its approval or re3ect1011 m acco1dance with the votmg formula (descnbed
in f;AQ 18 and 19 below) If no p1oposed settlement is reached, the Class wtll not vote and
will have no other role

C
C
(/

z
az
C
C
0:
C
C
C.,.
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
('
('
r-­
t
C
C
C
C

&

All Negot1at1on Class l\lembers wtll be given advance notice of any Class settlement offer, mcluchng
details on tts te1 ms and cond1t1ons and they will have an opportu111ty to vote on each settlement offer
Class Members will be able to cast their vote securely through the Class website, which will e._,tabhsh
a votrng 1denttt\' and portal for each ClassMember Only Class settlements achieving 75% approval
votes by number. by allocat1011, and b:y populat10n, of the ht1gat111g and non-ltt1gatmg ClassMembers
that vote (as described 111 FAQ 19) will be submitted to the Cou11, which will make the final
detenrnnation of whether to appove the settlement

Yet:> If there is a proposed settlement that ts approved by 75% of the votmg Class Members as
descnbed in FAQ 18 and 19, the Court will 1ev1ew and decide \-vhether to app1ove 1t under the Class
actron settlement apptoval process set forth mn Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(e) Generally, the
Court will assess whether any settlement 1s fair, rea5onable, and adequate All apphcat10ns for fees
and costs also reqwre court approval under Rule 23 procedures (See
https //www law cornell edu/rules/ficptmle __23 )

Yes As a '\Jegotiatlon Class Member, you will be entitled under Rule 23(e) to object to any
settlement even ft it has iecerved approval from the lass However, as described mn FA027, you

Questions? Visit www.OpioidsNegotiationClass.info
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ill hikelv not be able to exclude yourself from the lass at that tume An objection explainsour
conce111-. to the Court tor its con,1der,1t1on but doe:, not I emm e vou fl om the Class

The 7\egotiat,on ( lass wtll last fo1 ., \ears f1om the elate 1t 1s certified by the ourt The Couti
certified the Class on ~epternber 11 2019 and the "\egotiat10n Class \\11! last until September
I\ 2024 After that date the Class will not eust as an entity with which a Defendant can negotiate
However theegottatuon lass will continue to eust with regard to (I) any (Class settlements
presented to the "\egot1at1on Class rot a \Ote before that date, to canv out the voting and approval
process and (2) any Class settlements reached before that date to complete settlement admunstratuon
and enforcement

VOTl1'G

Fach Class vlernbe, \-viii \Ote onh once on any particular (lass settlement proposal The vote will
simply be \•es-rn-no m favor of or agamst the proposed settlement Class Members that do not \Ote
will not be counted as either ves or no votes, as \Vtth an election for government office in the Untted
States the only votes that are counted are tho:;e of the \-ote1s who actuall'y cast votes Clas'> i\!lembers
\.Otes will be tabulated mechamcally w1th111 each applicable ,,otmg pool to make sure that 75% of
each pool is rn favor of the proposed settlement before It 1s pre~ented to the Court The voting pools,
are described tn F A.Q 19 Votmg tabulat1011 does not requne any eff011 by the ClassMembers The
1eqwrement of 75% support of votrng Class Members across the different vot111g pools ensures that
no settlement will go forwa1d ,-vtthout a w1de cross-sect10n of support from cltte<; and counties of all
s1Les and rnterests

The agreement to be bound by a supermaJonty vote means that no settlement can be reached that
would bind the \legotiatton Cl a::,!:> without the approval of 75% of the voting ClassMembers, defined
Ill several ways To be bmdmg, 75° o of those votrng 111 each of the followmg SI'< categone!) must
apprme a p1 oposed -,ettlement

•

(I

Y2328 I 04

7 5° o of the total number of \Otmg Class Members that had filed suit as of June 14, 20 I 9
("litigating entities) [his number 1s based on all individual ClassMembers who had suits
on file regarclle::-.s ofs1ze so that each ,otmg ent1tv ha~ one vote,

75% of the total number ofvotmg Class Members that had not filed Slllt as of June 14, 2019
( non-htgating entities) [his number is based on all individual ClassMembers who had
not filed suit regardless of size, so that each votmg entity IM!, one vote

7% of the total population of all voting ClassMembers that had filed suit as of June 14,
2019 ror tlm, cornputat1on, the ,,ote of the county or city 1s v,,e1ghted acc01dtng to its
population \1,,1th each pe1s011 in a vottng city and each per::.on 111 d votrng county equal to one
vote Thus by way of example, if a count'y votes yes and ha:. a populatton of 20 000, and a
cw,. w1thrn the county votes yes and ha:, a population of 10 000 the countv s vote 1s vve1ghted
as 20,000 vote::, m favor and the city s vote !', recorded a:, 10,000 votes in favor The
population for each Countv 01 City will be based on current census data The current data 1s

presented on the Class website, www.Opioids NegotiationClass.info Individual residents
111 till'> categorv mav be counted h\1te once cl'> a resident of a mun1c1pal1ty, and once cl'> a
restdent of a count

Questions? Visit www.OpioidsNegotiationClass.info
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• 7;:;.,o10 of the total populat1on of all votmg Cla'>5 l\lembe1:. that had not tiled suit as ol June l-l-
2O 19 For this computat1 on the vote ot the county 01 c, ty Is weighted accord1 ng to I ts
population, with each person in a voling citv and each person in a voting county equal to one
vote Thus by way of example, if a county votes and has a population of 20 000, and a cit
within the county votes ves and has a population of 10,000, the county's vote is weighted as
20,000 votes in favor, and the city 's vote is recorded as 10,000 votes in favor Again the
population for each County or 1ty will be based on cunent censu'> data The current data'"
presented on the Cla,;;s website nww.Opioids'legotiationClass.mfo lnd1,,1dual res1denb
in this category may be counted twice, one as a resident of a muntupalrtv and once as a
resident of a countv

• 7r:,o o of the 1It1gatrng Cla:,:c, \lembers castmg \.Otes ,ve1ghted by their settlement rund
allocat10115 as shown at the Allocat1011 Map posted at op101clsnegot1at1onclass info and

• 75% of the non-lttigatmg ClassMembers casting votes, weighted by theu settlement fund
allocat1ons as shown at the Allocat1011 \,'lap posted at op101dsnegotiat1oncla-,:i mfo

For purposes of counting votes. only votes cast will be considered. In 01der for a proposed
settlement to be bmdmg on the Negotiat1on Class, 75% of those Class Member<; who cast votes Ill each
of these :i1x categories must be 111 favor No settlement will be submitted to the Court for final approval
unless 75°% of those voting in each of the six categories are in favor vo county or city that is not a
ClassMember as of the deadlrne for a vote on cl proposal will be allowed to vote on that proposal
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ALLOCATION OF CLASS SETTLEMENT FUNDS

Any Class settlement funds will be d1stnbuted m three steps

Step I Each county s share ot the settlement will be d1c;tnbuted 111 accordance with an' allocation
model" The allocat1on model uses three factors based on reltable, detailed, and obJect1ve national
data to dete1m111c the c;hare ofa settlement fund that each county will receive These factors address
the mo-;t cnt1cal cauc;es and effects of the op101ds cns1s, and are each weighted equal ly( I i3- l 3- l /3)
( l) the amount of op101ds d1:,tnbuted \.\1th111 the county, (2) the number of opod deaths that occuned
111 the county, and (1) the number of people who 5uffer op1rnd uc;e d1sorde1 111 the county Tl11S model
1s de-;1gned not to favor etthe1 small or large counties ba:c.ecl c;olely on populc1t10n Utimately, the
model allocates settlement funcb 111 proport10n to where the op101cl cns1:, has cau::.ed actual harm
.\'tep 2 Counties and their constituent c1t1es, towns, and boroughs mav chstnbute the funds allocated
to the county among all of the JUrtschct1ons III dnv manner they choose If the county and c1t1es cannot
ctgree on how to allocate the funds, the Clas-. weh-;1te 1eflect<; a default allocation that will apply The
detault allocat1on formula uses h1stoncal federal data '>howmg how the speufic county and the c1t1e~
w1thrn 1t ha\e made op101d5-related expenditures 111 the past Any of the affected 1unsd1ct1011s may
ask a SpecialMaster to apply a different formula

Step 3 If the default allocation 1s used and a city'.., share 1s le'>'> than $500, then t!Mt amount will
1mtead be d1\t11butecl to the countv 111 which the city lie5 to allmv pract1cdl applKatlon of the
abdtement 1emedy L\ffected utte!:> could <..eek recover\ th1ough mtrct-county allocation described 111

Step 2 or from the Clas:, '\!embers' Special 1\eecl.;, Fund (see f-\Q 24) tn the 1<1re c1rcurnc;tance that
c1 city with a share ot less than $500 les 1n a county that does not have a county government the
amount would instead go to the Cla5:. Members Speetal T\ieed~ hmd and Class memberc; could seel
recm erv f10111 thc1t r und
Further information about the allocation toimulas and then data sources are available at the (lass website
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·21. Whathappens it a county and its constituent citles make different'd&@lsjgnisab@jt
, ·. stayins in the Class? . 4; ·e #- . f•» es.8rs ' A sd?

• If a county and all of its constituent cities remain in the Class, each entity's share will be
determined as explained in FAQ 20

• If a county remains in the Class, but one or more cities within the County are not in the Class,
there are a variety ofways that a Class settlement might address that situation, but it is possible
that a Class settlement would require that the County's allocation be reduced

• If a county is not in the Class, but cities within that county remain in the Class, there are a
variety ofways a Class settlement might address that situation One possibility is that a ct ty
would receive no direct monetary allocation because its county has opted out, but that it could
seek monetary relief through the Special Needs Fund (see FAQ 24) If a settlement provides
a city no possibility of monetary relief because its county has opted out, Class Counsel
anticipates the city would not be required to release its claims against the settling Defendant.

The Negotiation Class process does not interfere with a Defendant's ability to settle directly with one
or more States If a Defendant reaches a settlement directly with a State, nothing about this
Negotiation Class process would affect the distribution of those settlement funds between the State
and its own cities or counties The Court has explicitly ordered that the Class's lawyers not involve
themselves or the Class in the process ofallocatingmonies secured by States between themselves and
their counties and cities

Negotiation Class Representatives do not receive preferential treatment under any settlement simply
for serving as Class Representatives Their allocation will be calculated in precisely the same manner
as every other Class Member's However, they can apply to the Court for reimbursement of costs
and expenses incurred by reason of serving as Class Representatives Also, courts often award a
modest amount to Class Representatives, called an incentive or service award, so as to encourage
Class Representatives to step forward on behalf of others Any such awards are subject to Class
notice and Court approval

Fifteen percent (15%) of any Class settlement fund will be put into the "Special Needs Fund" Any
Class Member may apply for a distribution from the Special Needs Fund (1) to recover its costs of
litigating its own opioids lawsuit, if that case was filed before June 14, 2019, and/or (2) to obtain
additional relief for any local impact of the opioids crisis that is not captured by the Class Member's
allocation Applications will be made to and approved by a court-appointed Special Master, on a
case-by-case basis Any unawarded amount remaining in this Special Needs Fund would revert to
the Class

YOURRIGHTSAND OPTIONS

Yes You have a one-time opportunity to exclude your county or city frnm the Class and you must
do so before November 22, 2019 You must follow the procedme set forth in FAQ 26 below to

Questions? Visit www.piofdsNegotiationClass.info
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exclude your county or city As explained in FAQ 27, you will likely not be given a second
opportunity to exclude your county or city from the Class if a settlement is later reached and you
should not count on such an opportunity being available at that time
·¢«sos««! vat . - - -s-·- a#tGE'Eggkg'ggd7keg a"26;ow'doesmy county or city/exclude itselffrom theNegotiation era@s2#ft#Ra}
" ; » • - s skie. e Ng,, ..AU et

You may exclude your county or city ("opt out") by signing and sending, either by email or by first­
class US mail, the enclosed Exclusion Request Form

• If submitted by email, the form must be sent to info@OpioidsNegotiatonClass.info on or
before November 22, 2019

• If submitted by mail, the form must be postmarked on or before November 22, 2019 and
sent by first-class US mail to

NPO Litigation
PO Box 6727

Portland, OR 97228-6727

The Exclusion Request Form must be signed by an authorized oflicial or employee of the county or
city itself, under penalty of perjury pursuant to 28 U SC 6 1746, and is subject to verification by the
Court If you exclude your county or city from theNegotiation Class, your county or city will not be
bound by any Orders or Judgments regarding the Class, and it will have no ngbt to share in any
settlement reached by the Class

Not under the current Court Order The Court's Order certifying the Negotiation Class provides only
one opportunity for a county or city to exclude itself from the Class The exclusion deadline ends on
November 22, 2019 If a settlement is reached and proposed to the Class for its approval, Class
Members who do not support the settlement may (I) vote against it and/or, (2) if the settlement is
nonetheless approved by the Class votes, file objections with the Court Rule 23 permits a court to
offer a second opportunity for Class Members to opt out when a settlement ts prnposed, but the Rule
does not require the Court to give Class Members a second opportunity to opt out In this case, 1t is
anticipated that the Court will not give Class Members a second opportunity to opt out Therefore,
Class Members should not rely on that possibility Class Members should expect that there will be
no opportunity to opt out of the Class after November 22, 2019

THE LAWYERS REPRESENTING THE CLASS

The Court has authorized the following six lawyers to jointly represent the Negotiation Class Jayne
Conroy and Christopher A Seeger are Co-Lead Negotiation Class Counsel and Gerard Stranch,
Louise Renne, Mark Flessner, and Zachary Carter are Negotiation Class Counsel Each of these six
lawyers represents only cities or counties in Opioids-related litigation

Class Counsel will apply to the Court for approval of fees and costs under Rule 23(h) As a Class
Member, you will receive notice and have an opportunity to obJect to any such application The Court
may appoint fee committees to make recommendations of any fee awards, to avoid duplicatton of
payment, and to ensure appropriate compensation of those whose efforts provided a common benefit
The Court will make the final decision about all fees paid out of the Class's recovery to any lawyer

Questions? Visit www.OpioldsNegotlatlonClass.lnfo
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The current fee agreement that a county or city has with its outside counsel remains in effect
Membership in the Negotiation Class does not change that In the event of any settlement that
achieves Class and Court approval, there would be a "Pnvate Attorneys Fund" from \.Vh1ch outside
counsel for Class Members that had signed retainer agreements for opioid epidemic-related litigation
before June 14, 2019 could apply for fees and costs in lieu of any current fee agreement That would
be a voluntary decision between the county or city and its outside counsel A total of up to 10%
(maximum) of any approved Class settlement amount will be held m the Private Attorneys Fund
Any unawarded amount remaining in this Fund would revert to the Class The Court must approve
all payments from this Fund

GETTING MORE INFORMATION
}-«,' e·«n • - - s &egg"r,a se34Hojar.my county or Cityeep upwith what's going oninthis case?fggt@a}
Pertinent news and information will be posted at the Class website,
www.OpioidsNegotiationClass.info on an ongoing basis As a Class Member, you also will have
the opportunity to sign up, through the Class website, for email notices alerting you to the fact that
new information has been posted to the Class website

DO NOT WRITE OR CALL THE COURT OR THE
CLERK'S OFFICE FOR INFORMATION

DATE September 11, 2019

Y23212 v 04

Questions? Visit www.OpioidsNegotlatlonClass.lnfo
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IF YOUWANT TO EXCLUDE YOUR COUNTY OR CITY
YOU MUST ACT BY NOVEMBER 22, 2019

EXCLUSION REQUEST FORM
Read this page carefully then turn to Page 2 if you want to sign and send

Complete this form ONLY if your County or City does NOT want to remain a Class Member
and does not want to share in any potential negotiated Class settlement. If your County or City
does not complete and submit this form, it will be deemed to be a Class Member so long as it is a
County or City in the United States as those tenns are described in the Class Notice and is on the list
of Class Members found at www OpioidsNegotiationClass info

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

X----------------

In re NATIONAL PRESCRIPTION
OPIATE LITIGATION

1 17-md-2804 (DAP)

---------------- X

Class Notice Administrator
NPO Litigation
PO Box 6727
Portland, OR 97228-6727

Dear Class Notice Administrator

My County or City does NOT want to be a member of the Negotiation Class certified in the In re
National Prescription Opate Ltigaton I understand that by completing the information requested
on page 2, signing, and submitting a copy of this form by email (to the email address on page 2) sent
on or before November 22, 2019 OR by first-class US matl (to the mailing address on page 2) post­
marked on or before November 22, 2019,I am opting my County or City out of the Negotiation Class
and it will NOT be a Class Member I understand that by timely submitting this form, my County or
City is foregoing the right to share in any Class settlement that may be obtained I understand that
my County or City is NOT guaranteed an opportunity to opt back in if there is a Class settlement, so
this is our final decision I also understand that by opting out, my County or City will not be bound
by any judgment entered as part of any Class settlement

I understand that if my jurisdiction is a Class Member and wants to remain a Class Member, it does
not need to do anything now I understand that I should NOT return this Exclusion Request Form if
my jurisdiction wants to remain a Class Member

I understand that, if I have any quest10ns, I may contact Class Counsel at 1-877-221-7468, or
visit www OpioidsNegotiationClass info BEFORE I mail this form to you and BEFORE
November 22, 2019.

TURN TO PAGE 2 IF YOU WANT TO SIGN EXCLUSION/OPT-OUT FORM
AND FOR EMAIL AND MAILING ADDRESSES

Y9181 v01
PAGE 1 S



I llllll lllll 111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 IIIII IIIII 11111111
'4539001033813

IF YOUWANT TO EXCLUDE YOUR COUNTY OR CITY
YOUMUST ACT BY NOVEMBER 22, 2019

EXCLUSION REQUEST FORM
Read Information on Page 1 carefully before signing

Having read and understood the information on page I, the County or City (circle one) entitled

-in the State ofhereby excludes itself

from the Negotiation Class certified by the United States District Court in the Northern District of

Ohio in In re National Prescription Opate Litigation, MDL 2804 Under penalty of perjury and in

accordance with 28 U SC 6 1746, I declare that I am an official or employee authorized to take legal

action on behalf ofmy County or City

Signature

Print name

Title

City or County Represented _ (Circle one) City/ County

Address --------------------------------

City _ State· ------ Zip Code

Phone.Email· -------------------

Date

EMAIL TO:

BY NOVEMBER 22, 2019

OR SENDBY
FIRST CLASS MAIL TO:

Info@OpioidsNegotiationClass info NPO Litigation
PO Box 6727
Portland, OR 97228-6727

Y9182 vf pr 9
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REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING DATE

11-05-19

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee of the Whole
Recommendations

ITEM NUMBER

G,18,

Recommendation from the Committee of the Whole Meeting of November 4, 2019:
Johns Disposal Services, Inc. Contract Amendment Options to Provide Weekly Recycling
and Automated Garbage Services.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As directed

CLERK.DEPT



G.48.
City of Franklin, WI
Solid Waste Fund
2020 Options

6-Nov-19

Current

Man Garb
Bi Wkly
Recycling

Man Garb
Weekly
Recycling

Auto Garb
Bi Wkly
Recycling

Auto Garb
Weekly
Recycling

# of Units
Rev Inc 11369 129,607 315,149 129,607 315,149

Cost Inc
Recycling 11369 129,607 315,149 129,607 315,149

19 0341 5284

Johns letter With CPI
Garbage 62.70 63.89 62.70 62.70 62 70 62.70
Recycling 33.48 34.12 44.88 61.20 44.88 61.20
Total/Unit 96.18 98.01 107.58 123.90 107.58 123.90

Fee Increase 1 83 11.40 27 72 11 40 27 72

2019Fee 106.95 106.95 106.95 106.95
2020 Solid Waste Fee to residents 118.35 134.67 118.35 134.67

l:\41803 VOL1 Finance\BUDGET\2020 Budget\Working Files\[Solid Waste Fund Collection Options xlsx]Second E

L:41803 VOL1 Finance\BUDGET\2020 Budget\Working Files\Solid Waste Fund Collection
Options



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

November 5, 2019

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Tax Incremental District No. 6 Mixed-Use Industrial,
Commercial, Retail, Single-Family Residential and Open
Space Uses (of an approximate 164-acre site generally
located north and south ofWest Loomis Road, south of

West Ryan Road, west of South 112th Street, east of South
124th Street and north ofWest Oakwood Road) Project

Development; Tax Incremental Distnct No 6 Development
Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Loomis and
Ryan, Inc.; Acknowledgement ofDevelopment Agreement
by Strauss Investments, LLC; Tax Assessment Agreement

(Tax Incremental District No. 6) between the City of
Franklin and Strauss Investments, LLC. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis Stat. §
19.85(1)(e), to deliberate upon the Tax Incremental District
No. 6 Mixed-Use Industrial, Commercial, Retail, Single­

Family Residential and Open Space Uses Project
Development, the Tax Incremental District No. 6

Development Agreement Between the City of Franklin
and Loomis and Ryan, Inc., the Acknowledgement of
Development Agreement by Strauss Investments, LLC,
and the Tax Assessment Agreement (Tax Incremental
District No. 6) between the City of Franklin and Strauss
Investments, LLC terms and status, the negotiation of
provisions and terms and the mvesting of public funds
in relation thereto, for competitive and bargaming
reasons, and to reenter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed

therein as it deems appropriate

ITEM NUMBER

G.1A.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19 85(1 )(e), to deliberate upon the Tax Incremental
District No. 6 Mixed-Use Industrial, Commercial, Retail, Single-Family Residential and Open Space Uses
Project Development, the Tax Incremental District No 6 Development Agreement Between the City of
Franklin and Loomis and Ryan, Inc., the Acknowledgement of Development Agreement by Strauss
Investments, LLC, and the Tax Assessment Agreement (Tax Incremental District No. 6) between the City of
Franklin and Strauss Investments, LLC terms and status, the negotiation of provisions and terms and the
investing ofpublic funds in relation thereto, for competitive and bargaining reasons, and to reenter open session
at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therem as 1t deems appropriate.

Economic Development Dept.: CB; Finance Dept.: Paul; Legal Services Dept Jw
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

November 5, 2019

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Potential commercial/industrial/manufacturing
development(s) and proposal(s) and potential

development(s) agreement(s) in relation thereto for the
+/- 73 acres propert(ies) at the Southwest corner of South
27th Street and West Oakwood Road. The Common

Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
19.85(1)(e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to
potential commercial/industrial/manufacturing

development(s) and proposal(s) and the investing of
public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto
and to effect such development(s), including the terms

and provisions ofpotential development agreement(s) for
the development of+/- 73 acres propert(ies) at the
Southwest corner of South 27th Street and West

Oakwood Road, and to reenter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed

therein as it deems appropriate

ITEM NUMBER

Department of City Development and Engineering, Administration, Finance and Legal Services departments
staffwill be present at the meeting.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 19.85(1)e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to potential commercial/industrial/manufacturing
development(s) and proposal(s) and the investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto
and to effect such development(s), including the terms and provisions of potential development agreement(s)
for the development of +/- 73 acres propert(ies) at the Southwest corner of South 27th Street and West
Oakwood Road, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate.

Economic Development Dept.: CB; Legal Services Dept. jw
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

November 5, 2019

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Potential development and proposal and potential
development agreement by and with ZS Enterprises,

LLC for Franklin Corporate Park property located on the
south side ofWest Elm Road in the approximately 3500
block area were West Elm Road to be extended to the
west, consisting of approximately 79.79 acres and
bearing Tax Key No. 979-9997-000. The Common

Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. §
19.85(l)(e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to

potential development and proposal and the investing of
public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto
and to effect such development, including the terms and
provisions of a potential development agreement for the
development ofproperty located on the south side of
West Elm Road in the approximately 3500 block area
were West Elm Road to be extended to the west,

consisting of approximately 79.79 acres and bearing Tax
Key No. 979-9997-000, and to reenter open session at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed

therein as it deems appropriate

ITEM NUMBER

Department of City Development and Engineering, Finance and Legal Services departments staff will be
present at the meeting.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to potential development and proposal and the investing of
public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such development, including the terms
and provisions of a potential development agreement for the development of property located on the south side
of West Elm Road in the approximately 3500 block area were West Elm Road to be extended to the west,
consisting of approximately 79.79 acres and bearing Tax Key No. 979-9997-000, and to reenter open session at
the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Engineering Dept.: GEM; Economic Development Dept.: CB



blank page



APPROVAL

slo /
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION
MEETING DATE

11/5/19

Bills Vouchers and Payroll Approval
ITEM NUMBER

Ht.
Attached are vouchers dated October 11, 2019 through November 1, 2019 Nos 175756 through
Nos 175970 mn the amount of$ 5,926,490 26 Included in this listing are EFT's Nos 4131 through
Nos 4147 Library vouchers totaling $ 29,814 74, Water Utility vouchers totaling $ 34,145 39 and
Property Tax refunds in the amount of$ 1,245 93 Voided checks in the amount of$ (1,789 93) are
separately listed

Summary of large distributions

American Deposit Management $ 2,048,000 00
Knight Barry $419,050 72

Milw Metro Sewer $637,254 72
Seagave Fire Apparatus $633,196 00

Tl Investors $833,335 00
All other distributions 1,355,653.82
Total Distributions $5,926,490.26

Knight Barry draw #18 in the amount of $ 2,095,252 72 was approved at the Council meeting on
October 1, 2019 The balance of $ 419,050 72 was pad and is included in this distribution

Early release disbursements dated October 11, 2019 through October 31, 2019 1n the amount of
$ 3,275,601 12 are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement
listing These payments have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

The net payroll dated October 25, 2019 is $ 395,574 05 previously estimated at$ 393,000 00 Payroll
deductions dated October 25, 2019 are$ 416,640 62 previously estimated at$ 416,000 00

The estimated payroll for November 8, 2019 is $ 399,000 00 with estimated deductions and matching
payments of$ 211,000 00

Attached is a list of property tax payments Check Nos 17906 through Nos 17907 dated October 12,
2019 through October 31, 2019 rn the amount of$ 4,327 14 These payments have been released as
authorized under Resolution 2013-6920

Approval to release payment to Knight Barry in the amount of$ 24,904 53



Approval to release payments for Ballpark Commons project draws pending conditions precedent
per the Developer's Agreement and review and approval of the Director of Finance & Treasurer

TIO 7 June Expenditures $355,416 70
TIO 7 July Expenditures $125,644 48
TIO 5 June - Sept Expenditures $ 2,005,280 93

TOTAL $2,486,342.11

Approval to release Amencan Deposit Management investment transfer in the amount of $1,700,000 00

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of November 1, 2019 in the amount of$ 5,926,490 26 and

• Payroll dated October 25, 2019 in the amount of$ 395,574 05 and payments of the various
payroll deductions in the amount of $ 416,640 62 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated November 8, 2019 in the amount of$ 399,000 00 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of$ 211,000 00, plus City matching payments and

• Property Tax payments with an ending date of October 31, 2019 in the amount
of$ 4,327 14 and

• Knight Barry payment in the amount of$ 24,904 53 and

• Ballpark Commons project draws in the amount of$ 2,486,342 11 and

• American Deposit Management investment transfer in the amount of $1,700,000 00

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept -- KM



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

sbw COUNCIL ACTION 11/5/19

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS I. 1.

See attached listing from meeting of November 5, 2019.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
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W I S C ON S I N

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda
Aldermen's Room

November 5, 2019 - 5:55 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Applicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Aoolicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Class B Beer Marcus Cinemas of Wisconsin, LLC
2019-2020 DBA Marcus Showtime Cinema6:00 p.m.

8910 S 102 St
Michael D Ridqwav, Aqent

Operator Frybarger, Alexandra-Elexis A
2019-2020 10074 W Loomis RdNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Hideaway Pub & Eatery

Operator Hanson, Trinity A
2019-2020 3842 W Forest Hill AveNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Walgreens #05884

Operator Henderson, Shantasia L
2019-2020 5814 W Coldspring Rd #109New

Greenfield, WI 53220
Chili's Grill & Bar

Operator McCoy, Katie A
2019-2020 6145 S Cory AveNew

Cudahy, WI 53110
Milwaukee Burger Company

Operator Otto, Lori A
2019-2020 5967 Oriole LaneNew

Greendale, WI 53129
Rawson Pub

Operator Risacher Cavros, Jean M
2019-2020 4620 W Anita LnNew

Franklin, WI 53132
Hampton Inn & Suites

People Uniting for the Fleet Reserve Association Branch 14 - St Martins
Betterment of Life and FairInvestment in the
Community (PUBLIC) Fee Waivers: St. Martins Fair Permit

Grant Date of the Event(s): Sept 6-7, 2020
Location: St. Martins Labor Day Fair

People Uniting for the Franklin Civic Celebration
Betterment of Life and Fee Waivers: Operator's Licenses, Temporary Class B BeerInvestment in the
Community (PUBLIC) & Wine License, Temporary Entertainment & Amusement

Grant License, Soda License, and Park Permits.
Date of Event: 7/3/20- 7/5/20
Location: Franklin City Hall, Lons Legend Park 1

Page 1 of2



Lacense Committee Agenda
Alderman's Room
November 5, 2019

Type/ Time Annlicant Information Approve Hold Deny
People Uniting for the Franklin Park Concerts - Free Concerts
Betterment of Life and Fee Waivers: Park Permits, Band Shell Fees, TemporaryInvestment in the
Community (PUBLIC) Entertainment and Amusement License

Grant Date of Events: 6/28/20, 7/12/20, 7/26/20, 8/09/20, and
8/23/20
Location: Lions Leaend Park 1

3. Adiournment

Time
Notice 1s given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting

Page 2 of2
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